SIEMENS

SIMODRIVE 1FN1- and 1FN3-SL-type linear motors

Configuration Manual

Valid forMotorDrive Converters1FN1SIMODRIVE 611digital/611universal1FN3-SLSIMODRIVE 611digital/611universal

Edition 01.06

Safety Instructions !

General information ALL about 1FN1 and 1FN3 linear motors

1FN1-type motors 1FN1

1FN3-type peak- 1FN3 load motors

General information CON about connection systems

Appendix

ABC

SIMODRIVE® Documentation

Printing history

Brief details of this edition and previous editions are listed below.

The status of each version is indicated by the code in the "Remarks" columns.

Status code in the "Remarks" column:

- Α.... New documentation.
- В.... Unrevised reprint with new order number
- С.... Revised edition with new version.

Edition	Order No.	Comments
06.99	6SN1197-0AB70-0BP0	А
10.00	6SN1197-0AB70-0BP1	С
11.01	6SN1197-0AB70-0BP2	С
03.02	6SN1197-0AB70-0BP3	С
06.02	6SN1197-0AB70-0BP4	С
10.05	6SN1197-0AB70-0BP5	
01.06	6SN1197-0AB70-0BP6	С

Starting in April 2006, this manual will be included in the documentation on CD ROM (DocOnCD)

Edition	Order No.	Comments
current	6FC5298-0CD00-0BG0	С

Registered Trademarks

SIMATIC®, SIMATIC HMI®, SIMATIC NET®, SIROTEC®, SINUMERIK®, SIMODRIVE®, and Thermo-Sandwich® are registered trademarks of Siemens AG. Other names used in this publication may be trademarks, which, if used by third parties for their own means, may violate the rights of the respective owners.

Additional information is available in the Internet under: www.siemens.com/motioncontrol	The controller may support functions that are not described in this documentation. This does not, however, represent an obligation to supply such functions with a
This publication was produced with MS Word 2000.	new control or when servicing.
The distribution and duplication of this document or the	Although we have checked the contents of this
utilization and transmission of its contents are not	publication for agreement with the hardware and software
permitted without express written permission. Offenders	described, differences cannot be totally ruled out. Since
will be liable for damages. All rights, including rights	deviations cannot be precluded entirely, we cannot
created by patent grant or registration or a utility model or	guarantee complete conformance. The information given
design, are reserved.	in this publication is reviewed at regular intervals and any corrections that might be necessary are made in the
© Siemens AG 2006. All Rights Reserved.	subsequent printings. We welcome any suggestions for improvement.
	We reserve the right to make technical changes.
Order No. 6SN1107 0AB70 0BD6	Sigmons Aktiongosollschaft

Order No. 6SN1197-0AB70-0BP6 Printed in the Federal Republic of Germany Siemens-Aktiengesellschaft.

Preface

This document is part of the Technical Customer Documentation which has been developed for the SIMODRIVE system. All of the documents are available individually. The documentation list, which includes all Advertising Brochures, Catalogs, Overviews, Short Descriptions, Operating Instructions and Technical Descriptions with Order No., ordering address and price can be obtained from your local Siemens office.

This document does not purport to cover all details or variations in equipment, nor to provide for every possible contingency to be met in connection with installation, operation or maintenance.

We would also like to point out that the contents of this document are neither part of nor modify any prior or existing agreement, commitment or contractual relationship. The sales contract contains the entire obligation of Siemens. The warranty conditions specified in the contract between the parties is the sole warranty of Siemens. Any statements contained herein neither create new warranties nor modify the existing warranty.

Objectives

This Planning Guide provides

- Basic information about the implementation of linear motors in machine tools and automation systems
- Information about planning and designing systems including linear motors
- 1FN1 product specifications
- 1FN3-type (1FN3-SL) peak-load motors specifications

It is thus intended for planning engineers designing linear motor based drives, electricians, technicians, and service personnel.

Guidelines for Use

This manual is divided into several sections whose main topics are listed immediately following the cover sheet:

- Safety Guidelines (!)
- General Information about 1FN1 and 1FN3 (ALL) Linear Motors
- 1FN1-type (1FN1) Motors
- 1FN3-type (1FN3) Peak-Load Motors
- General Information about Connection Systems (CON)
- Appendix (ABC)

Each of the indicated sections begins with a table of contents listing the individual chapters of each section.

The header on every page indicates the version, the section title, and the number and title of the respective chapter. The footer contains consecutive page numbers.

For better orientation this document also includes an index and bibliography.

Special Notes

Besides the Danger and Warning Concept explained in chapter 1, this documentation also contains additional notes:

Important

This symbol is used in the documentation if reference is made to important information and data.

Note

in this document indicates important information about the product or the respective part of the documentation that is essential to highlight.

Manufacturer recommendations

This section contains third-party product recommendations whose general suitability we know. It goes without saying that equivalent products from other manufacturers may be used. Our recommendations are to be seen as helpful information, not as requirements or dictates. We cannot accept any liability for the quality and properties/features of third-party products.

For contact information of the listed manufacturers see the Appendix B.

Dimensions

All dimensions are subject to production-related effects. This is the reason why they cannot be guaranteed or only within the specified tolerances.

Information about this Printed Edition

This Planning Guide is designed for double-sided printing. It can be printed in black and white without the risk of data loss.

Contact Addresses in Case of Questions

If you have any questions, please contact the following Hotline:

- Phone.: +49 (0) 180 50 50-222
- Fax: +49 (0) 180 50 50–223
- Internet: http://www.siemens.com/automation/support-request

Please send any questions about the documentation (e.g. suggestions for improvement, corrections) to the following fax number or e-mail address:

- Fax: +49 (0) 9131 98-63315
- Fax form: Refer to the correction sheet at the end of the document
- E-mail: motioncontrol.docu@siemens.com

Additional support

We also offer introductory courses to help you familiarize yourself with the implementation and commissioning of linear motors. For additional information, contact your regional training center or the central training center in D-90027 Nuremberg, phone +49 (0)911/895-3202.

Notes

Safety Guidelines



1

Notes

Table of Contents

1	Dang	er and Warning Concept	1-5
2	Gene	ral Safety Guidelines	2-6
	2.1	Personnel Requirements	. 2-6
	2.2	Use for the Intended Purpose	. 2-7
	2.3 2.3.1	Danger from Strong Magnetic Fields First Aid in the Case of Accidents Involving Permanent Magnets	. 2-8 . 2-9
	2.4	Posting of Warning Signs	. 2-9
3	Spec	ial Safety Guidelines	3-10
	3.1	Guidelines for Storage and Transport	3-10
	3.2	Guidelines for Installation	3-11
	3.3	Guidelines for Electrical Connection	3-12
	3.4	Guidelines for Commissioning	3-12
	3.5	Guidelines for Operation	3-13
	3.6 3.6.1 3.6.2 3.6.3	Guidelines for Maintenance, Service, and Repair Maintenance Service and Repair Guidelines for Inspecting the Insulation Resistance (High Voltage Test)	3-14 3-14 3-14 3-15
	3.7	Guidelines for Disposal	3-15



Notes

1 Danger and Warning Concept

The following signs are used in this documentation to alert you to dangers.

Danger



This symbol appears whenever death, serious bodily injury or property damage **will occur** if you fail to take the necessary precautions.



Warning

This symbol appears whenever death, serious bodily injury or property damage **may occur** if you fail to take the necessary precautions.



Caution

This symbol appears whenever minor bodily injury or property damage **may occur** if you fail to take the necessary precautions.

Caution

This warning (without the warning triangle) means that property damage **may occur** if you fail to take the necessary precautions.

Attention

This warning means that failure to heed the instructions **can** lead to an undesirable result or condition.

2 General Safety Guidelines

These safety guidelines apply for handling linear motors and their components. Please read this chapter carefully in order to avoid accidents and/or property damage.

Danger



There is a danger of death, serious bodily injury, and/or property damage if the safety guidelines and instructions are not heeded and complied with.

It is imperative to observe the safety guidelines in this Planning Guide – also the very specific safety guidelines in the individual chapters!

Observe all warning and instruction signs!

Make sure that your end product satisfies all the pertinent standards and legal specifications! The relevant applicable national, local, and machine-specific safety regulations and requirements must also be taken into account!

In addition to the safety guidelines included in this Planning Guide, the detailed specifications in the catalogs and offers also apply to the special motor versions.

When working with the converter system, be sure to follow the respective operating instructions!

2.1 Personnel Requirements

Qualified personnel in the sense of this publication and the warnings on the product refers to persons familiar with the installation, assembly, commissioning, and operation of the product and appropriately qualified to perform the tasks assigned to them through:

- training or instruction and authorization to switch circuits and devices on and off, earth and label them according to safety standards
- training or instruction according to safety standards in the care and use of • appropriate safety equipment
- training in first aid measures

Danger



There is danger of death, serious bodily injury, and/or property damage when untrained personnel is allowed to handle linear motors and/or their components.

Only personnel familiar with and observing the safety guidelines are allowed to handle linear motors and their components.

Installation, commissioning, operation, and maintenance may only be performed by qualified, trained and instructed personnel. The personnel must be thoroughly familiar with the content of this Guide.

In case of danger of crushing due to strong magnetic fields (see chapter 2.3), all work must be performed by at least two persons.

Important

Make sure that the information about the sources of danger and the safety measures is available at all times! Keep all the descriptions and safety guidelines concerning three-phase linear motors and their components if possible!

All descriptions and safety guidelines can also be requested from the motor manufacturer.

2.2 Use for the Intended Purpose

Danger

 \triangle

There is a danger of death, serious bodily injury, and/or serious property damage when linear motors or their components are used for a purpose for which they were not intended.

Linear motors are designed for industrial or commercial machines. They comply with the norms stated in the Declaration of Conformity. It is prohibited to use these products in areas where there is a risk of explosion (Ex-zone) unless they are designed expressly for this purpose (observe the separately enclosed additional instructions where applicable). If increased demands (e.g. touch protection) are made in special cases – for use in non-commercial systems – these conditions must be ensured on the machine side during installation.

Linear motors and their components may only be used for the applications specified by the manufacturer. Please contact your Siemens branch if you have any questions on this matter.

Special versions and design variants whose specifications vary from the linear motors described herein are subject to consultation with the manufacturer.

The motors are designed for an ambient temperature range of -5° C to $+40^{\circ}$ C. Any alternative requirements specified on the rating plate must be noted! The onsite conditions must comply with the rating plate specifications and the condition specifications contained in this Planning Guide.

Note

The recommendations given in this Planning Guide are for third-party products which we know to be generally suitable. It goes without saying that equivalent products from other manufacturers may be used. Our recommendations are to be seen as helpful information, not as requirements or dictates. We cannot accept any liability for the quality and properties/features of third-party products.

Following the results of a risk analysis, additional protection equipment on the machine or the system is necessary to avoid endangering persons. With this, especially the programming, configuration, and wiring of the inserted I/O modules have to be executed, in accordance with the necessary risk analysis identified safety performance. It must be ensured that the device is correctly used.

The proper use of the device has to be verified with a function test on the system. With this, programming, configuration, and wiring errors can be identified. The test results must be documented, and, if required, entered into the relevant documents that prove safety.

2.3 Danger from Strong Magnetic Fields

Strong magnetic fields occur in the secondary sections of linear motors due to the permanent magnets they contain. The magnetic field strength of linear motors results exclusively from the magnetic fields of the secondary sections in the deenergized state. In addition, primary sections will produce electromagnetic fields during operation.

Danger



Strong magnetic fields can directly affect persons and cause damage.

The BGR B11 "Electromagnetic Fields" must be observed in the Federal Republic of Germany! In other countries the relevant applicable national and local regulations and requirements must be taken into account.

The handling of linear motors or secondary sections is generally prohibited for all persons with pacemakers, metallic implants, and foreign objects that conduct electricity or magnetism. A medical report is required for any exceptions to this ruling. Unique access controls must be put in place according to the magnetic fields at the place of work, and the boundaries of the permissible areas must be clearly identified.

Attraction Forces on Magnetizable Materials

Humans have no sensory organs for picking up strong magnetic fields and have no experience with them as a rule. Therefore, the magnetic attraction forces emanating from strong magnetic fields are often underestimated.

The magnetic attraction forces may be several kN in the vicinity of secondary sections (within a distance of less than 100 mm). – That is equivalent to crushing your foot with a weight of several 100 kg.

Danger



Strong attraction forces on magnetizable materials lead to a great danger of crushing in the vicinity of secondary sections (distance less than 100 mm).

Do not underestimate the strength of the attraction forces!

Do not carry any objects made of magnetizable materials (e. g. watches, steel or iron tools) and/or permanent magnets (e. g. another secondary section) close to a secondary section.

For the event of accidents when working with permanent magnets, the following objects must be on hand to free pinched body parts (hands, fingers, feet etc.):

- a hammer (about 3 kg) made of solid, non-magnetizable material
- two pointed wedges (wedge angle approx. 10° 15°) made of solid, nonmagnetizable material (e. g. hard wood)

Danger



Any movement of primary sections in relation to permanent magnets leads to induced voltages on the motor connectors. Electrical shock hazard!

Movement of primary sections in relation to secondary sections (and vice versa) must be avoided.

Caution

Magnetic fields can lead to loss of data on magnetic or electronic data media.

Do not carry any magnetic or electronic data media with you!

2.3.1 First Aid in the Case of Accidents Involving Permanent Magnets

- Stay calm!
- Press the EMERGENCY STOP if the machine is still on
- Administer/call for FIRST AID
- To free pinched parts of the body (hands, fingers, feet...) separate attracted parts!
 - Drive a wedge into the separating rift with the hammer
 - Free part of body (hand, finger, foot)...
- Call DOCTOR if necessary

2.4 Posting of Warning Signs

All danger areas must be identified by well-visible warning and prohibiting signs (pictograms) in the immediate vicinity of the danger. The associated texts must be available in the language of the country in which the product is used.

For all 1FN1- and 1 FN3-type secondary sections, warning and prohibiting signs are enclosed in the packaging in the form of permanent adhesive stickers. Be sure to attach them visibly on the sides of the secondary section track as close as possible to the motor.

Note

Do not attach the stickers on a secondary section or the secondary section cover! Stickers do not adhere well to these surfaces.

Table 2-1 and Table 2-2 list the enclosed warning and prohibiting signs and their meanings.

Table 2-1Enclosed warning signs in compliance with BGV A8 and DIN 4844-2 and their meanings

Sign	Meaning	Sign	Meaning
	Warning strong magnetic field (D-W013)		Warning hand injuries (D-W027)

т

3 Special Safety Guidelines

Sign	Meaning	Sign	Meaning
	No pacemakers (D-P011)		No metal implants (D-P016)
	No metal objects or watches (D-P020)		No magnetic or electronic data media (D-P021)

able 2-2	Enclosed prohibiting signs according to BGV A8 and DIN 4844-2 and their meanings
----------	--

3 Special Safety Guidelines

The perfect and safe operation of linear motors is dependent on proper transport, storage, installation, assembly, and maintenance as well as protection against soiling and contact with aggressive materials.

3.1 Guidelines for Storage and Transport

Danger



Improper storage and/or transport can cause death, serious bodily injury, and/or property damage.

Never store or transport unpacked linear motor components! Only use undamaged original packaging!

When transporting machines or machine parts with pre-assembled motors, protect the components from moving!

Follow the IATA regulations when transporting components in airplanes. In particular, secondary sections must always be transported in pairs.

The storage locations for secondary sections must be marked with pictograms, see Table 2-1 and Table 2-2.

Keep storage areas dry and protected from heat and cold.

Comply with the warning instructions on the packaging!

Wear safety shoes and work gloves!

The packaging of the direct drives and their components provides reliable protection during transport and storage especially against the strong magnetic forces of secondary sections.

Important

Keep the packaging of linear motors and their components where possible!

Original packaging can also be requested from the motor manufacturer.

3.2 Guidelines for Installation

Danger

You may have to work close by unpacked secondary sections when installing linear motors. The danger from strong magnetic fields is particularly high in this case.

Only remove the packaging from the motor components immediately prior to installation.

Never place metals on magnetic surfaces and vice versa!

Never use magnetizable tools. If such tools are required, they must be held firmly with both hands and moved slowly toward the three-phase linear motor.

Prevent unintentional movement of pre-assembled linear motors.

Only perform installation work in a disconnected, de-energized state. Electrical shock hazard!!



/I\

Caution

Sharp edges can cause cuts.

Wear work gloves!



Caution

Warning

Falling objects can injure feet.

Wear safety shoes!



Defective connection cables can cause electrical shock and/or property damage, e.g. by fire.

When installing, make sure the connection cables are:

- not damaged
- not under tension
- · cannot be caught up in moving part,
- and that the minimum bending radius is adhered to.

3 Special Safety Guidelines

3.3 Guidelines for Electrical Connection

Danger



Parts of electrical equipment and devices can be at hazardous voltages. There is an electrical shock hazard!

Observe the regulations for working on electrical installations! In particular, the following safety rules for working on electrical installations in accordance with DIN VDE-0105-100 must be observed:

- only work on de-energized installations
- switch off
- secure against switching back on
- make sure there is no current and voltage
- earth and short-circuit
- cover or cordon off adjacent live parts
- release for work
- connect PE conductor first and disconnect last!

All installations should be performed by a qualified electrician.

All circuits must meet the requirements of *safe electrical disconnection* in accordance with VDE 0160/EN 50178.

Danger



There is a danger of death, serious bodily injury (electrical shock) and/or property damage if linear motors are connected incorrectly.

Linear motors may only be connected according to the instructions. Direct connection of the motors to the three-phase current network is not permissible.

See the documentation of the converter system used!

3.4 Guidelines for Commissioning

Danger



There is a danger of death, serious bodily injury, and/or property damage if a machine is commissioned which does not meet the acknowledged safety requirements.

Commissioning is prohibited until such time as it is ensured that the machine installed in the three-phase linear motor satisfies the regulations of the Machine Directive 98/37/EC.

Danger



In case of unforeseeable movements of the motor, there is a danger of death, serious bodily injury (crushing), and/or property damage.

Never reach into the moving parts of the machine when it is switched on!

Keep persons away from moving parts and areas where there is a danger of crushing!

Ensure free axial travel!

Check the commutation before switching the unit on! Also observe the instructions of the used converter system!

Limit the motor currents!

Set the speed limit to low values!

Monitor the end positions of the motor!



Warning

The surface temperature of the motors may exceed 100 $^{\circ}$ C (212 $^{\circ}$ F). Danger of burns!

Make sure the cooling system is working properly (if applicable)!

Do not touch the motor directly during/after use!

Temperature-sensitive parts (electric cables, electronic components) must not be placed on hot surfaces.

Attention

The motor may overheat without temperature protection.

<u>Before</u> switching the unit on for the first time (for testing), check whether the temperature protection is effective!

3.5 Guidelines for Operation

Danger



Machine parts driven by linear motors pose a considerable danger of injury – e. g. crushing – due to the very high speed and acceleration and the low friction and self-locking characteristics.

Keep persons clear of all moving parts and areas of the axles where there is danger of crushing!

Caution

Improper operation can lead to serious property damage.

Check continuously whether the temperature protection is effective!

Keep the motor area free from foreign objects (chips, particles, liquids, oils, screws, tools, etc.)!

Listen for noise!

If there are accuracy problems with the work piece, check the freedom of movement and the current consumption of the motor. Accuracy problems may also have other causes, e.g. the machine design.

Make sure the cooling system is working properly (if applicable)!

3 Special Safety Guidelines

3.6.1 Maintenance

Linear motors are almost maintenance-free. Observing the following instructions will prolong the life of your motor:

- Check for freedom of movement regularly.
- Clear foreign objects (e. g. chips) regularly from the motor area.
- Check the general condition of the motor components regularly.
- Check the current consumption in the defined test cycle

Since operating conditions differ greatly, no intervals for inspection and maintenance work can be specified.

Danger



尒

盃

There is a danger of death, serious bodily injury, and/or property damage when maintenance work is performed with the machine switched on.

Always switch off power to the machine before working on areas with moving parts!

All work on the electrical system may only be performed with the power disconnected!

Warning

The coolant and motor need some time to cool down. There is a danger of burns when working on the motor shortly after operation!

Do not work on the motor until you have made sure there is no danger of burns!

3.6.2 Service and Repair



There is a danger of death, serious bodily injury, and/or property damage when service and repair work is performed by inexperienced personnel.

All service and repair work on the motor must be performed by the SIEMENS Service Centers. For addresses of SIEMENS Service Centers see http://www.automation.siemens.com/partner/index.asp.

3.6.3 Guidelines for Inspecting the Insulation Resistance (High Voltage Test)

Warning

An insulation resistance inspection under high voltage conditions can damage the motor insulation!

For an insulation resistance inspection on a machine/system with 1FN1- and 1FN3-type motors or directly on the motors (such as installation inspection, preventative maintenance, troubleshooting) use only IEC 61557-1, IEC 61557-2, and IEC 61010-1 compliant inspection devices.

The inspection may only be carried out with a maximum direct current of 1000 V for a maximum time of 60 s! If a higher direct or alternating current is necessary for the machine/system inspection, all motor terminals must be disconnected before the inspection!

Please follow the operating instructions for the inspection device!

Inspections of the insulation resistance on individual motors must always be carried out as follows:

- (1)Connect all high-voltage and temperature sensor connectors with each other; inspection current not to exceed DC 1000 V, 60 s against PE connection.
- (2)Connect all temperature sensor connectors to the PE connector and all high-voltage connectors with each other; the inspection current must not exceed DC 1000 V, 60 s, high voltage against PE connector.

Each insulation resistance must be at least 10 $\ensuremath{\text{M}\Omega}$, otherwise the motor insulation is defective.

3.7 Guidelines for Disposal

Danger

Death, serious bodily injury, and/or property damage may result from improper disposal of linear motors or their components (especially secondary sections).



Linear motors and their components must be disposed of properly, see chapter . Make particularly sure that secondary sections are completely demagnetized!

Direct drives and their components will be taken back by the manufacturer in the original packaging for proper disposal. Costs for transport and disposal will be charged to the sender.

Notes

01.06

General Information Regarding the 1FN1- and 1FN3-Type Linear Motors



ALL

Notes



Table of Contents

4	Syste	em technology	4-21
	4.1	System requirements	4-21
	4.2	Configuration	
	4.3	Temperature Monitoring	
	4.3.1	Temperature Monitoring Circuits	
	4.3.2	Description of the temperature sensors used	
	4.4	Cooling system	
	4.4.1	The constructive design of the cooling system	
	4.4.2	Cooling circuits	
	4.4.3	Cooling media	
	4.4.4	Intake temperature of the cooling circuits	
	4.4.5	Dimensioning of the cooling system	4-33
	4.5	Notes on connection systems	4-36
	4.6	Motor component protection	
	4.6.1	Primary section	
	4.6.2	Secondary section	
	4.6.3	Installed motor	
	4.7	Short-term duty S2 and intermittent duty S3	
	4.7.1	Short-term duty S2	4-37
	4.7.2	Intermittent duty S3	
	4.8	Operation of linear motors in the area of reduced magnetic coverage	4-38
	4.9	Braking of the motor during malfunctions	4-39
	4.10	Use of a holding brake	
-			
5	Select 5.1 5.1.1	ction of a linear motor Drive configuration Mechanical limitations	5-41 5-41 5-43
5	Select 5.1 5.1.1 5.1.2	Ction of a linear motor Drive configuration Mechanical limitations Requirements of the load cycle	5-41 5-41 5-43 5-45
5	Select 5.1 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3	ction of a linear motor Drive configuration Mechanical limitations Requirements of the load cycle Motor thrust/time chart	5-41 5-41 5-43 5-45 5-45 5-46
5	Select 5.1 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.3 5.1.4	ction of a linear motor Drive configuration Mechanical limitations Requirements of the load cycle Motor thrust/time chart Selection of the primary sections	5-41 5-41 5-43 5-45 5-45 5-46 5-47
5	Select 5.1 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.1.6	ction of a linear motor Drive configuration Mechanical limitations Requirements of the load cycle Motor thrust/time chart Selection of the primary sections Thrust at high speeds Selection of the secondary sections	5-41 5-41 5-43 5-45 5-46 5-46 5-47 5-48 5-48
5	Select 5.1 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.1.6 5.1.7	ction of a linear motor Drive configuration Mechanical limitations Requirements of the load cycle Motor thrust/time chart Selection of the primary sections Thrust at high speeds Selection of the secondary sections Checking the dynamic mass	5-41 5-43 5-45 5-45 5-46 5-47 5-48 5-49 5-51
5	Select 5.1 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.1.6 5.1.7 5.1.8	ction of a linear motor Drive configuration Mechanical limitations Requirements of the load cycle Motor thrust/time chart Selection of the primary sections Thrust at high speeds Selection of the secondary sections Checking the dynamic mass Selection of the power inverter power unit	5-41 5-43 5-45 5-45 5-46 5-47 5-48 5-49 5-51 5-51
5	Select 5.1 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.1.6 5.1.7 5.1.8 5.1.9	ction of a linear motor Drive configuration Mechanical limitations Requirements of the load cycle Motor thrust/time chart Selection of the primary sections Thrust at high speeds Selection of the secondary sections Checking the dynamic mass Selection of the power inverter power unit Calculation of the required infeed units	5-41 5-43 5-45 5-46 5-47 5-48 5-49 5-51 5-51 5-52
5	Select 5.1 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.1.6 5.1.7 5.1.8 5.1.9 5.2	ction of a linear motor Drive configuration Mechanical limitations Requirements of the load cycle Motor thrust/time chart Selection of the primary sections Thrust at high speeds Selection of the secondary sections Checking the dynamic mass Selection of the power inverter power unit Calculation of the required infeed units	5-41 5-43 5-45 5-46 5-47 5-48 5-49 5-51 5-51 5-52 5-53
5	Select 5.1 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.1.6 5.1.7 5.1.8 5.1.9 5.2 5.2 1	ction of a linear motor	5-41 5-43 5-45 5-45 5-46 5-47 5-48 5-49 5-51 5-51 5-51 5-52 5-53 5-53
5	Select 5.1 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.1.6 5.1.7 5.1.8 5.1.9 5.2 5.2.1 5.2.2	ction of a linear motor Drive configuration Mechanical limitations Requirements of the load cycle Motor thrust/time chart Selection of the primary sections Thrust at high speeds Selection of the secondary sections Checking the dynamic mass Selection of the required infeed units Configuration examples Positioning in the given time Processing center with Gantry axis	5-41 5-43 5-45 5-45 5-46 5-47 5-48 5-49 5-51 5-51 5-51 5-52 5-53 5-53 5-53 5-59
5	Select 5.1 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.1.6 5.1.7 5.1.8 5.1.9 5.2 5.2.1 5.2.2	ction of a linear motor Drive configuration Mechanical limitations Requirements of the load cycle Motor thrust/time chart Selection of the primary sections Thrust at high speeds Selection of the secondary sections Checking the dynamic mass Selection of the required infeed units Configuration examples Positioning in the given time Processing center with Gantry axis	$\begin{array}{c} \textbf{5-41}\\ \textbf{5-43}\\ \textbf{5-45}\\ \textbf{5-45}\\ \textbf{5-46}\\ \textbf{5-47}\\ \textbf{5-48}\\ \textbf{5-49}\\ \textbf{5-51}\\ \textbf{5-51}\\ \textbf{5-51}\\ \textbf{5-51}\\ \textbf{5-52}\\ \textbf{5-52}\\ \textbf{5-53}\\ \textbf{5-53}\\ \textbf{5-53}\\ \textbf{5-59} \end{array}$
6	Select 5.1 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.1.6 5.1.7 5.1.8 5.1.9 5.2 5.2.1 5.2.2 Paral	ction of a linear motor	5-41 5-43 5-45 5-46 5-47 5-48 5-49 5-51 5-51 5-51 5-52 5-53 5-53 5-53 5-59 6-67
6	Select 5.1 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.1.6 5.1.7 5.1.8 5.1.9 5.2 5.2.1 5.2.2 Paral 6.1	ction of a linear motor. Drive configuration. Mechanical limitations. Requirements of the load cycle. Motor thrust/time chart. Selection of the primary sections. Thrust at high speeds Selection of the secondary sections. Checking the dynamic mass. Selection of the required infeed units. Configuration examples. Positioning in the given time. Processing center with Gantry axis. Ilel and double-sided arrangement Parallel connection of motor primary sections.	5-41 5-43 5-45 5-45 5-46 5-47 5-48 5-49 5-51 5-51 5-51 5-52 5-53 5-53 5-53 5-59 6-67
6	Select 5.1 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.1.6 5.1.7 5.1.8 5.1.9 5.2 5.2.1 5.2.2 Paral 6.1 6.1.1	ction of a linear motor Drive configuration Mechanical limitations Requirements of the load cycle Motor thrust/time chart Selection of the primary sections Thrust at high speeds Selection of the secondary sections Checking the dynamic mass Selection of the required infeed units Calculation of the required infeed units Configuration examples Positioning in the given time Processing center with Gantry axis Ilel and double-sided arrangement Parallel connection of motor primary sections	5-41 5-43 5-45 5-45 5-46 5-47 5-48 5-49 5-51 5-51 5-51 5-52 5-53 5-53 5-53 5-59 6-67 6-67
6	Select 5.1 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.1.6 5.1.7 5.1.8 5.1.9 5.2 5.2.1 5.2.2 Paral 6.1 6.1.1 6.1.2	ction of a linear motor Drive configuration Mechanical limitations Requirements of the load cycle Motor thrust/time chart Selection of the primary sections Thrust at high speeds Selection of the secondary sections Checking the dynamic mass Selection of the required infeed units Configuration examples Positioning in the given time Processing center with Gantry axis Ilel and double-sided arrangement Parallel connection of motor primary sections Motor arrangements Position of the primary sections and phase sequence	5-41 5-43 5-45 5-46 5-47 5-48 5-49 5-51 5-51 5-52 5-53 5-53 5-53 5-59 6-67 6-67 6-67 6-68
6	Select 5.1 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.1.6 5.1.7 5.1.8 5.1.9 5.2 5.2.1 5.2.2 Paral 6.1 6.1.1 6.1.2 6.2	ction of a linear motor. Drive configuration. Mechanical limitations. Requirements of the load cycle. Motor thrust/time chart. Selection of the primary sections. Thrust at high speeds Selection of the secondary sections. Checking the dynamic mass. Selection of the required infeed units. Configuration examples. Positioning in the given time. Processing center with Gantry axis. Ilel and double-sided arrangement Parallel connection of motor primary sections. Motor arrangements. Position of the primary sections and phase sequence Double-sided motors.	5-41 5-43 5-45 5-46 5-47 5-48 5-49 5-51 5-51 5-52 5-53 5-53 5-53 5-59 6-67 6-67 6-68 6-73
6	Select 5.1 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.1.6 5.1.7 5.1.8 5.1.9 5.2 5.2.1 5.2.2 Paral 6.1 6.1.1 6.1.2 6.2 6.2.1	ction of a linear motor Drive configuration Mechanical limitations Requirements of the load cycle Motor thrust/time chart Selection of the primary sections Thrust at high speeds Selection of the secondary sections Checking the dynamic mass Selection of the required infeed units Calculation of the required infeed units Configuration examples Positioning in the given time Processing center with Gantry axis Ilel and double-sided arrangement Parallel connection of motor primary sections Motor arrangements Position of the primary sections and phase sequence Double-sided motors Basic design	$\begin{array}{c} 5-41 \\ 5-43 \\ 5-43 \\ 5-45 \\ 5-46 \\ 5-47 \\ 5-48 \\ 5-49 \\ 5-51 \\ 5-51 \\ 5-51 \\ 5-52 \\ 5-53 \\ 5-53 \\ 5-53 \\ 5-59 \\ \hline \mathbf{6-67} \\ \mathbf{6-67} \\ \mathbf{6-67} \\ \mathbf{6-68} \\ \mathbf{6-73} \\ \mathbf{6-73} \\ \mathbf{6-73} \\ \mathbf{6-73} \\ \mathbf{6-73} \end{array}$
6	Select 5.1 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.1.6 5.1.7 5.1.8 5.1.9 5.2 5.2.1 5.2.2 Paral 6.1 6.1.1 6.1.2 6.2 6.2.1 6.2.2	ction of a linear motor Drive configuration Mechanical limitations Requirements of the load cycle Motor thrust/time chart Selection of the primary sections Thrust at high speeds Selection of the secondary sections Checking the dynamic mass Selection of the power inverter power unit. Calculation of the required infeed units Configuration examples Positioning in the given time Processing center with Gantry axis Ilel and double-sided arrangement Parallel connection of motor primary sections Motor arrangements Position of the primary sections and phase sequence Double-sided motors Basic design Connection of the primary sections	5-41 5-43 5-45 5-45 5-46 5-47 5-48 5-49 5-51 5-51 5-52 5-53 5-53 5-53 5-59 6-67 6-67 6-68 6-73 6-73 6-73
6	Select 5.1 5.1.1 5.1.2 5.1.3 5.1.4 5.1.5 5.1.6 5.1.7 5.1.8 5.1.9 5.2 5.2.1 5.2.2 Paral 6.1 6.1.1 6.1.2 6.2 6.2.1 6.2.2 6.2.3	ction of a linear motor Drive configuration Mechanical limitations Requirements of the load cycle Motor thrust/time chart Selection of the primary sections Thrust at high speeds Selection of the secondary sections Checking the dynamic mass Selection of the power inverter power unit. Calculation of the required infeed units Configuration examples Positioning in the given time Processing center with Gantry axis Ilel and double-sided arrangement Parallel connection of motor primary sections Motor arrangements Position of the primary sections and phase sequence Double-sided motors Basic design Connection of the primary sections Structure of the carrier plate	$\begin{array}{c} \mathbf{5-41} \\ 5-43 \\ 5-43 \\ 5-45 \\ 5-46 \\ 5-47 \\ 5-48 \\ 5-49 \\ 5-51 \\ 5-51 \\ 5-51 \\ 5-52 \\ 5-53 \\ 5-53 \\ 5-53 \\ 5-59 \\ \hline \mathbf{6-67} \\ 6-67 \\ 6-67 \\ 6-68 \\ 6-73 \\ 6-73 \\ 6-73 \\ 6-74 \\ \end{array}$

ALL

7

8

Moto	r mounting	
7.1	Mounting instructions	7-74
7.2	Proceed as follows	7-74
7.3	Checking the mounting dimensions	7-75
7.4	Attraction forces	7-75
7.5	Mounting system	7-75
7.6	Motor mounting procedure	7-76
7.6.1	Motor mounting with divided secondary section track	7-76
7.6.2	Motor mounting through the insertion of the slide	7-77
7.6.3	Motor mounting through the placement of the motor parts	7-77
7.7	Checking the air gap	7-80
7.8	Checking the motor mounting	7-80
Dispo	osal of linear motors	8-81

4 System technology

4.1 System requirements

Linear motors of the product families 1FN1 and 1FN3 can be operated with converters of SIMODRIVE 611digital and SIMODRIVE 611universal series together with control systems according to Table 4-1. The following conditions apply:



- The linear motors are to be set up as feed drives.
- The encoder system depends on the application.

For the connection to these systems, see the CON section from page 347.

Table 4-1
 possible control systems for the SIMODRIVE 611 digital and SIMODRIVE 611 universal HR converter series

	SIMODRIVE 611 digital	SIMODRIVE 611 universal HR
No control system		x
SINUMERIK 810D	x (with CCU 3)	
SINUMERIK 840D	Х	
SINUMERIK 840Di		x
SIMATIC		x

The SIMODRIVE 611 converter system is dimensioned for direct operation on TN networks. For 1FN1- and 1FN3-type motors, the permissible rated voltages of TN networks according to Table 4-2 apply. Preferably, the motors should be operated at U_{ZK} = 600 V.

Table 4-2Permissible rated voltages of TN networks for motors of the 1FN1 and 1FN3 product
families and the resulting DC link and converter output voltages

Permitted mains voltage	Resulting DC link voltage U _{ZK}	Converter output voltage (effective value) U _{amax}
400 V	600 V (regulated)	425 V (regulated)
	540 V (unregulated)	380 V (unregulated)
480 V	648 V (unregulated)	460 V (unregulated)

During operation on IT or TT networks, adaptation transformers that have been tailored to the system are available.

ALL

4.2 Configuration



Figure 4-1 shows a typical installation situation for linear motors.

Figure 4-1

Typical installation situation of a single-sided motor with moving primary section

During commissioning, the motor must be adjusted in such a way that the positive voltage zero of the EMF UU-Y (Phase U against the start point) in the positive direction of movement coincides with the falling edge of the electrical pole angle Φ_{EL} . Figure 4-2 shows an example of this. The positive direction of movement (movement in case of the U-V-W phase sequence) results from the position of the connecting side of the primary section (see Figure 4-3).



Figure 4-2 Example for the correct position of the electrical pole position angle Φ_{EL} in comparison with the EMF U_{U-Y} curve



Figure 4-3 Positive direction of motion of the primary sections

To simplify the adjustment, the connection side of the primary section should point in the direction of the N-marking of the secondary section on which the primary section is currently located (see Figure 4-4). For this case, the RPU indicates the position for the correct adjustment.



Figure 4-4 Standard position of the primary section in comparison with the secondary section track and RPU¹

Figure 4-3 contains RPU for FN1-type motors and for peak-load motors of the 1FN3 product family.

	RPU
1FN1072076 standard winding	(53.5 + n·112.8) mm; n = 0,1,2
1FN1072076 inverse winding	(25.3 + n·112.8) mm; n = 0,1,2
1FN1122246	(80.5 + n·72) mm; n = 0,1,2
1FN3050150	(10 + n·30) mm; n = 0,1,2…
1FN3300600	(13 + n·46) mm; n = 0,1,2
1FN3900	(36 + n·46) mm; n = 0,1,2

Гable 4-3	RPU for (peak-load) motors of the 1FN1 and 1FN3 product families
-----------	--

4.3 Temperature Monitoring

4.3.1 Temperature Monitoring Circuits

Two temperature monitoring circuits, Temp-F and Temp-S, are available for protecting the primary sections against impermissibly high thermal load and for monitoring the temperature. Both circuits are independent of each other. They are generally evaluated via the converter system. For exceptions, see chapter CON in the CON section.

Temp-F

The <u>temp</u>erature monitoring circuit is used for monitoring the temperature and for a possible warning before a pending shutdown of the drive by Temp-S. It consists of temperature sensor KTY 84, which is located between two of three phase windings.

Temp-S

The *over temperature shutdown circuit* allows the temperature monitoring of each individual motor phase winding. This guarantees overload protection, even in case of an uneven current sourcing of the individual phases of a primary section or in case of the different loading of several primary sections. Temp-S consists of either temperature switches or PTC elements.

¹ For the precise position of the reference points for RPU, also see the dimensional drawings in Chapter 12 or Chapter 16.

Caution

Excessive thermal load leads to a destruction of the motor!

Use only Temp-S for motor protection! The use of Temp-F for motor protection is not permissible since not all phase windings of the motor are monitored.

Connection

小



Danger

The temperature monitoring circuits constitute a risk of electrical shock!

The circuits of Temp-F and Temp-S neither have "protective separation" between each other nor to the power circuits in accordance with VDE 0160/EN 50178.

The circuitry and connection technology of the temperature monitoring circuits is described in detail in chapter CON in the CON section.

4.3.2 Description of the temperature sensors used

KTY 84

KTY 84 is used as Temp-F for almost all primary sections of the 1FN1 and 1FN3 product families.² It has a progressive, approximately linear resistance-temperature characteristic curve (see 18.1). In addition, KTY 84 has a low thermal capacity and good thermal contact to the motor winding.



Figure 4-5 Characteristics of KTY 84

Technical data:

- Resistance when cold (20° C) approx. 580 Ω
- Resistance when hot (100° C) approx. 1000 Ω

Temperature switch

The temperature switches are used as Temp-S for primary sections of the 1FN1 product family (see chapter 9.4.1). They open if the temperature is too high and are series-connected.

² Exceptions: 1FN3xxx-...-0AA0

Technical data:

- Minimum current: 10 mA
- Maximum current: 1.6 A
- Rated voltage (AC): U_{N,eff} = 250 V
- Resistance when closed: < 2 Ω

PTC elements

PTC elements are used as Temp-S for primary sections of the 1FN3 product family as triplets (see chapter 13.4.1). Every PTC element shows a sudden increase in the resistance in the area of the nominal response temperature ϑ_{NAT} (see Figure 4-6). It thus has a quasi-switching characteristic. Due to the low thermal capacity and the good thermal contact of the PTC element to the motor winding, a fast sensor and thus system reaction to impermissibly high primary section temperatures is possible.

The PTC elements of the triplet are connected in series. The characteristics correspond with DIN EN 60947-8, DIN 44081, and DIN 44082.



Figure 4-6 Typical characteristics of a PTC element; source: DIN 44081/DIN 44082

Technical data:

The technical data refers to ϑ_{NAT} = 120 °C as the nominal response temperature of the PTC elements when they are used in the 1FN3 motor.

•	Triplet resistance when cold		
	– at T < ϑ _{NAT} - 20 K	min. 60 (3x20) Ω;	
		max. 750 Ω	
•	Minimum triplet resistance when hot		
	– at T < ϑ _{NAT} - 5 K	min. 590 Ω (550 Ω + 2x20 Ω)	
		max. 1650 (3x550) Ω	
	– at T < ϑ _{NAT} + 5 K	min. 1370 Ω (1330 Ω + 2x20 Ω)	

ALL

Note

The PTC elements do not switch automatically! To protect the motor effectively, an evaluation is required (see also chapter 18.2).

max. 3990 (3x1330) Ω

max. 12000 (3x4000) Ω

min. 4040 Ω (4000 Ω + 2x20 Ω)

4.4 Cooling system

During operation, the motor heats up. The temperature increase in the primary section causes high electrical resistances in the coils and thus reduced motor thrust. To maintain the highest power density possible, cooling is necessary.

4.4.1 The constructive design of the cooling system

– at T < ϑ_{NAT} + 15 K

The cooling system of the 1FN1- and 1FN3-type motors can consist of various components:

- Primary section main cooler
- Primary section precision cooler
- Secondary section cooling

The components are structurally separated the motors of the 1FN3 product family. In the case of 1FN1-type motors, the primary section main cooler and the primary section precision cooler form a structural unit.

If several components are used, they are separated from each other by an insulating layer. Figure 4-7 shows a diagram of the cooling system of the 1FN1- and 1FN3-type motors.



Figure 4-7 Diagram of the cooling system of the motors of the 1FN1 and 1FN3 product families

Primary section main cooler

The primary section main cooler is directly installed into the primary section and cools it. Under rated conditions, it removes between 85% and 90% of the arising heat. This suffices to achieve the rating data listed in the data sheets.

The primary section main cooler has no influence on the heat insulation of the motor from the machine.

Primary section precision cooler

Together with the secondary section cooling system, the primary section precision cooler determines the quality of the heat insulation of the motor from the machine. The primary section precision cooler removes residual heat (2 - 10%) of the entire power loss under rated conditions) from the primary section. The temperature increase of the outer surface of the primary section precision cooler is thus maintained at a maximum of 2 K (1FN1) or 4 K (1FN3) in comparison with the intake temperature of the primary section precision cooler. The primary section precision cooler thus protects the environment – e.g. the machine structure – from a heat transfer from the primary section.

Secondary section cooling

The secondary section cooling system consists of parallel V2A steel pipes (1FN1) or aluminum cooling sections (1FN3). They also remove the residual heat of the motor. The heat removed by the secondary section cooling system amounts to about 5-8% of the entire power loss of the motor under rated conditions.

The Thermo-Sandwich® principle

If only the primary section main cooler is used during the operation of the motor, the motor achieves the rated data listed in the data sheets. To protect the machine against the heat input of the motor, the Thermo-Sandwich[®] principle can be applied.

In the case of the Thermo-Sandwich[®] principle, components of the cooling system are layered on top of each other. The components are each separated by an insulating layer (see Figure 4-8). The heat arising in the primary section must run through the individual layers before it is input into the machine. In the process, heat is again removed in each component of the cooling system. For this reason, the residual amount of heat that ultimately arrives in the machine is very low.



Figure 4-8 Diagram of the Thermo-Sandwich® principle

On principle, the following must be taken into consideration for the selection of the components used:

- If no special requirements are placed on the heat input of the motor into the machine structure, the use of the main cooler alone suffices.
- If increased requirements are placed on the precision of the machine, the use of the primary section precision cooler and secondary section cooling system via the Thermo-Sandwich[®] principle are necessary.

Note

According to the thermal conductivity of the fastening screws, the temperature at the interface to the machine base increases slightly. In the case of secondary section, this influence is negligible under normal circumstances. All concrete data that can be provided in regard to the temperature at the interfaces to the machine base in this document – e.g. the temperature increase on the surface of the precision cooler – refers to stainless steel screws.

4.4.2 Cooling circuits

Just like the use of the individual cooling components, the design of the individual cooling circuits depends on the requirements of the motor.

Interconnection of cooling circuits

To simplify the connection technology and pipework, cooling circuits of the individual components of the cooling system can be interconnected. In particular, they can be connected in series due to the lower temperature and pressure differences between the intake and return lines.

ALL

Notice

In the case of the interconnection of cooling circuits, only flexible connections (hoses) may be used!

Figure 4-9 shows two examples for the series connection of various cooling circuits: At the left, all cooling circuits of the motor are connected in series. In the right image, the cooling circuits of the primary section precision cooler and the primary section main cooler of a motor form a series circuit. The cooling circuits arising in this way are connected in parallel. The secondary section cooling systems of both motors are also connected in series.



Figure 4-9 Examples for the interconnection of various cooling circuits (diagram)

Note

In the case of a series connection, cooling medium should first flow through the secondary section cooling system and the primary section precision cooler and then through the main cooler. Otherwise, the heat from the main cooler is actively input into the machine via the secondary section cooling system and the primary section precision cooler.

Use of cold water units

When using cold water units, you can choose between the use of

- · one cold water unit OR several cold water units
- unregulated cold water units OR regulated cold water units

A comparably affordable system is the use of an unregulated cold water unit that can be connected to all coolers used, e.g. in series connection. In this case, the disadvantage is that the intake temperature can fluctuate. The maximum power density of the motor and its heat insulation to the machine cannot be considered to be constant, which must be taken into consideration in the design.

In contrast, it is of course also possible to assign each cooler its own regulated cold water unit. In regard to the cooling system, this permits the complete control of the power density of the motor and its heat insulation to the machine since the intake temperature is always kept constant.



Figure 4-10 Example for the use of cold water units

ALL

The temperature control of the main cooler intake line is not necessarily required, even if the Thermo-Sandwich[®] principle is utilized. This makes a good compromise possible: the main cooler is operated with an unregulated cold water unit, while the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling system are connected to a regulated cold water unit at the same time. Figure 4-10 shows a diagram of this structure. In this case, the regulated cold water unit must be designed for only about 20% of the total power loss. The parallel connection of the cooling circuits of the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling system are the same.

Cooling circuit requirements

We recommend that the cooling circuits be designed as closed system to prevent corrosion-promoting oxidation. The maximum permissible pressure is 10 bar.

Note

ALL

We advise against using the cooling circuits of machines to cool the motors as well: Due to soiling and long-term deposits, blockage may result!

The cooling medium requirements are described in Chapter 4.4.3. The maximum downtimes of cooling circuits should be observed according to the information provided by the cooling medium manufacturer.

Connection of cooling circuits

For the connection technology of the cooling circuits, see Chapter 9.3.4 in the 1FN1 section and Chapter 13.3 in the 1FN3 section.

4.4.3 Cooling media

The customer must provide the cooling medium. Only water with anti-corrosion agent should be used as the cooling medium.

The use of untreated water may lead to considerable damage and malfunctions due to water hardness deposits, the formation of algae and slime, as well as corrosion, for example:

- Worsening of the heat transfer
- Higher pressure losses due to reductions in cross-sectional area
- Blockage of nozzles, valves, heat exchangers, and cooling ducts

For this reason, water as a cooling medium must contain an anti-corrosion agent that reliably prevents deposits and corrosion even under extreme conditions. In addition, a closed cooling circuit (equalization vessel) to prevent the growth of algae reliably is recommended.

The cooling medium must be pre-cleaned or filtered in order to prevent the cooling circuit from becoming blocked. The formation of ice is not permitted!

Note

The maximum permissible size for particles in the cooling medium amounts to 100 $\mu\text{m}.$
Cooling system requirements

The water used as the basis of the cooling medium must fulfill the following minimum requirements:

- Concentration of chloride: c < 100 mg/l
- Concentration of sulfate: c < 100 mg/l
- $6.5 \le \text{pH}$ value ≤ 9.5

Please check further requirements with the manufacturer of the anti-corrosion agent!

Anti-corrosion agent requirements

The anti-corrosion agent must fulfill the following requirements:

- The basis is ethylene glycol (also called ethanediol)
- The water and anti-corrosion agent do not segregate.
- The point of freezing of the water used is reduced to at least -5°C.
- The anti-corrosion agent used must be compatible with the fittings and cooling medium hoses use, as well as the materials of the motor cooler listed in Table 4-4.

Check these requirements, especially in regard to material compatibility, with the cooling unit manufacturer and the manufacturer of the anti-corrosion agent! Table 4-4 Minimum of materials used for the cooling system

	Precision cooler	Main cooler	Secondary section cooling unit
Materials used in 1FN1	AlMgSi0.5, CuZn40Pb2/ CuZn39Pb2/ CuZn38Pb2	SF-Cu, CuZn40Pb2/ CuZn39Pb2/ CuZn38Pb2, silver solder	1.4541
Materials used in 1FN3	1.4301/1.4305, Viton	SF-Cu, 1.4301/1.4305, Viton	AIMgSi0.5, Viton

Manufacturer recommendation

The manufacturers of anti-corrosion agent are recommended in Appendix B.

Commissioning and maintenance

Before the cooling circuits are filled, they must be rinsed with the cooling medium to be used. The checking and change intervals for the cooling medium should be harmonized with the manufacturers of the anti-corrosion agent and the cooling system.

4.4.4 Intake temperature of the cooling circuits

Two variables play a role in the determination of the intake temperature of the coolers: the power density of the motor and damage due to condensation.

Power density

The lower the temperature of the motor is, the higher the power density of the motor (see the characteristic curves in Chapter 11.3.1 (1FN1) or Chapter 15.3.1.

Condensation

ALL

When the relative humidity in the direct vicinity of the motor reaches 100%, the excess water in the air condenses on the surface of the motor. The resulting water film is called *condensation*.

Notice

The motor itself is not sensitive to condensation. Condensation, however, can lead to damage to the encased machine (e.g. rust).

Condensation must be avoided!

Select the intake temperatures, especially that of the primary section precision cooler, in such a way that no condensation can occur.

Generally, condensation arises when parts of the cooling circuit or outer parts are colder than the ambient air: The air in the vicinity of the colder surfaces is cooled. The relative humidity thus rises and possibly reaches the limit value of 100%.

To minimize the formation of condensation, the intake temperature of the cooling circuits may lie a maximum of 3K below the temperature of the ambient air. When the machines are used in regions with very high humidity, the intake temperature should even be higher than the temperature of the ambient air.

Conclusion

Figure 4-11 shows how the two rules:

- · lowest intake temperature possible for the highest power density possible
- · an intake temperature that is not too low to avoid condensation

lead to a solution for the regulation of the intake temperature of the cooling circuits.



Figure 4-11 Characteristic curve of the intake temperature of the cooling circuits

The ambient temperature of the machine should be selected as a reference variable of the intake temperature: $T_{VORL} = T_{Umgebung} - 3 \text{ K}$ protects the areas near the motor from condensation.

If the intake temperature is regulated using a constant value controller, the temperature value depends on the maximum ambient temperature.

A sequence control for which the intake temperature is adapted to the current ambient temperature at the application site of the motor is more favorable than the regulation of the intake temperature using a constant value controller (see the characteristic curve in Figure 4-11). In this way, the motor can be kept cooler on average. The service life and power density of the motor thus increase.

If the constant feed force of the motor must be completely exhausted, the intake temperature must be limited to a maximum of 35°C (see Figure 4-11). In this case, condensation may appear in case of unfavorable weather conditions.

A further favorable possibility is the use of two separately regulatable cooling circuits. One cooling circuit supplies the precision cooler and has a cooling medium sequence control with a linear characteristic curve and no limitation of the intake temperature. The second cooling circuit supplies the main cooler and has a cooling medium sequence control according to the characteristic curve in Figure 4-11.

4.4.5 Dimensioning of the cooling system

Individual coolers

Starting from the required sustained power F_{eff} (see Chapter 5.1.3), the heat $Q_{K,i}$ that must be removed from the individual coolers can be calculated first. At the same time, this corresponds to the refrigerating capacity $P_{k\ddot{u}hl,i}$ that a return cooling unit or heat exchanger must have for the cooling system under consideration.

$$\mathsf{P}_{k\ddot{u}hl,i} = \mathsf{Q}_{K,i} \simeq \mathsf{Q}_{K,MAX} \cdot \left(\frac{\mathsf{F}_{\mathsf{eff}}}{\mathsf{F}_{\mathsf{N}}}\right)^2$$

Equation 4.1

ALL

The values for the rated thrust F_N and the heat being removed under full load $\mathsf{Q}_{K,MAX}$ can be found in the data sheets.

The volume flow is defined, whereby the value listed in the tables of the data sheets should be used.

The pressure drop belonging to the volume flow can be see on the characteristic curves for the primary section main cooler, the primary section precision cooler, and the secondary section cooling system.

The temperature increase $\Delta T_{K,i}$ between the intake and return lines of the individual cools can be determined from the following at the given volume flow

$$\Delta T_{K,i} = \frac{Q_{K,i}}{\rho \cdot c_p \cdot \dot{V}}$$
Equation 4.2

In the process, the ρ and c_p variables characterize the density or the specific heating capacity of the cooling medium water: ρ = 998 kg/m³, c_p = 4180 J/(kg · K).

Series connection of coolers

If cooling circuits are connected in series, the greatest volume flow for the individual coolers is decisive for the entire system:

$$\dot{V}_{\text{gesamt}} = \max(\dot{V}_1, \dot{V}_2, \dot{V}_3, ...)$$
 Equation 4.3

Pressure drops and temperature increases are determined and summed up for: \dot{V}_{gesamt} :

$$\Delta p_{gesamt} = \Delta p_{K,1} + \Delta p_{K,2} + \Delta p_{K,3} + \dots$$

$$\Delta T_{gesamt} = \Delta T_{K,1} + \Delta T_{K,2} + \Delta T_{K,3} + \dots$$

Equation 4.4

If a return cooling unit or a heat exchanger is used for all cooling circuits together, the necessary refrigerating capacity $P_{k\ddot{u}hl}$ is calculated from the individual refrigerating capacities $P_{k\ddot{u}hl,i}$:

 $P_{k\ddot{u}hl} = P_{k\ddot{u}hl,1} + P_{k\ddot{u}hl,2} + P_{k\ddot{u}hl,3} + ... = Q_{K,1} + Q_{K,2} + Q_{K,3} + ... Equation 4.5$

Example: Design of a cooling system for 1FN3300-2WC00

A motor with a primary section of the series 1FN3300-2WC00 should be operated at a constant force F_{eff} = 0,8 F_N . For this purpose, the use of the primary section main cooler is necessary. To protect the machine from heat input, the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling system should also be used.

The secondary section track has a length of 4 m. There is a coupling point for the cooling sections. The intake and return lines of the secondary section cooling system are connected via combi distributors.

The medium flows through the primary section precision cooler, secondary section cooling system, and primary section main cooler of the cooler in that order. To maintain the temperature difference of 4 K between the intake temperature and the surface of the primary section precision cooler, the recommended values from the corresponding data sheet in chapter 15.2 are used.

Data from data sheet: 3

Flow rate:	V _{gesamt} = 4 I/min	for all coolers
Pressure drop:	$\Delta p_{P,H} = 0.32$ bar	for main cooler
	Δp _{P,P} = 0,33 bar	for precision cooler
	$\Delta p_{\rm S}$ = 0,09 bar/m	for cooling sections
	Δp_{KV} = 0,42 bar	for each combi distributor
	Δp _{KS} = 0,31 bar	for each coupling point
Maximum heat dissipation:	Q _{P,H,MAX} = 995 W	for main cooler
	Q _{P,P,MAX} = 35 W	for precision cooler
	Q _{S,MAX} = 93 W	for secondary section cooling system

Calculating the refrigerating capacity

Individual cooling circuits

The following results for the individual cooling circuits according to Equation 4.1:

 $P_{k\ddot{u}hl,P,H} = Q_{P,H} \approx 995 \text{ W} \cdot 0.8^2 = 636.8 \text{ W}$

 $P_{k\ddot{u}hl,P,P} = Q_{P,P} \approx 35 \text{ W} \cdot 0.8^2 = 22.4 \text{ W}$

 $P_{k\ddot{u}hl,S} = Q_S \approx 93 \text{ W} \cdot 0.8^2 = 59.52 \text{ W}$

Total cooling

For a cold water unit that has been designed for the entire series connection, Equation 4.5 must accordingly be assumed as the minimum refrigerating capacity:

 $P_{k\ddot{u}hl,gesamt} = P_{k\ddot{u}hl,P,P} + P_{k\ddot{u}hl,P,H} + P_{k\ddot{u}hl,S}$

= 22,4 W + 636,8 W + 59,52 W

P_{kühl,gesamt} = 718,72 W



³ The data used here may deviate from the values listed in the data sheet. This changes nothing in the procedure during the dimensioning of the cooling system.

Calculation of the pressure drop

Pressure drop in the secondary section cooling system

The secondary section cooling system consists of a coupling point, two combi distributors, and two parallel cooling sections, each with a length of $I_S = 4$ m. In total, the pressure drop of the secondary section cooling system amounts to:

 $\Delta p_{S,ges} = 2 \cdot \Delta p_S \cdot I_S + 2 \cdot \Delta p_{KV} + \Delta p_{KS}$

The result is:

 $\Delta p_{S,ges} = 2 \cdot 0,09 \text{ bar/m} \cdot 4 \text{ m} + 2 \cdot 0,42 \text{ bar} + 0,31 \text{ bar}$

 $\Delta p_{S,qes} = 1,87$ bar

Total cooling

For the total cooling, the following results accordingly Equation 4.4:

 $\Delta p_{gesamt} = \Delta p_{P,P} + \Delta p_{P,H} + \Delta p_{S,ges}$

= 0,33 bar + 0,32 bar + 1,87 bar

 Δp_{gesamt} = 2,52 bar

Calculation of the temperature increase

636 8 W

Individual cooling circuits

The following results for the individual cooling circuits according to Equation 4.2:

$$\begin{split} \Delta T_{P,H} &= \frac{0.036,8 \text{ W}}{998 \text{ kg/m}^3 \cdot 4180 \text{ J/(kg\cdot K)} \cdot 4 \text{ l/min}} \\ &= \frac{636,8 \text{ J/s}}{998 \text{ kg/m}^3 \cdot 4180 \text{ J/(kg\cdot K)} \cdot 4 \cdot (10^{-3} \text{ m}^3/60 \text{ s})} = 2,3 \text{ K} \\ \Delta T_{P,P} &= \frac{22,4 \text{ W}}{998 \text{ kg/m}^3 \cdot 4180 \text{ J/(kg\cdot K)} \cdot 4 \text{ l/min}} \\ &= \frac{22,4 \text{ J/s}}{998 \text{ kg/m}^3 \cdot 4180 \text{ J/(kg\cdot K)} \cdot 4 \cdot (10^{-3} \text{ m}^3/60 \text{ s})} = 0,08 \text{ K} \\ \Delta T_S &= \frac{59,52 \text{ W}}{998 \text{ kg/m}^3 \cdot 4180 \text{ J/(kg\cdot K)} \cdot 4 \text{ l/min}} \\ &= \frac{59,52 \text{ J/s}}{998 \text{ kg/m}^3 \cdot 4180 \text{ J/(kg\cdot K)} \cdot 4 \cdot (10^{-3} \text{ m}^3/60 \text{ s})} = 0,21 \text{ K} \end{split}$$

Total cooling

For the total cooling, the following results accordingly Equation 4.4:

 $\Delta T_{gesamt} = \Delta T_{P,P} + \Delta T_{P,H} + \Delta T_S$ = 0.08 K + 2.3 K + 0.21 K

 ΔT_{gesamt} = 2,59 K

Conclusion

A cold water unit that should cool the motor under the described conditions must thus be designed for about 720 W. The pressure loss amounts to about 3 bar and the temperature difference between the intake and return lines of the cooling system to about 3 K.

Recommended manufacturers

The manufacturers of cold water units are recommended in Appendix B.

4.5 Notes on connection systems

Electrical and cooling system interfaces are described in chapter 9.2 in the 1FN1 section and in chapter 13.3 in the 1FN3 section. The connection to the converter system takes place according to the CON section from page 347.

When laying electrical cables, observe the following:

- The cables must fulfill the following requirements:
 - Sufficiently high dynamic-mechanical load capacity (due to high accelerations and speeds)
 - Temperature resistance up to 80° C (static) or 60° C (dynamic)
- The cables may not chafe anywhere.
- The cables must be clamped or fixed into place after a maximum of 200 mm.
- Manufacturer's information regarding mounting are to be observed.

Carefully note the following for the connection system of the cooler:

- All connections are to be designed flexibly (hoses)
- All material used must be resistant to the predominant surrounding conditions.
- Manufacturer's information regarding mounting are to be observed.

4.6 Motor component protection

4.6.1 Primary section

Primary sections of the 1FN1 and 1FN3 product families fulfill the requirements of IP 65 protection class according to DIN EN 60529. In case of proper use and the observance of the degrees of protection specified by the type of protection, no additional protective measures are required.

4.6.2 Secondary section

The secondary sections should be protected from corrosion the best way possible using structural measures.

Make sure that the secondary sections remain free of chips. Suitable covers should be provided for this purpose. It can be assumed that ferromagnetic particles are no longer attracted from a distance of 150 mm from the surface of the secondary section.

The use of abrasive or aggressive substances (such as acids) must be avoided.

4-36

4.6.3 Installed motor

The better the mounting space of the motor is protected from the penetration of mechanical foreign bodies (especially ferromagnetic particles) and aggressive chemical substances, the higher the service life of the motor. The air gap must be kept free of chips and other foreign bodies.

The protection class of the installed motor according to DIN EN 60529 results initially from the machine construction, but must be at least IP23.

4.7 Short-term duty S2 and intermittent duty S3

4.7.1 Short-term duty S2

In the case of short-term duty S2, the load time is so short that the final thermal state is not reached. The subsequent zero-current break is so long that the motor practically cools down completely.

Attention

An excessive load can lead to the destruction of the motor.

The load may not exceed the value $\mathsf{I}_{\mathsf{MAX}}$ listed in the data sheets!

The motor may be operated with a current t < t_{MAX} only for a limited time $I_N < I_M \le I_{MAX}$. The time t_{MAX} can be calculated using the following logarithmic formula:

$$t_{MAX} = t_{TH} \cdot \ln\left(\frac{\nu}{\nu - 1}\right)$$

Equation 4.6

with $v = (I_M / I_N)^2$ and the thermal time constant t_{TH} .

The thermal time constants, the maximum currents, and the rated currents of the motors can be found in the data sheets in chapter 11.2 (1FN1) and chapter 15.2 (1FN3).

Note

Equation 4.6 applies under the prerequisite that the starting temperature of the motor corresponds with the intake temperature of the water cooling system T_{VORL} !

Example

The 1FN3300-2WC00-0AA1 motor should be operated from a cold state at maximum current.

• I_{MAX} = 39,2 A, I_N = 12,6 A; from this, v = 9,679 results.

$$t_{MAX} = 120 \text{ s} \cdot \ln \left(\frac{9,679}{9,679 - 1} \right)$$

t_{MAX} ≈ 13 s

The motor may only be operated for a maximum of 13 s at maximum current.

4.7.2 Intermittent duty S3

In case of intermittent duty S3, load times t_B with constant current and downtimes t_S without current sourcing alternate in periodic sequence. During the load time, the motor heats up; in the downtime, it cools down again. After a sufficient number

of load duty cycles with a cycle duration of $t_{\text{Spiel}} = t_B + t_S$, the temperature curve alternates between a constant maximum value T_0 and a constant minimum value T_{II} (see Figure 4-12).



Figure 4-12 Current and temperature curve for intermittent duty S3

For currents $I_N < I_M \le I_{MAX}$, the effective constant current may not exceed the rated current (for more information, also see chapter 5.1.3):

$$I_{eff} = \left[\frac{1}{t_{Spiel}} \left(I_{M}^{2} \cdot t_{B}\right)\right]^{\frac{1}{2}} = I_{M} \left(\frac{t_{B}}{t_{Spiel}}\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} < I_{N}$$
 Equation 4.7

In the process, the cycle duration should not be longer than 10% of the thermal time constants t_{TH} . If a longer cycle duration is necessary, please contact your local Siemens office.

4.8 Operation of linear motors in the area of reduced magnetic coverage

The independent movement of a primary section beyond the ends of the secondary section track is possible. In this case, the motor thrust is reduced.

The available motor thrust is proportional to the percentage of magnetically covered surface in the entire magnetically active surface of the primary section. Depending on the extent of the frictional forces in the guides, the motor thrust of the drive may be too low for the independent move back into the secondary section track if the degree of coverage is too low. A return to the track is then only possible via an external force.

Note

4-38

ALI

The degree of coverage should not be below 50% to guarantee an independent return of the drive to the secondary section track.

In the area of reduced magnetic coverage, an asymmetrical load of the phases results, especially in case of high speeds. This leads to additional heating.

Note

The speed in areas of reduced magnetic coverage should not exceed 25% of the rated speed v_{N}

The area of reduced magnetic coverage should be used only for the approaching of parking or service positions, but not for processing. When a Hall sensor box (HSB) is used for the identification of the position, make sure that the HSB is located above the magnets of the secondary section track when the system is switched on and that the primary section can move on its own.

Normally, the drive is operated in a position-controlled manner. Since the loss of motor thrust changes the behavior of the control circuit, stable operation can be achieved only when the value of the positional controller amplification k_V is reduced.

The appropriate k_V value for each case depends on the structural properties of the respective machine. It can only be determined by tests within the scope of commissioning. The search for the suitable value of k_V should start with 5% of its value at full magnetic coverage.

4.9 Braking of the motor during malfunctions

Caution

Malfunctions at unfavorable slide positions can lead to uncontrolled spinning of the drive. Due to the high kinetic energy stored in the machine slides with large masses and high speeds, machine damage is very probable.

Take measures to stop the motor in case of a malfunction!

The design and calculation of brake systems depends on the maximum kinetic energy, that is, on the maximum mass of the machine slide and its maximum speed. It is thus not a part of this planning guide. This chapter, however, lists a number of possibilities how the machine slide can be stopped on the axis in case of malfunctions.

Malfunctions may appear in case of:

- Power mains failure
- Encoder failure, actuation of the encoder monitoring system
- Failure of the NCU, bus
- Failure of the control board
- Drive errors
- Error in the NC

The only reliable protective measure is to use sufficiently dimensioned damping and impact absorption elements at the ends of traversing paths. If several slides are on one axis, damping and impact absorption elements must be mounted between the slides.

To remove the kinetic energy of the slide before it runs into the damping elements, the following measures should be taken to support the brake system described above:

(1) Electrical braking via the energy of the intermediate circuit: The intermediate circuit must have pulse resistors and condenser modules that store enough energy to brake the machine slide safely when the power mains fails.

Disadvantage: This measure does not work if the encoder system fails.

(2) Electrical braking by short-circuiting the primary section (corresponds to an armature short circuit):

The motor terminals are disconnected from the converter system using a selfactuating contactor and short-circuited in case of a malfunction. **Disadvantage:** The braking force depends on the speed and does not suffice to brake the slide completely.

(3) Mechanical braking via brake elements The braking capacity must be dimensioned as highly as possible so that the

slide can be safely braked at maximum kinetic energy. **Disadvantage:** The relatively long response times of the brake control system leads to long, unbraked traversing distances.

We recommend that all three measures be planned in concert. Measures (2) and (3) are used as an additional security here in case Measure (1) fails: The shortcircuiting of the primary section works at high speeds first and then the mechanical brake comes into play at lower speeds.

Recommended manufacturers

The manufacturers of brake elements are recommended in Appendix B.

4.10 Use of a holding brake

Due to cogging thrust, linear motors can be pulled into a preferable magnetic operating position if the motor is no longer supplied with power from the drive. In the process, if the drive is already at a standstill, unexpected movements may occur up to a half magnetic pole pitch in both directions. To prevent possible damage to the work piece and/or tool, the use of a holding brake may be a good idea.

Due to the missing mechanical self-locking, a holding brake should be provided in case of inclined or vertical drives without weight compensation so that the drive can be shut down and de-energized in any position.

A holding brake may be required if:

- The bearing friction does not compensate or exceed the cogging thrust and unexpected movements result.
- Unexpected movements of the drive lead to damage (e.g. a motor with a large mass also achieves a large kinetic energy).
- Weight-loaded drives must be shut down and de-energized in any position.

To prevent movements when the drive is turned on and shut off, the reaction of the holding brake must be synchronized with the drive. For commissioning, please observe the documentation of the converter system used.

5 Selection of a linear motor

5.1 Drive configuration

The selection of a suitable linear motor depends on the following:

- The peak and sustained power required for the application
- The desired speed and acceleration
- The mounting space available
- The desired or possible drive arrangement (e.g. single-sided, parallel, or double-sided arrangement)
- The required cooling system

Usually, the process of the motor selection is an iterative procedure since the motor type in turn determines the required forces itself due to its intrinsic mass, especially in the case of highly dynamic direct drives. Figure 5-1 shows a flow chart of this process.



5 Selection of a linear motor





Figure 5-1 Sequence diagram for drive configuration

5.1.1 Mechanical limitations

The limitations that influence the selection of the motor include the following:

- Dynamic mass (incl. motor mass)
- Gravitation
- Friction
- Processing powers
- Lengths of travel
- The drive configuration

In this chapter, the first three points are considered in more detail.

Dynamic masses

All machine parts, energy chain devices, covers, attachments, etc. used to move the motor must be included in the calculation of the dynamic mass. This includes the mass of the motor itself. Since this is not known initially – the motor still has to be selected – the mass of an approximately appropriate motor type should be used first. If the assumed mass turns out to be very incorrect within the further course of the calculation, a further iteration step in the motor selection will be subsequently required (see Figure 5-1).

In contrast to rotatory drives with a mechanical reduction, all load masses are included in the acceleration capacity of the drive in an unreduced manner in case of a direct drive.

Gravitation

Every mass is subject to gravitational force. The motor must thus compensate a part of the gravitational force F_G that has an effect on the dynamic mass. This part F_g depends on the dynamic mass M, the mounting position of the axis in relation to the earth's normal (angle α) and any weight compensation used. Figure 5-2 shows the power ratios of the motor due to gravitation in case of an inclined mounting position. F_{\perp} is the part of the gravitational force at work vertically on the inclined axis.



Figure 5-2 Power ratios of the motor in case of an inclined mounting position

Equation 5.8

According to the relations from Figure 5-2, the part of the gravitational force that must be compensated by the motor is calculated from:

$$F_g = M \cdot g \cdot \cos \alpha$$

with a gravitational acceleration g.

When using a weight compensation, you must consider that the compensation does not automatically amount to 100% and is thus connected with additional frictions and inert masses.

ALL Friction

Friction that impedes the movement of a linear motor occurs between the guide carriage and the guide. The corresponding force Fr opposes the direction of motion of the slide.

Essentially, the frictional force Fr consists of a constant component Frc and a component F_{rv} that is proportional to the speed v:

$$F_r = F_{rc} + F_{rv}$$
 Equation 5.9

Both components depend on the type of linear guide used and its load. According to the design of the mechanical structure, the loads mainly include forces due to gravitation (F_{\perp} from Figure 5-2), magnetic attraction forces F_{magn} between the motor sections, and distortion forces F_{spann} between various guide elements. All of these forces result in a single force F_n that is vertical ("normal") to the axis:

$$F_n = F_1 + F_{magn} + F_{spann}$$

Equation 5.10

If you assume $F_{rc} = \mu_{rc} \cdot F_n$ and $F_{rv} = \mu_{rv} \cdot v \cdot F_n$, the following results from for the frictional force:

$$F_r = \mu_{rc} \cdot F_n + \mu_{rv} \cdot v \cdot F_n$$

For the calculation of the friction forces, the data of the manufacturer of the linear guides should be consulted, especially in regard to the coefficients of friction μ_{rc} and μ_{rv} . Figure 5-3 shows a simplified example for the speed curve and the correspondingly occurring frictional forces in a motor.



Figure 5-3 Example for frictional forces

Note

Due to the possible high speeds of the linear motors, the frictional forces may reach unexpectedly high values.

5.1.2 Requirements of the load cycle

In addition to the frictional and gravitational forces, the load cycle is decisive for the selection of the motor. The load cycle contains information regarding the sequence of movements of the drive axis and the processing powers that occur in the process.

The *sequence of movements* can be defined using a distance/time chart, a speed/time chart, or an acceleration/time chart (see Figure 5-4).

In accordance with the following relations:

$$a(t) = \frac{dv}{dt} = \frac{d^2s}{dt^2}$$

Equation 5.12

ALL

the relations can be converted into each other.



Figure 5-4 Example for the sequence of movement of a linear motor in diagrams

The inertia forces resulting from the sequence of movements that the motor must compensate are proportional to the acceleration a and the dynamic mass M:

F_a= M · a

Equation 5.13

They oppose the direction of acceleration.

A *processing power*/time chart for a motor can have the following appearance: Figure 5-5. The speed/time chart from Figure 5-4 is used for comparison.



ALL

Figure 5-5 Example for a processing power/time chart

5.1.3 Motor thrust/time chart

цœ

The power that the motor has to raise consists of the sum of the individual forces at any time.

 $F_{M} = F_{a} + F_{b} + F_{g} + F_{r}$

Equation 5.14

In the process, the signs of the forces must be observed! The peak power F_{MAX} that the motor has to raise can be found very easily in a diagram, such as Figure 5-6.

In addition to the peak power, the required sustained power of the motor is decisive for its dimensioning. The *maximum* sustained power of the motor F_{eff} is calculated from the square mean of the motor thrust over the entire time of a sequence of movements and may not exceed the rated thrust F_N :

$$F_{eff} = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{1}{t_{ges}} & \int_{0}^{t_{ges}} F^{2}(t) dt \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}^{\frac{1}{2}} \le F_{N}$$
Equation 5.15

For the case that the motor thrust is constant in sections, such as in Figure 5-7, the integral from Equation 5.15 is simplified to the following sum:

$$F_{\text{eff}} = \left[\frac{1}{t_{\text{ges}}} \sum F_i^2 \cdot t_i\right]^{\frac{1}{2}} = \left[\frac{1}{t_{\text{ges}}} \left(F_1^2 \cdot t_1 + F_2^2 \cdot t_2 + F_3^2 \cdot t_3 + \dots\right)\right]^{\frac{1}{2}} \text{Equation 5.16}$$

Equation 5.15 and Equation 5.16 apply only under the prerequisite that saturation effects can be ignored. For more exact calculations, the forces are replaced by the corresponding currents.



Figure 5-6 Example for individual forces of the linear motor and the resulting motor thrust



Figure 5-7 Sustained power in case of a motor thrust that is constant in sections

5.1.4 Selection of the primary sections

Using the determined values for the required peak and sustained power, a suitable primary section can be selected for the linear motor. The primary section should have about 10% control reserves in comparison with the required peak power

 F_{MAX} . This avoids undesired limitation effects in case of the overshooting of control circuits. The sustained power of the primary section (rated thrust F_N) must be greater than or equal to the determined sustained power value F_{eff} of the load cycle. In addition, overload phases of the load cycle must not lead to deactivation by the temperature monitoring (see chapter 4.7). If some limitations such as the processing powers and frictions are not known, it may be a good idea to plan for larger reserves.

In addition to the requirements from the load cycle, mechanical installation conditions may influence the choice of motor. The same motor thrust may often be generated by different types of primary sections.

Insofar as several primary sections are involved in the formation of forces on the axis, the values for the peak and sustained power of the individual motors must be summed up. If the distribution of power among the individual motors is not the same, such as in the case of the Gantry axis with an uneven distribution of weight, the power requirements on the individual motors must be taken into consideration separately (see the configuration example in chapter 5.2.2).

Important

Not in all motor operating states are all three phases are evenly loaded with current, for example:

- Standstill with current sourcing of motor, for example, in case of:
 - The compensation of a weight
 - Driving against a brake system (damping and impact absorption elements)
- Low speeds < 0.5 m/min
- Cyclic traversing distances below the pole width

In case of a lasting uneven load, the motor may be operated only at about 70% of the rated thrust (see F_0^* in the data sheets).

For precise information, please contact your local Siemens office.

5.1.5 Thrust at high speeds

At high speeds, the maximum motor thrust is limited by the available intermediate circuit voltage. If speeds that are greater than the maximum speed at peak power $v_{MAX,FMAX}$ are required, check whether the power occurring is actually reached by the motor. For this purpose, the motor thrust/speed chart that results from the required sequence of movements and the motor thrust/time chart is required. In the process, only the amounts for motor thrust and speed are decisive, not the directions.



Figure 5-8 Example for the motor thrust/speed characteristic curve

All points on the resulting motor thrust/speed characteristic curve must lie before the power/speed characteristic curve of the motor, which can be found in the data sheets – chapter 11.2 in the 1FN1 section and chapter 15.2 in the 1FN3 section.

Figure 5-8 shows some points of the thrust/speed characteristic points at the times t_1 through t_4 , for example:

- t₁: This point is uncritical since it lies below the thrust/speed characteristic curve of the motor.
- t₂, t₃: These points are uncritical since they lie below the thrust/speed characteristic curve of the motor. It should be checked, however, whether the motor can be driven as long as intended at overload (see chapter 4.7).
- t₄: If such a point occurs, the required motor thrust cannot be achieved at this speed. In this case, you must select another primary section at which the point t₄ lies below the thrust/speed characteristic curve.

5.1.6 Selection of the secondary sections

The number and selection of the required secondary sections depends on the following.

- The selected primary section
- The desired length of travel
- The drive arrangement

Width of the secondary sections

Irrespectively of the lengths, the secondary sections must have the same magnetic track width as the selected primary section. This can be guaranteed through a selection using the MLFB (order numbers): in the MLFB of the primary and secondary sections, the following digits marked with \Box must correspond:

- 1FN1: 1FN1□□x
- 1FN3: 1FN3

Total length of the secondary section track

The total length of a secondary section track determines the number of required secondary sections. It depends on the length of the desired traversing distance, the number of primary sections on this secondary section track, and, if applicable, the use of a Hall sensor box.

Note

The calculation of the total length of the secondary section track listed here guarantees the maximum motor thrust over the entire traversing distance.

A single primary section on the secondary section track

Insofar as only a single primary section is planned on the secondary section track, the length of the secondary section track is calculated from the length of the desired traversing distance and the magnetically active length of the primary section (see Figure 5-9).

Note

The magnetically active length of the primary section without the use of a Hall sensor box ($l_{P,AKT}$) is shorter than when a Hall sensor box is used ($l_{P,AKT,H}$).

The size $l_{P,AKT}$ is listed in the dimensional sheets – chapter 12 in the 1FN1 section and chapter 16 in the 1FN3 section. The length $l_{P,AKT,H}$ then results from the drawings for the attachment of the Hall sensor box.



Figure 5-9 Determination of the length of the secondary section track for a primary section

Several primary sections on a secondary section track

If several primary sections are to be mounted on a secondary section track, the required length of the secondary section increases by the active length of the additional primary sections and the distances in between (see Figure 5-10).



Figure 5-10 Determination of the length of the secondary section track for several primary sections

If the various primary sections are operated by separate converters with separate measuring systems, for example, in case of gantry or master/slave operation, the distance between the primary sections is limited only by mechanical limitations such as the length of the connecting plug and the bending radii of the cables. Insofar as the primary sections are operated electrically parallel to a converter, the distance may have only specific defined values according to the data in the motor installation drawings (see chapters 6.1.2 and Table 9-8 for 1FN1-type motors and chapter Table 13-6 for the peak-load motors of the 1FN3 product family.

Number of secondary sections

The required total length of the secondary section track can be composed of any number of secondary sections of various length. The available lengths are listed in the motor data. In regard to mounting, it is often more favorable to use a greater number of shorter secondary sections instead of a few longer secondary parts.

5.1.7 Checking the dynamic mass

The dynamic mass of the motor or the axis is determined after the secondary sections are selected at the latest. With this data, the assumptions made in chapter 5.1.1 can be checked. Insofar as the mass of the motor assumed there deviates considerably from the actual mass of the motor, a new calculation of the load cycle is required.

5.1.8 Selection of the power inverter power unit

The required power units are selected according to the peak and sustained currents that occur in the load cycle. If several primary sections are operated in parallel with one converter, then the summed values of the peak and sustained currents must be taken into account.

A selection of available power units can be found in the following literature:

- Catalog /NC60/
- SIMODRIVE 611 Planning Guide for Converters /PJU/

Note

In systems where direct drives are used together with regulated (closed-loop control) infeed units, electrical oscillations can occur with respect to ground potential. These oscillations are, among other things, influenced by the following:

- The lengths of the cables
- The size of the infeed/regenerative feedback module
- The number of axes
- The size of the motor
- The winding design of the motor
- The type of network
- The place of installation

The oscillations lead to increased voltage loads and may damage the main insulation! We thus recommend using a HFD choke with damping resistance for damping the oscillations. For details, see the planning guide for converters /PJU/.

5.1.9 Calculation of the required infeed units

The electrical infeed power P_{EL} of the linear motors can be determined from the delivered mechanical power $\mathsf{P}_{\mathsf{MECH}}$ and the occurring losses $\mathsf{P}_V.$

$$P_{EL} = P_{MECH} + P_V$$

= $F_{M} \cdot v + 3 \cdot R_{STR} \cdot I_{eff}^{2}$

Equation 5.17

The effective current $I_{\text{eff}}\,$ results from the motor thrust $F_M\,$ and the power constant of the motor k_F :

 $I_{eff} = \frac{F_M}{k_F}$

Equation 5.18

For the lane resistance $R_{STR}\,$ of the primary sector of the motor, the value of the rated temperature T_N found in the data sheets in chapters 11.2 (1FN1) and 15.2 (1FN3) is assumed. The variable v from Equation 5.17 is the speed set in the load cycle (chapter 5.1.2).

The electrical power can be calculated for every point in time in the load cycle. For the selection of an infeed unit for the intermediate circuit, it generally suffices to determine the required maximum infeed power for the load cycle for highly dynamic direct drives: the constant input is generally considerably lower. The maximum infeed power is usually required when accelerating to the maximum speed. Since accelerating can take place only for a very brief period of time in the case of highly dynamic drives, the 200 ms value can generally be used as design criterion for the maximum infeed power of the infeed devices.

In the case of several axes, the infeed powers of the individual axes are to be added together with the corresponding simultaneity conditions for the selection of the infeed device.

5.2 Configuration examples

In the following chapters, two typical examples how a motor can be dimensioned according to the given limitations are presented.

The data used here may deviate from the values listed in the data sheets. This changes nothing in the procedure during the configuration procedure.

5.2.1 Positioning in the given time

Limitations/secondary conditions

Given variables

During positioning in the given time, only the end points of the distance and the duration of the individual steps are set. For the example shown here, the motor should move on a horizontal axis to a certain point t_1 the time s_{MAX} . It should stay there for a while t_2 and then return to the home position. Figure 5-11shows these variables in a distance/time chart.



Figure 5-11 Example 1: Representation of the given variables in the distance/time chart

The individual given variables are:

- Traversing distance s_{MAX} = 260 mm = 0.26 m
- Traversing time t₁ = 0.21 s
- Dwell time $t_2 = 0.18$ s
- Mass to be moved (without motor mass) M = 50 kg
- Constant friction F_r = 100 N
- Horizontal axis F_g = 0

Required

is an appropriate primary segment of the 1FN1 product family, the appropriate secondary sections, and the number of required secondary sections. In addition, a power inverter power unit is selected and the maximum infeed power calculated.

01.06

Traversing profile

The form of the traversing profile is not explicitly given for the time duration t_1 . For this reason, a suitable traversing profile must be defined first. Figure 5-12 shows some examples for possible traversing distances.



Figure 5-12 Example 1: Examples for traversing profiles

The traced line characterizes the traversing profile that can be realized most easily: It takes only one constant acceleration procedure and one constant braking procedure to reach the position s_{MAX} (see Figure 5-13). Such a traversing profile makes very short positioning times possible.





From the given values, you can calculate how great the maximum speed and maximum acceleration (delay) of the motor must be:

$$\frac{s_{MAX}}{2} = \frac{a_{MAX}}{2} \cdot \left(\frac{t_1}{2}\right)^2 \rightarrow a_{MAX} = s_{MAX} \cdot \left(\frac{2}{t_1}\right)^2$$
Equation 5.19
$$a_{MAX} = 0,26 \text{ m} \cdot \left(\frac{2}{0,21 \text{ s}}\right)^2 = 23,6 \text{ m/s}^2$$
$$v_{MAX} = a_{MAX} \cdot \frac{t_1}{2} = s_{MAX} \cdot \frac{2}{t_1}$$
$$v_{MAX} = 0,26 \text{ m} \cdot \left(\frac{2}{0,21 \text{ s}}\right) = 2,48 \text{ m/s}$$

Since the required force for this is not yet known, F_{MAX} should be assumed. The value for the maximum speed v_{MAX} then corresponds with the values listed for $v_{MAX,FMAX}$ in the data sheets in chapter 11.2. One speed

 v_{MAX} = 2,48 m/s =149 m/min lies above the maximum permissible values $v_{MAX,FMAX}$ for the 1FN1-type motors. For this reason, the traversing profile must be modified.

A further simple traversing profile that should be checked contains, in addition to the phases of constant acceleration and constant delay, a phase in which the motor should run at maximum speed (see Figure 5-14).



Figure 5-14 Example 1: Modified traversing profile

For the maximum speed that the motor should achieve, the following should apply: $s_{MAX} \ge v_{MAX} \cdot t_1$ Equation 5.20

Otherwise, the time $t_1\,$ does not suffice to position the motor at $s_{MAX}.$ In the current example, the following must apply for the maximum speed of the motor:

 $v_{MAX} \ge 1,24 \text{ m/s} = 74,3 \text{ m/min}$ Equation 5.21

In comparison with the previous profile a higher acceleration a_{MAX} must be assumed so that the motor can be positioned in the same time t_1 . At the defined maximum speed, this acceleration can be calculated:

$$s_{MAX} = 2 \cdot \left(\frac{a_{MAX}}{2} t_a^2\right) + (t_1 - 2t_a) v_{MAX} \text{ with } t_a = \frac{v_{MAX}}{a_{MAX}}$$

$$a_{MAX} = \frac{v_{MAX}^2}{v_{MAX} t_1 - s_{MAX}}$$
Equation 5.22

A primary section can be selected using this data.

Selection of the primary section:

With the condition from Equation 5.20 or Equation 5.21, some of the primary sections are no longer under consideration for selection (see the data sheet in chapter 11.2). For the rest of the motors, speeds up to a maximum of 105 m/min = 1.75 m/s apply. If you assume a maximum speed $v_{MAX} = 1,5$ m/s = 90 m/min – which further reduces the selection of motors – you will obtain an acceleration $a_{MAX} = 41$ m/s² from . For the maximum power F_{MAX} that the motor must raise, the following results:

 $F_{MAX} = 50 \text{ kg} \cdot 41 \text{ m/s}_2 + 100 \text{ N}$

Equation 5.23

= 2150 N

The smallest motor that reaches this power is the 1FN1076. Even the previously assumed 90 m/min does not exceed the given maximum speed at peak power $v_{MAX},$ FmAx \cdot

Now, two other points must be checked:

- Does the reserve power of the selected primary section also suffice for the previously unconsidered mass of the primary section?
- Does the sustained power lie below the permissible sustained power?

Reserve power

The mass of the primary section amounts to 17.5 kg for the 1FN1076; the entire

dynamic mass M to be moved thus amounts to (50+17.5) kg = 67.5 kg. The

maximum power that the motor must raise accordingly amounts to Equation 5.23.

$$F_{MAX} = 67,5 \text{ kg} \cdot 41 \text{ m/s}_2 + 100 \text{ N}$$

Equation 5.24

= 2868 N

The reserve power is thus sufficient.

Sustained power

Figure 5-15 shows the power/time chart for the entire sequence of movements of the example shown here. To calculate the sustained power, the summation formula from Equation 5.16 can be used here since the motor thrust F_m is constant in sections:

$$F_{eff} = \sqrt{\frac{1}{2t_1 + t_2}} \left[F_1^2 t_a + F_2^2 (t_1 - 2t_a) + F_3^2 t_a + F_4^2 t_2 + F_5^2 t_a + F_6^2 (t_1 - 2t_a) + F_7^2 t_a \right]}$$

With $F_1 = 2868 \text{ N}, F_2 = 100 \text{ N}, F_3 = -2668 \text{ N}$ (Travel to position s_{MAX})
 $F_4 = 0$ (Dwell time)

$$F_{1} = 2868 \text{ N}, F_{2} = 100 \text{ N}, F_{3} = -2668 \text{ N} \quad (\text{Travel to position } s_{MAX})$$

$$F_{4} = 0 \qquad (\text{Dwell time})$$

$$F_{5} = -2868 \text{ N}, F_{6} = -100 \text{ N}, \qquad (\text{Travel to position } s_{MAX})$$

$$F_{7} = 2668 \text{ N}$$

$$t_{a} = \frac{v_{MAX}}{a_{MAX}} = \frac{1.5 \text{ m/s}}{41 \text{ m/s}^{2}} = 0,0366 \text{ s} \qquad (\text{See Equation } 5.22)$$

F_{eff} = 1370 N

The sustained power thus lies below the permissible value of 1580 N (see chapter 12.1.2).

5 Selection of a linear motor

ALL



Figure 5-15 Example 1: Power/time chart and sustained power of the observed load cycle

Interim result

For the example shown here, the primary section of the 1FN1076 is suitable.

Selection of the secondary sections

Type of secondary section:

According to chapter 5.1.6, only secondary section 1FN1070 is suited for this motor.

Length of the secondary section track

The magnetically active length of the primary section $l_{P,AKT}$ amounts to 517.6 mm. Together with the traversing distance s_{max} , the length of the secondary section track l_{Spur} results according to Figure 5-9 as

 $l_{Spur} = l_{P,AKT} + s_{MAX}$

= (517 + 260) mm

= 777 mm

Equation 5.25

Number of secondary sections

The 1FN1070 secondary sections are available in two versions:

- 1_S = 225 mm (1FN1070-0AA00-0AA0)
- 1_S = 563,4 mm (1FN1070-0AA00-1AA0)

The combination of a long and a short secondary section results in a length of the secondary section track of (225 + 563.4) mm = 788.4 mm. This length is sufficient.

Selection of the power inverter power unit

The selected motor has the following data:

- Maximum power F_{MAX} = 3450 N
- Rated thrust F_N = 1580 N
- Maximum current I_{MAX} = 28 A
- Rated current I_N = 11,1 A

A power unit that matches this data, for example, is the 18 A/36 A power unit from the catalog /NC60/.

Calculation of the maximum infeed voltage:

The electrical infeed power results from the mechanical power P_{MECH} and the power loss P_V (see Equation 5.17). Both values in this example are maximum if the motor works at maximum speed and power according to the necessary load cycle. In the example shown here, these values are as follows:

- v_{MAX} = 1,5 m/s
- F_{MAX} = 2868 N (Equation 5.24)

For the maximum infeed power, the following results from Equation 5.17, Equation 5.18, and the data sheet from chapter 12.1.2

$$P_{EL,MAX} = F_{MAX} \cdot v_{MAX} + 3 \cdot R_{STR} \cdot \left(\frac{F_{MAX}}{k_F}\right)^2$$

$$= 2868 \text{ N} \cdot 1,5 \text{ m/s} + 3 \cdot 4,3 \Omega \cdot \left(\frac{2868 \text{ N}}{142 \text{ N/A}}\right)^2 = 9564 \text{ W}$$
Units:
$$[P_{EL}] = \frac{N \cdot m}{s} + \frac{\Omega \cdot N^{2} \cdot A^2}{N^2}$$
Equation 5.26
$$= \frac{N \cdot m}{s} + \frac{V \cdot A^2}{A} (1 \text{ W} = 1 \text{ Nm/s} = 1 \text{ VA})$$

$$= W$$

The value of 9564 W must be added to the infeed cables of other consumers that are also operated on the intermediate circuit. A corresponding infeed/regenerative feedback module can thus be selected.

5.2.2 Processing center with Gantry axis

In processing centers, arrangements with three linear motor axes riding on top of each other as shown in Figure 5-16 are frequently used. In the design of the linear drives, it must be observed that underlaid axes must move the masses of the riding axes as well. In the case of the arrangement from Figure 5-16, the y-axis thus also bears the mass of the z-axis. For the x-axis, which lies at the bottom (on the very



outside), the mass of both the y-axis and the z-axis must be taken into consideration.

Figure 5-16 Three linear motor axes lying on top of each other in the x, y, and z directions

The x-axis is designed as a gantry⁴ in the arrangement from Figure 5-16: Motor X_1 and motor X_2 have their own linear measurement system and converter, but move synchronously. In the following, both motors X_1 and X_2 , which should belong to the 1FN1 product family, will be designed.

Limitations/secondary conditions

Speed/time chart

The required speed/time chart consists of phases of constant speed and phases of constant acceleration (see Figure 5-17). The acceleration should respectively take on the value a = 2g (g: gravitational force; $g = 9,81 \text{ m/s}^2$). At the end of the movement cycle, the motor should have a standstill phase.

⁴ Definition: In "gantry operation" mode, two rigidly coupled machine axes are traversed synchronously via mutually independent axis drives. The sequence of movements of both drives follows the same program and is thus synchronous.



ALL



During the time t₆, the processing of a work piece should take place at the speed v_b and the constant power F_b . A general friction of F_r = 300 N should be assumed per side.

v_{MAX} = 1,5 m/s = 90 m/min

The individual variables until now have been:

Speeds:

	v _b = 0.5 m/s = 30 m/min		
Times:	t ₁ = 76,5 ms	Note:	
	t ₂ = 180 ms	The times during the acceleration phases result from	
	t ₃ = 51,0 ms		
	t ₄ = 100 ms	$v = a \cdot t + v_0 \rightarrow t = \frac{v - v_0}{a}$	
	t ₅ = 102 ms	Example:	
	t ₆ = 200 ms	$-v_{MAX} - v_b = v_{MAX} + v_b$	
	t ₇ = 76,5 ms	$t_5 = -2g = 2g$	
	t ₈ = 80 ms	$=\frac{1.5 \text{ m/s} + 0.5 \text{ m/s}}{2.9,81 \text{ m/s}^2}$	
	$t_{ges} = \sum_{i=1}^{8} t_i = 866 \text{ ms}$	t ₅ = 0,102 s = 102 ms	
	i=1		
Forces:	F _b = 1000 N		
	F _r = 300 N		

Mass to be moved

The mass to be moved is composed of the mass of the primary sections, which are unknown up to now, and the mass of the y-axis. In the process, note that the mass distribution of the y-axis to both motors X1 and X2 is generally not even: it depends on the position of the center of gravity of the frame and the slide of the y-axis (see Figure 5-18).



Figure 5-18 Example 2: Mass distribution of the y-axis to both motors: relevant lengths

The following lengths and masses are given for the example shown below:

$$l_{ges}$$
 = 1200 mm = 1,2 m
 $l_{S,y,X1,MIN}$ = 300 mm = 0,3 m
 $l_{S,y,X1}$ = 600 mm = 0,6 m
 $m_{S,y}$ = 180 kg
 $m_{R,y}$ = 280 kg

Masses:

Lengths:

The mass $m_{R,y,X1}$ that the motor X_1 must support from the frame of the y-axis results from the following:

$$\frac{m_{R,y,X1}}{m_{R,y}} = \frac{l_{ges} - l_{R,y}}{l_{ges}} \rightarrow m_{R,y,X1} = \left(1 - \frac{l_{R,y}}{l_{ges}}\right) m_{R,y}$$
Equation 5.27

Analogous to this, the mass $m_{S,y,X1}$ results as a part of the mass of the slide of the y-axis ($m_{S,y}$):

$$m_{S,y,X1} = \left(1 - \frac{l_{S,y}}{l_{ges}}\right) m_{S,y}$$
Equation 5.28

The following results as the total mass to be moved of the motor X_1 :

$$M_{X1} = m_{X1} + \left(1 - \frac{l_{R,y}}{l_{ges}}\right) m_{R,y} + \left(1 - \frac{l_{S,y}}{l_{ges}}\right) m_{S,y}$$
Equation 5.29

At the same time, the motor $X_2\,$ must accelerate a mass that consists of a primary section mass $m_{X2}\,$ and the mass of the y-axis that is not accelerated by the motor X_1 :

$$\begin{split} M_{X2} &= m_{X2} + (m_{R,y} - m_{R,y,X1}) + (m_{S,y} - m_{S,y,X1}) \\ M_{X2} &= m_{X2} + \frac{l_{R,y}}{l_{ges}} m_{R,y} + \frac{l_{S,y}}{l_{ges}} m_{S,y} \end{split}$$
 Equation 5.30

The center of gravity of the frame does not shift during the movement. M_{X1} thus only changes due to the movement of the slide of the y-axis: The mass that the motor X_1 must move is maximum if $I_{S,y}$ is minimum:

5 Selection of a linear motor

5.31

$$M_{X1,MAX} = m_{X1} + \left(1 - \frac{l_{R,y}}{l_{ges}}\right) m_{R,y} + \left(1 - \frac{l_{S,y,MIN}}{l_{ges}}\right) m_{S,y}$$
Equation

For the variables shown here in the example, the following maximum mass M_{X1} results:

$$M_{X1,MAX} = m_{X1} + \left(1 - \frac{0.6 \text{ m}}{1.2 \text{ m}}\right) \cdot 280 \text{ kg} + \left(1 - \frac{0.3 \text{ m}}{1.2 \text{ m}}\right) \cdot 180 \text{ kg}$$

= m_{X1} + 275 kg

Since the center of gravity of the frame is precisely between both motors $X_1 \ \mbox{and} \$ X_2 in the current example, $M_{X1,MAX} = M_{X2,MAX}$ applies so that all following observations can be made only for the motor X1.

Selection of the primary sections

Power/time chart and sustained power

If you initially ignore the mass of the primary section of the motor X_1 , the maximum power that the motor requires for the acceleration results from the maximum mass to be moved M_{X1}:

 $F_{a,MAX} = M_{X1,MAX} \cdot 2g$

= 275 kg · 2· 9,81 m/s²

= 5395,5 N

Added to this is the friction $F_r = 300$ N so that the maximum power that the motor X₁ must raise amounts to about 5700 N without taking the mass of the primary section into consideration.5

From the 1FN1-type motors, the 1FN1126-5xF71 motor thus comes into question. This motor fulfills all previous requirements with a maximum force of 6500 N and a maximum speed of 103 m/s. Together with the mass of the primary section of 40.7 kg, however, a maximum force of about 6500 N results. The recommended control reserves of 10% (see chapter 5.1.4) would otherwise not exist in this form. We accordingly recommend that you select primary section 1FN1184-5xF71. This primary section has a mass of 44.5 kg, and the maximum force that the motor must move amounts to about 6570 N. This lies considerably below the given maximum of 7920 N (see chapter 12.3.1).

It now must be checked whether the sustained power lies below the rated thrust F_N of the selected primary section. The calculation takes place analogously to the first example (see page 5-57): Here, too, there are only sections with constant force (see Figure 5-19).

⁵ The processing power is much lower than the power the motor needs to accelerate (see Figure 5-19). For this reason, the maximum power of the load cycle is also needed during acceleration.



Example 2: Power/time chart of the observed load cycle Figure 5-19

The times listed in Figure 5-19 correspond to those from the speed/time chart in Figure 5-17. The only thing that must be considered is that the direction of motion of the motor reverses during this time $t_5\,$ and the frictional force $F_r\,$ thus changes its sign accordingly. Using a ray equation, the time t_{5a} in Figure 5-19 can be calculated according to Figure 5-17 from:

$$\frac{t_{5a}}{t_5} = \frac{v_{MAX}}{v_{MAX} + v_b} \rightarrow t_{5a} = \frac{v_{MAX}}{v_{MAX} + v_b} t_5$$
$$t_{5a} = \frac{1.5 \text{ m/s}}{(1.5 + 0.5) \text{ m/s}} \cdot 102 \text{ ms} = 76.5 \text{ ms}$$

Equation 5.32

+

For the sustained power F_{eff} , a value of about 3848 N results. This lies above the rated thrust F_N = 3600 N of the selected primary section! There are two alternatives now:

- The extension of the standstill phase at the end of the movement cycle: A time $t_8 = 950$ ms instead of $t_8 = 866$ ms results in a value $F_{eff} = 3592$ N < 3600 N.
- The selection of the next largest primary section: This primary section 1FN1186-5xF71 fulfills all requirements on maximum force (F_{X1,MAX} = 6830 N < 10600 N), maximum speed (v_{MAX} = 90 m/min < 102 m/min), and sustained power (F_{eff} = 3920 N < 4800 N).

In the following, the first variant is used.

Result

Both for the motor $X_1\,$ and the motor X_2 , the primary section 1FN1184-5xF71 is selected.

Selection of the secondary sections

According to chapter 5.1.6, only secondary section 1FN1180 is suited for this motor. This secondary section is available in two versions:

- 1_S = 215,4 mm (1FN1180-0AA00-0AA0)
- 1_S = 503,4 mm (1FN1180-0AA00-1AA0)

Together with the magnetically active length of the primary section 1FN1184-5xF71 of $l_{P,AKT}$ = 518 mm, the necessary length of the magnet system is composed of individual secondary sections according to chapter 5. 1. 6 or Equation 5.25.

Selection of the power inverter power unit

The selected motors have the following data:

- Maximum power F_{MAX} = 7920 N
- Rated thrust F_N = 3600 N
- Maximum current I_{MAX} = 65,5 A
- Rated current I_N = 26,1 A

A power unit that matches this data, for example, is the 56 A/112 A power unit from the catalog . If no power increase is planned in the long term, power unit 28 A/56 A also suffices since the maximum current I_{MAX} = 65,5 A according to the load cycle is not reached. The actual current used results according to Equation 5.18 from:

$$I_{MAX} = \frac{F_{MAX}}{k_F} = \frac{6570 \text{ N}}{138 \text{ N/A}} = 47,6 \text{ A}$$

Calculation of the maximum infeed voltage:

The mechanical power P_{MECH} and power loss P_V of *one* motor become maximum when this motor is running at maximum speed and maximum power according to the required load cycle. In the example shown here, these values are as follows:

- v_{MAX} = 1,5 m/s
- F_{MAX} = 6570 N (see page 5-63)

In case of *gantry axes*, the infeed powers of both motors X_1 and X_2 are added up. In case of an uneven weight distribution, the sum becomes maximum since the power loss of the motors increases quadratically with the power that the motor

must raise. This means that the maximum infeed power is necessary if the motor X_1 should actually have to raise the maximum force F_{MAX} . For the motor X_2 , the following mass to be accelerated results according to Equation 5.30:

$$M_{X2} = m_{X2} + (m_{R,y} + m_{S,y}) - (m_{R,y,X1} + m_{S,y,X1})$$

The following power to be raised F_{X2} results as well:

$$F_{X2} = M_{X2} \cdot 2g + F_r$$

 $F_{X2} = 229,5 \text{ kg} \cdot 2 \cdot 9,81 \text{ m/s}^2 + 300 \text{ N}$
 $F_{X2} = 4803 \text{ N}$

For the infeed power, the following results from Equation 5.17, Equation 5.18, and the data sheet from chapter 12.3.1 at maximum speed:

$$P_{EL} = P_{EL,X1} + P_{EL,X2}$$

$$P_{EL} = F_{X1} \cdot v_{MAX} + 3R_{STR} \cdot \left(\frac{F_{X1}}{k_F}\right)^2 + F_{X2} \cdot v_{MAX} + 3R_{STR} \cdot \left(\frac{F_{X2}}{k_F}\right)^2$$

$$= (F_{X1} + F_{X2}) \cdot v_{MAX} + 3R_{STR} \frac{F_{X1}^2 + F_{X2}^2}{k_F^2}$$

The maximum infeed power is thus:

$$\mathsf{P}_{\mathsf{EL},\mathsf{MAX}} = (6570 \text{ N} + 4803 \text{ N}) \cdot 1,5 \text{ m/s} + 3.15,7 \Omega \cdot \frac{(6570 \text{ N})^2 + (4803 \text{ N})^2}{(138 \text{ N/A})^2}$$

= 180870 W

The value of 181 kW must be added to the infeed cables of other consumers that are also operated on the intermediate circuit. A corresponding infeed/regenerative feedback module can thus be selected.
6 Parallel and double-sided arrangement

6.1 Parallel connection of motor primary sections

In contrast to the gantry drive (see chapter 5.2.2), the parallel-connected motors are supplied with power by a single converter.

Note

ALL

Only linear motors with identical order designations should be connected in parallel. This means that the motors have:

- The same forces
- The same winding type
- The same secondary section type
- The same air gap

Insofar as you want to connect different types of motors in parallel, the necessary data can be provided for the possible pairings if desired.

The prerequisite for an electrical parallel connection of motors is a sufficiently rigid coupling. The position of the primary sections that must fulfill certain prerequisites thus remain constant in relation to each other.

6.1.1 Motor arrangements

Primary sections can both be arranged on one secondary section track or use one secondary track each. The cable outlet direction can be the same or different. For motors connected electrically in parallel (Master M and Stoker S), four basic mechanical arrangements thus result (see Table 6-1).

	. .	
	Same cable outlet direction	Different cable outlet direction
One secondary section track	TANDEM arrangement	JANUS arrangement
Two secondary section tracks	PARALLEL arrangement	ANTIPARALLEL arrangement
		м

 Table 6-1
 Basic mechanical arrangements of parallel-connected motors

6.1.2 Position of the primary sections and phase sequence

Note

If linear motors on a secondary section track are connected in parallel, the position of the primary sections with respect to one another must exhibit a specific grid to achieve a matching electrical phase position. In case of separate secondary section tracks, the position of the tracks in relation to each other must be taken into consideration.

The reference points for the determination of the correct position of the parallelconnected linear motors are as follows:

- For the primary section: The bore hole that is located farthest from the cable outlet of the primary section.
- For the secondary section: The mounting hole closest to the N-marking.

Same cable outlet direction

The phase sequence of Master and Stoker is identical for the same cable outlet (see Table 6-2).

Table 6-2	Phase sequence for PARALLEL and TANDEM arrangement
	I hase sequence for LARALLLE and TANDEM analigement

	Phase		
Master	U	V	W
Stoker	U	V	W

The position of Master and Stoker must accordingly be identical in comparison with the position of the permanent magnets of the secondary section track(s) (see Figure 6-1).



Figure 6-1 Position of Master and Stoker in the same cable outlet direction

In the case of the *TANDEM arrangement*, the bore hole distance Δs_b must accordingly be a whole-number multiple of the pole pair width $2\tau_M$ (see Table 6-2 (a)):

$$\Delta s_b = n \cdot 2\tau_M$$
 with $n = 0, 1, 2, ...$

Equation 6.33

ALL

In the case of the *PARALLEL arrangement*, you also have the possibility of shifting the second secondary section track by Δx (see Table 6-2 (b)). For the bore hole distance Δs_b , the following thus results:

 $\Delta s_b = \Delta x + n \cdot 2\tau_M$ with n = 0, 1, 2, ...

Equation 6.34



Figure 6-2 Position of Master and Stoker in case of PARALLEL and TANDEM arrangement

Different cable outlet direction

The phase sequence of Master and Stoker results according to Table 6-3 in case of a different cable outlet direction. One phase is assigned as in the case of Master, the other two are switched.

	Phase		
Master	U	V	W
Stoker (1FN1)	V	U	W
Stoker (1FN3)	U	W	V

Table 6-3 Phase sequence for ANTIPARALLEL and JANUS arrangement

The position of the primary sections in relation to the permanent magnets of the secondary section track is no longer identical: The Stoker must be shifted by a distance $\Delta s_0 \neq 2\tau_M$ so that the formation of forces in both motors is the same. Such a distance is easiest to define in the JANUS arrangement: Δs_0 is the smallest possible bore hole distance (see Figure 6-3).⁶

ALL



Figure 6-3 Position of the Master and Stoker in the case of different cable outlet directions

Accordingly, borehole distances Δs_b that result from the following are possible in the *JANUS arrangement*.

$$\Delta s_b = \Delta s_0 + n \cdot 2\tau_M \text{ with } n = 0; 1; 2; \dots \text{ Equation 6.35}$$

In the case of the *ANTIPARALLEL arrangement*, you can shift the second secondary section track by Δx as in the case of the PARALLEL arrangement. For the bore hole distance Δs_b , the following thus results:

 $\Delta s_b = \Delta s_0 + \Delta x + n \cdot 2\tau_M \text{ with } n = 0; 1; 2; \dots \text{Equation 6.36}$

Example: Calculation of the bore hole distance in case of the ANTIPARALLEL arrangement

Prerequisites:

- Motor type: 1FN3300–1W (data from Table 13-6)
 - $\Delta s_0 = 111,2 \text{ mm}$
 - 2τ_M = 46 mm
- Both motors should be next to each other if possible (see Figure 6-4).
- $|\Delta x|$ should be as small as possible.

⁶ The differences between 1FN1 and 1FN3 in the phase assignment of the Stoker with a different cable outlet direction also result from the definition of s₀ as the smallest possible bore hole distance of the JANUS arrangement.



Figure 6-4 Targeted sample position of the Master and Stoker

Steps:

First, imagine the JANUS arrangement (see Figure 6-5) for Step 1. The shift s_V that would be necessary to bring the Stoker into the desired position in this arrangement depends on the length of the primary section l_P , the distance of the bore hole to the front of the primary section $l_{P,B}$, and the minimum bore hole distance of the JANUS arrangement Δs_0 :

 $|s_V| = l_P + (\Delta s_0 - 2l_{P,B})$ with $l_P = 221$ mm (see chapter 16.2.2) with $l_{P,B} = 50,5$ mm (see chapter 16.2.2) $|s_V| = 221$ mm + (111,2 - 2 · 50,5) mm $s_V = -231,2$ mm (negative since the shift is to the left)

Since the secondary section tracks should be pushed against each other as little as possible, the shift s_V should be realized from a multiple of the pole pair width $2\tau_M$ if possible. The optimum case ($\Delta x = 0$) would be $\Delta s = s_V = -n \cdot 2\tau_M$. The n for which $|s_V - \Delta s|$ becomes minimum is determined via:

$$\frac{|s_V|}{2\tau_M} = \frac{231,2 \text{ mm}}{46 \text{ mm}} = 5,02 \approx 5$$

In this example, the Stoker must be shifted five pole pair widths to the left in Step 2. Thus, the following applies for Δs :

 $\Delta s = -5 \cdot 2\tau_M = -5 \cdot 46 \text{ mm} = -230 \text{ mm}$

The difference s_V - Δs must be compensated by shifting the secondary section track:

Δx = -231,2 mm -(-230 mm) = -1,2 mm

In this case, the secondary section track with the Stoker must be shifted 1.2 mm to the left.

The bore hole distance can now be defined:

 $\Delta s_b = \Delta s_0 + \Delta s + \Delta x$

 Δs_b = 111,2 mm - 230 mm - 1,2 mm = -120 mm

The reference bore hole of the Stoker is thus 120 mm to the left of the reference bore hole of the Master.



ALL

Figure 6-5 Dimensions (with counting direction) in the case of the specified example

6.2 Double-sided motors

Double-sided motors are suited for drives with high power density and short traversing distances. Since the primary sections are usually known and the structure is moved together with the secondary section, no power cable that must be moved is expected.

6.2.1 Basic design



Figure 6-6 Principle design of a double-sided motor

Figure 6-6 shows the variants in which a double-sided motor can be realized:

- a) Two standard secondary section tracks are mounted on a carrier plate the incline of the permanent magnets is not parallel.
- b) Two magnetic tracks are glued onto a carrier plate with a parallel incline
- c) One magnetic track is integrated into the carrier plate.

In the case of Variant (a), two standard primary sections can be used since both primary sections work with the usual incline of the permanent magnets. For this reason, this variant can be realized with all motors of the 1FN1 and 1FN3 product families.

Due to the lower dynamic mass for Variants (b) and (c), these double-sided motors are suited for the maximum dynamic requirements. Since a primary section must work with the opposite incline, an inverse winding is needed here. This can be obtained only for certain motor types of the 1FN1 and 1FN3 product families or upon request. For the corresponding data, see chapter 9.5.2 in the 1FN1 section and chapter 13.5.2 in the 1FN3 section.

6.2.2 Connection of the primary sections

For both variants, the primary sections are connected in parallel according to Table 6-2.

6.2.3 Structure of the carrier plate

The carrier plate for the application-specific secondary section track is to be manufactured in consultation with the Siemens office responsible for the customer.

The minimum thickness of the carrier plate only depends on the motor thrust to be transferred. For reasons of stiffness, this dimension – according to the structure of the application-specific secondary section – should be increased since uneven air gaps on the left and right lead to various attraction forces. The difference of the attraction forces of the motors must be transferred to the guide via the carrier plate and its connecting structure. In case the stiffness of the carrier plate is too low, impermissibly high deformation may result. Even though the attraction forces are compensated in the case of double-sided motors, forces of up to about 25% of the attraction forces of a motor have an effect on the carrier plate.

6.2.4 Configuration of the motors

The configuration essentially takes place according to chapter 5.1. Only difference: in this case, the dynamic mass is the mass of the secondary section plant. This means that the following must be taken into consideration:

- The mass of the secondary sections or the mass of the magnetic material
- The mass of the (special) secondary section covers
- The mass of the mount of the carrier plate
- The mass of the guide elements
- The mass of the length measurement system

For specific data, see chapter 9.5.2 in the 1FN1 section, chapter 13.5.2 in the 1FN3 section, and the corresponding data sheets in chapters 11.2 (1FN1) and 15.2 (1FN3).

7 Motor mounting

7.1 Mounting instructions

Danger

≙

For mounting and dismantling tasks, there is a special danger of injury! You must observe the safety instructions in chapter 3.2!

7.2 Proceed as follows

The mounting of a linear motor is divided into the following steps:

- (1)Checking the mounting dimensions before the installation of the motors(2)Cleaning of the attachment surfaces of motor parts and the machine
- (3)Installation of primary sections, secondary sections, and components
- (4)Connection of the electrical and cooling systems

(5)Checking of the smooth running of the motor slide



7.3 Checking the mounting dimensions

For the observance of the electrical and system-technical properties of the motor, only the mounting dimensions and not the measurable air gap are decisive. The mounting dimensions can be checked before mounting the motor, e.g. using final dimensions and feeler gauges. For precise dimensions, see chapter 9.6.1 in the 1FN1 section and chapter 13.6.1 in the 1FN3 section. The mounting dimensions must lie within the given tolerances over the complete traversing distance.

7.4 Attraction forces

The attraction forces between the primary section and the secondary section track can amount to several 10 kN.

Note

In order not to impair the function of the motor, the air gap may not be reduced by the attraction force between the primary section and the secondary section track when installed. For this reason, a corresponding stiffness of the mechanical structure should be provided.

With decreasing air gap, the attraction forces between the primary section and the secondary section track increase; see the characteristic curves in chapter 11.3.2 for 1FN1-type motors and chapter 15.3.2 for the peak-load motors of the 1FN3 product family.

7.5 Mounting system

When fastening the motor to the machine structure, the following must be considered:

- Use only new, unused screws oiled with MoS2.
- Observe the maximum length of thread engagement into the primary sections (see the respective mounting drawing)
- Observe the minimum length of thread engagement.
 - Primary section: 1.0 x d
 - Secondary section: 1.0 x d (steel), 1.1 x d (aluminum alloy)
 - Partially specified in drawings!
- Tighten screws using a calibrated torque wrench while observing the tightening torques from Table 7-1.
- To secure screws, choose long clamp lengths 1_k, 1_k/d > 5 if possible; alternatively (in case 1_k/d > 5 is not possible), secure the screws additionally (e.g. Loctite, loosenable) or check the pretensioning of the screws at regular intervals (tighten with calibrated torque wrench).
- Table 7-1 Maximum permissible tightening torques MA.MAX *

	M5	M6	M8	M10	M12
$M_{A,MAX}$ in Nm	4.8	8.3	20	40	69

* Based on the coefficient of friction: μ_{ges} = 0,1 (oiled, lubricating pressure MoS₂)

Note

Please observe the maximum tightening torques of the screws used as well! These may be lower than the values from Table 7-1!

7.6 Motor mounting procedure

There are three different procedures for mounting a linear motor:

- Motor mounting with divided secondary section track
- Motor mounting through the insertion of the slide
- Motor mounting through the placement of the motor parts

ALL 7.6.1 Motor mounting with divided secondary section track

The easiest way is to mount the motor with a divided secondary section track. The prerequisite is that the entire secondary section track can be divided into two sections, of which each has at least the length of the slide. During mounting, you must work against the attraction force of the secondary sections.

Proceed as follows

1. Mounting of the slide including the linear guide and the primary section



2. Move the slide to one side and mount the secondary section on the other side.



3. Move the slide over the secondary section. The attraction forces are taken up by the linear guides.



Warning

灬

When moving the primary section onto the secondary section (Step 3), drawing forces towards the secondary section will occur for a short time. Danger of crushing injuries!

Make sure that your fingers do not reach into the danger zone!

4. Mounting of the second secondary section.



7.6.2 Motor mounting through the insertion of the slide

ALL

If the secondary section track cannot be divided into several sections, for example, because the entire length of the secondary section track is too small, or, in the case of the double-sided motor, the moving part of the motor (slide) can be pushed into the stationary housing with the previously mounted motor parts (see Figure 4-1). A special insertion mechanism is usually used for this purpose.



Warning

心

In the case of this procedure, drawing forces towards the stationary motor component occur. Danger of crushing injuries!

Before inserting ferromagnetic components of the linear motor into the active zone of the stationary motor component, remember that guiding or supporting elements (motor bearing) must already be effective!

7.6.3 Motor mounting through the placement of the motor parts

In the case of the third procedure for motor mounting, the primary section is placed on the secondary section track before mounting into the slide using the spacer and the extractor. After that, the primary section is mounted to the slide pushed above it. This procedure is the most difficult of the described procedures. It should be used only if the other procedures are not possible. The spacer and the extractor must be provided by the customer.

Proceed as follows

1. Mounting of the secondary section track



Secondary section track

2. Placement of the primary section

Using the spacer and the extractor (see Figure 7-2 and Figure 7-3) the primary section is centered above the secondary section track.



Warning

ZΝ

Danger of crushing injuries during the placement of the primary section onto the secondary section!

Never set the primary section directly onto the secondary section, but rather use a spacer made of non-magnetizable material (e.g. a board made of hard wood).

3. Mounting of the slide.

The primary section lifts into its desired position when the slide is evenly screwed into place. After that, the spacers are removed.



The Extractor

The extractor to be provided by the customer must consists of a sufficiently thick steel sheet with holes for fastening the primary section and threaded holes for the accommodation of the forcing screws. Figure 7-2 and Figure 7-3 show the principle structure. To guide the forcing screws, two thrust bearing blocks are used.

Notice

When the primary section is being placed, attraction forces work towards the secondary section track. Danger of crushing injuries!

The forcing screws must be at least long enough that the primary section is located outside of the immediate vicinity of the secondary sections (distance greater than 100 mm) when it is placed.



Figure 7-2 Principle structure of an extractor



Figure 7-3 Principle structure of an extractor (longitudinal section)

7.7 Checking the air gap

After mounting the motor components, the air gap can be subjected to an optional, approximate, spot check. A non-magnetic strip (e.g. of aluminum, plastic, cardboard, etc.) with a thickness of 0.5 mm must be able to be pushed through the air gap between the primary section and the secondary section track without a considerable amount of force.

Generally, this test is not necessary. If the mounting dimensions are correct, the correct air gap is automatically obtained. If the tolerances of the air gap (see chapter 9.6.1 (1FN1) and chapter 13.6.1 (1FN3) are exceeded, the mounting is generally faulty.

Note

ALL

This air gap check is valid only when performed when the engine is cold (T < 30 $^\circ\text{C}).$

7.8 Checking the motor mounting

After the mounting procedure has been completed, the smooth running of the slide should be checked. Before moving the slide, remove all tools and objects from the traversing range and clean the magnetic surface with a cloth.

The slide of the linear motor must be able to be moved over the entire traversing range with even, minimum friction. The slide may not jam! If you suspect a jam, check the air gap on the corresponding side!



Each movement of primary sections against secondary sections leads to induced voltages at the motor connections. Electrical shock hazard!

Motor power connections must be properly connected or insulated.

Note

Danger

When the motor is shifted evenly, increased resistances ("power waves") may be noticeable at regular intervals, especially in case of short circuits of the phases. These are connected with the motor type and do not indicate faulty mounting.

8 Disposal of linear motors

An independent disposal of three-phase linear motors or components is permitted only when proper disposal can be guaranteed. In particular, this includes:

- Demagnetization of the secondary sections
- Reuse of components (if possible)
- Proper disposal of electrical waste

Three-phase linear motors and components are accepted for proper disposal by the manufacturer only in original packaging. The sender must pay the shipping and disposal costs.

Demagnetization of the secondary sections

Disposal companies specialized in demagnetization use special disposal furnaces. The insides of the disposal furnace consist of non-magnetic material.

The secondary sections are put in the furnace in a solid, heat-resistant container (such as a skeleton container) made of non-magnetic material and left in the furnace during the entire demagnetization procedure. The temperature in the furnace must be at least 300° C during a holding time of at least 30 minutes.

Escaping exhaust must be collected and made risk-free without damaging the environment.

Disposal of electronic components

Electronic components (primary sections, converters, cables, etc.) must be properly disposed of as electrical waste.

Disposal of packaging

The packaging and packing aids we use contain no problematic materials. With the exception of wood material, they can and should be recycled. Wood materials should be burned.

Only recyclable plastics are used as packing aids:

- Code 02 PE-HD (polyethylene)
- Code 04 PE-LD (polyethylene)
- Code 05 PP (polypropylene)
- Code 04 PS (polystyrene)

ALL

Notes



1FN1-type motors



83

Notes

1**FN**1

Table of contents

9	1FN1 motors	
	9.1 Features and technical data	9-87
	9.2 Data on the rating plate	9-88
	9.3 Interfaces for the electrical and cooling systems	9_89
	9.3.1 Position of terminals	9-89
	9.3.2 Mounting space for the connection system	
	9.3.3 Electrical connection	
	9.3.4 Cooler connection	
	9.4 Protecting the motor from overheating	
	9.4.1 Temperature monitoring	
	9.4.2 Cooler	9-94
	9.5 Parallel and double-sided motor – technical data	9-95
	9.5.1 Parallel circuit configuration	9-95
	9.5.2 Double-sided motors	9-95
	9.6 Motor mounting – details	9-97
	9.6.1 Control dimensions for the mounting dimensions and air gap	9-97
	9.6.2 Mounting of individual motor components	9-97
10	Order designations	10-100
	10.1 Primary and secondary sections	10-100
	10.2 Accessories	10-101
	10.2.1 Hall sensor box	10-101
	10.2.2 SME9x	10-101
	10.2.3 Connector box	10-101
11	Technical data and characteristics	11-102
	11.1 Description	11 102
	11.1 Description of the 1EN1 meter data	
	11.1.1 Deminions of the characteristic curves	11-102 11_105
	11.2 Motor data	
	11.2 Motor uala	
	11.3 Additional characteristics	11-144
	11.2.2 Attraction force via relative air gap	
	11.3.2 Autoction force via relative air gap	11-144 11-145
12	Dimension drawings	
	12.1 1FN107x	
	12.1.1 1FN1072 primary section	
	12.1.2 1FN1076 primary section	
	12.1.3 1FN1070 secondary sections	12-148
	12.2 1FN112x	
	12.2.1 1FN1122 primary sections	12-150
	12.2.2 1FN1124 primary sections	12-152
	12.2.3 1FN1126 primary sections	12-154
	12.2.4 1FN1120 secondary sections	
	12.3 1FN118x	
	12.3.1 1FN1184 primary section	
	12.3.2 1FN1186 primary section	
	12.3.3 1FN1180 secondary sections	12-160
	12.4 1FN124x	
	12.4.1 1FN1244 primary section	12-162

Table of contents

12.4.2	1FN1246 primary section	
12.4.3	1FN1240 secondary sections	
12.5 H	all sensor box	

1**FN**1

9 1FN1 motors

9.1 Features and technical data

Fields of application

The 1FN1 product family was especially developed for use with maximum requirements on dynamics and contour precision. Especially the 1FN1 product family fulfills high requirements in regard to aggressive ambient conditions and thermal neutrality insofar as the instructions in this manual – especially the safety guidelines – are observed.

In conjunction with a converter system with a digital control system (e.g. SIMODRIVE 611), the motors are admirably suited for

- Loops
- Ultra-precision machining

The development of double-sided motors is also possible.



The motors are not designed to be connected directly to the line supply.

Characteristics

m

1FN1-type motors are liquid-cooled synchronous linear motors. The drive is delivered in components (primary and secondary sections) and directly installed into the machine. Due to the series connection of primary and secondary sections, any motor power or traversing distances can be reached. Special features:

- Double cooling circuit with thermal insulation (Thermo-Sandwich®) for the complete thermal isolation of the motor from the machine
- Full metal encapsulation of the motor components for extensive insensitivity to aggressive liquids and particles in the air gap
- Service-friendly due to simple mounting and pluggable connection technology
- The motors are especially optimized for minimum force waves and good overload behavior.

Standards and regulations

The appropriate standards and regulations are directly assigned to the functional requirements.

Technical features

 Table 9-1
 Standard motor of the 1FN1 product family: Technical features

Technical feature	Version
Machine type	Permanent-magnetic, synchronous linear motor:
Construction type	Individual components (IM 5110 acc. to IEC 60034-7)
Mounting dimensions	Tolerance ±0.3 mm
Rated air gap	1.1 mm
Cooler	 Liquid cooling system (see chapter 4.4). Maximum pressure in cooling circuit: 10 bar = 1 MPa Connection: Quick-snap coupling for main and precision coolers
Thermal motor protection	PTC thermistor (according to IEC 60034-11) and overtemperature switch in primary section
Rating plate	A second rating plate has been included in the delivery of every motor (see chapter 9.2).
Winding insulation	 Thermal class F (according to DIN EN 60034-1)
Permanent magnets	 Material: Rare-earth connections Aging: At operating temperatures and magnetic operating points, aging losses lie below 1%. Magnetization reserves of 1-2% exist for the compensation of long-term losses (10-100 years).
Electrical connection	Plug for the power outlet and for temperature sensors/switches (see chapter 9.3.3).
Contact and foreign body protection/motor protection	 Primary section: IP 65 (according to DIN EN 60529) Secondary section: As electrical components, the secondary sections should have IP 65. Mounted motor: The protection class depends on the machine design and must thus be determined by the machine builder. Minimum requirement: IP 23

Options and supplements

 Table 9-2
 Special motor designs: additional possible technical features

Technical feature	Version
Previously mounted, ready- made cable	Length: 3 m
Winding direction	Inverse winding for double-sided motors

9.2 Data on the rating plate

A rating plate according to Figure 9-1 is attached to each primary section of the 1FN1-type motors.



Figure 9-1 Data on the rating plate (diagram)

Additionally, a second rating plate that the customer can attach to the machine in which the motor is installed is included in delivery. This rating plate may not be abused! When it is removed, it must be made unusable.

9.3 Interfaces for the electrical and cooling systems

9.3.1 Position of terminals

The connections for the electrical and cooling systems are on the front of one of the primary sections. They are thus easily accessible for installation and servicing.



Figure 9-2 Position of the connecting elements for the 1FN1 (top view, front side)

Motor type	A [mm]	B [mm]	C [mm]	D [mm]	E [mm]	F [mm]	G [mm]	H [mm]	l [mm]
1FN107x	12.5	9	19	24.3	52.2	49.5	34.3	43	4
1FN112x	20/60*	10	25	31.2	79	70.5	43.5	61	5
1FN118x	27/80*	10	25	31.2	109	100.4	43.5	94	5
1FN124x	60/110*	10	25	31.2	139	130.5	43.5	124	5

Table 9-3 Dimensions for the position of the connecting elements (see Figure 9-2)

* Terminals lie at the right of the center line (as seen from the front)

1FN1

Mounting space for the connection system 9.3.2

Depending on the connection system, cables, and hoses used, corresponding mounting space should be provided in the longitudinal direction of the primary section.

Motors with plugs



Figure 9-3

Mounting space for the connection system of the 1FN1xxx-xAxxx motors (with plug, top view)

For assembled cables of the 6FX7002 (see Catalog /NC60/, Section 10) series, the bending radius B is approximately derived from the outer diameter daußen of the cable:

B_{min,stat} ≈ 4 · d_{außen} B_{min,dyn} ≈ 7.5 · d_{außen}

Equation 9.1

Precise values can be found in Catalog /NC60/.

Table 9-4 Dimensions of the mounting space for the connection system of the 1FN1xxx-xAxxx motors (see Figure 9-3)

Motor type	Connector size	A* [mm]
1FN107x	1	90
1FN112x	1.5	128
1FN118x	1.5	128
1FN124x	1.5	128

* Dimensions from the radiating plate



Motors with previously mounted, assembled cables

Figure 9-4 Mounting space for the connection technology of the 1FN1xxx-xKxxx motors (with previously mounted, assembled cable, top view)

Table 9-5
 Dimensions of the mounting space for the connection system of the 1FN1xxx-xKxxx motors (see Figure 9-4)

Motor type	Core cross-section, cable outlet [mm ²]		d _{außen} [mm]	D _{min,stat} [mm]	D _{min,dyn} * [mm]
	Power wire	Control wire			
1FN1122	2.5	1	14.6	51	90
1FN1124	2.5	1	14.6	51	128
1FN1126	4	1	16.1	56	128

* Not recommended since the entire primary section must be exchanged in case of cable breakage

9.3.3 Electrical connection

Internal interconnection of the primary section

Figure 9-5 shows the internal circuitry of the primary section.



Figure 9-5 Internal circuitry of the primary section

Connecting the cables

The 1FN1xxx-xAxxx motors are equipped with a plug for assembled cables. The order numbers of the appropriate power cables can be found in Catalog /NC60/. The technical data for these cables can also be found in Catalog /NC60/.

Figure 9-6 shows the plug assignment for the 1FN1xxx-xAxxx motors. The labeling of the wires and the plug contacts and the screening concept refer to the 6FX7002-5Exxx assembled cable.

1FN1



Figure 9-6 Terminal assignment of the plugs for the 1FN1xxx-xAxxx primary sections

Caution! Vibrations can loosen the power connections!

When connecting the power plug, make sure the union ring on the bushing flange is completely screwed on and tightened! The plug must have an O-ring!

For 1FN1xxx-xKxxx motors, cables sold by the meter can be ordered in case previously mounted assembled cables (length of 3 m) must be extended (see Catalog /NC60/. Figure 9-7 shows the terminal assignment of the previously mounted assembled cable.



Figure 9-7 Terminal assignment of the previously assembled cable for 1FN1xxx-xKxxx primary sections

9.3.4 Cooler connection

Attention!

The connecting pieces of the primary section cooler are permanently connected with the primary section. They may not be unscrewed.

The primary section cooler can be connected using quick-snap couplings, size NW 5. Use coupling pieces without a non-return valve!

Recommended manufacturers

The manufacturers of coupling pieces without non-return valves are recommended in Appendix B.

9.4 Protecting the motor from overheating

9.4.1 Temperature monitoring

Temp-F

The temperature monitoring circuit consists of temperature sensor KTY 84, which is located between two of three phase windings. This could possibly – especially in case of varying current sourcing of the individual phases – lead to the maximum temperature of the three phase windings not being measured. An evaluation of Temp-F for motor protection is thus not permissible. Temp-F is mainly used for temperature monitoring and possibly for warning that the drive is about to be shut down by Temp-S.



Temp-S

One switch is used for each motor phase winding.

Response temperatures:

 Table 9-6
 Response temperatures of the switches

	1FN107x, 1FN112x	1FN118x, 1FN124x
Shutdown	130°C ± 5°C	140°C ± 5°C
temperature		
Switch-in	70°C ± 20°C	70°C ± 20°C
temperature		

Reaction time

The reaction time of the drive system from the time the switch is turned off to the disconnection of the current (pulse inhibitor in the converter) may not exceed one second!

Attention!

During commissioning, make sure Temp-S is working <u>before</u> the first (test) activation!

Plate cooler Precision cooler (Aluminum) (external cooling circuit) Thermo-isolation C layer Main cooler (internal cooling circuit) Heat generation Radiation plate Screw Air gap Thermo-isolation layer Secondary section cooling Air (Cooling pipes from V2A)

The function of the cooling system was already described in chapter 4.4. Figure 9-8 shows details of the thermal encapsulation of the 1FN1-type motors.

Figure 9-8 Thermal encapsulation of the 1FN1-type motors

Primary section main cooler

Water cooling at an intake temperature of T_{VORL} = 35 °C is standard. If this temperature is changed, the value F_N for the continuous motor thrust specified in chapter 11.2 of the data sheets changes. The corresponding characteristic curve is in chapter 11.3.1.

Thermal insulation of the primary sections/primary section precision cooler

The primary section is insulated by the air gap on the bottom and the insulation layer on top. Radiating plates have been attached to the sides. In turn, these plates are insulated from the primary section by an air space (see Figure 9-8).

In addition, a precision cooling system has been provided. For this purpose, a plate cooler has been integrated into the bolting surface of the primary section. This cooler also removes the heat from the radiating plates.

For the general function of the primary section precision cooler, see chapter 4.4.1.

Thermal insulation of the secondary section/secondary section cooling system

Insulating strips have been attached to the back of the secondary sections. These strips insulate the secondary section plate from the machine.

For use at high lost heat input, the secondary sections must be cooled.

Caution!

High temperatures can lead to the demagnetization of the permanent magnets!

The temperature of the secondary sections may not exceed 90° C! In case of motors manufactured before August 2, 2002, this limit temperature amounts to 75° C.

Cooling is possible due to a direct, flat screwing of the secondary sections onto the cooler machine body. The insulating strips must be removed for this purpose, e.g., using a scraper or by lightly hitting them with a hammer. Optionally, cooling pipes can be inserted into the ventilating slots of the secondary sections. The cooling pipes extend over the entire length of the secondary section track to prevent leak tightness problems. The dimensions of the pipe material to be used is specified in Table 9-7.

1FN1

Note

Pipes must be used in a seamless design with the dimensions specified in Table 9-7. Otherwise, they cannot be compressed as strongly as required.

Table 9-7	Dimensions of the used pipe material of the 1FN1 secondary sections
-----------	---

	1FN1070	1FN1120 1FN1180 1FN1240
Diameter [mm] x wall thickness [mm]	8 x 0.4	10 x 0.5

9.5 Parallel and double-sided motor – technical data

9.5.1 Parallel circuit configuration

The pole pair widths $2\tau_M$ and, for the opposite cable outlet direction, the minimum distance Δs_0 is decisive for the position of parallel-connected primary sections (see chapter 6.1). Both variables are specified in Table 9-8.

	1FN107x	1FN112x 1FN118x 1FN124x
Pole pair width 2T _M [mm]	56.4	72.0
Minimum clearance ∆s ₀ [mm]	128.0	175.0

 Table 9-8
 Pole pair width and minimum distance of parallel-connected 1FN1 motors

9.5.2 Double-sided motors

The primary sections of size 1FN107x are available both with the standard and the inverse winding. They are thus suited for the mounting of a double-sided motor with an application-specific secondary section (see chapter 6.2). The data required for the configuration can be found in Figure 9-9 and Table 9-9.



1FN1

Figure 9-9 Double-sided motor with motors of the size 1FN107x

Note

The specified dimensions for the steel carrier plate is the minimum thickness! Attraction forces between the secondary sections do not cancel each other out.

Table 9-9

-9 Masses of the secondary section components for the 1FN1 double-sided motor

	Mass [kg/m]
Magnets (both sides)	5.6
Adhesive, small parts	0.5
Cover plates	1.1

In addition to the specified masses in Table 9-9, the masses of the mount of the support plate, the guide system, and the length measurement system must be taken into consideration for the total dynamic mass.

9.6 Motor mounting – details

The motor mounting procedure is explained in general in chapter 7. In this chapter, you will find special information regarding the motors of the 1FN1 product family.

9.6.1 Control dimensions for the mounting dimensions and air gap



Figure 9-10 Control dimensions during motor mounting

Table 9-10	Control dimensions for the mounting dimensions and air gap according to Figure 9-10
------------	---

	1FN107x	1FN112x, 1FN118x, 1FN124x
Mounting dimensions e ₁ in mm	80.7 ± 0.3	106.7 ± 0.3
Mounting dimensions without thermal insulation strips e ₂ in mm	76.7 ± 0.3	101.7 ± 0.3
Air gap I in mm (without tolerance of the mounting dimension)	+0.3 1.1 _{-0.45}	+0.3 1.1 _{-0.45}
Air gap b in mm (without tolerance of the mounting dimension)	13 ± 1	13 ± 1

9.6.2 Mounting of individual motor components

Positioning the motor parts

For the precise positioning of the primary and secondary sections, dowel holes have been provided on the bolting surfaces of the respective motor parts. The use of dowel pins thus enabled permits an exact and reproducible positioning of the primary and secondary sections in regard to the machine and the measurement system. This is necessary to safely avoid a readjustment of the commutation angle in the control system during the installation and removal of motor parts.

The use of dowel pins is optional. If they are used, as few dowel pins as possible should be used – if possible, only one.

Note

Any holes provided for the dowel pins might be closed with paint and must be drilled open.

Mounting of the secondary sections

The secondary sections are pegged out with a dowel pin and fixed into place with the fastening screws. The optionally mountable cooling pipes are clamped between the secondary sections and the machine base. The insulation strips on the back side of the secondary sections are removed if necessary. In this case, the mounting dimensions are reduced by the thickness of the insulation strip (see Figure 9-10 and Table 9-10).

The letter N, which has been imprinted into the carrier plate of the secondary sections, must show in the same direction for all series-connected secondary sections (see Figure 9-11).







Danger!

灬

There is an increased danger of crushing injuries when handling unpacked secondary sections!

You must observe the instructions in chapter 2.3!

Mounting the primary section

The primary section is positioned using the dowel pin and fixed into place with the fastening screws.

Caution!

Observe the maximum length of thread engagement of the fastening screws!

Screws that are too long could damage the motor part or lead to disadvantageous properties due to an insufficiently rigid connection of the motor parts to the machine structure.

Mounting of the Hall sensor box

For 1FN1-type motors, the use of a Hall sensor box is not absolutely necessary since the pole position can be determined using software.

The optional Hall sensor box is to be mounted according to the dimension drawing for the respective motor type (chapter 12). Your Siemens office can provide you with further information regarding Hall sensor boxes.

Other information

Two threaded blind holes are located on the front of the linear motor primary sections (see the dimension drawings in chapter 12.

Attention!

The threaded holes are not suited for the accommodation of greater forces!

Strippers should be directly attached to the primary section.

Independently of the use of strippers, the working area and especially the air gap must be kept free of chips: Blockage of the air gap can lead to the damage of primary and secondary sections.

1**FN**1

10 Order designations

The order designation comprises a combination of digits and letters, the machinereadable model designation (MLFB). The MLFB consists of three blocks that are separated by hyphens.

10.1 Primary and secondary sections

The first block of the MLFB comprises seven digits. It designates the product family, size, and motor components, and, in the case of the primary section, the length. Additional features are coded in the second block. The third block is provided for additional data.



1FN1

10.2 Accessories

The first block of the MLFB for accessories comprises seven digits. It designates the product family and says that the part in question is an accessory. Features are coded in the second block. The third block is provided for additional data.

10.2.1 Hall sensor box

Accessories Module B0 ≙ Hall sensor box for 1FN1070	1FN1910 - 0Axx0 - 0AA0	1FN1
B0 ≙ Hall sensor box for 1FN1070 B1 ≙ Hall sensor box except for 1FN1070		TENT

10.2.2 SME9x

Accessories	1FN1910 - 0AA20 - xAA0
Module – A2 ≙ SME9x	
$2 \triangleq SME92$	
3 ≙ SME93	
4 ≙ SME94	

10.2.3 Connector box

	1FN1910 - 0AA <u>0</u> 0 - 0AA0
Accessories	
Module — A0 ≙ connector box to connect to a Hall sensor bo	x

10-101

This chapter specifies the technical data and characteristics of 1FN1-type motors. This data collection provides the motor data required for configuration and contains a number of additional data for more detailed calculations within the scope of detailed considerations and problem analyses. Data subject to change without notice.

1FN1

Note

Insofar as nothing else is specified, the following limitations apply for the data:

- The DC link voltage U_{ZK} amounts to 600 V, while the converter output voltage U_{amax} amounts to 425 V.
- The motor is water-cooled with an intake temperature T_{VORL} of 35° C and a specified volume flow of $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$
- Voltage and currents are specified in effective values.

11.1 Description

11.1.1 Definitions of the 1FN1 motor data

Limitations/secondary conditions

Uzκ

DC link voltage of the converter

Note: For converter output voltage U_{amax} , see chapter 4.1 .

T_{VORL}

Maximum intake temperature of the water cooling if the motor is to be utilized to its rated power F_N .

T_{N}

Rated temperature.

Note: The rated temperature corresponds to the shutdown temperature of the Temp-S temperature monitoring circuit (see chapter 9.4.1).

Rating data

F_N

 I_N

Rated motor thrust.
Rated motor current at rated thrust F_N .

VMAX,FN

Maximum speed up to which the drive can deliver the rated thrust F_{N} .

$P_{V,N}$

Power loss of the motor at the rating point (F_N , $v_{MAX,FN}$) at rated temperature T_N . Losses due to friction and eddy currents are negligible.
1FN1

Note: The power loss results from the line resistance $R_{STR}(T)$ (see there) and the applied current: $P_V = 3 \cdot R_{STR}(T) \cdot I^2$. Accordingly, $P_{V,N}$ is calculated using $P_{V,N} = 3 \cdot R_{STR}(T_N) \cdot I_N^2$

Limiting data

$\mathsf{F}_{\mathsf{MAX}}$

Maximum motor thrust.

IMAX

Maximum motor current at maximum thrust F_{MAX} .

^VMAX, FMAX

Maximum speed up to which the drive can deliver the maximum thrust $\mathsf{F}_{\mathsf{MAX}}.$

P_{EL,MAX}

Electrical input of the motor at point (F_{MAX} , $v_{MAX,FMAX}$) at rated temperature T_N . Losses due to friction and eddy currents are negligible.

Note: The sum of the mechanical output P_{MECH} and the power loss P_V result in the electrical input of the motor P_{EL} :

 $P_{EL} = P_{MECH} + P_V = F \cdot v + 3 \cdot R_{STR}(T) \cdot I^2$

Accordingly, $P_{EL,MAX}$ can be calculated: $P_{EL,MAX} = P_{MECH,MAX} + P_{V,MAX} = F_{MAX} \cdot v_{MAX,FMAX} + 3 \cdot R_{STR}(T_N) \cdot l_{MAX}^2$

F₀*

Stall thrust: Motor thrust that can be permanently reached if only one of the three phases is loaded (maximum uneven load of the phases).

Note: F_0^* can be approximately calculated from the rated thrust F_N while ignoring the influence of the saturation of the motor:

$$\mathsf{F}_0^* \approx \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \, \mathsf{F}_{\mathsf{N}} \; .$$

l₀*

Stall current of the motor at stall thrust ${\sf F}_0{}^{\star}$.

Note: I_0^* can be calculated from the rated current I_N :

$$_{0}^{*} = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} I_{N}$$

Physical constants

k_{F,20}

Power constant of the motor in case of a rated air gap and a temperature of the secondary sections of 20° C.

Note: The power constant refers to the linear (lower) part of the motor thrust/current characteristic curve.

kΕ

Voltage constant for the calculation of the mutually induced voltage between the phase and the start point in case of a rated air gap.

k_{M,20}

Motor constant at a winding temperature of 20° C.

Note: The motor constant k_M can be calculated for other temperatures: $k_M(T) = k_{M,20} [1 + \alpha(T - 20 \ ^{\circ}C)]$ with the temperature coefficient $\alpha = -0.001 \ 1/K$ for the magnets used.

R_{STR,20}

Line resistance of the winding at a winding temperature of 20° C.

Note: The line resistance R_{STR} can be calculated for other temperatures: $R_{STR}(T) = R_{STR,20} [1 + \alpha(T - 20 \ ^{\circ}C)]$ with the temperature coefficient $\alpha = 0.00393 \ 1/K$ for copper.

LSTR

Phase inductance of the winding in case of a rated air gap.

Attraction force between the primary section and the secondary section in case of a rated air gap.

t_{тн}

Thermal time constant of the winding.

Note: The thermal time constant results from the time curve in the winding in case of a sudden load with constant current at time t = 0 (see Figure 11-1). When the time is up t_{TH} , the motor winding achieves about 63% of its end temperature T_{GRENZ} if the temperature protection is not effective beforehand.



Figure 11-1 Definition of the thermal time constants

тм

Pole width of the motor, corresponds to the distance between the respective centers of the north and south poles of neighboring magnets on a secondary section.

m_P

Mass of the primary section with precision cooler (permanently mounted), but without fastening screws, plugs, connecting cables, and cooling medium

ms

Mass of a secondary section without fastening screws and optional cooling pipes. **Note:** Since there are short and long secondary sections, two values are specified.

Primary section main cooler data

$Q_{P,H,MAX}$

Maximum removed heat input via the main cooler with utilization of the rated thrust F_N and the rated temperature $\mathsf{T}_N.$

. У_{Р,Н,МIN}

Recommended minimum volume flow in the main cooler to achieve the rated thrust F_{N} .

$\Delta T_{P,H}$

Temperature increase of the cooling medium between the intake and return lines of the main cooler at the operating point ($Q_{P,H,MAX}$; $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$)

∆р_{Р,Н}

Pressure drop of the cooling medium between the intake and return lines of the main cooler at the operating point $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$.

Primary section precision cooler data

Q_{P,P,MAX}

Maximum removed heat input via the primary section precision cooler with utilization of the rated thrust F_N and the rated temperature T_N .

V_{P,P,MIN}

Recommended minimum volume flow in the primary section precision cooler to achieve a maximum surface temperature T_{VORL} + 2 K .

∆р_{Р,Н}

Pressure drop of the cooling medium between the intake and return lines of the primary section precision cooler at the operating point $\dot{V}_{P.P.MIN}$.

Secondary section cooling data

Q_{S,MAX}

Maximum removed heat input via the secondary section cooling system with utilization of the rated thrust $\mathsf{F}_N\,$ and the rated temperature $\mathsf{T}_N.$

V_{S,MIN}

Recommended minimum volume flow in the secondary section cooling.

Δp_S

Pressure drop of the cooling medium between the intake and return lines of the secondary section cooling system at volume flow $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ and a reference length of a meter.

11.1.2 Description of the characteristic curves

Motor thrust vs. speed

Every diagram that shows the motor thrust F_M depending on the speed of the respective motor has three characteristic curves:

- For DC link voltage U_{ZK} = 540 V (U_{amax} = 380 V)
- For DC link voltage U_{ZK} = 600 V (U_{amax} = 425 V)
- For DC link voltage U_{ZK} = 648 V (U_{amax} = 460 V)



One of these characteristic curves is shown with descriptions of the most important points Figure 11-2.

Figure 11-2 Motor thrust/speed characteristics diagram

Braking force vs. speed

The characteristic curve shows the braking force of the short-circuited motor depending on the speed. In the process, the occurring friction is negligible. Figure 11-3 shows the approximation of such a characteristic curve.





Temperature increase of the primary section main cooler vs. the volume flow



This characteristic curve shows the temperature increase between the intake and return lines of the primary section main cooler depending on the volume flow (see Figure 11-4).

Figure 11-4 Temperature increase/volume flow in main cooler characteristics diagram

Pressure drop of the cooler vs. the volume flow

This characteristic curve shows the temperature increase between the intake and return lines of the respective cooler depending on the volume flow (see Figure 11-5). One diagram shows the characteristic curve of the primary section main cooler, the other the characteristic curve of the primary section precision cooler. The third diagram shows the characteristic curve for the standard secondary section cooling system.



Figure 11-5 Pressure drop/volume flow characteristics diagram

1FN²

11 Technical data and characteristics

11.2 Motor data

1FN1072-3AF7x-0AA0				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	790	
Rated current	I _N	А	5.6	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	203	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	810	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	FMAX	Ν	1720	
Maximum current	IMAX	А	14	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	97	
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	7850	
Stall thrust	F0*	Ν	559	
Stall current	I0*	А	4	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	141	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	47.1	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	32.8	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	6.2	
Phase inductance	LSTR	mH	47.1	
Attraction force	FA	Ν	4600	
Thermal time constant	tтн	s	120	
Pole width	тМ	mm	28.2	
Mass primary section	mp	kg	10.1	
Mass of a secondary section (short/long)	mS	kg/m	3/7.5	
Primary section main cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	810	
Recommended min. flow rate	^V P,H,MIN	l/min	1.4	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	8.3	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.19	
Primary section precision cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	80	
Recommended min. flow rate	[.] У _{Р,Р,МIN}	l/min	3.8	
Pressure drop	Δρρ,ρ	bar	0.14	
Secondary section cooling data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	48	
Recommended minimum flow rate	^V S,MIN	l/min	3	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δρς	bar	0.07	



1FN1072-3AF7x-0AA0 characteristics



1FN1

Primary section main cooler characteristics



Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



	1FN1076-3AF7x-0AA0				
	Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
	Limitations/secondary conditions				
	DC link voltage	UZK	V	600	
	Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
	Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
	Rated data	·			
	Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	1580	
1	Rated current	IN	А	11.2	
	Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	202	
	Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	1620	
	Limiting data				
	Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	3450	
	Maximum current	IMAX	А	27.9	
	Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	96	
	Maximum electric power input	PEL.MAX	W	15690	
	Stall thrust	F0*	N	1117	
	Stall current	l0*	А	7.9	
	Physical constants	·			
	Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	141	
	Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	47.1	
	Motor constant at 20° C	к _{М,20}	N/√W	46.4	
	Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	3.1	
	Phase inductance	LSTR	mH	23.8	
	Attraction force	FA	Ν	8300	
	Thermal time constant	tтн	s	120	
	Pole width	тм	mm	28.2	
	Mass primary section	mР	kg	17.5	
	Mass of a secondary section (short/long)	mS	kg/m	3/7.5	
	Primary section main cooler data				
	Maximum heat output	QP,H,MAX	W	1625	
	Recommended minimum flow rate	^V Р,Н,МIN	l/min	2.3	
	Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	к	10.2	
	Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.79	
	Primary section precision cooler data				
	Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	145	
	Recommended minimum flow rate	[.] ^V P,P,MIN	l/min	4.6	
	Pressure drop	Δρ _{Ρ,Ρ}	bar	0.24	
	Secondary section cooling data				
	Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	84	
	Recommended minimum flow rate	[.] У́S,MIN	l/min	3	
	Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δps	bar	0.07	



1FN1076-3AF7x-0AA0 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



	1FN1122-5xC71-0AA0					
	Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value		
	Limitations/secondary conditions					
	DC link voltage	UZK	V	600		
	Water cooling intake temperature	TVORL	°C	35		
	Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120		
	Rated data					
	Rated thrust	F _N	N	1475		
N1	Rated current	IN	А	8.9		
	Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	163		
	Rated power loss	PV,N	w	1350		
	Limiting data			1		
	Maximum thrust	FMAX	N	3250		
	Maximum current	IMAX	А	22.4		
	Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX.FMAX	m/min	72		
	Maximum electric power input	PFI MAX	w	12480		
	Stall thrust	F ₀ *	N	1043		
	Stall current	I0*	А	6.3		
	Physical constants					
	Power constant at 20° C	kF.20	N/A	166		
	Voltage constant	kE	Vs/m	55.5		
	Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M.20}	N/√W	47.5		
	Motor winding resistance at 20° C	RSTR,20	Ω	4.1		
	Phase inductance	LSTR	mH	52.8		
	Attraction force	FA	N	8000		
	Thermal time constant	tтн	s	120		
	Pole width	тм	mm	36		
	Mass primary section	mp	kg	23.2		
	Mass of a secondary section (short/long)	mS	kg/m	6.8/15.9		
	Primary section main cooler data					
	Maximum heat output	QP,H,MAX	W	1350		
	Recommended minimum flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	3.7		
	Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	к	5.2		
	Pressure drop	Δpp,H	bar	0.39		
	Primary section precision cooler data	· ·				
	Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	160		
	Recommended minimum flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	3.8		
	Pressure drop	Δpp,p	bar	0.17		
	Secondary section cooling data					
	Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	93		
	Recommended minimum flow rate	V _{S,MIN}	l/min	6		
	Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δρς	bar	0.08		



1FN1122-5xC71-0AA0 characteristics



300





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN1122-5xF71-0AA0			
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
Limitations/secondary conditions			
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated temperature	т _N	°C	120
Rated data			
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	1475
Rated current	IN	А	11.1
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	214
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	w	1350
Limiting data			•
Maximum thrust	FMAX	Ν	3250
Maximum current	IMAX	А	28
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	105
Maximum electric power input	PEL.MAX	W	14250
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	N	1043
Stall current	I ₀ *	А	7.8
Physical constants			
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	133
Voltage constant	kE	Vs/m	44.4
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	47.6
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	2.6
Phase inductance	LSTR	mH	33.8
Attraction force	FA	Ν	8000
Thermal time constant	tтн	s	120
Pole width	тМ	mm	36
Mass primary section	mP	kg	23.2
Mass of a secondary section (short/long)	mS	kg/m	6.8/15.9
Primary section main cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	1345
Recommended minimum flow rate	[.] Ур,н,мім	l/min	3.7
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	к	5.2
Pressure drop	Δpp,H	bar	0.39
Primary section precision cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	160
Recommended minimum flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	3.8
Pressure drop	Δpp,p	bar	0.17
Secondary section cooling data	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	93
Recommended minimum flow rate	V _{S,MIN}	l/min	6
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δρς	bar	0.08



1FN1122-5xF71-0AA0 characteristics



300





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



	1FN1124-5xC71-0AA0					
	Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value		
	Limitations/secondary conditions					
	DC link voltage	UZK	V	600		
	Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35		
	Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120		
	Rated data					
	Rated thrust	F _N	N	2200		
FN1	Rated current	IN	А	14.9		
	Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	189		
	Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	2010		
	Limiting data	. .		•		
	Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	4850		
	Maximum current	IMAX	А	37.5		
	Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	89		
	Maximum electric power input	PEL.MAX	W	19900		
	Stall thrust	F ₀ *	N	1556		
	Stall current	l0*	А	10.5		
	Physical constants					
	Power constant at 20° C	kF.20	N/A	148		
	Voltage constant	kE	Vs/m	49.2		
	Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M.20}	N/√W	58.1		
	Motor winding resistance at 20° C	RSTR.20	Ω	2.2		
	Phase inductance	LSTR	mH	27.9		
	Attraction force	FA	N	11300		
	Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120		
	Pole width	тм	mm	36		
	Mass primary section	mp	kg	31.9		
	Mass of a secondary section (short/long)	ms	kg/m	6.8/15.9		
	Primary section main cooler data	•				
	Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	2010		
	Recommended minimum flow rate	VP.H.MIN	l/min	3.7		
	Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	к	7.8		
	Pressure drop	Δρρ,Η	bar	0.53		
	Primary section precision cooler data					
	Maximum heat output	QP.P.MAX	W	225		
	Recommended minimum flow rate	VP.P.MIN	l/min	5.5		
	Pressure drop	ΔρΡ.Ρ	bar	0.39		
	Secondary section cooling data					
	Maximum heat output	Q _{S.MAX}	W	129		
	Recommended minimum flow rate	VS.MIN	l/min	6		
	Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δρς	bar	0.08		



1FN1124-5xC71-0AA0 characteristics







Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN1124-5xF71-0AA0			
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
Limitations/secondary conditions			
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated temperature	т _N	°C	120
Rated data			
Rated thrust	F _N	N	2200
Rated current	IN	А	16.2
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX.FN	m/min	208
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	w	2030
Limiting data	, ,		
Maximum thrust	FMAX	N	4850
Maximum current	IMAX	А	40.8
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX.FMAX	m/min	101
Maximum electric power input	PEL MAX	w	21020
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	N	1556
Stall current	I0*	А	11.5
Physical constants			
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	136
Voltage constant	kE	Vs/m	45.2
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M.20}	N/√W	57.8
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	RSTR.20	Ω	1.8
Phase inductance	LSTR	mH	23.6
Attraction force	FA	N	11300
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
Pole width	тм	mm	36
Mass primary section	mp	kg	31.9
Mass of a secondary section (short/long)	mS	kg/m	6.8/15.9
Primary section main cooler data			I
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	2030
Recommended minimum flow rate	^V P.H.MIN	l/min	3.7
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔΤΡ.Η	к	7.9
Pressure drop	Δрр н	bar	0.53
Primary section precision cooler data			I
Maximum heat output	QP P MAX	W	225
Recommended minimum flow rate	VP.P.MIN	l/min	5.5
Pressure drop		bar	0.39
Secondary section cooling data	, · · <i>,</i> .		
Maximum heat output	Q _{S.MAX}	W	130
Recommended minimum flow rate	VS.MIN	l/min	6
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δρς	bar	0.08



1FN1124-5xF71-0AA0 characteristics



350





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



	1FN1126-5xC71-0AA0			
	Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
	Limitations/secondary conditions			
	DC link voltage	UZK	V	600
	Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
	Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120
	Rated data			
	Rated thrust	F _N	N	2950
FN1	Rated current	IN	А	17.7
	Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	162
	Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	w	2700
	Limiting data		•	•
	Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	N	6500
	Maximum current	IMAX	А	44.8
	Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	71
	Maximum electric power input	PEL.MAX	w	24910
	Stall thrust	F ₀ *	N	2086
	Stall current	I0*	А	12.5
	Physical constants			1
	Power constant at 20° C	kF.20	N/A	166
	Voltage constant	kE	Vs/m	55.5
	Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M.20}	N/√W	67.2
	Motor winding resistance at 20° C	RSTR.20	Ω	2
	Phase inductance	LSTR	mH	26.8
	Attraction force	FA	N	14500
	Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
	Pole width	тм	mm	36
	Mass primary section	mp	kg	40.7
	Mass of a secondary section (short/long)	ms	kg/m	6.8/15.9
	Primary section main cooler data	•		•
	Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	2700
	Recommended minimum flow rate	VP.H.MIN	l/min	3.7
	Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P.H}	к	10.5
	Pressure drop	Δρρ.Η	bar	0.67
	Primary section precision cooler data			1
	Maximum heat output	Q _{P.P.MAX}	W	290
	Recommended minimum flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	7
	Pressure drop	ΔρΡ,Ρ	bar	0.67
	Secondary section cooling data	1	1	I
	Maximum heat output	Q _{S.MAX}	W	166
	Recommended minimum flow rate	VS.MIN	l/min	6
	Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δρς	bar	0.08



1FN1126-5xC71-0AA0 characteristics







Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



Γ	1FN1126-5xF71-0AA0			
Ē	Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
Ē	Limitations/secondary conditions			
	DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
	Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
	Rated temperature	т _N	°C	120
	Rated data			
	Rated thrust	F _N	N	2950
1	Rated current	I _N	А	22.2
	Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	213
	Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	2690
	Limiting data			
Γ	Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	N	6500
	Maximum current	IMAX	А	56
	Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	104
	Maximum electric power input	PEL.MAX	W	28400
	Stall thrust	F0*	N	2086
	Stall current	I0*	А	15.7
	Physical constants			
	Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	133
	Voltage constant	kE	Vs/m	44.4
	Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	67.3
	Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	1.3
	Phase inductance	LSTR	mH	17.1
	Attraction force	FA	Ν	14500
	Thermal time constant	tтн	s	120
	Pole width	тм	mm	36
	Mass primary section	тр	kg	40.7
	Mass of a secondary section (short/long)	mS	kg/m	6.8/15.9
	Primary section main cooler data			
	Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	2695
	Recommended minimum flow rate	^V Р,Н,МIN	l/min	3.7
	Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	к	10.5
	Pressure drop	Δpp,H	bar	0.67
	Primary section precision cooler data			
ſ	Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	290
	Recommended minimum flow rate	^V Р,Р,МIN	l/min	7
	Pressure drop	Δρρ,ρ	bar	0.67
	Secondary section cooling data			
	Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	166
	Recommended minimum flow rate	^V S,MIN	l/min	6
	Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δρς	bar	0.08



1FN1126-5xF71-0AA0 characteristics







Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



	1FN1184-5AC71-0AA0						
	Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value			
	Limitations/secondary conditions						
	DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600			
	Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35			
	Rated temperature	т _N	°C	120			
	Rated data						
	Rated thrust	F _N	N	3600			
FN1	Rated current	IN	А	21.6			
	Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	162			
	Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	w	3070			
	Limiting data						
	Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	7920			
	Maximum current	IMAX	А	54.2			
	Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	74			
	Maximum electric power input	PEL.MAX	w	29050			
	Stall thrust	F0*	N	2546			
	Stall current	I0*	А	15.3			
	Physical constants						
	Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	167			
	Voltage constant	kE	Vs/m	55.5			
	Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M.20}	N/√W	76.9			
	Motor winding resistance at 20° C	RSTR,20	Ω	1.6			
	Phase inductance	LSTR	mH	23			
	Attraction force	FA	N	16900			
	Thermal time constant	tтн	s	120			
	Pole width	тм	mm	36			
	Mass primary section	mp	kg	44.5			
	Mass of a secondary section (short/long)	ms	kg/m	10/23.3			
	Primary section main cooler data						
	Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	3070			
	Recommended minimum flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	4.8			
	Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	к	9.2			
	Pressure drop	Δρρ,Η	bar	1.03			
	Primary section precision cooler data		•				
	Maximum heat output	Q _{P.P.MAX}	W	335			
	Recommended minimum flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	7			
	Pressure drop	ΔρΡ,Ρ	bar	0.62			
	Secondary section cooling data		•	- i			
	Maximum heat output	Q _{S.MAX}	W	194			
	Recommended minimum flow rate	ÝS.MIN	l/min	6			
	Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δρο	bar	0.08			



1FN1184-5AC71-0AA0 characteristics







Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN1184-5	AF71-0AA0			
Technical of	lata	Brief designation	Units	Value
Limitations/s	secondary conditions			
DC link volt	age	U _{ZK}	V	600
Water cooli	ng intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated temp	perature	Τ _N	°C	120
Rated data				
Rated thrus	st	FN	N	3600
N1 Rated curre	ent	IN	А	26.2
Maximum s	speed at rated thrust	VMAX.FN	m/min	204
Rated powe	er loss	PV.N	W	3040
Limiting data	a			1
Maximum t	hrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	7920
Maximum o	current	IMAX	А	65.6
Maximum s	speed at maximum thrust	VMAX.FMAX	m/min	100
Maximum e	electric power input	PFI MAX	W	32380
Stall thrust		F0*	N	2546
Stall curren	t	I0*	А	18.5
Physical cor	nstants	0		
Power cons	stant at 20° C	kF.20	N/A	138
Voltage cor	nstant	k _E	Vs/m	45.9
Motor cons	tant at 20° C	k _{M.20}	N/√W	77.3
Motor wind	ing resistance at 20° C	RSTR.20	Ω	1.1
Phase indu	ctance	LSTR	mH	15.7
Attraction for	orce	FA	N	16900
Thermal tin	ne constant	t _{TH}	s	120
Pole width		тм	mm	36
Mass prima	ary section	mp	kg	44.5
Mass of a s	econdary section (short/long)	ms	kg/m	10/23.3
Primary sec	tion main cooler data		•	I
Maximum h	neat output	QP,H,MAX	W	3040
Recommer	ided minimum flow rate	VP.H.MIN	l/min	4.8
Cooling me	dium temperature increase	ΔT _{P.H}	к	9.1
Pressure d	rop		bar	1.03
Primary sec	tion precision cooler data			
Maximum h	neat output	QP.P.MAX	W	335
Recommer	ided minimum flow rate	VP.P.MIN	l/min	7
Pressure d	rop	Δρρ.ρ	bar	0.62
Secondary s	ection cooling data	, · · . ,·		I
Maximum h		Q _{S.MAX}	W	192
Recommer	ided minimum flow rate	Ý _{S,MIN}	l/min	6
Pressure d	rop per meter secondary section cooling	Δρς	bar	0.08



1FN1184-5AF71-0AA0 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



	1FN1186-5AC71-0AA0					
	Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value		
	Limitations/secondary conditions					
	DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600		
	Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35		
	Rated temperature	т _N	°C	120		
	Rated data	·				
	Rated thrust	F _N	N	4800		
IFN1	Rated current	IN	А	27.2		
	Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	152		
	Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	4000		
	Limiting data			L		
	Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	N	10600		
	Maximum current	IMAX	А	68		
	Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	68		
	Maximum electric power input	PEL.MAX	w	37040		
	Stall thrust	F0*	N	3394		
	Stall current	l ₀ *	А	19.2		
	Physical constants					
	Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	176		
	Voltage constant	kE	Vs/m	58.8		
	Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	89.8		
	Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω.	1.3		
	Phase inductance	LSTR	mH	19.4		
	Attraction force	FA	Ν	21800		
	Thermal time constant	tтн	s	120		
	Pole width	тМ	mm	36		
	Mass primary section	mP	kg	57.5		
	Mass of a secondary section (short/long)	mS	kg/m	10/23.3		
	Primary section main cooler data					
	Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	4005		
	Recommended minimum flow rate	^V Р,Н,МIN	l/min	4.8		
	Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	к	12		
	Pressure drop	Δpp,H	bar	1.3		
	Primary section precision cooler data					
	Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	430		
	Recommended minimum flow rate	^V Р,Р,МIN	l/min	8		
	Pressure drop	Δρρ,ρ	bar	0.87		
	Secondary section cooling data					
	Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	247		
	Recommended minimum flow rate	[.] У _{S,MIN}	l/min	6		
	Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δρς	bar	0.08		



1FN1186-5AC71-0AA0 characteristics



250





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



·	1FN1186-5AD71-0AA0			
-	Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
L	imitations/secondary conditions			
	DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
	Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
	Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120
F	Rated data			
	Rated thrust	FN	Ν	4800
N1	Rated current	IN	А	32
	Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX.FN	m/min	185
	Rated power loss	Pv.N	W	4030
ī	_imiting data	1 - ,	1	
	Maximum thrust	FMAX	Ν	10600
	Maximum current	IMAX	А	80.1
	Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX.FMAX	m/min	89
	Maximum electric power input	PFI MAX	w	40890
	Stall thrust	Fo*	Ν	3394
	Stall current	In*	А	22.6
F	Physical constants			
	Power constant at 20° C	kF.20	N/A	150
	Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	50
	Motor constant at 20° C	- k _{M 20}	N/\\W	89.4
	Motor winding resistance at 20° C	RSTR.20	Ω	0.9
	Phase inductance	LSTR	mH	14
	Attraction force	FA	N	21800
	Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
	Pole width	тм	mm	36
	Mass primary section	mp	kg	57.5
	Mass of a secondary section (short/long)	ms	kg/m	10/23.3
F	Primary section main cooler data			
	Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	4035
	Recommended minimum flow rate	VP.H.MIN	l/min	4.8
	Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P.H}	к	12.1
	Pressure drop	Δρρ.Η	bar	1.3
F	Primary section precision cooler data		•	
	Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	430
	Recommended minimum flow rate	VP P MIN	l/min	8
	Pressure drop	Δρρ.ρ	bar	0.87
5	Secondary section cooling data	, ···,·		
	Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	249
	Recommended minimum flow rate	Ý _{S,MIN}	l/min	6
	Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δρς	bar	0.08

1FN1

300



1FN1186-5AD71-0AA0 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN1186-5AF71-0AA0			1FN1186-5AF71-0AA0				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value				
Limitations/secondary conditions							
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600				
Water cooling intake temperature	TVORL	°C	35				
Rated temperature	т _N	°C	120				
Rated data							
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	4800				
Rated current	IN	А	34.7				
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX.FN	m/min	204				
Rated power loss	PV.N	W	4050				
Limiting data	ting data						
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	10600				
Maximum current	IMAX	А	86.8				
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX.FMAX	m/min	100				
Maximum electric power input	PFI MAX	W	43040				
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	N	3394				
Stall current	I0*	А	24.5				
Physical constants	ical constants						
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	138				
Voltage constant	kE	Vs/m	46.1				
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M.20}	N/√W	89.3				
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	0.8				
Phase inductance	LSTR	mH	11.8				
Attraction force	FA	N	21800				
Thermal time constant	tTH	s	120				
Pole width	тм	mm	36				
Mass primary section	mp	kg	57.5				
Mass of a secondary section (short/long)	mS	kg/m	10/23.3				
Primary section main cooler data							
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	4045				
Recommended minimum flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	4.8				
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	к	12.1				
Pressure drop	Δρρ.Η	bar	1.3				
Primary section precision cooler data		1					
Maximum heat output	Q _{P.P.MAX}	W	435				
Recommended minimum flow rate	VP.P.MIN	l/min	8				
Pressure drop	Δρρ.ρ	bar	0.87				
Secondary section cooling data	,•		1				
Maximum heat output	Q _{S.MAX}	W	250				
Recommended minimum flow rate	VS.MIN	l/min	6				
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δρς	bar	0.08				

250

300

350



1FN1186-5AF71-0AA0 characteristics







Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN1244-5AC	71-0AA0				
Technical data		Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions					
DC link voltage		U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling in	take temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperatu	ire	т _N	°C	120	
Rated data	Rated data				
Rated thrust		F _N	N	4950	
Rated current		IN	А	28	
Maximum speed	at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	149	
Rated power los	S	P _{V,N}	W	4190	
Limiting data					
Maximum thrust		F _{MAX}	N	10900	
Maximum currer	t	IMAX	А	69.9	
Maximum speed	at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	65	
Maximum electri	c power input	PEL,MAX	W	37980	
Stall thrust		F0*	N	3500	
Stall current		I0*	А	19.8	
Physical consta	hysical constants				
Power constant	at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	177	
Voltage constan	t	k _E	Vs/m	59	
Motor constant a	t 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	90.5	
Motor winding re	sistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω.	1.3	
Phase inductance	e	LSTR	mH	19.9	
Attraction force		FA	Ν	22700	
Thermal time co	nstant	tтн	s	120	
Pole width		тм	mm	36	
Mass primary se	ction	тр	kg	60.1	
Mass of a secon	dary section (short/long)	mS	kg/m	11.9/27.7	
Primary section	main cooler data		-		
Maximum heat o	utput	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	4190	
Recommended	ninimum flow rate	^V Р,Н,МIN	l/min	5.2	
Cooling medium	temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	к	11.6	
Pressure drop		Δpp,H	bar	1.4	
Primary section	precision cooler data				
Maximum heat o	utput	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	445	
Recommended	ninimum flow rate	^V Р,Р,МIN	l/min	8	
Pressure drop		Δρρ,ρ	bar	1.08	
Secondary secti	Secondary section cooling data				
Maximum heat o	utput	Q _{S,MAX}	W	259	
Recommended	ninimum flow rate	^V S,MIN	l/min	6	
Pressure drop p	er meter secondary section cooling	Δρς	bar	0.08	



1FN1244-5AC71-0AA0 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN1244-5AF71-0AA0						
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value			
Limitations/secondary conditions						
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600			
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35			
Rated temperature	т _N	°C	120			
Rated data	Rated data					
Rated thrust	F _N	N	4950			
Rated current	IN	А	36.3			
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX.FN	m/min	203			
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	w	4110			
Limiting data	Limiting data					
Maximum thrust	FMAX	N	10900			
Maximum current	IMAX	А	90.8			
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX.FMAX	m/min	100			
Maximum electric power input	PEL MAX	w	43800			
Stall thrust	F0*	N	3500			
Stall current	I0*	А	25.7			
Physical constants	Physical constants					
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	136			
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	45.5			
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M.20}	N/√W	91.3			
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	RSTR.20	Ω	0.7			
Phase inductance	LSTR	mH	11.8			
Attraction force	FA	N	22700			
Thermal time constant	tтн	s	120			
Pole width	тм	mm	36			
Mass primary section	mp	kg	60.1			
Mass of a secondary section (short/long)	ms	kg/m	11.9/27.7			
Primary section main cooler data	rimary section main cooler data					
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	4115			
Recommended minimum flow rate	[.] ^V P.H.MIN	l/min	5.2			
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	к	11.4			
Pressure drop	Δρρ,Η	bar	1.4			
Primary section precision cooler data	,		•			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P.P.MAX}	W	440			
Recommended minimum flow rate	[.] ^V P.P.MIN	l/min	8			
Pressure drop	Δρρ,ρ	bar	1.08			
Secondary section cooling data	Secondary section cooling data					
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	255			
Recommended minimum flow rate	Ý _{S,MIN}	l/min	6			
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δρς	bar	0.08			

1FN1

350



1FN1244-5AF71-0AA0 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



	1FN1246-5AC71-0AA0						
	Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value			
	Limitations/secondary conditions		·	·			
	DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600			
	Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35			
	Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120			
	Rated data						
	Rated thrust	F _N	N	6600			
FN1	Rated current	IN	А	37.7			
	Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	151			
	Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	5520			
	Limiting data						
	Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	N	14500			
	Maximum current	IMAX	А	93.7			
	Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	67			
	Maximum electric power input	PEL.MAX	w	50300			
	Stall thrust	F ₀ *	N	4667			
	Stall current	l ₀ *	А	26.7			
	Physical constants						
	Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	175			
	Voltage constant	kE	Vs/m	58.3			
	Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	105.1			
	Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω.	0.9			
	Phase inductance	LSTR	mH	14.7			
	Attraction force	FA	N	29300			
	Thermal time constant	tтн	s	120			
	Pole width	тм	mm	36			
	Mass primary section	mp	kg	76			
	Mass of a secondary section (short/long)	ms	kg/m	11.9/27.7			
	Primary section main cooler data						
	Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	5525			
	Recommended minimum flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	5.2			
	Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	к	15.3			
	Pressure drop	Δρρ,Η	bar	1.78			
	Primary section precision cooler data						
	Maximum heat output	Q _{P.P.MAX}	W	575			
	Recommended minimum flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	9			
	Pressure drop	ΔρΡ,Ρ	bar	1.48			
	Secondary section cooling data						
	Maximum heat output	Q _{S.MAX}	W	331			
	Recommended minimum flow rate	ÝS.MIN	l/min	6			
	Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δρς	bar	0.08			
1FN1



1FN1246-5AC71-0AA0 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



11 Technical data and characteristics

1FN1246-5AD71-0AA0	1FN1246-5AD71-0AA0					
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value			
Limitations/secondary conditions						
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600			
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35			
Rated temperature	Τ _Ν	°C	120			
Rated data	·					
Rated thrust	F _N	N	6600			
Rated current	IN	А	45.1			
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX.FN	m/min	187			
Rated power loss	PV.N	w	5530			
Limiting data	Limiting data					
Maximum thrust	FMAX	N	14500			
Maximum current	IMAX	А	112.1			
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX.FMAX	m/min	90			
Maximum electric power input	PEL MAX	w	55730			
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	N	4667			
Stall current	lo*	А	31.9			
Physical constants	Physical constants					
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	146			
Voltage constant	kE	Vs/m	48.7			
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M.20}	N/√W	105			
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	RSTR.20	Ω	0.6			
Phase inductance	LSTR	mH	10.3			
Attraction force	FA	N	29300			
Thermal time constant	tтн	s	120			
Pole width	тм	mm	36			
Mass primary section	mp	kg	76			
Mass of a secondary section (short/long)	mS	kg/m	11.9/27.7			
Primary section main cooler data	, -		I			
Maximum heat output	QP.H.MAX	W	5530			
Recommended minimum flow rate	VP.H.MIN	l/min	5.2			
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔΤΡ.Η	к	15.3			
Pressure drop	Δрр н	bar	1.78			
Primary section precision cooler data	Primary section precision cooler data					
Maximum heat output	QP P MAX	W	575			
Recommended minimum flow rate	Ÿррміn	l/min	9			
Pressure drop		bar	1.48			
Secondary section cooling data		1	1			
Maximum heat output	Q _{S.MAX}	W	331			
Recommended minimum flow rate	VS.MIN	l/min	6			
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δρς	bar	0.08			



1FN1246-5AD71-0AA0 characteristics



1FN1





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



11 Technical data and characteristics

1FN1246-5AF71-0AA0	1FN1246-5AF71-0AA0					
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value			
Limitations/secondary conditions						
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600			
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35			
Rated temperature	т _N	°C	120			
Rated data						
Rated thrust	F _N	N	6600			
Rated current	IN	А	48.3			
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX.FN	m/min	201			
Rated power loss	PV.N	w	5590			
Limiting data						
Maximum thrust	FMAX	N	14500			
Maximum current	IMAX	А	119.9			
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX.FMAX	m/min	98			
Maximum electric power input	PFL MAX	w	58240			
Stall thrust	F0*	N	4667			
Stall current	I0*	А	34.1			
Physical constants						
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	137			
Voltage constant	kE	Vs/m	45.6			
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M.20}	N/√W	104.4			
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	RSTR.20	Ω	0.6			
Phase inductance	LSTR	mH	9			
Attraction force	FA	N	29300			
Thermal time constant	tтн	s	120			
Pole width	тм	mm	36			
Mass primary section	mp	kg	76			
Mass of a secondary section (short/long)	ms	kg/m	11.9/27.7			
Primary section main cooler data						
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	5590			
Recommended minimum flow rate	VP,H,MIN	l/min	5.2			
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	к	15.5			
Pressure drop	Δpp,H	bar	1.78			
Primary section precision cooler data						
Maximum heat output	Q _{P.P.MAX}	W	580			
Recommended minimum flow rate	VP.P.MIN	l/min	9			
Pressure drop	Δρρ,ρ	bar	1.48			
Secondary section cooling data	, ,					
Maximum heat output	Q _{S.MAX}	W	334			
Recommended minimum flow rate	Ý _{S,MIN}	l/min	6			
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δρς	bar	0.08			



1FN1246-5AF71-0AA0 characteristics







Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



11.3 Additional characteristics

11.3.1 Sustained power via intake temperature

The possible sustained power of the motor F_{eff} depends on the intake temperature of the primary section main cooler T_{VORL} (see Figure 11-6). F_{eff} may not exceed the rated thrust F_N of the motor insofar as T_{VORL} = 35 °C applies.



Figure 11-6 Maximum sustained power depending on the intake temperature of the primary section main cooler

11.3.2 Attraction force via relative air gap

The attraction force F_A between the primary section and the secondary section track depends on the air gap (see Figure 11-7).



Figure 11-7 Dependency of the attraction force of the air gap for 1FN1-type motors

11.3.3 Motor thrust via relative air gap

The maximum motor thrust $\mathsf{F}_{\mathsf{MAX}}$ also depends on the air gap. Figure 11-8 shows the characteristic curves.



Figure 11-8 Dependency of the motor thrust of the air gap for 1FN1-type motors

1FN1-type motors

12 Dimension drawings

12 Dimension drawings

12.1 1FN107x

12.1.1 1FN1072 primary section







12.1.2 1FN1076 primary section

Figure 12-2 1FN1076-3AF7x-0AA0 primary section (plug connection)



12.1.3 1FN1070 secondary sections

Figure 12-3 1FN1070-0AA00-0AA0 secondary section (short)



Figure 12-4 1FN1070-0AA00-1AA0 secondary section (long)

12.2 1FN112x





Figure 12-5 1FN1122-3AF7x-0AA0 primary section (plug connection)



Figure 12-6 1FN1122-3KF7x-0AA0 primary section (previously mounted assembled cable)



12.2.2 1FN1124 primary sections

Figure 12-7 1FN1124-3AF7x-0AA0 primary section (plug connection)



Figure 12-8 1FN1124-3KF7x-0AA0 primary section (previously mounted assembled cable)



12.2.3 1FN1126 primary sections

Figure 12-9 1FN1126-3AF7x-0AA0 primary section (plug connection)



Figure 12-10 1FN1126-3KF7x-0AA0 primary section (previously mounted assembled cable)



12.2.4 1FN1120 secondary sections

Figure 12-11 1FN1120-0AA00-0AA0 secondary section (short)

1FN1-type motors 12 Dimension drawings



Figure 12-12 1FN1120-0AA00-1AA0 secondary section (long)

12.3 1FN118x





Figure 12-13 1FN1184-3AF7x-0AA0 primary section (plug connection)



12.3.2 1FN1186 primary section

Figure 12-14 1FN1186-3AF7x-0AA0 primary section (plug connection)



12.3.3 1FN1180 secondary sections

Figure 12-15 1FN1180-0AA00-0AA0 secondary section (short)



Figure 12-16 1FN1180-0AA00-1AA0 secondary section (long)

12.4 1FN124x





Figure 12-17 1FN1244-3AF7x-0AA0 primary section (plug connection)





12.4.2 1FN1246 primary section

Figure 12-18 1FN1244-3AF7x-0AA0 primary section (plug connection)



12.4.3 1FN1240 secondary sections

Figure 12-19 1FN1240-0AA00-0AA0 secondary section (short)



Figure 12-20 1FN1240-0AA00-1AA0 secondary section (long)



Figure 12-21 Hall sensor box 1FN1910-0ABx0-0AA0

 $$\odot$$ Siemens AG 2006 \$ All rights reserved SIMODRIVE linear motors 1FN1 and 1FN3-SL (PJLM) – Edition 01.06 \$

1FN3-type peak-load motors



Notes

1**FN**3

Table of contents

13	1FN3-tv	pe peak-load motors	
	13.1 Fe	eatures and technical data	
	13.2 Ra	ating plate specifications	
	13.3 El	ectricity and cooling interfaces	
	13.3.1	Position of terminals	
	13.3.2	Electrical connection	
	13.3.3	Connecting the cooling unit	
	13.3.4	Mounting space for the connection system	
	13.4 Pr	otecting the motor from overheating	
	13.4.1	Temperature monitoring	13-183
	13.4.2	Cooling	13-184
	13.5 Pa	arallel and double-sided motor specifications	13-189
	13.5.1	Parallel circuit configuration	
	13.5.2	Double-sided motor	
	13.6 M	ounting the motor - Details	13-189
	13.6.1	Important motor mounting dimensions	
	13.6.2	Mounting individual motor components	
	13.7 G	uidelines for Commissioning	
14	Order d	esignations	14-198
••	14.1 Pr	imary sections	
	14.2 Se	econdary sections	14-198
	14.3 Pr	imary section accessories	14-199
	14.3.1	Precision cooler	14-199
	14.3.2	Hall sensor box	
	14.3.3	SME9x	
	14.3.4	Connector box	14-199
	14.4 Se	econdary section accessories	
	14.4.1	Cooling sections	14-200
	14.4.2	Secondary section end pieces	
	14.4.3	Secondary section cover	
	14.5 Oi	rder example	14-201
15	Technic	al Data and Characteristics	15-201
	15 1 De	escription	15-202
	15.1.0	Definitions of the 1FN3-type motor data	15-202
	15.1.2	Description of the characteristics	
	15.2 M	otor data	
	15.3 Ac	ditional characteristics	15-306
	15.3.1	Continuous thrust vs. intake temperature	15-306
	15.3.2	Attraction force vs. relative air gap	
	15.3.3	Motor thrust vs. relative air gap	15-307
16	Mountin	nd diagrams and dimension tables	16-308
10	16 1 15	N3050 1EN3100 1EN3150	16_308
	16.1 1	Installation diagrams	
	16.1.2	1FN3050 dimensioning tables	
	16.1.3	1FN3100 dimensioning tables	
	16.1.4	1FN3150 dimensioning tables	
	16.1.5	Cooling sections	16-316
	16.1.6	Mounting the Hall sensor box	16-317

Table of Contents

16.2 1F	N3300, 1FN3450	
16.2.1	Installation diagrams	
16.2.2	1FN3300 dimensioning tables	
16.2.3	1FN3450 dimensioning tables	
16.2.4	Cooling sections	
16.2.5	Mounting the Hall sensor box	
16.3 1F	N3600	
16.3.1	Installation diagrams	
16.3.2	1FN3600 dimensioning tables	
16.3.3	Cooling sections	
16.3.4	Mounting the Hall sensor box	
16.4 1F	N3900	
16.4.1	Installation diagrams	
16.4.2	1FN3900 dimensioning tables	
16.4.3	Cooling sections	
16.4.4	Mounting the Hall sensor box	

13 1FN3-type peak-load motors

13.1 Features and technical data

Applications

1FN3-type peak-load motors are powerful, cost-effective, universal motors with a broad range of types. They excel in high overload capability and power density.

Combined with a digitally controlled converter system (e. g. SIMODRIVE 611) these motors are well-suited as direct drives for the following areas of application:

- High-dynamic and flexible machine tool construction
- Laser machining
- Handling

1FN3-type motors show little susceptibility to harsh ambient conditions. In combination with a primary section precision cooler and secondary section cooling these motors are thermally neutral toward the surrounding machine.

These motors are also designed for double-sided motor layouts.



Warning

The motors are not designed to be connected directly to the line supply.

Properties

1FN3-type motors are permanent magnet-triggered, synchronous linear motors with a modular cooling concept: Dependent on the precision requirements, the motor can be operated with a primary section precision cooler and/or secondary cooling (optional). The motors would then be thermally neutral toward the machine.

The base motor is delivered in components (primary and secondary section) and installed directly into the machine. By connecting primary and secondary sections in parallel different motor thrusts and traversing distances can be reached.

Special features:

- Modular design: The motor can thus be configured to the customer's needs with regards to technology and investment costs
- Low mass and high overload capacity: The motor is thus ideally suited as drive for acceleration duty.
- Thermal neutralization of the motor from the machine with the implementation of a primary section precision cooler and secondary cooling based on the Sandwich® principle
- Easy cooling medium connection
- Full metal protection of the primary section and encased secondary sections for greater ruggedness

• Easy electrical connection via integrated terminal panel

Motor components

As specified in Figure 13-1 1FN3-type motors consist of the following components:

- Primary section:
 - Base component of the linear motor
 - in most cases the movable part
 - with 3-phase winding
 - integrated main cooler to remove the thermal loss
- Precision cooler (optional):
 - Additional cooler for cooling the primary section
 - Cools the primary section in connection with the primary section main cooler based on the Thermo-Sandwich[®] principle
 - Recommended for applications with high precision requirements
- Secondary sections:
 - Connected in parallel these form the reacting part of the motor
 - Consist of a steel base with attached permanent magnets
 - The encasing provides greater corrosion and external impact protection
- Secondary section cover (optional)
 - Protects secondary sections
 - Semi-magnetic stainless steel plate (thickness d = 0.4 mm)
 - Adheres to secondary sections
 - Can be removed without tools if worn
 - Available as continuous band material or in cut lengths, see Mounting the secondary section cooling component page 13-192
- Cooling sections with plug-type coupling/nipple (optional):
 - Secondary section cooling component
 - Aluminum section tracks with continuous cooling channels
 - are placed under the secondary sections when high machine precision is required
 - Secondary section end pieces
 - Secondary cooling component
 - Available in different variants, see Thermo-insulation of the primary section / primary section precision cooler page 13-184

1FN3



Note

Standard components and optional components must be listed individually on the order form.

Standards and regulations

The appropriate standards and regulations are directly assigned to the functional requirements.

Certifications

The rating plate lists the motor certifications, see chapter 13.2.

As long as not stated otherwise, these certifications apply to the operating condition specified in the data sheets in chapter 15.2. In order for a certification to apply the following must be carefully observed when operating the motors:

- The limiting data specified in the respective data sheets must not be exceeded.
- The motor's cooling system must be operated with water. For information refer to section 4.4.
- The intake temperature T_{VORL} must not be exceeded.

Underwriters Laboratories Inc. (UL)

The 1FN3-type peak-load motors are certified by Underwriters Laboratories Inc. (USA) – UL in short – for the following conditions:

• Rated current I_N < 67 A

Canadian Standards Association (CSA)

1FN3-type peak-load motors certified by the Canadian Standards Association (Canada) – CSA in short – are available upon request. These motors are delivered with a mounted, assembled, open-end cable. The terminal panel cover is sealed.

In addition to the above-mentioned conditions the following must be carefully observed when operating the motors in order for the certification to be valid:

- The power cable temperature must not exceed 80° C.
- The terminal panel cover seal must not be damaged.

Technical features

Table 13-1 Standard model 1FN3-type peak-load motors: Technical features

Technical feature	Version
Machine type	permanent magnet-triggered synchronous linear motor
Type of construction	Individual components (IM 5110 acc. to IEC 60034-7)
Mounting dimension	Tolerance ± 0.3 mm
Rated air gap	1.3 mm
Cooling	 Liquid cooling, see chapter 4.4. maximum pressure in the cooling circuit: 10 bar = 1 MPa Connection: with G1/8 pipe thread (in compliance with DIN EN ISO 228-1); special connectors are required to connect hoses/pipes
Thermal motor protection	PTC resistor/temperature sensor in triple circuit (in compliance with DIN 44081/DIN 44082) and KTY84 resistor/temperature sensor (according to IEC 60034-11) in the primary section
Rating plate	for each motor a second rating plate is enclosed, see chapter 13.2
Winding insulation	Class of insulation F (according to DIN EN 60034-1)

© Siemens AG 2006 All rights reserved SIMODRIVE Linear motors 1FN1 and 1FN3-SL (PJLM) – Edition 01.06

1**FN**3
1FN3

Technical feature	Version
Permanent magnets	 Material: Rare earth compounds Aging: Loss due to aging for the operating temperatures and magnetic operating points is under 1%. To prevent long-term losses (10 to 100 years) a magnetizing reserve of 1-2% is available.
Electrical connection	Motor integrated terminal panel with cover and interior PG thread; the adapter cable is connected directly via angled cable lugs, see chapter 13.3.2
Contact, foreign object and water protection	 Primary section: IP 65 (according to DIN EN 60529) Secondary section: as electrical component IP 65 would apply for the secondary sections Assembled Motor: the protection class depends on the machine type and must be specified by the machine manufacturer; minimum requirement: IP 23

Options, supplements

Table 13-2 Special design motors: additional optional technical features

Technical feature	Туре
Electrical connection	Power plug or screwed PG cable gland (90° angle); the latter must be installed by the customer
Winding	Inverse winding for double-sided motors, see chapter 13.5.2

13.2 Rating plate specifications

Each primary section of a 1FN3-type peak-load motor has a rating plate attached according to Figure 13-2



Figure 13-2Rating plate specifications (diagram)

In addition, a second rating plate is supplied which can be attached to the machine in which the motor is installed. This rating plate must not be tampered with! A rating plate that was removed is to be considered unusable.

13-175

13.3 Electricity and cooling interfaces

13.3.1 Position of terminals

The electricity and cooling connectors are combined and located on one side of the primary section in order to provide easy access for installation and service.

Figure 13-3 shows an example of the connector layout. The dimensions are the same for all 1FN3-type motors. The values for the peak-load motors are specified in Table 13-3.

 b_{PK2}

Figure 13-3 Layout of the 1FN3 connectors (face top view)

Motor type	<mark>b_{HK}</mark> [mm]	h_{HK} [mm]	h_{HK1} [mm]	b _{РК} [mm]	b _{PK2} [mm]	h _{PK} [mm]	h _{PK1} [mm]	b _{PG} [mm]	h _{PG} [mm]	G _{PG} [mm]	b _{KP2} [mm]
1FN3050	55	17	26.4	17	68	11.9	6	26.5	17.9	PG16	67
1FN3100	84	17	26.4	17	97	11.9	6	42	17.9	PG16	97
1FN3150	114	17	26.4	17	127	11.9	6	42	17.9	PG16	127
1FN3300	128.5	19	32.9 / 32.8*	17	141.5	11.9	6	53.5	23.4 / 23.3*	PG21/29*	143
1FN3450	176	19	32.9 / 32.8*	17	141.5	11.9	6	53.5	23.4 / 23.3*	PG21/29*	189
1FN3600	236	19	32.9 / 32.8*	17	248.5	11.9	6	53.5	23.4 / 23.3*	PG21/29*	222
1FN3900	330	19	32.9 / 32.8*	17	343	11.9	6	53.5	23.4 / 23.3*	PG21/29*	316

Table 40.0	0	1	al'	- :	40.0
Table 13-3	Connector	layout	aimensions,	see Figure	13-3

* Values for the 1FN3300-3WG00, 1FN3450-3WE00, 1FN3450-4WE00, 1FN3900-4WB50, 1FN3900-4WC00 motor models

13.3.2 Electrical connection

Internal circuit of the primary section

Figure 13-4 shows the internal circuit of the primary section.



Figure 13-4 Internal circuit of the primary section

Connecting the power supply line

1**FN**3

The supply line with 4 power conductors (3 phase and PE) and 2x2 conductors for the temperature sensors is connected directly to the terminal panel by using cables with angled cable lugs, see Figure 13-5.



Figure 13-5 Connecting the supply line with angled cable lugs

The cables must be connected to the motor with EMC-safe, metal PG screwed cable glands. This ensures cable connections with low bending radii in all directions.

For straight PG screwed cable glands assembled adapter cables have been available since March 2005. These cables allow for a quick connection to the motor with adjusted ring cable lugs and PG screwed cable glands with an integrated EMC-compliant shield. Order numbers for these items are listed in the online catalog A&D Mall under "Motor power cables".

90° angle PG screwed cable glands must be provided and installed by the customer. Metric threaded joint connections are possible with the use of corresponding adapters.

Terminal panel

Note

The terminal panel is not easily accessible with a preinstalled primary section. It is therefore recommended to premount the primary section with an open end cable and to run this cable to an easier accessible terminal.

Figure 13-6 to Figure 13-8 show the terminal assignment and geometry of the terminal panel for the different motor types.

Note

With the EN 60034-8:2002 norm the terminal markings have changed. For the old terminal markings, see appendix C.





1FN3-type peak-load motors 13 1FN3-type peak-load motors







Figure 13-8 Terminal assignment and geometry of the terminal panel for 1FN3300...900 models

Screwing on the terminal panel cover

The terminal panel is sealed with a PG threaded cover in compliance with protection class IP 65. Figure 13-9 shows how the terminal panel cover is mounted. The supplied or pre-mounted screws and torques to be used are specified in Table 13-4.



1FN3

Figure 13-9 Mounting the terminal panel cover

Motor type 1FN3	Screw compliant with DIN EN ISO 4762	Tightening torque
050, 100, 150	M4–20–A2	2.2 Nm
300, 450, 600, 900	M5–20–A4	3.4 Nm

Connecting the temperature monitoring circuits

For further instructions on connecting the temperature monitoring circuits, see chapter 18.1.

13.3.3 Connecting the cooling unit

Primary section main cooler and primary section precision cooler

All cooling connectors for the primary section main cooler and primary section precision cooler are supplied with a G1/8 pipe thread according to DIN 2999. For the hose connections corresponding connectors are required.

Recommended manufacturers

Manufacturers of connectors for cooling 1FN3-type motors are listed in Appendix B.

Caution!

Use only new, unused connectors!

The connector and gasket materials must be checked for tolerability with each other and with the cooling medium used!

Properties of the sealing materials used:

- Viton: temperature- and glycol-proof
- Buna N: resistant to a water temperature of 80° C
- · Ethylene-propylene: temperature- and glycol-proof

The connector installation can generally be performed with standard tools.

Notice

The primary section cooling connectors are permanent connections that cannot be removed!

If a connection structure of the primary section protrudes beyond the primary section, a chase above the cooling connections must be provided for this connection, for example see Figure 13-10.



Figure 13-10 Example of a cooling connection with a chase on the machine slide

Secondary section cooling

Connecting the cooling medium hoses

For 1FN3-type motors the intake and runback of the secondary section cooling can be routed via the secondary section end pieces, see chapter 13.4.2. Another option - if the continuous secondary section cover band is not used – would be to connect the plastic hoses directly to the cooling sections using hose connector nipples.

The plastic hoses must be cooling medium resistant, flexible, and abrasion resistant.

Recommended manufacturers

Recommended plastic hose manufacturers are listed in Appendix B.

13 1FN3-type peak-load motors

Connection via secondary section end pieces

To connect plastic hoses to secondary section end pieces screwed connectors with screwed nipples and reinforcing sleeves can be used. However, the plastic hoses can also be attached with hose clamps over the hose connector nipples.

For this connection be sure to note the maximum outer diameter (12 mm) and the maximum square span (SW10) of the screwed joint or the screwed nipple: If larger screw joints or screwed nipples are used, the connection point of the secondary section must be fitted with corresponding chases.

Screwed nipples can be sealed to the end piece by using an axial-acting O-ring, a sealing ring or a thread sealer. It is recommended to use conical nipples.

Recommended manufacturers

Recommended manufacturers of screwed connections with nipples and reinforcing sleeves are listed in Appendix B.

Direct connection

To connect plastic hoses directly cold water units with hose connector nipples can be ordered at SIEMENS. The inner diameter of the hose should be 5 mm (e. g. SMC TU ... 0805). Hose and hose connector nipple are connected with a hose clamp.

Connector layout for the secondary section end pieces

To connect the secondary section cooling unit G 1/8 threaded connectors are used. These are located on the faces of the secondary section end pieces.

For models with combi distributor the intake is located on the secondary section track side and the runback on the opposite side, see also Figure 13-11.



Figure 13-11 Connector layout of the secondary section cooling with combi distributor (face view)

For models with combi adapter/combi end piece the cooling medium intake and runback are located on the combi adapter, see Figure 13-12.



Figure 13-12 Connector layout of the secondary section cooling with combi adapter (face view)

 Table 13-5
 Connector dimensions of the secondary section cooling with combi adapter (available only for 1FN3050...450)

Motor type	1FN3050	1FN3100	1FN3150	1FN3300	1FN3450
b _{KP3} [mm]	40	40	100	50	100

13.3.4 Mounting space for the connection system

Depending on the connection system and the cables and hoses used sufficient mounting space must be provided lengthwise of the primary section.

13.4 Protecting the motor from overheating

13.4.1 Temperature monitoring

Since the 4th quarter of 2000 1FN3-type peak-load motors have been supplied with the two temperature monitoring circuits Temp-F and Temp-S (order no. 1FN3xxx-...-0AA1).. Exception: 1FN3050 models are supplied with the Temp-S temperature monitoring circuit only (order no. 1FN3050-...-0AA0).

Temp-F

The temperature monitoring circuit consists of a KTY 84 temperature sensor which is located between two phase windings. Under certain circumstances, especially in case of unequal current loads on the individual phases, the maximum temperature of the three phase windings may not be measured. An evaluation of Temp-F for motor protection purposes is thus not permitted. Temp-F is rather intended for temperature monitoring and signaling a drive shut off triggered by Temp-S.

1FN3

Temp-S

One PTC element per motor phase winding is implemented.

Response temperature:

• steep resistance rise at 120 \pm 5° C

Response time

The response time of the drive system from the steep resistance rise of the PTC elements to the power shut off (impulse lock of the converter) must not exceed one second.

Notice

At the time of commissioning the proper function of Temp-S must be checked <u>before</u> the first test run.

13.4.2 Cooling

How the cooling works has already been described in chapter 4.4. Figure 13-13 illustrates details of the thermal encapsulation of 1FN3-type motors.



1**FN**3

Figure 13-13 Thermal encapsulation of 1FN3-type motors

Primary section main cooler

By default a water cooling system is used with an intake temperature T_{VORL} = 35 °C. If this temperature value is changed the permanent thrust of the motor changes with regards to the table value F_N according to the characteristics specified in chapter 15.3.1.

Thermo-insulation of the primary section / primary section precision cooler

On the bottom side the primary section is insulated by the air gap. On the top the (optional) primary section precision cooler shields the surrounding area from the high motor temperatures. Thermo-insulators on the screwed connections and the air chamber located in between reduce the heat transfer from the primary section. The lateral radiation panels of the primary section precision cooler also form air filled spaces and insulate the primary section laterally from the machine.

The general function of the primary section precision cooler is described in chapter 4.4.

Thermo-insulation of the secondary section / secondary section cooling

The secondary section is cooled by a cooling circuit which, by default, consists of cooling sections and two combi distributors as secondary section end pieces. For applications with high thermal loss input the secondary sections must be cooled. Otherwise cooling of the secondary section is optional.

Caution!

High temperatures can result in demagnetization of the permanent magnets!

The secondary sections must not exceed a temperature of 70° C!

For 1FN3600 and 1FN3900 models secondary section cooling is imperative for the proper function of the motors since, due to the geometry, the heat transferred into the secondary sections could otherwise not be removed.

Cooling sections

The cooling sections are positioned between the machine bed and the secondary section and screwed onto the machine bed together with the secondary sections. Figure 13-14 and Figure 13-15 illustrate how this arrangement effects the cooling without using secondary section end pieces.



Figure 13-14 Secondary section cooling consisting of cooling sections with hose connector nipples for 1FN050...450 motor models (side and top view)



Secondary section cooling consisting of cooling sections with hose connector nipples for Figure 13-15 1FN600...900 motor models (side and top view)

Starting with model 600 three cooling sections with a total of six cooling channels are used. The lateral profiles protrude just a little beyond the secondary section. The middle (additional) cooling section is attached by the line of screws in the center of the secondary sections.

The surfaces of the cooling sections are thermally optimized. The heat is transferred to the contact area of the secondary section track and from there to the cooling channel. Toward the machine structure, however, the contact area is small, so that the heat transfer is kept at a minimum.

The cooling sections are available in lengths of up to 3 m, longer pieces may be available upon request from your local SIEMENS dealer.

Secondary section end pieces

The secondary section end pieces at the front and end of the secondary section track close the cooling circuit and facilitate uniform cooling medium connectors. In addition, the secondary section end pieces also serve as fixing devices for the full secondary section cover by means of a wedge which closes the cover flush with the surface, see Figure 13-16.



Figure 13-16 Secondary section end piece (side view)

By default *combi distributors* are used as secondary section end pieces. These are available for all models. For 1FN3050...450 models *combi adapter/combi end pieces* or *cover band end pieces* may be used as well.

In summary the following secondary section end piece variants are available:

- Combi distributor:
 - Standard solution with the use of secondary section end pieces
 - available for all models
 - attaches the secondary section cover (band) to the front and back of the secondary section track
 - facilitates the connection and parallel junction of the cooling medium to two (1FN3050...450) or three (1FN3600...900) cooling sections at the front and back of the secondary section track, see Figure 13-17 and Figure 13-18.
 - facilitates the merging of the cooling medium flow and cooling medium discharge connection at the end of the secondary section track, see Figure 13-17 and Figure 13-18.
- Combi adapter/combi end piece:
 - available for 1FN3050...1FN3450 models
 - attaches the secondary section cover (band) to the front and back of the secondary section track
 - facilitates the cooling medium connection and cooling medium return: The cooling medium intake and runback connections are located on the combi adapter. The combi end piece is used for the cooling medium runback at the other end of the secondary section track, see Figure 13-19
- Cover end piece:
 - available for 1FN3050...1FN3450 models
 - attaches the secondary section cover (band) to the front and back of the secondary section track, see Figure 13-20



The following illustrations show the secondary section cooling with different secondary section end piece models. The blue dotted lines indicate the cooling medium flow.





Figure 13-18 Secondary section cooling for 1FN3600- and 1FN3900-type motors with combi distributors (side and top view)



01.06

Figure 13-19 Secondary section cooling for 1FN3050...1FN3450-type motors with combi adapter and combi end piece (side and top view)





When using a secondary section cooling with combi distributors the cooling medium is distributed evenly to all cooling sections and is not returned, see Figure 13-17 and Figure 13-18. On the other hand, when combi adapters/combi end pieces are used the cooling medium flows in a ring around the secondary section, see Figure 13-19. The pressure drop of a secondary section cooling with combi adapter/combi end piece is substantially higher due to the higher flow speeds and flow lengths than with a cooling using combi distributors.

Note

Due to the high pressure drop a secondary section cooling with combi adapter/combi end piece can only be used for short traversing distances - such as a length of four secondary sections – due to the high pressure drop. The pressure drop must be monitored for the entire cooling system!

13.5 Parallel and double-sided motor specifications

13.5.1 Parallel circuit configuration

Critical for the layout of primary sections connected in parallel are the pole pair width $2\tau_M$ and, with opposed cable outlet, the minimum distance Δs_0 , see Chapter 6.1. Both dimensions are specified in Table 13-6.

 Table 13-6
 Pole pair width and minimum distance of 1FN3-type peak-load motors connected in parallel

	1FN3050150	1FN3300900
Pole pair width 2т _M [mm]	30	46
Minimum distance ∆s ₀ [mm]	72.5	111.2

13.5.2 Double-sided motor

To set up a double-sided motor with an application-specific secondary section, primary sections with inverse winding are required, see chapter 6.2. These primary sections are available upon request only.



Design specifications are listed in Figure 13-21.

Figure 13-21 Double-sided motor layout using 1FN3-type peak-load motors

Note

The dimensions specified for the steel carrier plate reflect the minimum thickness! Attraction forces between the secondary sections do not neutralize.

For the overall dynamic masses, the masses of the enclosure of the carrier plate, the guiding system, and the length measurement system have to be taken into consideration in addition to the mass of the secondary section and the secondary section cover.

13.6 Mounting the motor - Details

Basic instructions for mounting the motor are provided in chapter 7. In this chapter you will find special information about 1FN3-type peak-load motors.

1FN?

13.6.1 Important motor mounting dimensions

Figure 13-22 shows the dimensions for mounting the motor. The corresponding values are specified in Table 13-7. In addition, this table specifies the air gap value



1**FN**3

Figure 13-22 Control dimensions for mounting the motor

Table 13-7Air gap dimensions and control dimensions for mounting the motor as specified in
Figure 13-22

	Mounting tolerance	Rated air gap with secondary section cover	Rated air gap without secondary section cover	Mounting dimension with precision and secondary section cooler	Mounting dimension with precision cooler and without secondary section cooler	Mounting dimension without precision cooler and secondary section cooler	Mounting dimension without precision cooler and with secondary section cooler
	[mm]	[mm]	[mm]	h _{M1} [mm]	h _{M2} [mm]	h _{M3} [mm]	h _{M4} [mm]
1FN3050, 1FN3100	± 0.3	0.9	1.3	63.4	60.4	48.5	51.1
1FN3150	± 0.3	0.9	1.3	65.4	62.4	50.5	53.5
1FN3300	± 0.3	0.9	1.3	79.0	76.0	64.1	67.1
1FN3450	± 0.3	0.9	1.3	81.0	78.0	66.1	69.1
1FN3600	± 0.3	0.9	1.3	86.0			67.1
1EN3900	± 0.3	0.9	1.3	88.0			69.1

13.6.2 Mounting individual motor components Mounting the secondary section

The secondary sections are mounted to the machine bed by means of a frictionlocked screw joint. The optional cooling sections are screwed onto the secondary sections in between the secondary sections and the machine bed. The mounting dimensions without secondary section cooling are reduced by the height of the cooling sections, see Figure 13-22 and Table 13-7.

For each secondary section the letter N located on the secondary sections must always point in the same direction, see Figure 13-23.

1FN3-type peak-load motors

13 1FN3-type peak-load motors



Figure 13-23 Position of the "N" mark on 1FN3-type secondary sections

Danger

Handling unpackaged secondary sections poses a high risk of crushing!

Carefully observe the guidelines in chapter 2.3!

Mounting the secondary section cooling component

If secondary section cooling is used the cooling sections and secondary section end pieces are to be installed before mounting the secondary sections.

In order to attach the secondary section end pieces the wedges must be removed. By default, the mounting screws of the wedges are stainless steel socket head cap screws (hex socket, DIN 7984 A2 M3x6). Talllow-drop screws (Phillips head H1, DIN 7985 - M3, maximum length 8 mm) may be used as well. The respective number of screws for each option is specified in Table 13-8.

 Table 13-8
 Number of wedge mounting screws for the secondary section end pieces

	1FN3						
	050	100	150	300	450	600	900
Combi adapter	4	6	6	6	8		
Combi end piece	4	6	6	6	8		
Combi distributor	4	6	6	6	8	10	14
Cover end piece	2	5	5	6	7		

To mount the secondary section end pieces use the same screws as for mounting the secondary sections.

Note

The secondary section end pieces can be a little lower than the secondary section track, see the mounting specifications in chapter 16. Note that the mounting threads on the machine bed must be sufficiently deep!

Steps

If cooling sections with plug nipples are used, proceed as follows:

- (1) First tack the cooling sections with only a few screws to hold them in place. These screws have to be removed later, so do not tighten!
- (2) Slide secondary section end piece no. 1 without wedge axially onto the plug nipples of the cooling sections.
- (3) Screw in the mounting screws of secondary section no. 1, but do not tighten.
- (4) Slide secondary section end piece no. 2 without wedge axially onto the plug nipples of the cooling sections.
- (5) Screw in the mounting screws of secondary section no. 2, but do not tighten.
- (6) Tighten the mounting screws of the secondary section end pieces.

13 1FN3-type peak-load motors

- (7) Check cooling circuit seal (pressure check at a maximum of 10 bar with water or other coolants).
- (8) Check if all threads in the machine bed are visible.
- (9) Screw on the secondary sections together with the cooling sections. But first remove the fastening screws!
- (10) Mount the secondary section end piece wedges if the cover band is not used as secondary section cover.

Note

Removing the fastening screws too early may result in excessive plug nipple deformation and overload due to the tare weight of the cooling sections and especially with a vertically arranged secondary section track. Therefore, especially with a vertically arranged secondary section track, remove the screws used to position the cooling sections gradually.

1FN3

Figure 13-24 shows how to position and fasten the cooling sections and combi distributors.



Figure 13-24 Position of the cooling sections and combi distributors (illustration without fastening screws)

Mounting the secondary section cover

The secondary section cover protects the secondary section track. The installation depends on the type of cover used. Two different variants are available:

- continuous band
- segmented cover

Cover band

The cover band is used in environments with heavy dust loads which could deposit in the spaces of the segmented cover.

Note

Blocking the air gap can result in damage to the primary section and secondary section track. Besides the use of strippers, the work space and especially the air gap must be kept free of chips and other particles.

Covering long secondary section tracks with cover bands is more complicated than with segments.

If the traversing distance of the axle is greater than twice the slide length, proceed as follows:

- (1) Mount the primary section under the slide.
- (2) Push the slide on one side of the traversing distance and mount the secondary sections on the other side up to the middle of the traversing distance.
- (3) Mark the length of the mounted secondary sections plus the required clamping length on the cover band.
- (4) From the mark, slide the cover band under the primary section to the side without secondary sections. Starting from the mark, place the other half onto the secondary sections.
- (5) Push the slide over the covered secondary sections. The magnetic forces are transferred to the guide rods.
- (6) Lift the cover band carefully from the machine frame and mount the remaining secondary sections underneath.
- (7) Place the second half of the secondary section cover onto the secondary section track.
- (8) Lock both ends on the secondary section end pieces using the wedges.

If the traversing distance of the axle is smaller than the double slide length or access to mounting the secondary section cover is limited, proceed as follows:

- (1) Mounting the secondary sections with the slide plate removed.
- (2) Starting from one end, place the magnetic secondary section cover onto the secondary sections and fasten both ends on the secondary section end pieces with the wedge.
- (3) Place the primary section with spacer and extractor onto the secondary section track.
- (4) Mount the slide onto the guide rod. Align the slide with the mounting holes of the primary section.
- (5) Remove the primary section from the secondary section track using the extractor (Figure 7-2 in the section ALL) and mount it to the slide.

Segmented cover

Mounting the segmented cover is usually easier than mounting the cover band:

- (1) Mounting the first segment: Position the edge of the first segment from the top in an angle of 45° flush with the outer edge of the last secondary section and lower it in alignment with the secondary section track, see Figure 13-25. As soon as you feel the magnetic attraction force, the segment can be released: It will align itself to the correct position.
- (2) Checking the correct position: The first cover segment should reach to the middle of a secondary section Figure 13-27.
- (3) All other segments are mounted the same way as the first one, see Figure 13-26.

13-193



Figure 13-25 Mounting the first segment of a segmented secondary section cover



1FN3

Figure 13-26 Mounting another segment of a segmented secondary section cover

For better dust protection it is recommended to offset the butt joints of the cover segments with those of the secondary sections, see Figure 13-27. This is possible if the cover segments at the ends of the secondary section track have a (n+0.5) length instead of the integral length of the secondary sections.



Figure 13-27 Example: Segment position of the segmented secondary section cover

To demount the segmented secondary section cover, lift the segments on one side perpendicular to the travel direction, see Figure 13-28.



Figure 13-28 Demounting a segment of a segmented secondary section cover

1**FN**3

Mounting the primary section

The primary section is screwed to the primary section back via the threaded bore holes in a friction-locked joint. Note that the connection side of the primary section usually points in the same direction as the north pole mark "N" on the secondary sections, see also the installation diagrams in chapter 16.

Caution!

Wrong bore hole depths for the fastening screws can damage the motor components or, due to an insufficiently solid attachment of the motor components to the machine, cause other unfavorable conditions.

Ensure maximum and minimum bore hole depths for the fastening screws!

Mounting the Hall sensor box

Which Hall sensor box to use depends on

- the motor type (050...150 or 300...900)
- the location where the Hall sensor box is attached
 - opposite of the connection panel (standard)
 - at the connection panel (standard)
- the required cable outlet direction
 - straight (see Figure 13-29)
 - lateral (see Figure 13-30)

For the respective order numbers, see chapter 14.3.2.

Note

If several primary sections are running on one converter (e. g. PARALLEL layout, see Chapter 6.1.1) the master is to be used as reference for installing the Hall sensor box.

The cable outlet direction and position of the Hall sensor within the Hall sensor box are specifically specified and firmly allocated. Therefore, be sure to follow the respective installation diagrams (chapter 16) when installing the Hall sensor box with regards to position and alignment with the primary section.

13 1FN3-type peak-load motors

Caution

An incorrect installation of the Hall sensor box can result in uncontrollable travel movements of the motor and damage to the machine.

Be sure to follow the installation diagrams! Starting at a certain minimum distance, the distance between the primary section and the Hall sensor box can only be increased by the multiple of the pole pair width $2\tau_M$ - specified in the diagrams as count factor N_P.



Figure 13-29 Hall sensor box with straight cable outlet



Figure 13-30 Hall sensor box with lateral cable outlet

Be sure to mount the Hall sensor box so that a distance of x = 35 mm between the top of the Hall sensor box and the bottom of the primary section is kept, see Figure 13-31. This ensures an automatic adjustment of the correct distance between the Hall sensor box and the secondary section track.



Figure 13-31 Nominal dimensions for mounting the Hall sensor box (HSB)

The Hall sensor box cable is drag-capable and can thus be integrated into cable carriers.

13.7 Guidelines for Commissioning

The best way to adjust motors is described in chapter 4.2. For the identification of the pole position there may be restrictions for the 1FN3-type motor control with regards to the methods used. For further information, see the Installation and Start-Up Guide /IAD/.

The order numbers consist of a combination of letters and numbers, i.e. a machine-readable product code (MLFB). When placing an order it suffices to specify the unique MLFB.

The MLFB consists of three blocks separated by hyphens. The first block of the MLFB comprises 7 characters. These represent the model and type of the primary section or the secondary section. Additional features are coded in the second block. The third block is provided for additional specifications.

14.1 Primary sections

1**FN3**

electrical machine Synchronous motor Linear motor Type series Size	1FN3xxx - xWxx0 - 0AAx
1 ≙ primary section, very short	
2 ≙ primary section, short 3 ≙ primary section, medium short 4 ≙ primary section, medium long 5 ≙ primary section, long	
Primary section type	
W ≙ primary section with main cooler	
v _{MAX.EN} range	
$\begin{array}{l} Ax \triangleq {}^{V}{}_{MAX,FN} < 50 \text{ m/min} \\ Bx \triangleq 50 \text{ m/min} \leq {}^{V}{}_{MAX,FN} < 100 \text{ m/min} \\ Cx \triangleq 100 \text{ m/min} \leq {}^{V}{}_{MAX,FN} < 150 \text{ m/min} \\ Dx \triangleq 150 \text{ m/min} \leq {}^{V}{}_{MAX,FN} < 200 \text{ m/min} \\ Ex \triangleq 200 \text{ m/min} \leq {}^{V}{}_{MAX,FN} < 250 \text{ m/min} \\ Fx \triangleq 250 \text{ m/min} \leq {}^{V}{}_{MAX,FN} < 300 \text{ m/min} \\ Gx \triangleq 300 \text{ m/min} \leq {}^{V}{}_{MAX,FN} \\ x0 \triangleq {}^{V}{}_{MAX,FN} \text{ in the first half of the interval} \\ x5 \triangleq {}^{V}{}_{MAX,FN} \text{ in the second half of the interval} \\ \end{array}$	
Туре ————	
0 ≙ models with Temp-S 1 ≙ models with Temp-S and Temp-F	

14.2 Secondary sections

Size (as primary section)	1FN3 <u>xxx</u> - 4Sx00 - <u>0AA0</u>	!
Length 4 ≙ 4 pole pairs		
Type of construction A ≙ standard		
Version (standard)		

14.3 Primary section accessories

14.3.1 Precision cooler

	1FN3xxx - xPK00 - 0AA0
Size	
(as primary section)	
Length	
(as primary section)	

14.3.2 Hall sensor box

The Hall sensor box can be mounted opposite of the primary section's connection panel or at the connection side of the primary section, see "Mounting the Hall sensor box " page 13-195. The standard location is opposite of the primary section's connection panel.

	1FN300x - 0PH0x - 0AA0	1 F N.
Size		
	2 ≙ 1FN3050150, for standard mounting lengths 2 and 4 only	
	3 ≜ 1FN3300900, for standard mounting lengths 2 and 4 only	
	5 ≙ standard mounting only: 1FN3050150, lengths 1, 3, and 5	
	6 ≜ standard mounting only: 1FN3300900, lengths 1, 3, and 5	
Cable	outlet	
	0 ≙ straight	
	1 ≙ lateral	

14.3.3 SME9x



14.3.4 Connector box



14 Order designations

1FN

14.4 Secondary section accessories

14.4.1 Cooling sections



14.4.2 Secondary section end pieces



14.4.3 Secondary section cover

Segmented cover



Metal band cover

									1 F I	V 3 <u>x x x</u>	<u>k</u> - OTE	300 -	1 <u>x x</u> 0
Size													
(as p	rimar	y sec	tion/se	econd	ary se	ction)							
Num	ber o	f seco	ondarv	section	ons to	be co	overed	I —					
	Lette	ers sta	nd for	numbe	rs:								
	А	В	С	D	Е	F	G	н	J	К			
	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9			
	Exar	nples:											
	1 se	condar	y secti	on is e	ncode	d with a	AB (mi	nimum	length	of the se	condary sect	ion cover)	
	32 s	econda	ary sec	tions a	re enc	oded v	vith DC	(maxi	mum n	umber for	1FN33006	500) ¹	
	50 s	econda	ary sec	tions a	re enc	oded v	vith FA	(maxir	num n	umber for	1FN30501	50) ¹	
	1 The m	naximum le	ngth of the	secondary s	section cov	er is 6 m. Ti	his correspo	onds to the					
	number	of seconda	ary sections	specified h	ere.								

14.5 Order example

Component	Stück	MLFB
Primary section	1	1FN3150-3WC00-0AA1
Primary section precision cooler	1	1FN3150-3PK00-0AA0
Secondary sections	12	1FN3150-4SA00-0AA0
Length of the secondary section track: 1440 mm)		
Secondary section cover (metal band)	1	1FN3150-0TB00-1BC0
Cooling sections with plug nipples	2	1FN3002-0TK04-1BC0
Combi distributor	2	1FN3150-0TJ01-0AA0
Hall sensor box	1	1FN3005-0PH00-0AA0
(standard, straight cable outlet)		
SME93	1	1FN1910-0AA20-3AA0
(SME9x for one motor and HSB, see chapter 18.2.2)		

15 Technical Data and Characteristics

This chapter contains the technical specifications and characteristics of 1FN3-type peak-load motors. This data collection provides the necessary motor data for designing a system and contains additional data for in-depth calculations based on detailed and problem analyses. The data specified here is subject to change.

Note

ong as not stated otherwise the following limitations apply with regards to the specifications:

- The DC link voltage U_{ZK} is 600 V, the converter output voltage U_{amax} is 425 V
- The motor is water-cooled with an intake temperature of $T_{VORL}~35^\circ$ C and the specified flow rate of $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$
- Voltages and currents are specified as actual values

1**FN**3

15.1 Description

15.1.1 Definitions of the 1FN3-type motor data

Limitations/secondary conditions

Uzĸ

Converter DC link voltage

Note: For converter voltages U_{amax} see chapter 4.1.

TVORL

Maximum intake temperature for the water cooling if the motor is to be used to its rated thrust capacity F_{N} .

T_N

1FN3

Rated temperature

Note: The rated temperature of the motor winding corresponds to the shut off temperature of the Temp-S temperature monitoring circuit, see chapter 13.4.1.

Rating data

F_N

Rated thrust of the motor.

Ι_Ν

Rated motor current at rated thrust F_N.

VMAX,FN

Maximum speed up to which the drive can deliver the rated thrust F_{N}

$P_{V,N}$

Power loss of the motor within the scope of the rated data $(F_N, v_{MAX, FN})$ at rated temperature T_N . Loss due to friction and eddy currents is ignored.

Note: Power loss results from phase resistance $R_{STR}(T)$ (see here) and the present current load: $P_V = 3 \cdot R_{STR}(T) \cdot l^2$. Correspondingly $P_{V,N}$ is calculated by

 $P_{V,N} = 3 \cdot R_{STR}(T_N) \cdot I_N^2$

Limiting data

FMAX

Maximum thrust of the motor.

IMAX

Maximum motor current at maximum thrust F_{MAX} .

VMAX,FMAX

Maximum speed up to which the drive can deliver the maximum thrust $\mathsf{F}_{\mathsf{MAX}}$

P_{EL,MAX}

Motor absorbed electrical power at point (F_{MAX} , $v_{MAX,FMAX}$) at rated temperature T_N . Loss due to friction and eddy currents is ignored.

Note: Total delivered mechanical power P_{MECH} and power loss $\mathsf{P}_V\,$ equals the electrical power absorbed by the motor P_{EL} :

 $P_{EL} = P_{MECH} + P_V = F \cdot v + 3 \cdot R_{STR}(T) \cdot I^2$

 $\mathsf{P}_{\mathsf{EL},\mathsf{MAX}}$ is thus calculated correspondingly:

 $P_{EL,MAX} = P_{MECH,MAX} + P_{V,MAX} = F_{MAX} \cdot v_{MAX,FMAX} + 3 \cdot R_{STR}(T_N) \cdot I_{MAX}^2$

F₀*

Stall thrust: Motor thrust that can be reached permanently if only one of the three phases is charged (maximum uneven charge of the phases).

Note: F_0^* can roughly be calculated from the motor's rated thrust F_N if the impact of the motor saturation is ignored:

$$\mathsf{F}_0^* \approx \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} \mathsf{F}_\mathsf{N} \; .$$

l₀*

Stall current of the motor at stall thrust F_0^* .

Note: I_0^* can be calculated from the rated current I_N :

$$I_0^* = \frac{1}{\sqrt{2}} I_N$$
.

Physical constants

rF,20

Thrust constant of the motor at rated air gap and a secondary section temperature of 20° C.

Note: The thrust constant refers to the linear (bottom) part of the motor thrust current characteristics.

kΕ

Voltage constant to calculate the mutually induced voltages between phase and star point at the rated air gap.

k_{M,20}

Motor constant at winding temperature of 20° C.

Note: The motor constant k_M can be calculated for other temperatures: $k_M(T) = k_{M,20} [1 + \alpha (T - 20 °C)]$ with the temperature coefficient $\alpha = -0.001$ 1/K for the magnets used.

R_{STR,20}

Winding phase resistance at a winding temperature of 20° C.

Note: The phase resistance R_{STR} can be calculated for other temperatures: $R_{STR}(T) = R_{STR,20} [1 + \alpha (T - 20 °C)]$ with the temperature coefficient $\alpha = 0.00393$ 1/K for copper.

LSTR

Winding phase inductance at the rated air gap

FA

Attraction force between the primary section and the secondary section at the rated air gap

tтн

Thermal time constant of the winding

Note: The thermal time constant results from the temperature flow in the winding with constant current surges at a given time t = 0, see Figure 15-1. After the time t_{TH} has elapsed the motor winding reaches approximately 63% of its end temperature T_{GRENZ} if the temperature protection is not activated before.



1FN3

Figure 15-1 Definition of the thermal time constants

connection cables, and cooling medium.

The pole width of the motor corresponds to the distance between the respective center of the north and south pole of two adjacent magnets on one secondary section.

Mass of the primary section without precision cooler, mounting screws, plugs,

m _{P,P}	
	Mass of the primary section with precision cooler but without mounting screws, plugs, connection cables, and cooling medium.
ms	
	Mass of a secondary section without mounting screws, cover, and ontional coo

Mass of a secondary section without mounting screws, cover, and optional cooling sections

m_{S,P}

тм

mP

Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections but without mounting screws, cover, and cooling medium

Primary section main cooler data

Q_{P,H,MAX}

Maximum heat output removed by the main cooler using the rated thrust $\mathsf{F}_N\,$ and the rated temperature $\mathsf{T}_N\,$

V_{Р,Н,МIN}

Recommended minimum flow rate in the main cooler in order to reach the rated thrust F_N

$\Delta T_{P,H}$

Temperature increase of the cooling medium between intake and runback of the main cooler for the rated data ($Q_{P,H,MAX}$; $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$)

∆р_{Р,Н}

Pressure drop of the cooling medium between intake and runback of the main cooler for the flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$

Primary section precision cooler data

$Q_{P,P,MAX}$

Maximum heat output removed by the primary section precision cooler using the rated thrust $\mathsf{F}_N\,$ and the rated temperature $\mathsf{T}_N\,$

V_{Р,Р,МIN}

Recommended minimum flow rate in the primary section precision cooler to reach the maximum surface temperature T_{VORL} + 4 K

∆р_{Р,Н}

Pressure drop of the cooling medium between intake and runback of the primary section precision cooler for the flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$

Secondary section cooling data

Q_{S,MAX}

Maximum heat output removed by the secondary section cooler using the rated thrust $F_N\,$ and the rated temperature $T_N V_{S,MIN}$

Recommended minimum flow rate for the secondary section cooling

∆ps

Pressure drop of the cooling medium between the intake and runback of the secondary section cooling for the flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ and a reference length of one meter

∆pĸs

Pressure drop of the cooling medium at a coupling point of the secondary section cooling



Note: for the term "coupling point", see Figure 15-2

Figure 15-2 Components of the standard secondary section cooling, schematic

 $\Delta p_{\rm KV}$

Pressure drop of the cooling medium in a combi distributor

Note: Usually two combi distributors are used in the secondary section cooling, see Figure 15-2.

15.1.2 Description of the characteristics

Motor thrust vs. speed

For each diagram depicting the motor thrust F_{M} dependent on the speed of the given illustrated motor there are three characteristics:

- for a DC link voltage U_{ZK} = 540 V (U_{amax} = 380 V)
- for a DC link voltage $U_{ZK} = 600 \text{ V} (U_{amax} = 425 \text{ V})$
- for a DC link voltage U_{ZK} = 648 V (U_{amax} = 460 V)



One of these characteristics is illustrated with descriptions for the most important points Figure 15-3.

1FN3

Figure 15-3 Characteristic of motor thrust vs. speed, schematic

Brake force vs. speed

This characteristic describes the brake force of the short-circuited motor in connection with the speed. The friction factor is ignored here. Figure 15-4 shows a rough course of such a characteristic.



Figure 15-4 Characteristic of brake force vs. speed for short-circuited motors, schematic

Temperature increase of the primary section mail cooler vs. flow rate



This characteristic describes the temperature increase between the intake and runback of the primary section main cooler in connection with the flow rate, see Figure 15-5.

Figure 15-5 Characteristic of temperature increase vs. flow rate in the primary section main cooler, schematic

Pressure drop of the coolers vs. flow rate

These characteristics describe the pressure drop between the intake and runback of the respective cooler in connection with the flow rate, see Figure 15-6. One diagram shows the characteristic of the primary section main cooler and another one shows the characteristic of the primary section precision cooler. The third diagram shows characteristics of the individual components of the standard secondary section cooling with combi distributor.

Note

The order of the characteristics specified in Figure 15-6 is not absolute! Please note the legends contained in the individual characteristics!





15 Technical Data and Characteristics

15.2 Motor data

1FN3050-2WC00-0AA0						
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value			
Limitations/secondary conditions						
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600			
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35			
Rated temperature	TN	°C	120			
Rated data			·			
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	200			
Rated current	IN	А	2.7			
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX.FN	m/min	373			
Rated power loss	P _{V.N}	W	310			
Limiting data	- ,	•				
Maximum thrust	FMAX	Ν	550			
Maximum current	IMAX	А	8.2			
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	νωάχ εμάχ	m/min	146			
Maximum electric power input	P _{FL MAX}	W	4110			
Stall thrust	Fo*	N	141			
Stall current	I ₀ *	А	1.9			
Physical constants			1			
Power constant at 20° C	k _{E 20}	N/A	74			
Voltage constant	r,20 k⊨	Vs/m	24.5			
Motor constant at 20° C	KM 20	N/\\W	13.5			
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR 20}	Ω	10			
Phase inductance	LSTR	mH	36.5			
Attraction force	F∆	N	1330			
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120			
Pole width	Тм	mm	15			
Mass primary section	mp	kg	2.4			
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{PP}	kg	2.9			
Mass secondary section	ms	kg	0.4			
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S P}	kg	0.5			
Primary section main cooler data			•			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P Η ΜΔΧ}	W	310			
Recommended min. flow rate		l/min	2.1			
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{PH}	к	2.1			
Pressure drop	Δp _{P H}	bar	0.64			
Primary section precision cooler data			•			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P P MAX}	W	15			
Recommended min. flow rate		l/min	2.1			
Pressure drop	Δp _{P P}	bar	0.08			
Secondary section cooling data						
Maximum heat output	QSMAX	W	27			
Recommended min. flow rate	Ý _{S MIN}	l/min	2.1			
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp_{S}	bar	0.03			
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δρ _{κν}	bar	0.12			
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.09			

1FN3050-2WC00-0AA0 characteristics Thrust characteristics



1**FN**3





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3

15 Technical Data and Characteristics

1FN3100-1WC00-0AA1					
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value		
Limitations/secondary conditions					
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600		
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35		
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120		
Rated data					
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	200		
Rated current	I _N	А	2.4		
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	322		
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	280		
Limiting data					
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	490		
Maximum current	I _{MAX}	A	6.5		
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	138		
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	3130		
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	141		
Stall current	l ₀ *	А	1.7		
Physical constants	•				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	82		
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	27.2		
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	13.9		
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	11.4		
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	54.5		
Attraction force	FA	Ν	1330		
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120		
Pole width	т _М	mm	15		
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	2.2		
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	-		
Mass secondary section	mS	kg	0.7		
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	0.8		
Primary section main cooler data					
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	285		
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	2.5		
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P.H}	к	1.6		
Pressure drop	Δp _{P.H}	bar	0,57		
Primary section precision cooler data					
Maximum heat output	Q _{P.P.MAX}	W	-		
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ _{Ρ,Ρ,ΜΙΝ}	l/min	-		
Pressure drop	Δp _{P.P}	bar	-		
Secondary section cooling data	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	23		
Recommended min. flow rate	Ý _{S.MIN}	l/min	2.5		
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.04		
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δρ _{KV}	bar	0.17		
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.12		
Motor thrust F_M in N

100

0

0

100



600

20

0

0

100

200

300

Speed v in m/min

400

500

600

1FN3100-1WC00-0AA1 characteristics



200

300

Speed v in m/min

400

500



Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling

no precision cooler installed!



1FN3

15 Technical Data and Characteristics

1FN3100-2WC00-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	450	
Rated current	I _N	A	5.1	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	297	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	550	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	1100	
Maximum current	IMAX	A	13.5	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX.FMAX	m/min	131	
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL.MAX}	W	6310	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	318	
Stall current	l ₀ *	A	3.6	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	89	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	29.6	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M.20}	N/√W	22.6	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	5.1	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	26.6	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	2650	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	15	
Mass primary section	mP	kg	3.8	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	4.4	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	0.7	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	0.8	
Primary section main cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	550	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	2.5	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	3.2	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	1.03	
Primary section precision cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	15	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	2.5	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.11	
Secondary section cooling data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	41	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{S,MIN}	l/min	2.5	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.04	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.17	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.12	

01.06

1FN3100-2WC00-0AA1 characteristics Thrust characteristics



1**FN**3





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3100-2WE00-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	N	450	
Rated current	I _N	A	8.1	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	497	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	550	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	1100	
Maximum current	I _{MAX}	A	21.5	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	237	
Maximum electric power input	PEL,MAX	W	8280	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	318	
Stall current	I ₀ *	A	5.7	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	56	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	18.6	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	22.6	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	2	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	10.5	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	2650	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	15	
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	3.8	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	4.4	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	0.7	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	0.8	
Primary section main cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	555	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	2.5	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	3.2	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	1.03	
Primary section precision cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	15	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{Р,Р,МIN}	l/min	2.5	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.11	
Secondary section cooling data		1		
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	41	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ́ _{S,MIN}	l/min	2.5	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.04	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.17	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.12	

01.06

15-214



1FN3100-2WE00-0AA1 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3100-3WC00-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _Ν	°C	120	
Rated data		_		
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	675	
Rated current	I _N	Α	7.2	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	277	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	820	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	1650	
Maximum current	IMAX	А	19.1	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	120	
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	9160	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	477	
Stall current	l ₀ *	A	5.1	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	94	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	31.4	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M.20}	N/√/W	27.8	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR.20}	Ω	3.8	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	20	
Attraction force	FA	Ν	3980	
Thermal time constant	t _{тн}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	15	
Mass primary section	mP	kg	5.4	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	6.2	
Mass secondary section	mS	kg	0.7	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	0.8	
Primary section main cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P.H.MAX}	W	825	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	2.5	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	к	4.7	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	1.49	
Primary section precision cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P.P.MAX}	W	25	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	2.5	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.14	
Secondary section cooling data	. ,		·	
Maximum heat output	Q _{S MAX}	W	60	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ý _{S MIN}	l/min	2.5	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.04	

 Δp_{S}

Δp_{KV}

 Δp_{KS}

01.06

bar

bar

0.17

0.12

1FN3

Pressure drop per combi distributor

Pressure drop per coupling point



1FN3100-3WC00-0AA1 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1**FN**3

15 Technical Data and Characteristics

1FN3100-3WE00-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	675	
Rated current	I _N	A	12.1	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	497	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	830	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	1650	
Maximum current	I _{MAX}	A	32.2	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	237	
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	12420	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	477	
Stall current	I ₀ *	Α	8.5	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	56	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	18.6	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	27.6	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	1.4	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	7	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	3980	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	15	
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	5.4	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	6.2	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	0.7	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	0.8	
Primary section main cooler data	-	-		
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	830	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	2,5	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	4,8	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	1,49	
Primary section precision cooler data	-	-		
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	25	
Recommended min. flow rate	У _{Р,Р,МIN}	l/min	2.5	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.14	
Secondary section cooling data		•		
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	60	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ́ _{S,MIN}	l/min	2.5	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.04	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.17	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.12	

01.06



1FN3100-3WE00-0AA1 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3

15 Technical Data and Characteristics

1FN3100-4WC00-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _Ν	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	900	
Rated current	I _N	А	10.1	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	297	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	1100	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	2200	
Maximum current	I _{MAX}	А	27	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	131	
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	12620	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	636	
Stall current	I ₀ *	А	7.2	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	89	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	29.6	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	32	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	2.6	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	13.3	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	5310	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	15	
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	7.4	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	8.5	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	0.7	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	0.8	
Primary section main cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	1100	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	2.5	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	6.3	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	1.94	
Primary section precision cooler data		-	1	
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	30	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	2.5	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.17	
Secondary section cooling data		1	- 1	
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	79	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ́ _{S,MIN}	l/min	2.5	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.04	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.17	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.12	

01.06



1FN3100-4WC00-0AA1 characteristics

1**FN**3

500

Primary section main cooler characteristics



Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3100-4WE00-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	N	900	
Rated current	I _N	A	16.1	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	497	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	1110	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	2200	
Maximum current	I _{MAX}	A	43	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	237	
Maximum electric power input	PEL,MAX	W	16560	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	636	
Stall current	I ₀ *	A	11.4	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	56	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	18.6	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	31.9	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	1	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	5.3	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	5310	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	15	
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	7.4	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	8.5	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	0.7	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	0.8	
Primary section main cooler data			1	
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	1110	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	2.5	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	6.4	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	1.94	
Primary section precision cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	30	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{Р,Р,МIN}	l/min	2.5	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.17	
Secondary section cooling data		1		
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	79	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ́ _{S,MIN}	l/min	2.5	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.04	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.17	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.12	

01.06



1FN3100-4WE00-0AA1 characteristics

Primary section main cooler characteristics



Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3

15 Technical Data and Characteristics

1FN3100-5WC00-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	N	1125	
Rated current	I _N	А	11	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	255	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	1320	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	2750	
Maximum current	IMAX	А	29.5	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX.FMAX	m/min	109	
Maximum electric power input	PELMAX	W	14390	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	795	
Stall current	l ₀ *	А	7.8	
Physical constants	•			
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	102	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	33.9	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M.20}	N/√W	36.6	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR.20}	Ω	2.6	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	14	
Attraction force	FA	Ν	6630	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	15	
Mass primary section	mP	kg	9.1	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	10.4	
Mass secondary section	mS	kg	0.7	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	0.8	
Primary section main cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	1320	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	2.5	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P.H}	к	7.6	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	2.4	
Primary section precision cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P.P.MAX}	W	35	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	2.5	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.2	
Secondary section cooling data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	97	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ý _{S.MIN}	l/min	2.5	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.04	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δρ _{KV}	bar	0.17	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.12	

01.06



1FN3100-5WC00-0AA1 characteristics



Primary section main cooler characteristics



Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3150-1WC00-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	340	
Rated current	I _N	Α	3.6	
maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	282	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	370	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	820	
Maximum current	I _{MAX}	A	9.5	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	126	
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	4340	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	239	
Stall current	l ₀ *	A	2.5	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	94	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	31.4	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	20.8	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	6.8	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	39.9	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	1990	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	15	
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	3	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	-	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	1.2	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	1.3	
Primary section main cooler data		T	- 1	
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	365	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	2.8	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	1.9	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.81	
Primary section precision cooler data		T		
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	-	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{Р,Р,МIN}	l/min	-	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	-	
Secondary section cooling data		-		
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	30	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ́ _{S,MIN}	l/min	2.8	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.05	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.21	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.15	



1FN3150-1WC00-0AA1 characteristics

Primary section main cooler characteristics



Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling

no precision cooler installed!



1FN31	50-1WE00-0AA1			
Techni	cal data	Brief designation	Units	Value
Limitati	ons/secondary conditions			
DC li	nk voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Wate	r cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rate	d temperature	Τ _N	°C	120
Rated o	lata			
Rate	d thrust	F _N	Ν	300
Rate	d current	IN	A	6.4
Maxi	num speed at rated thrust	VMAX FN	m/min	605
Rate	d power loss	PVN	W	350
Limiting	j data		•	
Maxii	num thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	730
J Maxii	num current	IMAX	А	17
Maxii	num speed at maximum thrust	VMAX.FMAX	m/min	288
Maxii	num electric power input	PELMAX	W	6010
Stall	thrust	F ₀ *	N	211
Stall	current	I ₀ *	А	4.5
Physica	Il constants		1	
Powe	er constant at 20° C	k _{E 20}	N/A	47
Volta	ge constant	k⊨	Vs/m	15.6
Moto	r constant at 20° C	km 20	N/\\W	18.7
Moto	r winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR 20}	Ω	2.1
Phas	e inductance	LSTR	mH	12.7
Attrac	ction force	F₄	N	2270
Therr	nal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
			mm	15
Pole	width	т _М		
Mass	primary section	m _P	kg	3
Mass	of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P.P}	kg	-
Mass	secondary section	m _S	kg	1.2
Mass	of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S.P}	kg	1.3
Primary	section main cooler data			
Maxii	num heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	355
Reco	mmended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	2.8
Cooli	ng medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	к	1.8
Press	sure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.81
Primary	section precision cooler data			
Maxii	num heat output	Q _{P.P.MAX}	W	-
Reco	mmended min. flow rate	V _{PPMIN}	l/min	-
Press	sure drop	Δp _{P.P}	bar	-
Second	ary section cooling data		•	
Maxii	num heat output	Q _{S.MAX}	W	30
Reco	mmended min. flow rate	V _{S.MIN}	l/min	2.8
Press	sure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.05
Press	sure drop per combi distributor	Δρ _{KV}	bar	0.21
Press	sure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.15
		-		

© Siemens AG 2006 All rights reserved

SIMODRIVE Linear motors 1FN1 and 1FN3-SL (PJLM) – Edition 01.06



1FN3150-1WE00-0AA1 characteristics

1FN3





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling

no precision cooler installed!



1**FN**3

15 Technical Data and Characteristics

1FN3150-2WC00-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _Ν	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	675	
Rated current	I _N	A	7.2	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	282	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	730	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	1650	
Maximum current	IMAX	A	19.1	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	126	
Maximum electric power input	PELMAX	W	8680	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	477	
Stall current	l ₀ *	A	5.1	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	94	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	31.4	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	29.4	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR.20}	Ω	3.4	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	20	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	3980	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	15	
Mass primary section	mP	kg	5.3	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	6	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	1.2	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	1.3	
Primary section main cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	735	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	2.8	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	3.8	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	1.49	
Primary section precision cooler data		-		
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	20	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	2.8	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.14	
Secondary section cooling data		-		
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	55	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{S,MIN}	l/min	2.8	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.05	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.21	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.15	

01.06



1FN3150-2WC00-0AA1 characteristics

1**FN**3

Primary section main cooler characteristics



Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3150-3WC00-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	1010	
Rated current	I _N	А	10.7	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	282	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	1100	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	2470	
Maximum current	IMAX	А	28.6	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX.FMAX	m/min	126	
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL.MAX}	W	13020	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	716	
Stall current	l ₀ *	А	7.6	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	94	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	31.4	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	36	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	2.3	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	13.3	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	5970	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	15	
Mass primary section	mP	kg	7.8	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	8.7	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	1.2	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	1.3	
Primary section main cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	1100	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	2.8	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	к	5.6	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	2.16	
Primary section precision cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	25	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	2.8	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.17	
Secondary section cooling data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	81	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{S,MIN}	l/min	2.8	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0,05	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.21	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.15	



1FN3150-3WC00-0AA1 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3150-4WC00-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	N	1350	
Rated current	I _N	A	14.3	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	282	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	1470	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	3300	
Maximum current	I _{MAX}	A	38.2	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	126	
Maximum electric power input	PEL,MAX	W	17360	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	955	
Stall current	I ₀ *	A	10.1	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	94	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	31.4	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	41.6	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	1.7	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	10	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	7960	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	15	
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	10.2	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	11.4	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	1.2	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	1.3	
Primary section main cooler data			1	
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	1465	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	2.8	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	7.5	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	2.84	
Primary section precision cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	35	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{Р,Р,МIN}	l/min	2.8	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.21	
Secondary section cooling data		1		
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	106	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ́ _{S,MIN}	l/min	2.8	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.05	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.21	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.15	



1FN3150-4WC00-0AA1 characteristics

1**FN**3

Primary section main cooler characteristics



Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3150-5WC00-0AA1			
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
Limitations/secondary conditions			
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120
Rated data			
Rated thrust	F _N	N	1690
Rated current	I _N	A	17.9
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	282
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	1830
Limiting data			
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	4120
Maximum current	I _{MAX}	A	47.7
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	126
Maximum electric power input	PEL,MAX	W	21700
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	1193
Stall current	I ₀ *	A	12.7
Physical constants			
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	94
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	31.4
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	46.5
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	1.4
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	8
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	9950
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
Pole width	тм	mm	15
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	12.8
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	14.2
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	1.2
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	1.3
Primary section main cooler data			1
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	1830
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	2.8
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	9.4
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	3.51
Primary section precision cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	40
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{Р,Р,МIN}	l/min	2.8
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.24
Secondary section cooling data		1	
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	131
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ́ _{S,MIN}	l/min	2.8
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.05
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.21
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.15

01.06



1FN3150-5WC00-0AA1 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



500

1**FN**3

15 Technical Data and Characteristics

1FN3300-1WC00-0AA1			
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
Limitations/secondary conditions			
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120
Rated data			
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	610
Rated current	I _N	A	6.5
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	309
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	520
Limiting data			
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	1720
Maximum current	IMAX	A	20
Maximum speed at maximum power	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	128
Maximum electric power input	PELMAX	W	8680
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	433
Stall current	I ₀ *	A	4.6
Physical constants			
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	95
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	31.6
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	31.7
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	3
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	31.5
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	3430
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
Pole width	тм	mm	23
Mass primary section	mP	kg	6.2
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	-
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	2.4
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	2.6
Primary section main cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	520
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	3.5
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	2.1
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.15
Primary section precision cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	_
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	-
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	-
Secondary section cooling data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	50
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{S,MIN}	l/min	3.5
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.08
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.32
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.24



1FN3300-1WC00-0AA1 characteristics

1FN3





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling

no precision cooler installed!



1FN3300-2WB00-0AA1			
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
Limitations/secondary conditions			
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated temperature	T _N	°C	120
Rated data			
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	1225
Rated current	I _N	A	8
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	176
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	990
Limiting data			
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	3450
Maximum current	IMAX	A	24.7
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	63
Maximum electric power input	PELMAX	W	13160
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	866
Stall current	I ₀ *	A	5.6
Physical constants			·
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	153
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	51.2
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	45.8
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	3.7
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	39.5
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	6870
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
Pole width	тм	mm	23
Mass primary section	mP	kg	11.4
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	12.4
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	2.4
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	2.6
Primary section main cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	995
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	4
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	3.6
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.32
Primary section precision cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	35
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	4
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.33
Secondary section cooling data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	93
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{S,MIN}	l/min	4
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.09
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.42
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.31

01.06



1FN3300-2WB00-0AA1 characteristics

1**FN**3

300





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3300-2WC00-0AA1			
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
Limitations/secondary conditions			
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120
Rated data			
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	1225
Rated current	I _N	А	12.6
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	297
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	1000
Limiting data			
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	3450
Maximum current	IMAX	А	39.2
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	125
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	16750
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	866
Stall current	I ₀ *	А	8.9
Physical constants			
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	97
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	32.3
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	45.8
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	1.5
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	15.7
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	6870
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
Pole width	тм	mm	23
Mass primary section	mP	kg	11.4
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	12.4
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	2.4
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	2.6
Primary section main cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	995
Recommended min. flow rate	Ӱ _{Р,Н,МIN}	l/min	4
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	3.6
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.32
Primary section precision cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	35
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	4
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.33
Secondary section cooling data		-	
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	93
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ́ _{S,MIN}	l/min	4
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.09
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.42
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.31



1FN3300-2WC00-0AA1 characteristics



Primary section main cooler characteristics



Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3300-2WG00-0AA1			
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
Limitations/secondary conditions			
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120
Rated data			
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	1225
Rated current	I _N	A	32.2
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	805
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	930
Limiting data			
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	3450
Maximum current	I _{MAX}	A	99.7
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	369
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	30140
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	866
Stall current	I ₀ *	A	22.8
Physical constants			
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	38
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	12.7
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	47.3
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	0.2
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	2.4
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	6870
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
Pole width	тм	mm	23
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	11.4
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	12.4
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	2.4
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	2.6
Primary section main cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	930
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	4
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	3.4
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.32
Primary section precision cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	35
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{Р,Р,МIN}	l/min	4
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.33
Secondary section cooling data		1	- 1
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	93
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ́ _{S,MIN}	l/min	4
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.09
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.42
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.31

1FN3300-2WG00-0AA1 characteristics



1**FN**3





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3300-3WC00-0AA1			
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
Limitations/secondary conditions			
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120
Rated data			
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	1840
Rated current	I _N	A	19
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	297
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	1500
Limiting data			
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	5170
Maximum current	IMAX	А	58.7
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX.FMAX	m/min	125
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL.MAX}	W	25120
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	1299
Stall current	l ₀ *	А	13.4
Physical constants			
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	97
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	32.3
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	56.1
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	1
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	10.5
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	10300
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
Pole width	тм	mm	23
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	17
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	18.4
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	2.4
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	2.6
Primary section main cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	1495
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	4.5
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	4.8
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.56
Primary section precision cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	50
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	4.5
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.53
Secondary section cooling data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	136
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{S,MIN}	l/min	4.5
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.12
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.53
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.39

01.06

15-246


1FN3300-3WC00-0AA1 characteristics



500





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1**FN**3

15 Technical Data and Characteristics

1FN3300-3WG00-0AA1			
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
Limitations/secondary conditions			
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated temperature	Τ _Ν	°C	120
Rated data			
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	1840
Rated current	I _N	А	50
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	836
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	1370
Limiting data			
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	5170
Maximum current	I _{MAX}	А	154.9
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	383
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	46180
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	1299
Stall current	I ₀ *	А	35.4
Physical constants			
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	37
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	12.2
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	58.6
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	0.1
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	1.5
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	10300
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
Pole width	тм	mm	23
Mass primary section	mP	kg	17
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	18.4
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	2.4
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	2.6
Primary section main cooler data		1	
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	1370
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	4.5
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	4.4
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.56
Primary section precision cooler data		_	
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	50
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	4.5
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.53
Secondary section cooling data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	136
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{S,MIN}	l/min	4.5
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.12
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.53
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.39

01.06

1FN3300-3WG00-0AA1 characteristics







Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3300-4WB00-0AA1			
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
Limitations/secondary conditions			
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120
Rated data			
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	2450
Rated current	I _N	Α	16
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	176
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	1990
Limiting data			
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	6900
Maximum current	I _{MAX}	A	49.4
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	63
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	26330
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	1732
Stall current	l ₀ *	A	11.3
Physical constants			
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	153
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	51.2
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	64.8
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	1.9
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	19.8
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	13730
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
Pole width	тм	mm	23
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	22.2
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	24
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	2.4
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	2.6
Primary section main cooler data		T	- 1
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	1990
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	5
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	5.7
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.86
Primary section precision cooler data	-	1	-
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	65
Recommended min. flow rate	Ӱ _{Р,Р,МIN}	l/min	5
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.79
Secondary section cooling data	-		I
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	180
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ́ _{S,MIN}	l/min	5
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.14
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.65
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.47

01.06



400

0

50

100

150

Speed v in m/min

200

250

300

300

1FN3300-4WB00-0AA1 characteristics



Primary section main cooler characteristics

200

Speed v in m/min

100

0



Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



Technical dataBrief designationUnitsValueLimitations/secondary conditions \Box_{ZK} V 600DC link voltage U_{ZK} V 600Water cooling intake temperature T_{VORL} T_C 35Rated temperature T_N $'C$ 120Rated chara T_N N 2450Rated current I_N A 25.3Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MX,FNN}$ m/min 297Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W 1990Limiting data F_{MAX} N 6900Maximum speed at maximum thrust I_{MAX} A 76.3Maximum electric power input F_0^* N 1732Stall thrust F_0^* N 1732Stall current I_0^* A 17.9Physical constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ N/A 97Voltage constant 420° C $K_{RTR,20}$ Ω 0.7Phase inductance Z_{C} $K_{M,20}$ N/\sqrt{W} 64.8Motor winding resistance at 20° C $K_{STR,20}$ Ω 0.7Phase inductance T_H s 120 T_H Neas of the primary section with precision cooler m_S, R_30 N_2/W 64.8Mass of the primary section with cooling sections m_S, R_30 2.6 $T_TransPrimary section main cooler dataT_HS7.0T_SMass of the primary section with cooling sectionsm_S, R_30A_5T_F, HK$	1FN3300-4WC00-0AA1			
Limitations/secondary conditionsDC link voltage Water cooling intake temperature Rated temperatureUZK TVORLV °C600 35Rated dataT VIN°C120Rated trustFN NN A 25.325.3 VINAX,FNN M'min297Rated power lossPV,NW1990100Limiting dataFMAX Maximum speed at rated thrustN MAX,FN6900Maximum thrustImax MAX,FNN M6900Maximum current Maximum electric power inputF0* PL_MAXN M 33500Stall currentImax In Po*A A A APhysical constant at 20° C Voltage constant at 20° C A thraction forceKF 20 KM,20 KM,20 M/VN/A M A B A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A B A A A A A A A B A B A A A A A A B A B A A A A A B A B A B A B A B A B A B A B A B A B A B A B A B A B A B A B A B A B A B A C C C C C A B A B A B A A C C C C C B <br< th=""><th>Technical data</th><th>Brief designation</th><th>Units</th><th>Value</th></br<>	Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
DC link voltageUZKV600Water cooling intake temperatureTvORL"C35Rated data"C120Rated data"C120Rated thrustFNN2450Rated currentINA253Maximum speed at rated thrustVMAX,FNm/min297Rated power lossPV,NW1990Limiting dataImaximum speed at maximum thrustMAXA78.3Maximum currentImAXA78.378.3Maximum speed at maximum thrustPELMAXM'min125Maximum electric power inputPELMAXN6900Stall thrustFo"N1732Stall currentIo"A17.9Physical constantPower constant at 20" CKF,20N/A97Votage constant at 20" CKSTR,20Q0.7Phase inductanceLSTRmH7.9Attraction forceFAN13730Thermal time constantTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmSkg2.4Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmSkg2.4Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmSKg2.6Primary section mein cooler dataVp,P,MINVmin5Maximum heat outputQp,P,MAXW1995Necommended min. flow rate <td< th=""><th>Limitations/secondary conditions</th><th></th><th></th><th></th></td<>	Limitations/secondary conditions			
Water cooling intake temperature T_{VORL} "C35 rcRated dataT_N'C120Rated dataFNN2450Rated currentINA25.3Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MAX,FN}$ m/min297Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W1990Limiting dataMaximum speed at maximum thrust F_{MAX} N6900Maximum speed at maximum thrust F_{MAX} N78.3Maximum speed at maximum thrust P_{MAX} N1732Maximum electric power input F_0^* N1732Stall currentIo*A17.9Physical constant tPower constant at 20° CVoltage constant tKEN/ \sqrt{W} 64.8Motor winding resistance at 20° CKM20N/ \sqrt{W} 64.8Motor winding resistance at 20° CKM20N/ \sqrt{W} 64.8Mass primary sectionTMmm23Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermp.kg24Mass of a secondary section with precision coolerms.8.92.4Maximum heat outputQP.H.MAXW1995Primary section perioding sections $T_{P,H}$ K6.7Primary section perioding sections $T_{P,H}$ K6.7Pressure drop $DP.P.MAX$ W180Pressure drop $DP.MAX$ W180Pressure drop peroti distributor $DP.MAX$ W <td>DC link voltage</td> <td>U_{ZK}</td> <td>V</td> <td>600</td>	DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Rated temperature T_N "C120Rated dataRated thrustFNN2450Rated currentINA25.3Maximum speed at rated thrustVMAX,FNm/min297Rated power lossP/NW1990Limiting dataFMAXN6900Maximum thrustIMAX,FMAXM/min125Maximum speed at maximum thrustMAX,FMAXm/min125Maximum speed transmum thrustYMAX,FMAXW33500Stall currentIp*A17.9Physical ConstantsF0*N1732Power constant at 20° CKF,20N/A97Voltage constant tKEVs/m32.3Motor oristant at 20° CKM,20N/ \sqrt{V} 64.8Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.7Phase inductanceLSTRmH13730Thermal time constanttrHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass of the primary section with precision coolermS,pkg2.6Primary section main cooler dataTm5.77Maximum heat output Ω_P,P,MAX W1995Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta P_P,H$ K5.7Pressure drop $\Delta P_P,H$ K5.7Pressure drop $\Delta P_P,MIX$ W180Pressure drop per corbin distributor ΔP_S bar0.47	Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated dataRated thrustFNN2450Rated currentINA25.3Maximum speed at rated thrustVMAX,FNm/min297Rated power lossPV,NW1990Limiting dataFMAXN6900Maximum thrustFMAXN6900Maximum currentIMAXA78.3Maximum speed at maximum thrustVMAX,FMAXW33500Stall thrustStall currentPEL.MAXW33500Stall currentIo*A17.9Physical constantKE,20N/A97Voltage constantKE,20N/A97Voltage constantMotor constant at 20° CKF,20N/A97Voltage constantMotor constant at 20° CKSTR,20Q0.7Phase inductanceLLSTRmH7.9Attraction forceFAN13730The primary section with precision coolermp.pkg24Mass of the primary section with cooling sectionsmp.pkg24Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmp.pkg2.4Maximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW19951995Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINVimin5Adminum heat outputQP,P,MAXW180Maximum heat output <td>Rated temperature</td> <td>T_N</td> <td>°C</td> <td>120</td>	Rated temperature	T _N	°C	120
Rated thrust F_N N2450Rated currentINA25.3Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MAX,FN}$ m/min297Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W1990Limiting dataMaximum thrust F_{MAX} N6900Maximum currentIMAXA78.3Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min125Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W33500Stall thrust F_0^+ A17.9Physical constants F_0^+ A17.9Physical constant 20° CkF,20N/A97Voltage constantkEVs/m32.3Motor constant at 20° CkSTR,20 Ω 0.7Phase inductanceLSTRmH7.9Attraction forceFAN13730Thermal time constantTMmm23Mass primary sectionmp.pkg24Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp.pkg24Mass as condary section with cooling sectionsmS,pkg2.6Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW65Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta TP,H$ bar0.86Primary section neorerMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW65Pressure dropApp.Pbar0.79Secondary section cooler dataMaximum heat outputGP,P,MAXW65 <tr< td=""><td>Rated data</td><td></td><td></td><td></td></tr<>	Rated data			
Rated currentINA25.3Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MAX,FN}$ m/min297Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W1990Limiting dataFMAXN6900Maximum thrustFMAXA78.3Maximum speed at maximum thrustIMAXA78.3Maximum electric power inputPEL.MAXW33500Stall thrustFo*N1732Stall currentIo*PEL.MAXW33500Physical constantsFo*N1732Power constant at 20° CkF_20N/A97Voltage constantkEVs/m32.3Motor winding resistance at 20° CkR_20N/ \sqrt{W} 64.8Motor winding resistance at 20° CKSTR_20N/ \sqrt{W} 64.8Motor winding resistance at 20° CKSTR_20N/ \sqrt{W} 64.8Motor winding resistance at 20° CKg22.2MMPhase inductanceLSTRmH7.9Attraction forceFAN13730Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmmm23Mass sprimary section with precision coolermSkg2.4Mass sort a secondary section with cooling sectionsmSkg2.6Primary section main cooler data $V_{P,H,MAX}$ W1995Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW65Pressure dropApp.Pbar0.79Secondary section cooling data <td>Rated thrust</td> <td>F_N</td> <td>Ν</td> <td>2450</td>	Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	2450
Maximum speed at rated thrust Rated power loss $V_{MAX,FN}$ P/VNm/min297 1990Limiting data $P_{V,N}$ 1990Limiting data </td <td>Rated current</td> <td>I_N</td> <td>A</td> <td>25.3</td>	Rated current	I _N	A	25.3
Rated power loss P_{VN} W1990Limiting dataMaximum thrust F_{MAX} N6900Maximum currentIMAXA78.3Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min125Maximum electric power input PEL,MAX W33500Stall turust F_0^* N1732Stall currentIg*A17.9Physical constants F_0^* N97Voltage constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ N/A97Voltage constant at 20° CKM,20N/A/W64.8Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.7Phase inductanceLSTRmH7.9Attraction forceFAN13730Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmgkg2.4Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermg, kg2.4Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmg, Pkg2.6Primary section main cooler data V_{P,H,MIN V_{min} 5Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W1995Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,P,MIN V_{min} 5Pressure dropApp_Pbar0.79Secondary section cooling dataPressure drop per coupling point Δ_{PS} bar0.14Pressure drop per coupling point Δ_{PKV} bar0.65 </td <td>Maximum speed at rated thrust</td> <td>V_{MAX,FN}</td> <td>m/min</td> <td>297</td>	Maximum speed at rated thrust	V _{MAX,FN}	m/min	297
Limiting dataMaximum thrust F_{MAX} N6900Maximum current I_{MAX} A78.3Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min125Maximum electric power input $PE_{L,MAX}$ W33500Stall thrust F_0^* N1722Stall current I_0^* A17.9Physical constantPower constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ N/A97Voltage constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ N/A97Voltage constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ N/A97Voltage constant at 20° CRSTR,20Q0.7Phase inductanceLSTRmH7.9Attraction forceFAN13730Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmpkg24Mass primary sectionmpkg24Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermp,pkg2.6Primary section main cooler dataFrimary section precision cooler dataTerssure drop $\Delta p_P, H_{MIN}$ V_{min} 5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K5.7Pressure drop per cooling data V_{P,P,MIN V_{min} 5Pressure drop Δp_P bar 0.79Secondary section cooling dataPressure drop per cooling istibutor Δp_{KS} Δp_{KS} Δar Pressure drop	Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	1990
Maximum thrust F_{MAX} N6900Maximum currentIMAXA78.3Maximum geed at maximum thrustVMAX,FMAXm/min125Maximum electric power inputPELMAXW35500Stall thrustF0*N1732Stall currentIp*A17.9Physical constant at 20° CKF,20N/A97Voitage constant at 20° CKEVs/m32.3Motor constant at 20° CKB,20N/ \sqrt{W} 64.8Motor vinding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20Q0.7Phase inductanceLSTRmH7.9Attraction forceFAN13730Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary section with precision coolermp,pkg2.4Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms,pkg2.6Primary section main cooler dataPrimary section precision cooler data $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K5.7Pressure drop $\Delta P_P,H$ bar0.86Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output Q_P,P,MAX W65Pressure drop $\Delta P_P,P$ bar0.79Secondary section cooling dataVS/MINVmin5Pressure drop per cooling dataVS/MINVimin5Pressure drop per coupling point ΔP_K_N bar0.46	Limiting data			
Maximum currentIMAXA78.3Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min125Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W33500Stall thrust F_0^* N17.32Itrust I_0^* A17.9Physical constantsPower constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/A97Voltage constant k_E Vs/m 32.3Motor constant at 20° C $k_{M,20}$ N/\sqrt{W} 64.8Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω 0.7Phase inductance L_{STR} mH7.9Attraction force F_A N13730Thermal time constant T_H s120Pole width T_M mm23Mass of the primary section with precision cooler m_P,P kg24Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections m_S,P kg2.6Primary section main cooler data $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W1995Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_P,H$ ΔT 5.7App,Hbar0.86 $\Delta P_P,P$ bar0.79Secondary section cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W180Recommended min. flow rate V_{S,MIN V_{min} 5Pressure drop $\Delta P_P,P$ bar0.79Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_K_S bar<	Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	6900
Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min125Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W33500Stall thrust F_0^* N1732Stall current I_0^* A17.9Physical constantsPower constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/A97Voltage constant k_E $V_{S/m}$ 32.3Motor constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/\sqrt{W} 64.8Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.7Phase inductanceLSTRmH7.9Attraction forceFAN13730Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmm23mpMass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg24Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,pkg2.6Primary section main cooler data $M_{P,H,MAX}$ W1995Maximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W1995Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,H,MIN V_{min} 5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K5.7Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.79Secondary section cooler data V_{S,MIN V_{min} 5Pressure drop per cooling data $M_{S,MIN}$ W_{min} 5Pressure drop per cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ W_{min} 5Pressure drop per coopling joint Δp_{KS} bar0.47	Maximum current	IMAX	А	78.3
Maximum electric power input Stall thrust $P_{EL,MAX}$ F0* Ig*W33500 NStall thrust Stall current F_0^* Ig*N1732 A1732 Ig*Physical constantsIg*A17.9Power constant at 20° C Voltage constant Motor constant at 20° CkF.20 KEN/A97 Vs/m_Stall currentkEVs/m_32.3Motor constant at 20° CKF.20 KEN/ \sqrt{W} 64.8Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR.20 LSTRQ0.7Phase inductanceLSTRmH7.9Attraction forceFAN13730Thermal time constantTMmm23Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg24Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermp,pkg2.4Maxis of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,pkg2.6Primary section main cooler data V_{P,H,MIN Vimin5AC TP,HK5.7200.86Primary section precision cooler data V_{P,P,MIN Vimin5Accommended min. flow rate $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W180Pressure dropApp,pbar0.79Secondary section cooling dataVinin5Pressure dropApp,NVimin5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling ApsApsbar0.47	Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	125
Stall thrust Stall current F_0^* N1732 10*Physical constantsPower constant at 20° CkF_20N/A97Voltage constantkEVs/m32.3Motor constant at 20° CkM,20N/ \sqrt{W} 64.8Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.7Phase inductanceLSTRmH7.9Attraction forceFAN13730Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass of the primary sectionmpkg24Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg24Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg2.6Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW1995Recommended min. flow rateVP,H,MINUmin5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta TP,H$ K5.7Pressure drop $\Delta PD,P$ bar0.36Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW65Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINUmin5Arge of opApp_Pbar0.79Secondary section cooling dataVS,MINVmin5Pressure dropApSbar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributorApsbar0.47	Maximum electric power input	P _{EL.MAX}	W	33500
Stall current I_0^* A17.9Physical constantsPower constant at 20° CkF,20N/A97Voltage constantkEVs/m32.3Motor constant at 20° CRA,20N/ \sqrt{V} 64.8Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.7Phase inductanceLSTRmH7.9Attraction forceFAN13730Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmpkg22.2Mass primary sectionmp,Pkg24Mass of the primary section with precision coolermS,Pkg2.4Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg2.6Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW1995Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K5.7Pressure drop $\Delta pP,P,MAX$ W65Primary section precision cooler datamaximum heat output0.79Secondary section cooling dataQS,MAXW65Pressure drop $\Delta pP,P$ bar0.79Secondary section cooling dataQS,MAXW180Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.47	Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	1732
Physical constantsPower constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/A 97Voltage constant k_E Vs/m 32.3Motor constant at 20° C $k_{M,20}$ $N'\sqrt{W}$ 64.8Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω 0.7Phase inductance L_{STR} mH7.9Attraction force FA N13730Thermal time constant t_{TH} s120Pole widthTMmm23Mass of the primary sectionmp.kg24Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermp.pkg2.4Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS.pkg2.6Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQp.H.MAXW1995Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,P,MIN $Vmin$ 5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ k5.7Pressure drop $\Delta p_P,P$ bar0.79Secondary section cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W180Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W180Pressure drop Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.47	Stall current	l ₀ *	А	17.9
Power constant at 20° Ck _{F,20} N/A97Voltage constantk _E Vs/m32.3Motor constant at 20° Ck _{M,20} N/ \sqrt{W} 64.8Motor winding resistance at 20° CR _{STR,20} Ω 0.7Phase inductanceL _{STR} mH7.9Attraction forceFAN13730Thermal time constantt _{TH} s120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg24Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg24Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms_pkg2.6Primary section main cooler data $W_{P,H,MAX}$ W1995Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar0.86Primary section precision cooler data $V_{P,P,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K5.7Pressure drop $\Delta p_P, P$ bar0.86Primary section cooler data $V_{P,P,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Secondary section cooler data $V_{P,P,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Pressure drop $\Delta p_P, P$ bar0.79Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ W 180Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KV} bar0.65	Physical constants			
Voltage constantkEVs/m32.3Motor constant at 20° CkM,20N/ \sqrt{W} 64.8Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.7Phase inductanceLSTRmH7.9Attraction forceFAN13730Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg24Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg24Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg2.6Primary section main cooler data $\Phi_{P,H,MAX}$ W1995Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta TP,H$ K5.7Pressure dropDP,Hbar0.86Primary section cooler data $\Delta p_P,H$ K5.7Pressure drop $\Delta pP,H$ bar0.79Secondary section cooler data V_{P,P,MIN V_{min} 5Pressure drop $\Delta p_P,P$ bar0.79Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Pressure drop Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{K_N} bar0.65	Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	97
Motor constant at 20° CkM,20 N/\sqrt{W} 64.8Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.7Phase inductanceLSTRmH7.9Attraction forceFAN13730Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg22.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,Pkg24Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg2.6Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW1995Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K5.7Pressure drop $\Delta pP,H$ bar0.86Primary section cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW65Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta P_P,H$ bar0.79Secondary section cooler dataVinnin5App_Pbar0.792Secondary section cooling dataVinnin5Maximum heat outputQS,MAXW180Recommended min. flow rateVS,MINVinin5Pressure dropApp_Pbar0.79Secondary section cooling dataVis,MINVinin5Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingApsbar0.14Pressure drop per coupling pointApkbar0.65	Voltage constant	kE	Vs/m	32.3
Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω0.7Phase inductance L_{STR} mH7.9Attraction force F_A N13730Thermal time constant t_{TH} s120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg22.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp, pkg2.4Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS, pkg2.6Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W1995Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K5.7Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar0.86Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W65Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.79Secondary section cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W180Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.79Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W180Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per couplid goint Δp_{KV} bar0.65	Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	64.8
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c } Phase inductance & L_{STR} & mH & 7.9 \\ Attraction force & F_A & N & 13730 \\ Thermal time constant & t_{TH} & s & 120 \\ Pole width & T_M & mm & 23 \\ Mass primary section & mp & kg & 22.2 \\ Mass of the primary section with precision cooler & mp,p & kg & 24 \\ Mass secondary section with cooling sections & ms,p & kg & 2.4 \\ Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections & ms,p & kg & 2.6 \\ \hline Primary section main cooler data & & & \\ Maximum heat output & Qp,H,MAX & W & 1995 \\ Recommended min. flow rate & Vp,H,MIN & Umin & 5 \\ Cooling medium temperature increase & \Delta Tp,H & K & 5.7 \\ Pressure drop & \Delta pp,H & bar & 0.86 \\ \hline Primary section precision cooler data & & & \\ \hline Maximum heat output & Qp,P,MAX & W & 65 \\ ressure drop & \Delta pp,P & bar & 0.79 \\ \hline Secondary section cooling data & & & \\ \hline Maximum heat output & Q_{S,MAX} & W & 180 \\ Recommended min. flow rate & Vp,NIN & Umin & 5 \\ Pressure drop & \Delta pp,P & bar & 0.14 \\ Pressure drop per combi distributor & \Delta p_{KS} & bar & 0.47 \\ \hline \end{array}$	Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	0.7
Attraction force F_A N13730Thermal time constant t_{TH} s120Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary section m_P kg22.2Mass of the primary section with precision cooler m_P,P kg24Mass secondary section with cooling sections m_S,P kg2.4Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg2.6Primary section main cooler data W_S,P W1995Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,H,MAX}$ W1995Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K5.7Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar0.86Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W65Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.79Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W180Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KS} bar0.47	Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	7.9
Thermal time constant t_{TH} s120Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary section m_P kg22.2Mass of the primary section with precision cooler m_P,P kg24Mass secondary section with cooling sections m_S kg2.4Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg2.6Primary section main cooler data W 1995Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,H,MAX}$ W 1995Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K5.7Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar0.86Primary section precision cooler data $V_{P,P,MAX}$ W 65Secondary section cooling data $V_{P,P,MAX}$ W 65Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ V 180Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.79Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_K_V bar0.14Pressure drop per coupling point $\Delta p_K $ bar0.47	Attraction force	F _A	Ν	13730
Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary sectionmpkg22.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg24Mass secondary section with cooling sectionsmSkg2.4Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,pkg2.6Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW1995Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}P,H,MIN$ I/min5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta TP,H$ K5.7Pressure drop $\Delta pP,H$ bar0.86Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW65Pressure drop $\Delta pP,P$ bar0.79Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat outputQS,MAXW180Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}S,MIN$ I/min5Pressure drop ΔpS bar0.14Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling ΔpS bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor ΔpKV bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point ΔpKS bar0.47	Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
Mass primary section m_P kg22.2Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $m_{P,P}$ kg24Mass secondary section m_S kg2.4Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg2.6Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W1995Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ l/min5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K5.7Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar0.86Primary section precision cooler data $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min5Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.79Secondary section cooling data $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ l/min5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KV} bar0.47	Pole width	т _М	mm	23
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $m_{P,P}$ kg24Mass secondary section m_S kg2.4Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg2.6Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W1995Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ l/min5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K5.7Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar0.86Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W65Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.79Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W180Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ l/min5Pressure drop Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.47	Mass primary section	m _P	kg	22.2
Mass secondary sectionmgkg2.4Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmg, Pkg2.6Primary section main cooler dataQP,H,MAXW1995Maximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW1995Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ l/min5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K5.7Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar0.86Primary section precision cooler dataW65Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW65Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.79Secondary section cooling dataQS,MAXW180Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ l/min5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_KV bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.47	Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	24
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg2.6Primary section main cooler data $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W1995Maximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MIN}$ $Vmin$ 5Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ $Vmin$ 5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K5.7Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar0.86Primary section precision cooler dataW65Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W65Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ $Vmin$ 5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.79Secondary section cooling dataW180Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W180Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ $Vmin$ 5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.47	Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	2.4
Primary section main cooler data QP,H,MAX W 1995 Maximum heat output VP,H,MIN I/min 5 Recommended min. flow rate ΔTP,H K 5.7 Cooling medium temperature increase ΔTP,H K 5.7 Pressure drop ΔPP,H bar 0.86 Primary section precision cooler data Maximum heat output QP,P,MAX W 65 Recommended min. flow rate ÝP,P,MIN I/min 5 Pressure drop ΔpP,P bar 0.79 Secondary section cooling data Maximum heat output QS,MAX W 180 Recommended min. flow rate ÝS,MIN I/min 5 Pressure drop ΔpS bar 0.14 Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling ΔpS bar 0.14 Pressure drop per combi distributor ΔpKV bar 0.65 Pressure drop per coupling point ΔpKS bar 0.47	Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	2.6
Maximum heat output Recommended min. flow rateQP,H,MAX VP,H,MINW1995Cooling medium temperature increase Pressure dropΔTP,HK5.7Pressure dropΔpP,Hbar0.86Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output Recommended min. flow rateQP,P,MAX VP,P,MINW65Pressure dropΔpP,Pbar0.79Secondary section cooling dataV180Maximum heat output Recommended min. flow rateQS,MAX VS,MINW180Maximum heat output Recommended min. flow rateQS,MAX VS,MINW180Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Pressure drop per combi distributorΔpKV DarDar0.14Pressure drop per coupling pointΔpKSDar0.47	Primary section main cooler data			
Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ I/min5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K5.7Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar0.86Primary section precision cooler dataVImin5Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W65Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ I/min5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.79Secondary section cooling dataV180Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W180Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.47	Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	1995
$\begin{array}{c c} Cooling medium temperature increase \\ Pressure drop & \Delta T_{P,H} & bar & 0.86 \\ \hline \\ \hline \\ Pressure drop & Dep_{,H} & bar & 0.86 \\ \hline \\ \hline \\ Primary section precision cooler data & & & & \\ \hline \\ Maximum heat output & Q_{P,P,MAX} & W & 65 \\ Recommended min. flow rate & V_{P,P,MIN} & V'min & 5 \\ Pressure drop & \Delta p_{P,P} & bar & 0.79 \\ \hline \\ \hline \\ Secondary section cooling data & & & \\ \hline \\ Maximum heat output & Q_{S,MAX} & W & 180 \\ Recommended min. flow rate & V_{S,MIN} & V'min & 5 \\ Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling \\ Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling \\ Pressure drop per combi distributor & \Delta p_{KV} & bar & 0.65 \\ Pressure drop per coupling point & \Delta p_{KS} & bar & 0.47 \\ \hline \end{array}$	Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	5
Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar0.86Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W65Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.79Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W180Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ l/min5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.47	Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P.H}	к	5.7
Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W65Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ I/min5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.79Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W180Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.47	Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.86
$\begin{array}{c c} Maximum heat output & Q_{P,P,MAX} & W & 65 \\ Recommended min. flow rate & \dot{V}_{P,P,MIN} & l/min & 5 \\ Pressure drop & \Delta p_{P,P} & bar & 0.79 \end{array}$	Primary section precision cooler data			
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Maximum heat output	Q _{P.P.MAX}	W	65
Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.79Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W180Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.47	Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	5
Secondary section cooling data Maximum heat output Q _{S,MAX} W 180 Recommended min. flow rate VS,MIN I/min 5 Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling ΔpS bar 0.14 Pressure drop per combi distributor ΔpKV bar 0.65 Pressure drop per coupling point ΔpKS bar 0.47	Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.79
Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W180Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.47	Secondary section cooling data			
Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ I/min5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.47	Maximum heat output	Q _{S.MAX}	W	180
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.47	Recommended min. flow rate	V _{S.MIN}	l/min	5
Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.47	Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.14
Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar 0.47	Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.65
	Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.47

01.06



1FN3300-4WC00-0AA1 characteristics



500

Primary section main cooler characteristics



Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3450-2WA50-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	1930	
Rated current	I _N	A	8.6	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	112	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	1530	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	5180	
Maximum current	IMAX	A	25.3	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	30	
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	15940	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	1365	
Stall current	I ₀ *	A	6.1	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	225	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	75	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	58.2	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	5	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	59.3	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	10300	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	23	
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	15.9	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	17.1	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	3.8	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	4	
Primary section main cooler data		-		
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	1530	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	4	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	5.5	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.37	
Primary section precision cooler data		•		
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	35	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	4	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.34	
Secondary section cooling data		•		
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	125	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ́ _{S,MIN}	l/min	4	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.09	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.42	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.31	

01.06



1FN3450-2WA50-0AA1 characteristics







Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3450-2WB70-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	1930	
Rated current	I _N	A	15.2	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	235	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	1420	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	5170	
Maximum current	IMAX	A	45.1	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	102	
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	21330	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	1365	
Stall current	I ₀ *	A	10.7	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	127	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	42.4	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M.20}	N/√W	60.4	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	1.5	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	17.5	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	12240	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	23	
Mass primary section	mP	kg	15.9	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	17.1	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	3.8	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	4	
Primary section main cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	1420	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ӱ _{Р,Н,МIN}	l/min	4	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	5.1	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.37	
Primary section precision cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	35	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	4	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.34	
Secondary section cooling data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	125	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{S,MIN}	l/min	4	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.09	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.42	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.31	

01.06



1FN3450-2WB70-0AA1 characteristics







Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3450-2WC00-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	1930	
Rated current	I _N	А	18.8	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	275	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	1470	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	5180	
Maximum current	IMAX	А	55.3	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	120	
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	23090	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	1365	
Stall current	I ₀ *	А	13.3	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	103	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	34.3	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	59.4	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	1	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	11.8	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	10300	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	23	
Mass primary section	mP	kg	15.9	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	17.1	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	3.8	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	4	
Primary section main cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	1470	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ӱ _{Р,Н,МIN}	l/min	4	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	5.3	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.37	
Primary section precision cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	35	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	4	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.34	
Secondary section cooling data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	125	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ́ _{S,MIN}	l/min	4	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.09	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.42	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.31	



1FN3450-2WC00-0AA1 characteristics

Primary section main cooler characteristics



Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1**FN**3

15 Technical Data and Characteristics

1FN3450-2WE00-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	1930	
Rated current	I _N	А	33.8	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	519	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	1370	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	5180	
Maximum current	IMAX	А	99.7	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	240	
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	32650	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	1365	
Stall current	I ₀ *	А	23.9	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	57	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	19	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	61.5	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	0.3	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	3.6	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	10300	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	23	
Mass primary section	mP	kg	15.9	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	17.1	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	3.8	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	4	
Primary section main cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	1370	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ӱ _{Р,Н,МIN}	l/min	4	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	4.9	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.37	
Primary section precision cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	35	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	4	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.34	
Secondary section cooling data		-		
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	125	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ́ _{S,MIN}	l/min	4	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.09	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.42	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.31	

01.06



1FN3450-2WE00-0AA1 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3450-3WA50-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	T _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	N	2895	
Rated current	I _N	A	13.1	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	114	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	2390	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	7760	
Maximum current	IMAX	A	38.8	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	30	
Maximum electric power input	PEL,MAX	W	24680	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	2047	
Stall current	I ₀ *	A	9.3	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	220	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	73.4	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	69.8	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	3.3	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	37.9	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	15450	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	т _М	mm	23	
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	22.6	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	24.3	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	3.8	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	4	
Primary section main cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	2395	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ӱ _{Р,Н,МIN}	l/min	4.5	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	7.7	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.65	
Primary section precision cooler data			1	
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	55	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	4.5	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.55	
Secondary section cooling data	-		I.	
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	184	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ́ _{S,MIN}	l/min	4.5	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.12	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.53	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.39	



1FN3450-3WA50-0AA1 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1**FN**3

15 Technical Data and Characteristics

1FN3450-3WB00-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	2895	
Rated current	I _N	A	17.9	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	164	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	2250	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	N	7760	
Maximum current	I _{MAX}	A	52.7	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	62	
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	27510	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	N	2047	
Stall current	I ₀ *	A	12.6	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	162	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	54	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	72.1	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	1.7	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	19.5	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	15450	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	23	
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	22.6	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	24.3	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	3.8	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	4	
Primary section main cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	2245	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	4.5	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	7.2	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.65	
Primary section precision cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	55	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	4.5	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.55	
Secondary section cooling data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	184	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{S,MIN}	l/min	4.5	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.12	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.53	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.39	

01.06



1FN3450-3WB00-0AA1 characteristics

Primary section main cooler characteristics



Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1**FN**3

15 Technical Data and Characteristics

1FN3450-3WB50-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _Ν	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	2895	
Rated current	I _N	A	22.8	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	217	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	2230	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	7760	
Maximum current	IMAX	A	67.3	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	90	
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	31080	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	2047	
Stall current	I ₀ *	А	16.1	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	127	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	42.3	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	72.3	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	1	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	12	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	15450	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	т _М	mm	23	
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	22.6	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	24.3	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	3.8	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	4	
Primary section main cooler data		-		
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	2235	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P.H.MIN}	l/min	4.5	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P.H}	к	7.1	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.65	
Primary section precision cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P.P.MAX}	W	55	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	4.5	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.55	
Secondary section cooling data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{S.MAX}	W	184	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{S.MIN}	l/min	4.5	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.12	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.53	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.39	

01.06



1FN3450-3WB50-0AA1 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3450-3WC00-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	2895	
Rated current	I _N	А	28.1	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	275	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	2200	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	7760	
Maximum current	I _{MAX}	А	83	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	120	
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	34630	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	2047	
Stall current	I ₀ *	А	19.9	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	103	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	34.3	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	72.8	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	0.7	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	7.9	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	15450	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	23	
Mass primary section	mP	kg	22.6	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	24.3	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	3.8	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	4	
Primary section main cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	2205	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	4.5	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	к	7	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.65	
Primary section precision cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	55	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	4.5	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.55	
Secondary section cooling data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	184	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{S,MIN}	l/min	4.5	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.12	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.53	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.39	



1FN3450-3WC00-0AA1 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3450-3WE00-0AA1			
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
Limitations/secondary conditions			
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120
Rated data			
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	2895
Rated current	I _N	А	50.7
Maximum speed at rated thrust	V _{MAX,FN}	m/min	519
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	2060
Limiting data			
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	7760
Maximum current	I _{MAX}	А	149.6
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	240
Maximum electric power input	PEL,MAX	W	48970
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	2047
Stall current	l ₀ *	А	35.9
Physical constants			
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	57
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	19
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	75.3
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	0.2
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	2.4
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	15450
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
Pole width	т _М	mm	23
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	22.6
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	24.3
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	3.8
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	4
Primary section main cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	2060
Recommended min. flow rate	Ӱ _{Р,Н,МIN}	l/min	4.5
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	6.6
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.65
Primary section precision cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	55
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	4.5
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.55
Secondary section cooling data		T	- 1
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	184
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ́ _{S,MIN}	l/min	4.5
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.12
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.53
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.39

01.06



1FN3450-3WE00-0AA1 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3450-4WB00-0AA1			
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
Limitations/secondary conditions			
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120
Rated data			
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	3860
Rated current	I _N	A	23.8
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	164
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	3000
Limiting data			
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	10350
Maximum current	IMAX	A	70.3
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	62
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	36680
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	2729
Stall current	I ₀ *	A	16.9
Physical constants			
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	162
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	54
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	83.2
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	1.3
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	14.7
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	20600
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
Pole width	тм	mm	23
Mass primary section	mP	kg	30.9
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	33.1
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	3.8
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	4
Primary section main cooler data		-	
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	2995
Recommended min. flow rate	Ӱ _{Р,Н,МIN}	l/min	5
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	8.6
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	1
Primary section precision cooler data		-	
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	70
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	5
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.81
Secondary section cooling data		•	
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	242
Recommended min. flow rate	Ý _{S,MIN}	l/min	5
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.14
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.65
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.47



1FN3450-4WB00-0AA1 characteristics



Primary section main cooler characteristics



Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



Technical dataBrief designationUnitsValueLimitations/secondary conditions DC link voltage U_{ZK} V 600DC link voltage U_{QL} T_{VORL} *C 35Rated temperature T_N *C 120Rated data T_N N 3860Rated current I_N A 30.4Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{NA, FNN}$ m/min 217Rated over loss $P_{V,N}$ W 2980Limiting data F_{MAX} N 10350Maximum speed at maximum thrust I_{MAX} A 89.8Maximum electric power input $F_{L,MAX}$ N 215Stall current $P_{L,MAX}$ N 215Physical constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/A 127Voltage constant 420° C $k_{RT,20}$ N/A 127Voltage constant 420° C $k_{RT,20}$ N/V_W 33.5Motor winding resistance at 20° C $k_{R,20}$ N/V_W 33.5Motor soft and 120° C $k_{R,20}$ N/V_W 30.9Mass of the primary section with precision cooler m_P, R_S 4Plewwidth M_M m_M 90Mass of the primary section with cooling sections $m_S, P_{H,MNN}$ W Mass of the primary section main cooler data M_S M_S Mass of the primary section main cooler data M_S M_S Mass of the primary section main cooler data M_S M_S Maximum heat output <td< th=""><th colspan="4">1FN3450-4WB50-0AA1</th></td<>	1FN3450-4WB50-0AA1				
Limitations/secondary conditionsDC link voltage Water cooling intake temperatureUZK TVORLV °C600 °CRated temperatureTN°C120Rated trustFN NN3860 3860Rated urrentIN NA30.4Maximum speed at rated thrustVMAX,FNm/min217 MAX,FNRated power lossPV,NW2980Limiting dataImage at the system of the sys	Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
DC link voltageUZKV600Water cooling intake temperatureTvORL"C35Rated drustTN"C120Rated thrustFNN3860Rated durentINA30.4Maximum speed at rated thrustVMAX.FNm/min217Rated power lossPV.NW2980Limiting dataFMAXN10350Maximum thrustFMAXA89.8Maximum speed at maximum thrustMAX.FMAXm/min90Maximum electric power inputPELMAXM41440Stall currentIo*A21.5Physical constant at 20° CKF.20N/A127Voltage constantKEVs/m42.3Motor constant at 20° CKSTR.20Q0.8Phase inductanceLSTRmH9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp.kg33.1mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS.44Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP.P.MAXW2980Maximum heat outputQP.P.MAXW298033.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS.33.135.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS.36.637.6Primary section main cooler data </th <th>Limitations/secondary conditions</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th>	Limitations/secondary conditions				
Water cooling intake temperature T_{VORL} "C35 rC120Rated data	DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Rated temperature T_N "C120Rated toruentFNN3860Rated currentINA30.4Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MXX,FN}$ m/min217Rated power loss P_V W2980Limiting dataFMAXN10350Maximum speed at maximum thrustIMAXA89.8Maximum speed at maximum thrustIMAX,FMAXm/min90Maximum speed at maximum thrustFo*N2729Maximum electric power inputFo*N2729Stall currentIo*A21.5Physical constant tFo*N2729Stall currentIo*A21.5Power constant at 20° CKF,20N/A127Voltage constant tKEVs/m42.3Motor constant at 20° CRSTR,20D0.8Phase inductanceLSTRmH9Attraction forceFAN22600Thermal time constanttrHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass of the primary section with precision coolerms,pkg3.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms,pkg4Primary section main cooler dataVP,HMAXW2980Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Recommended min.flow rate <td>Water cooling intake temperature</td> <td>T_{VORL}</td> <td>°C</td> <td>35</td>	Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated dataRated thrustFNN3860Rated trustINA30.4Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MAX,FN}$ m/min217Rated power lossPV,NW2980Limiting dataFMAXN10350Maximum thrustIMAXA89.8Maximum speed at maximum thrustIMAXA89.8Maximum speed at maximum thrustVMAX,FMAXm/min90Maximum electric power inputPEL,MAXW41440Stall currentIo*A21.5Physical constantsFo*N/A127Voltage constant 20° CKF,20N/A127Voltage constant 20° CKF,20N/A42.3Motor constant at 20° CKB,20N/ \sqrt{W} 83.5Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20Q0Phase inductanceLSTRmH9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmmm23Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp, kg3.8Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms, kg3.8Primary section main cooler dataMP,MAXW70Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINUmin5Cooling medium temperature increaseATP,HK8.6Pressure dropApp,Pbar<	Rated temperature	T _N	°C	120	
Rated thrust F_N N3860Rated currentINA30.4Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MAX,FN}$ $m'min$ 217Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W2980Limiting dataMaximum thrust F_{MAX} N10350Maximum currentIMAXA89.8Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m'min90Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W41440Stall thrust F_0^* A21.5Physical constants I_0^{**} A21.5Physical constant at 20° CkF,20N/A127Voltage constantkEVs/m42.3Motor constant at 20° CkSTR,20 Ω 0.8Phase inductanceLSTRmH9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constantTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary section with precision coolermp,pkg3.1Mass secondary section with cooling sectorsmS,pkg4Primary section mith cooling sectorsmS,pkg4Primary section negret under the touput $\Omega_{P,P,MAX}$ W70Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,P,MIN Vmin5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ bar1Primary section negret temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.6Pressure drop $\Delta P_{P,P,MAX}$	Rated data				
Rated currentINA30.4Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MAX,FN}$ m/min217Rated power loss P_{VN} W 2980Limiting data F_{MAX} N10350Maximum currentIMAXA89.8Maximum speed at maximum thrust F_{MAX} N10350Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ W41440Stall thrust F_0^* N2729Stall current I_0^* A21.5Physical constant F_0^* N2729Stall current I_0^* A21.5Power constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/A127Voltage constant k_E $V_{S/m}$ 42.3Motor constant at 20° C $k_{R,20}$ N/ \sqrt{W} 83.5Motor constant at 20° C $k_{R,20}$ N/ \sqrt{W} 83.5Motor constant at 20° C $k_{R,20}$ N/ \sqrt{W} 83.5Phase inductanceLSTRmH9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constantTMmm23Mass primary section with precision coolermp.pkg33.1Mass secondary section with cooling sectionsmS_Rkg4Primary section main cooler data V_{P,H,MIN Vinin5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1Primary section nooling data $\Phi_{P,P,MAX}$ W2980Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W2980Recomm	Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	3860	
Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MAX,FN}$ $m'min$ 217Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W 2980Limiting dataFMAXN10350Maximum thrust F_{MAX} A89.8Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ $m'min$ 90Maximum electric power input PEL,MAX $M'M$ WStall thrust $Y_{MAX,FMAX}$ $M'M$ 2729Stall current I_0^* A21.5Physical constant 20° C $K_{F,20}$ N/A 127Voltage constant at 20° C $K_{M,20}$ N/\sqrt{W} 83.5Motor constant at 20° C K_{STR} M 20600Thermal time constant T_{TH} s 120Phase inductance L_{STR} MH 9Attraction force F_A N20600Thermal time constant T_{TH} s 120Pole width T_M mm 23Mass primary section with precision cooler m_P kg 33.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg 34.Primary section main cooler data $M_{P,H,MAX}$ W 2980Pressure drop $\Delta P_{P,H}$ K 8.6Pressure drop $\Delta P_{P,H}$ K 8.6Pressure drop $\Delta P_{P,P}$ M^{min} 5Secondary section cooler data $M_{S,S}$ $M'_{S,MIN}$ $M'_{S,MIN}$ Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W 70Recom	Rated current	I _N	A	30.4	
Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W2980Limiting dataMaximum thrustFMAXN10350Maximum currentIMAXA89.8Maximum speed at maximum thrustVMAX,FMAXm/min90Maximum electric power inputPEL.MAXW41440Stall thrustF0*A21.5Physical constantF0*A21.5Physical constantEVs/m42.3Motor constant at 20° CKF.20N/A127Voltage constantK2° CKM.20N/ \sqrt{W} 83.5Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR.20Q0.8Phase inductanceLSTRmH9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmp.pkg3.1Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermskg3.8Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS.p.pkg4Primary section main cooler dataVP.H.MINUmin5Primary section net cooler dataVP.P.MINUmin5Primary section net cooler dataVP.P.MINUmin5Secondary section cooling dataVP.P.MINUmin5Pressure dropApp.pbar0.81242Secondary section cooling dataVS.MINVmin5Pressure drop per combi distributorAps	Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	217	
Limiting dataMaximum thrustFMAXN10350Maximum currentIMAXA89.8Maximum speed at maximum thrustVMAX,FMAXm/min90Maximum electric power inputPEL,MAXW41440Stall thrustF0*N2729Stall currentIq*A21.5Physical constantPower constant at 20° CKF_20N/A127Voltage constant at 20° CKF_20N/A127Voltage constant at 20° CKG_20N/√W83.5Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20Ω0.8Phase inductanceLSTRmH9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm2333.1Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp.pkg33.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmg.pkg3.8Maximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2980Primary section net encreaseΔTP,HK8.6Pressure dropΔPP,Hb1Primary section cooler dataVP,P,MINI/minSecondary section cooler dataS31.1Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINI/min5Pressure dropΔPP,Pbar0.81Secondary section cooling dataVS,MINI/min <td< td=""><td>Rated power loss</td><td>P_{V,N}</td><td>W</td><td>2980</td></td<>	Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	2980	
Maximum thrust F_{MAX} N10350Maximum currentIMAXA89.8Maximum electric power inputPELMAXm/min90Maximum electric power inputPELMAXW41440Stall thrustF0*N2729Stall currentIo*A21.5Physical constant at 20° CkF.20N/A127Voltage constant at 20° CKF.20N/A42.3Motor constant at 20° CKB.20N/ \sqrt{W} 83.5Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR.20Q0.8Phase inductanceLSTRmH9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmp.pkg33.1Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermp.pkg3.8Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms.p.pkg4Primary section main cooler data V_{P,H,MXX W2980Pressure drop $\Delta P_{P,H}$ bar1Primary section cooler data V_{P,P,MIN I/min5Pressure drop $\Delta P_P,P$ bar1Secondary section cooler data V_{P,P,MIN I/min5Pressure drop $\Delta P_P,P$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling data $V_{P,NIN}$ I/min5Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ I/min5Seco	Limiting data				
Maximum currentImaxA89.8Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min90Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W41440Stall thrust F_0^* N2729Stall current I_0^* A21.5Power constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ N/A127Voltage constant K_{E} $V_{S/m}$ 42.3Motor constant at 20° C $K_{M,20}$ $N'\sqrt{W}$ 83.5Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω 0.8Phase inductance L_{STR} mH9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constantTMmm23Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp.Pkg30.9Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS.Pkg4Primary section main cooler data $M_{P,H,MAX}$ W2980Maximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W2980Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,H,MIN V_{min} 5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K 8.6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1Primary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Accommended min. flow rate $V_{P,RMX}$ W242Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.81Pressure drop Δp_{S} bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KS} bar0.47 </td <td>Maximum thrust</td> <td>F_{MAX}</td> <td>Ν</td> <td>10350</td>	Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	10350	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust $v_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min90Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W41440Stall thrust F_0^* N2729Identified constants F_0^* A21.5Physical constant st 20° CVoltage constant at 20° CkF_20N/A127Voltage constant at 20° CkG_20N/ \sqrt{W} 83.5Motor constant at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.8Phase inductanceLSTRmH9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass of the primary section with precision coolermskg3.1Maxis of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms_Pkg3.1Maximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2980Vp H,MINVmin555Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.6Pressure drop $\Delta p_P,P$ bar1Pressure drop $\Delta p_P,P$ Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Recommended min.flow rate $\Delta p_P,P$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat outputQS,MAXW242Pressure drop Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per compid idstributor Δp_K_S bar0.47	Maximum current	IMAX	A	89.8	
Maximum electric power input Stall thrust $P_{EL,MAX}$ F0*W41440 2729 4Stall thrust Stall current F_0^* N2729 2729 APhysical constants I_0^* A21.5Physical constantsPower constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/A127 Voltage constant keMotor constant at 20° C $k_{R,20}$ N/ \sqrt{W} 83.5Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω 0.8Phase inductance L_{STR} mH9Attraction force F_A N20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmp,pkg33.1Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermp,pkg3.8Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmg,pkg4Primary section main cooler data $V_{P,H,MAX}$ W2980Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W2980Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta P_P,H$ bar1Primary section precision cooler data $V_{P,P,MIN}$ V_{min} 5App,Pbar1242 $V_{S,MIN}$ Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta P_P,P$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Pressure drop ΔP_S bar0.14Pressure drop per coupling point ΔP_K_V bar0.47	Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	90	
Stall thrust Stall current F_0^* N2729 A21.5Physical constantsPower constant at 20° CkF_20N/A127Voltage constantkEVs/m42.3Motor constant at 20° CkM_20N/ \sqrt{W} 83.5Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.8Phase inductanceLSTRmH9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass of the primary sectionmpkg30.9Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg33.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms,pkg4Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2980Pressure dropATP,HK8.6Pressure dropApP,Hbar1Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINl/min5App,Pbar11Prisure dropMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW242Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINl/min5App,Pbar0.81242VSecondary section cooling dataVS34Maximum heat outputQS,MAXW242Pressure drop per meter	Maximum electric power input	P _{EL.MAX}	W	41440	
Stall current I_0^* A21.5Physical constantsPower constant at 20° CkF,20N/A127Voltage constantkEVs/m42.3Motor constant at 20° CRM,20N/ \sqrt{W} 83.5Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.8Phase inductanceLSTRmH9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmm2333.1Mass primary sectionmpkg30.9Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,Pkg33.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg4Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2980Kecommended min. flow rateVP,H,MINl/min5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta TP,H$ K8.6Pressure drop $\Delta pP,P$ bar1Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,P,MIN l/min5Dep.Pbar11Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,P,MIN l/min5Pressure dropbar0.813Secondary section cooling data <td colsp<="" td=""><td>Stall thrust</td><td>F₀*</td><td>Ν</td><td>2729</td></td>	<td>Stall thrust</td> <td>F₀*</td> <td>Ν</td> <td>2729</td>	Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	2729
Physical constantsPower constant at 20° Ck _{F,20} N/A127Voltage constantk _E Vs/m42.3Motor constant at 20° CK _{M,20} N/ \sqrt{W} 83.5Motor winding resistance at 20° CR _{STR,20} Ω 0.8Phase inductanceL _{STR} mH9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constantt _{TH} s120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmp.kg30.9Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp.kg3.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS.kg4Primary section main cooler data $M_{P,H,MAX}$ W2980Maximum heat outputQp.H,MAXW2980Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,P,MIN V_{min} 5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.6Primary section precision cooler dataV $V_{P,P,MIN}$ V_{min} Maximum heat outputQp.P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,P,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Decommended min. flow rate $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W242Pressure drop $\Delta p_P,P$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Agence mended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pr	Stall current	I ₀ *	A	21.5	
Power constant at 20° Ck _{F,20} N/A127Voltage constantk _E Vs/m42.3Motor constant at 20° Ck _{M,20} N/ \sqrt{W} 83.5Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.8Phase inductanceLSTRmH9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmp.Pkg30.9Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp.Pkg3.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS.Pkg4Primary section main cooler data $M_{P,H,MAX}$ W2980Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,H,MIN l/min5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.6Primary section precision cooler data $V_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min5Secondary section cooler dataMaximum heat outputQ.P.P.,MAXW70Pressure drop $\Delta p_P, p$ bar1Descondary section cooler dataMaximum heat outputRecommended min. flow rate $V_{P,P,MIN}$ W70Pressure drop $\Delta p_P, p$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat outputQ.S.MAXW242Recommended min. flow rateVS.MINWmin5Pressure drop per meter secondary section	Physical constants				
Voltage constantkEVs/m42.3Motor constant at 20° CkM,20N/ \sqrt{W} 83.5Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.8Phase inductanceLSTRmH9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg30.9Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg33.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg4Primary section main cooler dataVp,H,MAXW2980Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,H,MAX W2980Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.6Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQp,P,MAXW70Primary section precision cooler dataSecondary section precision cooler data1Primary section precision cooler data $\Delta p_{P,H}$ K8.6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1Primary section precision cooler dataVir,P,MINVirnin5Secondary section cooling data $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling dataVir,MINVirnin5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,Q}$ bar0.14Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_{S} bar0.47<	Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	127	
Motor constant at 20° CkM,20N/ \sqrt{W} 83.5Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.8Phase inductanceLSTRmH9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg30.9Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,Pkg33.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg4Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2980Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta TP,H$ K8.6Pressure drop $\Delta PP,H$ bar1Primary section cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta PP,P$ bar0.81Secondary section cooler dataScondary0.81Pressure drop $\Delta pP,P$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling dataQS,MAXW242Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{Y}_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling ΔPS bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor ΔPKV bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point ΔPKV bar0.47	Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	42.3	
Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20Ω0.8Phase inductanceLSTRmH9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg30.9Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg33.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms,pkg4Primary section main cooler datamsVP,H,MAXW2980Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta TP,H$ K8.6Pressure drop $\Delta PP,H$ bar1Primary section precision cooler dataTP,HK8.6Pressure drop $\Delta PP,H$ bar1Secondary section cooler dataSecondary section precision cooler dataV2,MINV/minMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Secondary section cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Secondary section cooling dataSecondary section cooling dataQS,MAXW242Maximum heat outputQS,MAXW242Recommended min. flow rateÝS,MINV/min5Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingApsbar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributorApkVbar0.65Pressure drop per coupling pointApkVbar0.47	Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	83.5	
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	0.8	
Attraction force F_A N20600Thermal time constant t_{TH} s120Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary sectionmpkg30.9Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp, pkg33.1Mass secondary section with cooling sectionsmskg4Primary section main cooler datamskg4Primary section main cooler dataW2980Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,H,MNN}$ V/min5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQp,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat outputQ_S,MAXW242Maximum heat outputQ_S,MAXW242Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ J_{min} 5Pressure drop Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KS} bar0.47	Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	9	
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c } Thermal time constant & t_{TH} & s & 120 \\ T_M & mm & 23 \\ Mass primary section & m_P & kg & 30.9 \\ Mass of the primary section with precision cooler & m_P,P & kg & 33.1 \\ Mass secondary section with cooling sections & m_S,P & kg & 4 \\ \hline Primary section main cooler data & & & \\ Maximum heat output & Q_{P,H,MAX} & W & 2980 \\ Recommended min. flow rate & V_{P,H,MIN} & Vmin & 5 \\ Cooling medium temperature increase & \Delta T_{P,H} & K & 8.6 \\ Pressure drop & \Delta p_{P,H} & bar & 1 \\ \hline Primary section precision cooler data & & & \\ \hline Primary section precision cooler data & & & \\ \hline Primary section precision cooler data & & & & \\ \hline Primary section precision cooler data & & & & \\ \hline Pressure drop & & \Delta p_{P,H} & & & & & \\ \hline Pressure drop & & & & & & & \\ \hline Pressure drop & & & & & & & \\ \hline Maximum heat output & Q_{P,P,MAX} & W & 70 \\ Recommended min. flow rate & & & & & & \\ \hline Pressure drop & & & & & & & \\ \hline Maximum heat output & Q_{P,P,MAX} & & & & & & \\ \hline Maximum heat output & Q_{P,P,MAX} & & & & & & \\ \hline Maximum heat output & Q_{P,P,MIN} & & & & & & \\ \hline Maximum heat output & Q_{S,MAX} & & & & & & \\ \hline Maximum heat output & Q_{S,MAX} & & & & & & \\ \hline Maximum heat output & Q_{S,MAX} & & & & & & \\ \hline Maximum heat output & Q_{S,MAX} & & & & & & \\ \hline Maximum heat output & Q_{S,MAX} & & & & & & \\ \hline Maximum heat output & Q_{S,MAX} & & & & & & \\ \hline Maximum heat output & Q_{S,MAX} & & & & & & & \\ \hline Maximum heat output & & & & & & & \\ \hline Maximum heat output & & & & & & & & & \\ \hline Maximum heat output & & & & & & & & & & & \\ \hline Maximum heat output & & & & & & & & & & & & & & \\ \hline Maximum heat output & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & &$	Attraction force	F _A	Ν	20600	
Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary section m_P kg30.9Mass of the primary section with precision cooler m_P,P kg33.1Mass secondary section with cooling sections m_S,P kg3.8Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg4Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W2980Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{\nabla}_{P,H,MIN}$ l/min5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W70Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{\nabla}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W242Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{\nabla}_{S,MIN}$ l/min5Pressure drop Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.47	Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Mass primary section m_P kg 30.9 Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $m_{P,P}$ kg 33.1 Mass secondary section m_S kg 3.8 Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections m_S,P kg 4 Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W2980Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ l/min 5 Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K 8.6 Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar 1 Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W 70 Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min 5 Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar 0.81 Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W 242 Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ l/min 5 Pressure drop Δp_S bar 0.14 Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar 0.14 Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar 0.65 Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar 0.47	Pole width	тм	mm	23	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $m_{P,P}$ kg 33.1 Mass secondary section m_S kg 3.8 Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg 4 Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W 2980Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ $l'min$ 5 Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K 8.6 Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar 1 Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W 70 Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min 5 Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar 0.81 Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W 242 Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ l/min 5 Pressure drop Δp_S bar 0.14 Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_KV bar 0.65 Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KS} bar 0.47	Mass primary section	m _P	kg	30.9	
Mass secondary sectionmgkg3.8Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmg,Pkg4Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2980Recommended min. flow rateVP,H,MINl/min5Cooling medium temperature increaseΔTP,HK8.6Pressure dropΔPP,Hbar1Primary section precision cooler dataW70Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINl/min5Pressure dropΔPP,Pbar0.81Secondary section cooling dataQS,MAXW242Maximum heat outputQS,MAXW242Recommended min. flow rateVS,MINl/min5Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingΔpSbar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributorΔpKVbar0.65Pressure drop per coupling pointΔpKSbar0.47	Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	33.1	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsm _{S,P} kg4Primary section main cooler dataQP,H,MAXW2980Maximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2980Recommended min. flow rateVP,H,MINVmin5Cooling medium temperature increaseΔTP,HK8.6Pressure dropΔPP,Hbar1Primary section precision cooler dataV70Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINI/min5Pressure dropΔPP,Pbar0.81Secondary section cooling dataQS,MAXW242Maximum heat outputQS,MAXW242Recommended min. flow rateVS,MINI/min5Pressure dropApP_Sbar0.14Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingApSbar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributorApKVbar0.65Pressure drop per coupling pointApKSbar0.47	Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	3.8	
Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2980Recommended min. flow rateVP,H,MINI/min5Cooling medium temperature increaseΔTP,HK8.6Pressure dropΔPP,Hbar1Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINI/min5Pressure dropΔPP,Pbar0.81Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat outputQ _{S,MAX} W242Recommended min. flow rateVS,MINI/min5Pressure dropΔPSbar0.14Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingΔPSbar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributorΔPKVbar0.65Pressure drop per coupling pointΔPKSbar0.47	Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	4	
Maximum heat output Recommended min. flow rateQP,H,MAX VP,H,MINW2980Cooling medium temperature increase Pressure dropΔTP,H ΔPP,HK8.6Pressure dropΔPP,Hbar1Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output Recommended min. flow rateQP,P,MAX VP,P,MIN DPressure dropW70Secondary section cooling dataVP,P,MIN DPressure drop text on the section cooling dataV980Maximum heat output Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Pressure drop per combi distributorQS,MAX DPS DarW242Pressure drop per coupling pointDPS DAPS0.14Dessure drop per coupling pointDPS DAPKSDar0.47	Primary section main cooler data				
Recommended min. flow rateV̇ _{P,H,MIN} I/min5Cooling medium temperature increaseΔT _{P,H} K8.6Pressure dropΔp _{P,H} bar1Primary section precision cooler dataQ _{P,P,MAX} W70Maximum heat outputQ _{P,P,MIN} V/min5Recommended min. flow rateÝP,P,MINV/min5Pressure dropΔp _{P,P} bar0.81Secondary section cooling dataVS,MAXW242Maximum heat outputQ _{S,MAX} V242Recommended min. flow rateÝS,MINV/min5Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingΔp _S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributorΔp _{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling pointΔp _{KS} bar0.47	Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	2980	
Cooling medium temperature increase Pressure dropΔT P,HK8.6 barPrimary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output Recommended min. flow rate Pressure dropQP,P,MAX VP,P,MINW70 VorticeSecondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output Recommended min. flow rate Pressure dropQP,P,MAX Dop,PW70 VorticeSecondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output Recommended min. flow rate Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Pressure drop per combi distributor Pressure drop per coupling pointQS,MAX Dop S DarW242 DARMaximum heat output Recommended min. flow rate Pressure drop per coupling pointDap S DarDar DAR0.14 DARDessure drop per coupling pointDap S DarDar DAR0.65 	Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	5	
Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W70Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W242Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W242Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ l/min5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.47	Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P.H}	к	8.6	
Primary section precision cooler data Maximum heat output Q _{P,P,MAX} W 70 Recommended min. flow rate Ý _{P,P,MIN} I/min 5 Pressure drop Δp _{P,P} bar 0.81 Secondary section cooling data Maximum heat output Q _{S,MAX} W 242 Recommended min. flow rate Ý _{S,MIN} I/min 5 Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp _S bar 0.14 Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp _{KV} bar 0.65 Pressure drop per coupling point Δp _{KS} bar 0.47	Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	1	
Maximum heat output Recommended min. flow rateQP,P,MAX V'P,P,MIN ΔPressure dropW70Pressure dropΔpP,Pbar0.81Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output 	Primary section precision cooler data				
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Maximum heat output	Q _{P.P.MAX}	W	70	
$\begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c } \hline Pressure drop & $\Delta p_{P,P}$ & bar & 0.81 \\ \hline \hline Secondary section cooling data \\ \hline Secondary section cooling data \\ \hline Maximum heat output & $Q_{S,MAX}$ & W & 242 \\ \hline Recommended min. flow rate & $V_{S,MIN}$ & I/min & 5 \\ \hline Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling & Δp_S & bar & 0.14$ \\ \hline Pressure drop per combi distributor & Δp_{KV} & bar & 0.65$ \\ \hline Pressure drop per coupling point & Δp_{KS} & bar & 0.47$ \\ \hline \end{tabular}$	Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	5	
Secondary section cooling data Maximum heat output Q _{S,MAX} W 242 Recommended min. flow rate VS,MIN I/min 5 Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling ΔpS bar 0.14 Pressure drop per combi distributor ΔpKV bar 0.65 Pressure drop per coupling point ΔpKS bar 0.47	Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.81	
$\begin{array}{c c} \mbox{Maximum heat output} & Q_{S,MAX} & W & 242 \\ \mbox{Recommended min. flow rate} & \dot{V}_{S,MIN} & l/min & 5 \\ \mbox{Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling} & \Delta p_S & bar & 0.14 \\ \mbox{Pressure drop per combi distributor} & \Delta p_{KV} & bar & 0.65 \\ \mbox{Pressure drop per coupling point} & \Delta p_{KS} & bar & 0.47 \\ \end{array}$	Secondary section cooling data				
Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ I/min5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.47	Maximum heat output	Q _{S.MAX}	W	242	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.47	Recommended min. flow rate	Ý _{S.MIN}	l/min	5	
Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.47	Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.14	
Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar 0.47	Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.65	
	Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.47	

01.06



1FN3450-4WB50-0AA1 characteristics



1FN3





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1**FN**3

15 Technical Data and Characteristics

Technical dataBrief designationUnitsValueLimitations/secondary conditions U_{ZK} V 600DC link voltage U_{ZK} V_{C} 35Rated temperature T_{VORL} *C 120Rated temperature T_N *C 120Rated data T_N N 3860Rated current I_N A 37.5Maximum speed at rated thrust V_{NX} , FN m/min 275Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W 2940Limiting data F_{MAX} N 10350Maximum thrust I_{MAX} , FMAX M 110.6Maximum electric power input F_0^* N 2729Stall function F_0^* N 2729Stall function F_0^* N 265Physical constant 4.20° C $K_{F,20}$ N/A 103Voltage constant K_{E} $V_{S/m}$ 84.1Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω 0.5Phase inductance F_A N 20000Thermal time constant T_H s 120Pole width M_M M_M M_M 3.8Mass of har primary section with precision cooler $m_{P,P}$ k_g 3.3.1Mass of a secondary section with precision cooler $M_S, P, HMAX$ W 70Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ k_g 3.8Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections m_S,P M_T <t< th=""><th colspan="4">1FN3450-4WC00-0AA1</th></t<>	1FN3450-4WC00-0AA1						
Limitations/secondary conditions UZK V 600 DC link voltage TVORL "C 35 Rated trust TN "C 120 Rated trust FN N 3860 Rated current IN A 37.5 Maximum speed at rated thrust VMAX,FN m/min 275 Rated power loss PV,N W 2940 Limiting data FMAX N 10350 Maximum thrust FMAX N 10350 Maximum speed at maximum thrust VMAX,FMAX A 110.6 Maximum speed at maximum thrust F0* N 2729 Stall current Io* A 26.5 Physical constants F0* N 2729 Voltage constant at 20* C KF.20 N/A 103 Voltage constant KB VS/M 44.1 Motor constant at 20* C KF.20 N/A 103 Voltage constant Tm s 120 Phase inductance LSTR mH 5.9 Attractio	Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value			
DC link voltage U_{ZK} V600Water cooling intake temperatureTyORL"C35Rated temperatureTyORL"C120Rated dataRated durustFNN3860Rated duruntINA37.5Maximum speed at rated thrustFNN3860Limiting dataVMAX,FNm/min275Rated over lossP/V.NW2940Limiting dataFMAXN10350Maximum furustFMAXM10350Maximum electric power inputPEL.MAXW46170Stall thrustF0*N2729Stall currentI0*A26.5Power constant 120° CVoltage constantKF_20N/A103Voltage constant 120° CKF_20N/A103Voltage constant 120° CKM.20N/ \sqrt{VW} 84.1Motor constant 120° CKM.20N/ \sqrt{VW} 84.1Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR_20Q0.5Phase inductanceFAN20600Thermal time constantTMmm23Mass primary section with precision coolermp.kg33.1Mass so the primary section with cooling sectionsms.kg3.8Mass of the primary section with cooling sectionsms.kg3.8Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms.kg3.8Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	Limitations/secondary conditions						
Water cooling intake temperature T_{VORL} "C35Rated dateTN"C120Rated data </td <td>DC link voltage</td> <td>U_{ZK}</td> <td>V</td> <td>600</td>	DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600			
Rated temperature T_N "C120Rated dataFNN3860Rated thrustFNNA37.5Maximum speed at rated thrustVMXX,FNm/min275Rated power lossPV,NW2940Limiting dataFMAXN10350Maximum speed at maximum thrustFMAXN10350Maximum speed at maximum thrustFMAX,FMAXm/min120Maximum speed at maximum thrustFo*N2729Maximum electric power inputPEL,MAXW46170Stall currentIp*A26.5Physical constant tCkF,20N/A103Voltage constant 420° CKm,20N/ \sqrt{W} 84.1Motor constant at 20° CKM,20N/ \sqrt{W} 84.1Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20Q0.5Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.9Attraction forceFAN20600Thrum time constanttri<	Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35			
Rated dutaRated durustFNN3860Rated currentINA37.5Maximum speed at rated thrustVMAX,FNm/min275Rated power lossPV_NW2940Limiting dataMaximum thrustFMAXN10350Maximum speed at maximum thrustIMAXA110.6Maximum speed at maximum thrustVMAX,FMAXW46170Maximum electric power inputPEL.MAXM46170Stall thrustIg*A26.5Physical constantPower constant at 20° CKF,20N/A103Voltage constantkEVs/m34.3Motor constant at 20° CKM,20N/V84.1Motor winding resistance at 20° CF6AN20600Phase inductanceLLSTRmH5.9Attraction forceFAN20600Threm at time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmp.pkg33.1mass of a secondary section with precision coolerms.p.pkg3.8Maximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2940Viz,P,MINVirmin520001Primary section precision cooler dataGP,P,MAXW2940Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW2940Naximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW2940Maximum heat outputQP,P	Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120			
Rated thrust F_N N3860Rated currentINA37.5Maximum speed at rated thrustVMAX,FNm/min275Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W2940Limiting dataMaximum thrustFMAXN10350Maximum currentIMAXA110.6Maximum speed at maximum thrustVMAX,FMAXm/min120Maximum electric power inputPEL.MAXW46170Stall thrustF0*A26.5Physical constantsF0*A26.5Physical constant t20° CKF,20N/A103Voltage constant t 20° CKST,20Q0.5Phase inductanceLSTRMH5.9Attraction forceFAN20000Thermal time constantTMmm23Mass primary section with precision coolermp.pkg3.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS.pkg3.8Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS.pkg3.8Maximum heat outputQp.P,MAXW7070Recommended min. flow rateQp.P,MAXW70Pressure dropApp.Pbar0.81Adminum heat outputQp.P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rateQp.P,MAXW70Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingApp.bar0.14Pressure drop per meter secondary section c	Rated data						
Rated currentINA37.5Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MAX,FN}$ m/min275Rated power loss P_{VN} W 2940Limiting dataFMAXN10350Maximum thrustFMAXA110.6Maximum speed at maximum thrustIMAXA110.6Maximum electric power inputPELMAXW46170Stall thrustF0*N2729Stall currentI0*A26.5Physical constantPower constant at 20° CkF.20N/A103Voltage constant at 20° CKF.20N/A103Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR.20Q0.5Phase inductanceFAN20600Themal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary section with precision coolermp.pkg33.1Mass of the primary section with cooling sectionsmp.pkg34.4Primary section with cooling sectionsMass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmp.pkg3.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmp.pkg3.1Primary section neorer D_{P,P,MAX W2940Vis P.NINNMaximum heat output O_{P,P,MAX W70Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,P,MIN Vmin5Pressure drop $\Delta P_{P,P}$ bar0.81Pressure drop	Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	3860			
Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MAX,FN}$ m/min 275Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W 2940Limiting data F_{MAX} N10350Maximum thrust F_{MAX} N10350Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min120Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ M' 46170Stall thrust F_0^* N2729Stall current I_0^* A26.5Physical constantsPower constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ N/A 103Voltage constant 20° C $K_{M,20}$ N/\sqrt{W} 84.1Motor constant at 20° C K_{STR} mH5.9Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmm23mm23Mass of the primary section with precision coolermS, Pkg33.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS, Kg3.84Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,P,MIN V_{min} 5Cooling medium temperature increase ΔTP_{P} bar1Primary section cooling data $M_{P,P,MAX}$ W242Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W70Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,P,MIN}$ V_{min} 5	Rated current	I _N	A	37.5			
Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W2940Limiting dataMaximum thrust F_{MAX} N10350Maximum currentIMAXA110.6Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min120Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W46170Stall thrust F_0^* A26.5Physical constant V_0^* A26.5Physical constant at 20° CkF_20N/A103Voltage constant at 20° CKM_20N/ \sqrt{W} 84.1Motor constant at 20° CRSTR,20Q0.5Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.9Attraction forceFAN206600Thermal time constantTms120Pole widthTmmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg33.1Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermgkg3.8Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmg, pkg4Primary section main cooler data V_{P,H,MIN V_{min} 5Maximum heat outputQp, P, MAXW2940Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,P,MIN V_{min} 5Pressure dropApp_Hbar1Primary section rate V_{P,P,MIN V_{min} 5Pressure drop per cooling data V_{P,P,MIN V_{min} 5Pressure drop per cooling data $V_{P,N}$ W242Pressure drop per cooling da	Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	275			
Limiting dataMaximum thrust F_{MAX} N10350Maximum current I_{MAX} A110.6Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min120Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W46170Stall thrust F_0^* N2729Stall current I_0^* A26.5Physical constantsPower constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ N/A103Voltage constant K_E Vs/m34.3Motor constant at 20° C $K_{R,20}$ N/A103Voltage constant X_{Q0} N/ \sqrt{W} 84.1Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,200$ Ω 0.5Phase inductance L_{STR} mH5.9Attraction force F_A N20600Thermal time constant T_{TH} s120Pole width m_p kg30.9Mass primary sectionmpkg3.1Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermp,pkg3.8Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectons $m_{S,p}$ kg4Primary section nain cooler dataVP,H,MINVirmin5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1Primary section necese $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling dataVS,MINVirmin5Secondary section cooling data Δp_{S} bar	Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	2940			
Maximum thrust F_{MAX} N10350Maximum currentIMAXA110.6Maximum speed at maximum thrustVMAX,FMAXm/min120Maximum electric power inputPELMAXW46170Stall thrustF0*N2729Stall currentIo*A26.5Physical constant at 20° CkF,20N/A103Voltage constant at 20° CKF,20N/A103Voltage constant at 20° CKB,20N/ \sqrt{W} 84.1Motor constant at 20° CKB,20N/ \sqrt{W} 84.1Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20Q0.5Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary section with precision coolermp,pkg3.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,pkg4Primary section main cooler dataVP,H,MINI/min5Pressure dropApp,Hbar11Primary section neareATp,HK8.5Pressure dropApp,Pbar0.81Secondary section cooling dataVP,P,MINI/minMaximum heat outputQS,MAXW242Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingApp,Pbar0.81Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingApp,Sbar0.14	Limiting data						
Maximum currentIMAXA110.6Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min120Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ N46170Stall turust F_0^* N2229Stall current I_0^* A26.5Power constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ N/A103Voltage constant K_E Vs/m 34.3Motor constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ N/ \sqrt{W} 84.1Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω 0.5Phase inductance L_{STR} mH5.9Attraction force F_A N20600Thermal time constant T_M mm23Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $m_{P,P}$ kg33.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg4Primary section main cooler data $M_{P,P,MAX}$ W2940Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,P,MIN $Vmin$ 5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ bar1Primary section rate $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W70Naximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W 242Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,P,MIN $Vmin$ 5Pressure drop $\Delta D_P,P_P$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ $Vmin$ 5Pressure drop per combi distributor $Q_{P,RAX}$ W242Pressure drop per combi distributor	Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	10350			
Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min120Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W 46170Stall thrust F_0^* A26.5Physical constantsPower constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/A103Voltage constant k_{E} $V_{S/m}$ 34.3Motor constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/\sqrt{W} 84.1Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω 0.5Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.9Attraction force F_A N20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmpkg30.9Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp, Pkg3.3.1Mass secondary section with cooling sectionsms, pkg4Primary section main cooler data $M_{S,P}$ K8.5Pressure drop $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.5 $\Delta P_{P,H}$ KPressure drop $\Delta D_{P,P}$ bar1Primary section cooler data $M_{S,P}$ M_{S} $\Delta 242$ Vp,P,MIN V_{min} 5 $\Delta D_{P,P}$ $\Delta 242$ Pressure drop $\Delta P_{P,P}$ ΔP_{S} ΔP_{C} Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W 242Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Pressure drop $\Delta P_{P,P}$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Pressu	Maximum current	I _{MAX}	A	110.6			
Maximum electric power input Stall thrust $P_{EL,MAX}$ F0*W46170 NStall thrust stall current F_0^* N2729 APhysical constants I_0^* A26.5Power constant at 20° C Voltage constant $K_{F,20}$ K_{E} N/A103 Vs/m_Motor constant at 20° C Voltage constant $K_{F,20}$ $K_{M,20}$ N/A103 Vs/m_Motor vinding resistance at 20° C Phase inductance $K_{F,20}$ L_{STR} N/ \sqrt{W} 84.1Motor vinding resistance at 20° C Phase inductance $R_{STR,20}$ L_{STR} Q0.5Phase inductance L_{STR} mH5.99Attraction force Thermal time constant T_{H} $Mass primary section20600Thermal time constantT_{H}Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp, pkgMass of a secondary section with precision coolermsM_{S,P}kg3.8Maximum heat outputQ_{P,H,MAX}V_{P,H,MIN}W2940Primary section main cooler dataM_{P,H}Ap_{P,H}K8.5Pressure drop\Delta T_{P,H}Ap_{P,P}K8.5Primary section precision cooler dataW70Maximum heat outputQ_{P,P,MAX}V_{P,P,MIN}W242Primary section cooling dataV_{S,MIN}V_{MIN}S_{MIN}Pressure dropAp_{S}Ap_{S}Ap_{S}Ap_{S}Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingAp_{P,V}Ap_{S}A$	Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	120			
Stall thrust Stall current F_0^* N2729 A26.5Physical constants I_0^* A26.5Power constant at 20° CkF_20N/A103Voltage constantVs/m34.3N/VW84.1Motor constant at 20° CKM_20N/ \sqrt{W} 84.1Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.5Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg30.9Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg33.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg4Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2940Recommended min. flow rateVP,H,MINVmin5Pressure drop $\Delta pP,P$ bar1Primary section cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINVmin5Pressure drop $\Delta pP,P$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat outputRecommended min. flow rateVS,MINVminPressure drop ΔpS bar0.14Secondary section cooling dataVS,MINVmin5Pressure drop per combi	Maximum electric power input	P _{EL.MAX}	W	46170			
Stall current I_0^* A26.5Physical constantsPower constant at 20° CkF, 20N/A103Voltage constantkEVs/m34.3Motor constant at 20° CRAD, 20N/ \sqrt{W} 84.1Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR, 20Q0.5Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmm2390.9Mass primary sectionmpkg30.9Mass of the primary section with precision coolermS, Pkg3.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS, Pkg3.8Maximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2940Recommended min. flow rateVP,H,MINVmin5Primary section precision cooler dataTP,HK8.5Pressure dropApP,Hbar1Primary section precision cooler dataTP,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rateQP,P,MAXW70Pressure dropApP,Pbar1Primary section cooling dataMaximum heat output20, NAXWRecommended min. flow rateYS,MINVmin5Pressure dropApP,Pbar0.81Secondary section cooling dataYS,MINVmin5Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingApSbar0.14Pressure drop per combi d	Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	2729			
Physical constantsPower constant at 20° Ck _{F,20} N/A103Voltage constantk _E Vs/m34.3Motor constant at 20° CK _{M,20} N/ \sqrt{W} 84.1Motor winding resistance at 20° CR _{STR,20} Ω 0.5Phase inductanceL _{STR} mH5.9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constantt _{TH} s120Pole widthT _M mm23Mass primary sectionmpkg30.9Mass of the primary section with precision coolerm _P , Pkg3.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsm _{S,P} kg4Primary section main cooler data $M_{P,H,MAX}$ W2940Maximum heat outputQp,P,HMINV/min5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.5Pressure dropApp_Hbar1Primary section cooler dataMaximum heat outputQp,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,P,MIN}$ J/min5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta D_{P,P}$ bar0.81Secondary section cooler dataMaximum heat outputQs,MAXW242Maximum heat outputQs,MAXW242Pressure dropApsbar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributorApsbar0.14	Stall current	l ₀ *	A	26.5			
Power constant at 20° Ck _{F,20} N/A103Voltage constantk _E Vs/m34.3Motor constant at 20° Ck _{M,20} N/ \sqrt{W} 84.1Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.5Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmPkg30.9Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,Pkg33.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg4Primary section main cooler datamskg3.8Maximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2940Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,H,MIN V/min5Pressure drop $\Delta p_P,H$ bar1Pressure dropMaximum heat outputQp,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta p_P,P$ bar0.81Secondary section cooler dataMaximum heat outputMaximum heat outputQp,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta p_P,P$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat outputQp,MAXW242Recommended min. flow rate Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14 <td <="" colspan="3" td=""><td>Physical constants</td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td>	<td>Physical constants</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>			Physical constants			
Voltage constantkEVs/m34.3Motor constant at 20° CkM,20N/ \sqrt{W} 84.1Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.5Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg30.9Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp, Pkg33.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS, Pkg4Primary section main cooler data $M_{P,H,MAX}$ W2940Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta P_{P,H}$ K8.5Pressure drop $\Delta P_{P,H}$ bar1Primary section cooler data $M_{P,P,MAX}$ W70Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W70Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ Umin5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling data $M_{S,MIN}$ W242Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ V_{Min} 5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.14Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per coupling point ΔP_{V_V} bar0.65	Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	103			
Motor constant at 20° C $K_{M,20}$ N/\sqrt{W} 84.1Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω 0.5Phase inductance L_{STR} mH5.9Attraction force F_A N20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary section with precision cooler $m_P.P$ kg33.1Mass of the primary section with cooling sections $m_S.P$ kg3.8Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S.P}$ kg4Primary section main cooler data W 29402940Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,H,MIN}$ $V'min$ 5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1Primary section cooler data $V_{P,P,MIN}$ $V'min$ 5Secondary section cooler data $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1Primary section precision cooler data $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling data $Q_{S,MAX}$ W 242Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W 242Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ $V'min$ 5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_KV bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling opint Δp_{KV} bar0.47	Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	34.3			
Motor winding resistance at 20° CRsTR,20Ω0.5Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg30.9Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp, Pkg33.1Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS, Pkg4Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2940Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta TP,H$ K8.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta TP,H$ K8.5Pressure drop $\Delta PP,MAX$ W70Vi P,P,MINVmin53.1Secondary section cooler data $\Delta PP,P$ bar0.81Secondary section cooler dataQS,MAXW242Prissure dropApP,P,Pbar0.14Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingApSbar0.14Pressure drop per coupling opint $\Delta Pc,P$ bar0.47	Motor constant at 20° C	- k _{M.20}	N/√W	84.1			
Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.9Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg30.9Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp, pkg33.1Mass secondary section with cooling sectionsmS, pkg3.8Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS, pkg4Primary section main cooler data W 2940Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,H,MIN}$ $Vmin$ 5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1Pressure dropMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W70Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ $Vmin$ 5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling data $Q_{S,MAX}$ W242Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ V 242Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ $Vmin$ 5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_{S} bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{Nc} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{Nc} bar0.47	Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR.20}	Ω	0.5			
Attraction force F_A N20600Thermal time constant t_{TH} s120Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary section m_P kg30.9Mass of the primary section with precision cooler m_P, P kg33.1Mass secondary section with cooling sections m_S, P kg3.8Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg4Primary section main cooler data $m_{S,P}$ kg2940Maximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W 2940Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1Primary section precision cooler data $V_{P,P,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Secondary section cooler data $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Aximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W 242Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.47	Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	5.9			
Thermal time constant t_{TH} s120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg30.9Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg33.1Mass secondary section with cooling sectionsmskg3.8Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms,pkg4Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2940Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,H,MIN}$ l/min5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1Pressure dropMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat outputQS,MAXW242Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ l/min5Pressure drop Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_{S} bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KV} bar0.65	Attraction force	FA	Ν	20600			
Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary section m_P kg30.9Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $m_{P,P}$ kg33.1Mass secondary section with cooling sections m_S kg3.8Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg4Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W2940Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ $l'min$ 5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1Primary section precision cooler data $V_{P,P,MIN}$ $l'min$ 5Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W70Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ $l'min$ 5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ $l'min$ 5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KV} bar0.47	Thermal time constant	tтн	s	120			
Mass primary section m_P kg 30.9 Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $m_{P,P}$ kg 33.1 Mass secondary section with cooling sections m_S kg 4 Primary section main cooler data $m_{S,P}$ kg 4 Primary section main cooler data $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W 2940 Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ $l'min$ 5 Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K 8.5 Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar 1 Primary section precision cooler data $V_{P,P,MAX}$ W 70 Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ $l'min$ 5 Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar 0.81 Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ $l'min$ 5 Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar 0.14 Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar 0.47	Pole width	тм	mm	23			
Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,Pkg33.1Mass secondary sectionmSkg3.8Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg4Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2940Recommended min. flow rateV'P,H,MINl/min5Cooling medium temperature increaseΔTP,HK8.5Pressure dropΔpP,Hbar1Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rateV'P,P,MINl/min5Pressure dropΔpP,Pbar0.81Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output242Maximum heat outputQS,MAXW242Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingΔpSbar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributorΔpKVbar0.65Pressure drop per coupling pointΔpxcbar0.47	Mass primary section	mP	kg	30.9			
Mass secondary sectionmgkg3.8Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmg, pkg4Primary section main cooler dataQp,H,MAXW2940Maximum heat outputQp,H,MAXW2940Recommended min. flow rateVp,H,MINl/min5Cooling medium temperature increaseΔTp,HK8.5Pressure dropΔpp,Hbar1Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQp,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rateVp,P,MINl/min5Pressure dropΔpp,Pbar0.81Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat outputQs,MAXW242Recommended min. flow rateVs,MINl/min5Pressure dropΔpg,Pbar0.81Secondary section cooling dataQs,MAXW242Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingΔpgbar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributorΔpKVbar0.65Pressure drop per coupling pointΔpresbar0.47	Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P.P}	kg	33.1			
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsm _{S,P} kg4Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2940Recommended min. flow rateVP,H,MINI/min5Cooling medium temperature increaseΔTP,HK8.5Pressure dropΔpP,Hbar1Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rateV'P,P,MINI/min5Pressure dropΔpP,Pbar0.81Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat outputQS,MAXW242Recommended min. flow rateV'S,MINI/min5Pressure dropΔpSbar0.14Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingΔpSbar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributorΔpKVbar0.65Pressure drop per coupling pointΔpresbar0.47	Mass secondary section	mS	kg	3.8			
Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2940Recommended min. flow rateVP,H,MINI/min5Cooling medium temperature increaseΔTP,HK8.5Pressure dropΔPP,Hbar1Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW70Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINI/min5Pressure dropΔPP,Pbar0.81Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat outputQ _{S,MAX} W242Recommended min. flow rateVS,MINI/min5Pressure dropΔPP,Pbar0.81Secondary section cooling dataUmin50.81Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingΔpSbar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributorΔpKVbar0.65Pressure drop per coupling pointΔpKVbar0.65	Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	4			
Maximum heat output Recommended min. flow rate Cooling medium temperature increase Pressure dropQP,H,MAX 	Primary section main cooler data						
Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ I/min5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1Primary section precision cooler data $\Psi_{P,P,MAX}$ W70Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W70Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ I/min5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling dataW242Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W242Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KV} bar0.47	Maximum heat output	Q _{P.H.MAX}	W	2940			
$\begin{array}{c c} Cooling medium temperature increase \\ Pressure drop & \Delta T_{P,H} & K & 8.5 \\ \hline \Delta p_{P,H} & bar & 1 \\ \hline \end{array}$	Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P.H.MIN}	l/min	5			
Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1Primary section precision cooler data $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W70Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W70Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ I/min5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W242Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KV} bar0.47	Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P.H}	к	8.5			
Primary section precision cooler data Maximum heat output Q _{P,P,MAX} W 70 Recommended min. flow rate V	Pressure drop	Δp _{P.H}	bar	1			
Maximum heat output Recommended min. flow rate Q _{P,P,MAX} W 70 Pressure drop V _{P,P,MIN} I/min 5 Pressure drop Δp _{P,P} bar 0.81 Secondary section cooling data W 242 Maximum heat output Recommended min. flow rate V _{S,MIN} I/min 5 Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp _S bar 0.14 Pressure drop per coupling point Δp _{KV} bar 0.65	Primary section precision cooler data			•			
Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,P,MIN}$ I/min5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.81Secondary section cooling dataV242Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W242Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ I/min5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{VS} bar0.47	Maximum heat output	Q _{P P MAX}	W	70			
Pressure drop Δpp,p bar 0.81 Secondary section cooling data Maximum heat output Q _{S,MAX} W 242 Maximum heat output Q _{S,MAX} V 242 Recommended min. flow rate VS,MIN I/min 5 Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling ΔpS bar 0.14 Pressure drop per combi distributor ΔpKV bar 0.65 Pressure drop per coupling point Δpkc bar 0.47	Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P.P.MIN}	l/min	5			
Secondary section cooling data Maximum heat output Q _{S,MAX} W 242 Recommended min. flow rate VS,MIN I/min 5 Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling ΔpS bar 0.14 Pressure drop per combi distributor ΔpKV bar 0.65 Pressure drop per coupling point Δpws bar 0.47	Pressure drop	Δp _{P.P}	bar	0.81			
Maximum heat output Q _{S,MAX} W 242 Recommended min. flow rate VS,MIN I/min 5 Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling ΔpS bar 0.14 Pressure drop per combi distributor ΔpKV bar 0.65 Pressure drop per coupling point Δpvs bar 0.47	Secondary section cooling data		•	•			
Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ I/min 5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{K2} bar0.47	Maximum heat output	Q _{S MAX}	W	242			
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.14Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.65Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KV} bar0.47	Recommended min. flow rate	V _{S MIN}	l/min	5			
Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp _{KV} bar 0.65 Pressure drop per coupling point Δp _{KS} bar 0.47	Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.14			
Pressure drop per coupling point Anyce bar 0.47	Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δρ _{KV}	bar	0.65			
	Pressure drop per coupling point	Δρκς	bar	0.47			

01.06



1FN3450-4WC00-0AA1 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3

15 Technical Data and Characteristics

1FN3450-4WE00-0AA1			
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
Limitations/secondary conditions			
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated temperature	T _N	°C	120
Rated data			
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	3860
Rated current	I _N	А	67.6
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	519
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	2740
Limiting data			
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	10350
Maximum current	IMAX	A	199.5
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	240
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	65300
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	2729
Stall current	I ₀ *	A	47.8
Physical constants			
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	57
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	19
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	87
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	0.1
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	1.8
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	20600
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
Pole width	тм	mm	23
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	30.9
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	33.1
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	3.8
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	4
Primary section main cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	2745
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	5
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	7.9
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	1
Primary section precision cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	70
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	5
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.81
Secondary section cooling data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	242
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{S,MIN}	l/min	5
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.14
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.65
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.47

01.06



1FN3450-4WE00-0AA1 characteristics







Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3600-2WA50-0AA1			
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
Limitations/secondary conditions			
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120
Rated data			
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	2610
Rated current	I _N	А	12.4
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	120
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	2100
Limiting data			
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	6900
Maximum current	IMAX	А	36
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	36
Maximum electric power input	PELMAX	W	21940
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	1846
Stall current	l ₀ *	А	8.7
Physical constants			·
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	211
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	70.3
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	67.2
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	3.3
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	39.1
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	13730
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
Pole width	тм	mm	23
Mass primary section	mP	kg	22.2
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	24.7
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	4.6
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	5
Primary section main cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	2105
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	4.5
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	к	6.7
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.5
Primary section precision cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	45
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	4.5
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	0.84
Secondary section cooling data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	168
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{S,MIN}	l/min	4.5
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.02
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.13
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.14

1FN3600-2WA50-0AA1 characteristics Thrust characteristics







Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1FN3600-3WB00-0AA1			
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
Limitations/secondary conditions			
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120
Rated data			
Rated thrust	F _N	N	3915
Rated current	I _N	A	23.2
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	155
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	3000
Limiting data			
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	10350
Maximum current	I _{MAX}	A	67.3
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	58
Maximum electric power input	PEL,MAX	W	35400
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	N	2768
Stall current	I ₀ *	A	16.4
Physical constants			
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	169
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	56.4
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	84.4
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	1.3
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	16
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	20600
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
Pole width	тм	mm	23
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	31.5
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	33.4
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	4.6
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	5
Primary section main cooler data			1
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	2995
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	5.5
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	7.8
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	1.02
Primary section precision cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	65
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{Р,Р,МIN}	l/min	5.5
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	1.54
Secondary section cooling data		1	
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	246
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ́ _{S,MIN}	l/min	5.5
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.02
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.19
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.2


1FN3600-3WB00-0AA1 characteristics



Primary section main cooler characteristics



Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1**FN**3

15 Technical Data and Characteristics

1FN3600-3WC00-0AA1	1FN3600-3WC00-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value		
Limitations/secondary conditions					
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600		
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35		
Rated temperature	Τ _Ν	°C	120		
Rated data					
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	3915		
Rated current	I _N	A	35.7		
Maximum speed at rated thrust	V _{MAX,FN}	m/min	279		
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	2560		
Limiting data					
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	10430		
Maximum current	I _{MAX}	А	105.9		
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	127		
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	44620		
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	2768		
Stall current	I ₀ *	A	25.3		
Physical constants					
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	110		
Voltage constant	kE	Vs/m	36.5		
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	91.2		
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	0.5		
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	6.5		
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	24480		
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120		
Pole width	т _М	mm	23		
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	31.5		
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	33.4		
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	4.6		
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	5		
Primary section main cooler data		-			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	2565		
Recommended min. flow rate	Ӱ _{Р,Н,МIN}	l/min	5.5		
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	6.7		
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	1.02		
Primary section precision cooler data	- 1	•			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	65		
Recommended min. flow rate	ν _{Ρ,Ρ,ΜΙΝ}	l/min	5.5		
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	1.54		
Secondary section cooling data	1	•			
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	246		
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ́ _{S,MIN}	l/min	5.5		
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.02		
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.19		
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.2		

01.06

Motor thrust F_M in N



1FN3600-3WC00-0AA1 characteristics



1**FN**3

Primary section main cooler characteristics



Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



15 Technical Data and Characteristics

1FN3600-4WA30-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	5220	
Rated current	I _N	A	22.3	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	105	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	4230	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	13800	
Maximum current	IMAX	A	64.9	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	26	
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	41870	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	3691	
Stall current	I ₀ *	A	15.8	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	234	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	78	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	94.7	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	2	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	24	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	27460	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	т _М	mm	23	
Mass primary section	mP	kg	40.8	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	43.3	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	4.6	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	5	
Primary section main cooler data		-		
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	4235	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ӱ _{Р,Н,МІN}	l/min	6	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	10.2	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	1.55	
Primary section precision cooler data		•	1	
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	90	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	6	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	2.2	
Secondary section cooling data		•	- 1	
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	324	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ý _{S,MIN}	l/min	6	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.03	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.23	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.24	



1FN3600-4WA30-0AA1 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



15 Technical Data and Characteristics

1FN3600-4WB00-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	5220	
Rated current	I _N	A	30.9	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	155	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	4000	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	13800	
Maximum current	I _{MAX}	A	89.8	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	58	
Maximum electric power input	PEL,MAX	W	47190	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	3691	
Stall current	I ₀ *	A	21.8	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	169	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	56.4	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	97.5	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	1	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	12	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	27460	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	23	
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	40.8	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	43.3	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	4.6	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	5	
Primary section main cooler data			1	
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	3995	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	6	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	9.6	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	1.55	
Primary section precision cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	90	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{Р,Р,МIN}	l/min	6	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	2.2	
Secondary section cooling data		1		
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	324	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ́ _{S,MIN}	l/min	6	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.03	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.23	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.24	



1FN3600-4WB00-0AA1 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



15 Technical Data and Characteristics

1FN3600-4WB50-0AA1			
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
Limitations/secondary conditions			
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120
Rated data			
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	5220
Rated current	I _N	А	40.8
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	215
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	3810
Limiting data			
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	13800
Maximum current	IMAX	А	118.5
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	91
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	53200
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	3691
Stall current	I ₀ *	А	28.8
Physical constants			
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	128
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	42.7
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	99.8
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	0.5
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	6.9
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	27460
Thermal time constant	t _{тн}	s	120
Pole width	тм	mm	23
Mass primary section	mP	kg	40.8
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	43.3
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	4.6
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	5
Primary section main cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	3810
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	6
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	к	9.1
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	1.55
Primary section precision cooler data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	90
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	6
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	2.2
Secondary section cooling data			
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	324
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{S,MIN}	l/min	6
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.03
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.23
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.24

01.06



1FN3600-4WB50-0AA1 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



15 Technical Data and Characteristics

Technical dataBrief designationUnitsValueLimitations/secondary conditions DC link voltage U_{ZK} V 600DC link voltage U_{ZK} V 600Water cooling intake temperature T_VORL TC 120Rated temperature T_N $'C$ 120Rated data T_N N 5220Rated current I_N A 46.9Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MX,FNN}$ $m'min$ 254Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W 3510Limiting data F_{MAX} N 13800Maximum speed at maximum thrust I_{MAX} A 136.5Maximum electric power input F_0^* N 3691Stall function F_0^* N 3691Stall current I_0^* A 33.2Physical constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ N/A 111Voltage constant Z^*C K_{KE} N_{M} 111Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω 0.4Phase inductance F_A N 27460Thermal time constant T_H s 120Pole width T_M m_m R_3 Mass of the primary section with cooling sections m_S,P kg 4.3Mass of the primary section with cooling sections m_S,P kg 5.5Primary section main cooler data m_S,P_H,MN W_M 90Mass of the primary section matin cooler data M_S,MN	1FN3600-4WC00-0AA1			
Limitations/secondary conditionsDC link voltage Water cooling intake temperature Rated temperatureUZK TVORLV600 °CRated dataT°C120Rated thustFN NN5220Rated urrentIN Maximum speed at rated thrustFN NN5220Imiting dataFN VMAX,FNN13800Maximum thrustFMAX Maximum speed at maximum thrustN13800Maximum currentIMAX Maximum speed at maximum thrustFMAX VMAX,FMAXN13800Maximum speed at maximum thrustF0° MAXN3501Maximum speed at maximum thrustF0° MAXN3691Maximum speed at rate 20° CF0° MAXN332.2Physical constant 20° CKF,20 Motor constant at 20° CN/A111Voltage constant Motor constant at 20° CKF,20 MM,20 MI/VN/A111Voltage constant Motor constant at 20° CKF,20 MM,20 MIAN/A111Voltage constant Mass of the primary section Mass of a secondary section Mass of a secondary section Mass of a secondary section with precision cooler Mass of a secondary section with precision cooler Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections ms Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections ms Mass of a secondary section with precision cooler Mass of a secondary section with precision cooler Mass of a secondary section with precision cooler Mass of a secondary section man cooler dataM3505Primary section main cooler dataGP,P,MAX 	Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
DC link voltage U_{ZK} V 600 Water cooling intske temperatureTvORL*C35Rated depretatureTN*C120Rated dataRated thrustFNN6220Rated currentINA46.9Maximum speed at rated thrustYMAX,FNm/min254Rated currentYMAX,FNW3510Imiting dataImiting dataMaximum currentIMAXA138.00Maximum speed at maximum thrustFMAXN13800Maximum electric power inputPEL,MAXW55490Stall currentIn33.2Power constant at 20° CVoltage constantKF_20N/AVoltage constant111Voltage constant at 20° CKM2.0N/VMotor constant at 20° CRSTR_20Q0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.2Attraction forceFAN27460Thermal time constantTHs120Pole widthmmm23Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp.pkg4.6Mass of a secondary section with precision coolerms.p.kg5Primary section main cooler dataCP,H,MAXW3505Mass of the primary section with cooling sectionsms.p.kg4.6Mass of the primary section with cooling sectionmp.p.kg4.6Mass of a	Limitations/secondary conditions			
Water cooling intake temperature T_{VORL} "C35Rated dataT"C120Rated data </td <td>DC link voltage</td> <td>U_{ZK}</td> <td>V</td> <td>600</td>	DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Rated temperature T_N "C120Rated thrustFNN5220Rated thrustFNN46.9Maximum speed at rated thrustVMAX.FNm/min254Rated power lossPV.NW3510Limiting dataFMAXN13800Maximum speed at maximum thrustFMAXN13800Maximum speed at maximum thrustVMAX.FNAXm/min112Maximum speed at maximum thrustFo*N3691Stall current10*A33.2Physical constant at 20° CKF.20N/A111Voltage constant 420° CKM.20N/ \sqrt{V} 104Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR.20Q0.4Phase inductanceLSTRMH5.2Attraction forceFAN227460Thermal time constantTMmm23Mass primary sectionms.p.pkg43.3Mass of the primary section with precision coolerms.p.pkg5Primary section main cooler data $V_{P,H,MAX}$ W3505Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W3605Necommended min. flow rate $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W324Maximum heat output $Q_{P,MAX}$ W324Maximum heat output $Q_{P,MAX}$ W324Maximum heat output $Q_{P,S}$ bar0.23Pressure drop $\Delta P_{P,S}$ bar0.23Pressure drop per corbid istributor $\Delta $	Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated dutaRated thrust F_N N5220Rated current I_N A46.9Maximum speed at rated thrust $v_{MAX,FN}$ m/min254Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W3510Limiting dataIMAXN13800Maximum thrust F_{MAX} N13800Maximum speed at maximum thrust I_{MAX} A136.5Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W55490Stall thrust I_0^* A33.2Physical constants P_{CL} N/A111Voltage constant $k_{F,20}$ N/A111Voltage constant $k_{F,20}$ N/A111Voltage constant k_{E} $V_{S/M}$ 37.1Motor constant at 20° C $k_{M,20}$ N/ \sqrt{W} 104Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Q0.4Phase inductance L_{STR} mH5.2Attraction force F_A N27460Thermal time constant $m_{S,P}$ k_{S} 5Primary section with precision cooler $m_{S,P}$ k_{S} 4.6Mass of the primary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ k_{S} 4.6Maximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W3505Primary section precision cooler data $m_{S,P}$ k_{S} 4.6Maximum heat output $Q_{P,MIN}$ W_{M} 90Recommended min, flow rate $\Delta_{P,P,MIN}$ W 324	Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120
Rated thrust F_N N5220Rated currentINA46.9Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MAX,FN}$ m/min254Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W3510Limiting dataMaximum thrust F_{MAX} N13800Maximum currentIMAXA138.5Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min112Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W55490Stall thrust F_0^* A33.2Physical constants I_0^* A33.2Physical constant t20° CkF,20N/A111Voltage constantkEVs/m37.1Motor constant at 20° CkSTR,20Q0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.2Attraction forceFAN27460Thermal time constantTMmm23Mass primary section with precision coolermp,pkg4.6Mass of the primary section with cooling sectionsmS,pkg5Primary section main cooler datamp,pkg4.6Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW90305Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINWinin6Pressure dropApp,Pbar1.55Primary section cooling dataQP,P,MAXW324Maximum heat outputQS,MAXW324Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW324Maximum	Rated data			
Rated currentINA46.9Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MAX,FN}$ m/min254Rated power loss P_{VN} W 3510Limiting data F_{MAX} N13800Maximum thrust F_{MAX} N13800Maximum speed at maximum thrust I_{MAX} A136.5Maximum electric power input $PEL.MAX$ W55490Stall thrust F_0^* N3691Stall current I_0^* A33.2Physical constantPhysical constantKE_20N/A111Voltage constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/A111Voltage constant at 20° C $k_{R,20}$ N/ \sqrt{W} 104Motor winding resistance at 20° C $k_{STR,20}$ Ω Ω Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.2Attraction force F_A N27460Thermal time constant T_{TH} s120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary section with precision coolermp.Pkg4.6Mass of the primary section with cooling sectionsms.Pkg5Primary section main cooler data $T_{P,H}$ K8.4Asymum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W3055Primary section nearce $\Delta T_P, H$ bar1.55Primary section cooling data $\Delta P_P, P, MAX$ W324Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W324<	Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	5220
Maximum speed at rated thrust Rated power loss $v_{MAX,FN}$ $P_{V,N}$ m/min 254 3510 Limiting data $P_{V,N}$ W 3510 Limiting data F_{MAX} N13800Maximum trust I_{MAX} A136.5 $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min 112Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min 112 W $S5490$ Stall thrustStall thrust F_0^* N 3691 $S181$ Stall current I_0^* A 33.2 P Physical constant 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/A 111 $V_{S/m}$ 37.1 Motor constant at 20° C $k_{S,20}$ N/\sqrt{W} 104 M Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω 0.4 27460 Thermal time constant T_{H} s 120 P_{FA} Attraction force F_A N 27460 T_{H} Thermal time constant T_{H} s 120 P_{FA} Mass primary section with precision cooler m_p kg 4.6 Mass of the primary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg 5 Primary section main cooler data $V_{P,H,MIN}$ W 3505 Asimum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W 90 Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,P,MIN}$ W 1.55 Primary section cooling data $M_{S,MIN}$ W 324 Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W 90 <tr< td=""><td>Rated current</td><td>I_N</td><td>A</td><td>46.9</td></tr<>	Rated current	I _N	A	46.9
Rated power loss P_{VN} W3510Limiting dataMaximum thrustFMAXN13800Maximum currentIMAXA136.5Maximum speed at maximum thrustVMAX,FMAXm/min112Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W55490Stall currentIg*A33.2Physical constantsPower constant at 20° CkF.20N/A111Voltage constant at 20° CKM.20N/ \sqrt{W} 104Motor constant at 20° CRSTR,20Q0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.2Attraction forceFAN27460Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmp.pkg43.3Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermS, p.p.kgMaximum heat output $O_{P,H,MAX}$ W3505Primary section main cooler data V_{P,H,MIN l/min6Attraction flow rate $\hat{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ l/min6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.4App_Pbar1.55Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W90Recommended min. flow rate $\hat{V}_{S,MIN}$ W324Pressure dropApp_Pbar0.23Pressure drop per coolini distributor Ap_S bar	Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	254
Limiting dataMaximum thrust F_{MAX} N13800Maximum current I_{MAX} A136.5Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min112Maximum electric power input $PE_{L,MAX}$ W55490Stall thrust F_0^* N3691Stall current I_0^* A33.2Physical constantPower constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ N/A111Voltage constant K_E Vs/m37.1Motor constant at 20° C $K_{R,20}$ N/ \sqrt{W} 104Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20Q0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.2Attraction forceFAN27460Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmpkg40.8Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp.pkg4.6Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms.p.pkg5Primary section main cooler dataPressure drop $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.4App.P $\Delta T_P,H$ K8.4App.P $\Delta T_P,MIN$ V_{min} 6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_P,H$ K8.4Pressure drop $\Delta p_P,P$ bar1.55Primary section cooler dataMaximum heat output Q_P,P,MIN V_{min} 6Pressure drop $\Delta p_P,P$ bar2.2 <t< td=""><td>Rated power loss</td><td>P_{V,N}</td><td>W</td><td>3510</td></t<>	Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	3510
Maximum thrust F_{MAX} N13800Maximum currentIMAXA136.5Maximum speed at maximum thrustVMAX,FMAXm/min112Maximum electric power inputPELMAXW55490Stall thrustF0*N3691Stall currentIp*A33.2Physical constant at 20° CkF,20N/A111Voltage constant at 20° CKF,20N/A111Motor constant at 20° CKB,20N/ \sqrt{W} 104Motor constant at 20° CKB,20N/ \sqrt{W} 104Motor constant at 20° CRSTR,20Q0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.2Attraction forceFAN27460Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary section with precision coolermp,pkg43.3Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms,pkg4.6Maximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW3505Primary section necrease $\Delta TP,H$ K8.4App-pbar1.552.2Secondary section cooler dataVP,P,MINVimin6Pressure drop $\Delta PP,P$ bar2.2Secondary section cooling dataVS,MINVimin6Pressure drop per complicationQS,MAXW324Recommended min. flow rateVS,MINVimin6Pressure drop per coupling pointAps <td>Limiting data</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	Limiting data			
Maximum currentIMAXA136.5Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min112Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W55490Stall thrust F_0^* N3691Ig* A 33.2Physical constantsPower constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/A111Voltage constant k_E Vs/m 37.1Motor constant at 20° C $k_{M,20}$ N/\sqrt{W} 104Motor constant at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω 0.4Lastraction force F_A N27460Thermal time constant t_TH s120Pole widthTMmm23Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $m_p.p$ kg 4.6Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg 5Primary section mult cooler data $\Delta P_{P,H}$ k 8.4Apressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ k 8.4Apressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar 1.55Primary section cooler data $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar 2.2Secondary section cooling data $Q_{S,MAX}$ W 324Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ $V_{S,MIN}$ $Jmin$ Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ $Jmin$ 6Aperator drop per combin distributor Δp_{S} Δar 0.23Pressure drop per combin distributor Δp_{KS} Δar 0.23Apressure drop per complicitibut	Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	13800
Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min112Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W55490Stall thrust F_0^* A33.2Physical constantsPower constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/A111Voltage constant k_E $V_{S/m}$ 37.1Motor constant at 20° C $k_{R,20}$ N/\sqrt{W} 104Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω 0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.2Attraction forceFAN27460Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmpkg40.8Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp, pkg4.6Maximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW3505Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW3505Primary section precision cooler data $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.4Accommended min. flow rate $\Delta P_{P,H}$ K8.4Accommended min. flow rate $\Delta P_{P,MAX}$ W90Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta P_{P,P}$ bar1.55Primary section cooling dataVirp, MINVirnin6Accommended min. flow rate $\Delta P_{P,P}$ bar2.2Secondary section cooling dataVirp, MINVirnin6Pressure drop ΔP_{S} bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor ΔP_K_S bar0.23Pres	Maximum current	IMAX	A	136.5
Maximum electric power input Stall thrust Stall current $P_{EL,MAX}$ F_0^* W55490 NStall current F_0^* A33.2Physical constantsPower constant at 20° C Voltage constant Motor constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ K_{E} N/A111 $Vs/m_$ Motor constant at 20° C Phase inductance $K_{F,20}$ $K_{M,20}$ N/ \sqrt{W} 104Motor winding resistance at 20° C Phase inductance $R_{STR,20}$ L_{STR} Q0.4Determine time constant Pole width T_{H} T_{H} s120Pole width Mass of the primary section Mass of a secondary section with precision cooler $M_{S,P}$ mg4.6Maximum heat output Recommended min. flow rate $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ $V_{P,H,MIN}$ W3505Primary section precision cooler data $M_{P,PH}$ K_{B} 8.44.6Pressure drop $\Delta_{P,P,H}$ M_{S} 8.44.6Primary section main cooler data $V_{P,H,MIN}$ V_{M} 3505Primary section precision cooler data $M_{P,P,H}$ K 8.44.6Pressure drop $\Delta_{P,P,H}$ M_{S} 8.44.6Pressure drop $\Delta_{P,P,MAX}$ W 90Prissure drop $\Delta_{P,P,MIN}$ V_{M} 6Pressure drop Δ_{P,P,MIN V_{M} 6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling $\Delta_{P,P,N}$ $\Delta_{P,S}$ Δ_{P} Pressure drop per coupling point $\Delta_{P,KV}$ $\Delta_{P,A}$ V_{N} Secondary section cooli	Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	112
Stall thrust Stall current F_0^* N3691 33.2Physical constantsPower constant at 20° CkF_20N/A111Voltage constantkEVs/m37.1Motor constant at 20° CkM_20N/ \sqrt{W} 104Motor constant at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.2Attraction forceFAN27460Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass of the primary sectionmpkg40.8Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg4.6Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg4.6Maximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW3505Primary section main cooler data $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.4Pressure drop $\Delta P_{P,H}$ bar1.55Primary section precision cooler data V_{P,P,MIN V_{min} 6Arg, Pbar1.552.2Secondary section cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW90Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,P,MIN V_{min} 6Pressure dropbar1.552.2Secondary section cooling dataVV324Maximum heat outputQS,MAXW324Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,NIN}$ V_{min} 6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δ	Maximum electric power input	P _{EL.MAX}	W	55490
Stall current I_0^* A33.2Physical constantsPower constant at 20° CkF,20N/A111Voltage constantkEVs/m37.1Motor constant at 20° CRAD,20N/ \sqrt{V} 104Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.2Attraction forceFAN27460Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmpkg40.8Mass primary sectionmp,Pkg43.3Mass of the primary section with precision coolermS,Pkg4.6Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg5Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW3505Vp,H,MINVmin620P,Hbar1.55Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW90Recommended min. flow rateVp,P,MINVmin6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta TP,H$ bar1.55Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW90Recommended min. flow rateVp,P,MINVmin6Pressure dropApP,Pbar0.23Pressure dropApSbar0.23Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingApSbar0.23Pressure drop p	Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	3691
Physical constantsPower constant at 20° Ck _{F,20} N/A111Voltage constantk _E Vs/m37.1Motor constant at 20° Ck _{M,20} N/ \sqrt{W} 104Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.2Attraction forceFAN27460Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass of the primary sectionmp.kg43.3Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermp.pkg4.6Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS.pkg5Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQp.H.MAXW3505Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,P,MIN Vmin6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ k8.4Primary section precision cooler dataV/P.P.MINVmin6App.P.Hbar1.5522Secondary section cooler dataMaximum heat outputQS.MAXW90Recommended min. flow rateVV324Pressure dropApp.Pbar2.2Secondary section cooling dataVS.MINVmin6App.Sbar0.03ApKVbar0.23Pressure drop per combi distributorApKSbar0.24	Stall current	I ₀ *	A	33.2
Power constant at 20° Ck _{F,20} N/A111Voltage constantk _E Vs/m37.1Motor constant at 20° CKM,20N/ \sqrt{W} 104Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20Q0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.2Attraction forceFAN27460Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg40.8Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg43.3Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms,pkg5Primary section main cooler data W 35055Primary section precision cooler data V_{P,H,MIN V/min6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.4Pressure drop $\Delta p_P,H$ bar1.55Primary section cooler dataVip,P,MINVimin6App,Pbar2.232Secondary section cooler dataVip,P,MINVimin6Pressure drop $\Delta p_P,P$ bar2.2Secondary section cooling dataVip,P,MINVimin6Pressure drop Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_K_V bar0.24	Physical constants			·
Voltage constantkEVs/m37.1Motor constant at 20° CkM,20N/ \sqrt{W} 104Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.2Attraction forceFAN27460Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg40.8Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg43.3Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg5Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQp,H,MAXW3505Recommended min. flow rate Vp,H,MIN I/min6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta TP,H$ K8.4Pressure drop $\Delta pp,H$ bar1.55Primary section cooler dataW9090Recommended min. flow rate Vp,P,MIN I/min6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta TP,H$ bar2.2Secondary section cooling data Qp,MAX W90Recommended min. flow rate Vp,P,MIN I/min6Pressure drop $\Delta pp,P,P$ bar2.2Secondary section cooling data Qs,MAX W324Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per coupling point ΔpK_V bar0.23	Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	111
Motor constant at 20° CkM,20 N/\sqrt{W} 104Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5.2Attraction forceFAN27460Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg40.8Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,Pkg43.3Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg5Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW3505Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta TP,H$ K8.4Pressure drop $\Delta PP,H$ bar1.55Primary section cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW90Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta PP,H$ bar1.55Primary section precision cooler data $\Delta PP,P$ bar2.2Secondary section cooling data $\Delta PP,P$ bar2.2Secondary section cooling data $\nabla S,MIN$ $Vmin$ 6Pressure drop $\Delta PP,P$ bar0.03Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling ΔPS bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point ΔDRS bar0.24	Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	37.1
Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω0.4Phase inductance L_{STR} mH5.2Attraction force F_A N27460Thermal time constant t_{TH} s120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg40.8Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg43.3Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg5Primary section main cooler dataW3505Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta_{P,H,MAX}$ W3505Primary section precision cooler data $\Delta_{TP,H}$ K8.4Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1.55Primary section precision cooler data $\Delta_{P,P,MAX}$ W90Recommended min. flow rate Δ_{P,P,MIN $Vmin$ 6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.2Secondary section cooling data $\Delta_{P,P,P}$ bar2.2Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W324Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ $Vmin$ 6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.03Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KV} bar0.23	Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	104
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	0.4
Attraction force F_A N27460Thermal time constant t_{TH} s120Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary section m_P kg40.8Mass of the primary section with precision cooler m_P,P kg43.3Mass secondary section with cooling sections m_S kg4.6Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg5Primary section main cooler data W_S,P W3505Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,H,MIN}$ $V'min$ 6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.4Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1.55Primary section precision cooler data $V_{P,P,MIN}$ $V'min$ 6Aximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W90Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,P,MIN}$ $V'min$ 6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.2Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ $V'min$ 6Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W324Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ $V'min$ 6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KS} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	5.2
Thermal time constant t_{TH} s120Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary section m_P kg40.8Mass of the primary section with precision cooler m_P,P kg43.3Mass secondary section with cooling sections m_S kg4.6Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg5Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W3505Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ l/min6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.4Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1.55Primary section precision cooler data $V_{P,P,MAX}$ W90Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.2Secondary section cooling data $V_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min6Pressure drop $\Delta p_P,P$ bar2.2Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ l/min6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Attraction force	F _A	Ν	27460
Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary sectionmpkg40.8Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg43.3Mass secondary section with cooling sectionsmskg4.6Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms,pkg5Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQp,H,MAXW3505Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}P,H,MIN$ I/min6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta TP,H$ K8.4Pressure drop $\Delta pp,H$ bar1.55Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW90Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}P,P,MIN$ I/min6Pressure drop $\Delta pp,p$ bar2.2Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat outputQs,MAXW324Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}S,MIN$ I/min6Pressure drop Δps bar0.03Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δps bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
Mass primary section m_P kg40.8Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $m_{P,P}$ kg43.3Mass secondary section m_S kg4.6Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections m_S,P kg5Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W3505Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ //min6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.4Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1.55Primary section precision cooler data $V_{P,P,MIN}$ //min6Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W90Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ //min6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.2Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ //min6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_S bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Pole width	тм	mm	23
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $m_{P,P}$ kg43.3Mass secondary section m_S kg 4.6Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg5Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W3505Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ l/min6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.4Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1.55Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W90Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.2Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W324Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ l/min6Pressure drop Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_KV bar0.23Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Mass primary section	m _P	kg	40.8
Mass secondary sectionmgkg4.6Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmg,Pkg5Primary section main cooler dataQP,H,MAXW3505Maximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW3505Recommended min. flow rateVP,H,MINI/min6Cooling medium temperature increaseΔTP,HK8.4Pressure dropΔPP,Hbar1.55Primary section precision cooler dataW90Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW90Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINI/min6Pressure dropΔPP,Pbar2.2Secondary section cooling dataW324Maximum heat outputQS,MAXW324Recommended min. flow rateVS,MINI/min6Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingΔpSbar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributorΔpKVbar0.23Pressure drop per coupling pointΔpKSbar0.24	Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	43.3
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg5Primary section main cooler data $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W3505Maximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MIN}$ I/min6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.4Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1.55Primary section precision cooler data $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W90Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W90Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ I/min6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.2Secondary section cooling dataW324Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W324Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	4.6
Primary section main cooler data Q _{P,H,MAX} W 3505 Maximum heat output VP,H,MIN I/min 6 Recommended min. flow rate VP,H,MIN I/min 6 Cooling medium temperature increase ΔTP,H K 8.4 Pressure drop ΔPP,H bar 1.55 Primary section precision cooler data Maximum heat output QP,P,MAX W 90 Recommended min. flow rate ÝP,P,MIN I/min 6 Pressure drop ΔpP,P bar 2.2 Secondary section cooling data Maximum heat output QS,MAX W 324 Recommended min. flow rate ÝS,MIN I/min 6 Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling ΔpS bar 0.03 Pressure drop per combi distributor ΔpKV bar 0.23 Pressure drop per coupling point ΔpKS bar 0.24	Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	5
Maximum heat output Recommended min. flow rateQP,H,MAX VP,H,MINW3505Cooling medium temperature increase Pressure dropΔTP,HK8.4Pressure dropΔpP,Hbar1.55Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output Recommended min. flow rateQP,P,MAX VP,P,MINW90Pressure dropΔpP,Pbar2.2Secondary section cooling dataV324Maximum heat output Recommended min. flow rateQS,MAX VS,MINW324Maximum heat output Recommended min. flow rateQS,MAX VS,MINW324Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Pressure drop per combi distributorApKV DarDar0.23Pressure drop per coupling pointΔpKSbar0.24	Primary section main cooler data			
Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ I/min6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K8.4Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1.55Primary section precision cooler data $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W90Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W90Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ I/min6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.2Secondary section cooling dataW324Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W324Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	3505
$\begin{array}{c c} Cooling medium temperature increase \\ Pressure drop & \Delta T_{P,H} & bar & 1.55 \\ \hline \end{tabular}$	Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	6
Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1.55Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W90Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.2Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W324Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ l/min6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P.H}	к	8.4
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Pressure drop	Δp _{P.H}	bar	1.55
$\begin{array}{c c} \mbox{Maximum heat output} & Q_{P,P,MAX} & W & 90 \\ \mbox{Recommended min. flow rate} & \dot{V}_{P,P,MIN} & l/min & 6 \\ \mbox{Pressure drop} & \Delta p_{P,P} & bar & 2.2 \\ \hline \mbox{Secondary section cooling data} \\ \hline \mbox{Maximum heat output} & Q_{S,MAX} & W & 324 \\ \mbox{Recommended min. flow rate} & \dot{V}_{S,MIN} & l/min & 6 \\ \mbox{Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling} & \Delta p_S & bar & 0.03 \\ \mbox{Pressure drop per combi distributor} & \Delta p_{KS} & bar & 0.23 \\ \mbox{Pressure drop per coupling point} & \Delta p_{KS} & bar & 0.24 \\ \hline \end{tabular}$	Primary section precision cooler data			
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Maximum heat output	Q _{P.P.MAX}	W	90
Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.2Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W324Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P.P.MIN}	l/min	6
Secondary section cooling data Maximum heat output Q _{S,MAX} W 324 Recommended min. flow rate VS,MIN I/min 6 Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling ΔpS bar 0.03 Pressure drop per combi distributor ΔpKV bar 0.23 Pressure drop per coupling point ΔpKS bar 0.24	Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	2.2
Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W324Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Secondary section cooling data			
Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ I/min6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Maximum heat output	Q _{S.MAX}	W	324
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Recommended min. flow rate	V _{S.MIN}	l/min	6
Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.03
Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar 0.24	Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.23
	Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.24

01.06



1FN3600-4WC00-0AA1 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



15 Technical Data and Characteristics

1FN3900-2WB00-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	4050	
Rated current	I _N	A	24.7	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	160	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	2940	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	10350	
Maximum current	I _{MAX}	A	69.5	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	65	
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	34460	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	2864	
Stall current	I0*	А	17.5	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	164	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	54.6	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	88.1	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	1.2	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	15	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	20600	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	23	
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	28.2	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	29.7	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	7.5	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	7.9	
Primary section main cooler data			1	
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	2945	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	5.5	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	7.7	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	0.88	
Primary section precision cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	60	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{Р,Р,МIN}	l/min	5.5	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	1.28	
Secondary section cooling data		1		
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	234	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ́ _{S,MIN}	l/min	5.5	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.02	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.19	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.2	



1FN3900-2WB00-0AA1 characteristics

Primary section main cooler characteristics



Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1**FN**3

15 Technical Data and Characteristics

Technical dataBrief designationUnitsValueLimitations/secondary conditions DC link voltage U_{ZK} V 600DC link voltage U_{QK} T_{VORL} T_C 35Rated temperature T_N T_C 120Rated tamperature T_N T_C 120Rated data F_N N 4050Rated current I_N A 38.7Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MX,FNN}$ $m'min$ 253Rated power loss P_{VN} W 2670Limiting data F_{MAX} N 10350Maximum speed at maximum thrust I_{MX} A 103.3Maximum electric power input F_0^* N 2864Stall current F_0^* N 2864Stall current I_0^* A 26Physical constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ N/A 110Voltage constant t $20^\circ C$ $K_{RT,20}$ Ω/A 110Voltage constant $20^\circ C$ $K_{RT,20}$ Ω/A 110Pole voltaft $K_F,20$ N/A 110 $V_{S,00}$ Motor winding resistance at 20° C $K_{RT,20}$ Ω/A 120Phase inductance Z° Z° Z° Z° Mass of the primary section with precision cooler m_p K_g 29.7Mass of the primary section with cooling sections m_P K_g 29.7Mass of the primary section main cooler data T_P,H X T_P,H <th>1FN3900-2WC00-0AA1</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th>	1FN3900-2WC00-0AA1			
Limitations/secondary conditionsDC link voltage Water cooling intake temperature Rated temperatureUZK TORLV600Rated trust Rated trustTN"C120Rated trustFN NN4050Rated current Maximum speed at rated thrustFN NN4050Maximum speed at rated thrustVMAX,FN VMAX,FNm/min253Rated power lossPV.NW2570Limiting dataFMAX Maximum currentN10350Maximum speed at maximum thrust Maximum electric power inputFg* PL_LMAXN10350Maximum speed at rated thrustVMAX,FMAX MAX,FMAXA103.3Maximum speed at maximum thrust Stall currentFg* NA268Physical constant 20° C Voltage constant at 20° C Motor winding resistance at 20° C LGTRKF 20 MIAN/A110 M25.5Power constant at 20° C Motor winding resistance at 20° C LGTRKF 20 MIAN/A110 MVoltage constant The pole width Mass of the primary section with precision cooler ms so a secondary section Mass of a secondary section with precision cooler ms, kg7.97.5Primary section main cooler dataGP,P,MAX V MASSW2670Maximum heat output Recommended min. flow rate Cooling medium temperature increase App_HGP,P,MAXW60Primary section precision cooler Mass of a secondary section cooler dataGP,P,MAX V V V PHINNW60Pressure drop <t< th=""><th>Technical data</th><th>Brief designation</th><th>Units</th><th>Value</th></t<>	Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
DC link voltageUZKV600Water cooling intske temperatureTvORL°C35Rated detaT°C120Rated dataRated durustFNN4050Rated currentINA36.7Maximum speed at rated thrustPVNW2670Limiting dataMaximum speed at rated thrustFMAXN10350Maximum currentIMAXA103.3Maximum speed at maximum thrustFMAXM10350Maximum electric power inputPEL.MAXW40940Stall currentIntrastF0*N2864Motor constant 420° CKF_20N/A110Voltage constantKEN/V92.5Motor constant at 20° CKM.20N/V92.5Motor constant at 20° CKM.20N/V92.5Motor constant at 20° CRSTR_20Q0.5Phase inductanceLSTRMH6.8Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constantTHs120Pole widthMmm23Mass of the primary section with precision coolermSKg7.5Mass of a secondary section with recision coolermS, PKg29.7Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS, PKg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS, PKg7.5Mass of a secondary section wit	Limitations/secondary conditions			
Water cooling intake temperature T_{VORL} "C35Rated dataT"C120Rated dataFNN4050Rated currentINA36.7Maximum speed at rated thrustVMAX,FNw/minin253Rated power lossPV,NW2670Limiting dataMaximum speed at maximum thrustFMAXN10350Maximum speed at maximum thrustFMAXN1033.3Maximum speed at maximum thrustFo*N2864Stall currentIo*A26Physical constant 4 20° CKg 20KF.20N/A110Voltage constant 4 20° CKF.20N/A110Voltage constant 4 20° CKM.20N/ \sqrt{W} 92.5Phase inductanceLSTR,mH6.8Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constantTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermp.pkg28.2Mass of a secondary section with precision coolerms.pkg7.5Maximum heat outputQP,MAXW2670Maximum heat outputQP,MAXW2670Maximum heat outputQP,MAXW2670Maximum heat outputQP,MAXW2670Maximum heat outputQP,MAXW2670Maximum heat outputQP,MAXW2670Maximum heat	DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Rated temperature T_N "C120Rated thrustFNN4050Rated thrustFNNA36.7Maximum speed at rated thrustVMAX,FNm/min253Rated power lossP/NW2670Limiting dataFMAXN10350Maximum thrustFMAXN10350Maximum speed at maximum thrustVMAX,FNAXm/min115Maximum speed at maximum thrustVMAX,FNAXW40940Stall thrustF0*N2864Stall current10*A26Physical constant tPower constant at 20° CkF,20N/A110Voltage constant tVs/m36.736.7Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20Q0.5Phase inductanceLSTRMH6.8Attraction forceFAN226000Thermal time constantTms120Pole widthTmS120Pole widthTmKg7.5Mass of the primary section with precision coolerms,pKg7.5Mass of the primary section with cooling sectionsms,pKg7.5Pressure dropApp,HK77Pressure dropApp,HK77App,HK7247XS,MINMininMaximum heat outputQp,P,MAXW60247Maximum heat outputQp,P,MAXW23	Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated dutaRated thrust F_N NA 4050Rated current $ N$ A36.7Maximum speed at rated thrust $v_{MAX,FN}$ m/min253Rated power loss P_VN W2670Limiting data $Maximum current$ $ Max $ A103.50Maximum thrust F_{MAX} N10350Maximum speed at maximum thrust $ MaX,FMAX $ W40940Stall thrustStall current $P_{EL,MAX}$ W40940Stall current $ 0^* $ A26Physical constant $k_{F,20}$ N/A110Voltage constant $k_{F,20}$ N/A110Voltage constant $k_{F,20}$ N/A110Voltage constant $k_{F,20}$ N/V92.5Motor winding resistance at 20° C $k_{M,20}$ N/V92.5Motor winding resistance at 20° C $K_{M,20}$ N/V92.5Motor winding resistance at 20° C $K_{M,20}$ N/120Phase inductance L_{STR} mH6.8Attraction force F_A N20600Thermal time constanttris120Pole width m_{M} $m_{S,P}$ k_{S} Mass of a secondary section with precision cooler $m_{S,P}$ k_{S} Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ k_{S} Primary section main cooler data $m_{S,P,MAX}$ W60Pressure drop $\Delta P_{P,HAX}$ W60	Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120
Rated thrust F_N N4050Rated currentINA36.7Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MAX,FN}$ m/min253Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W2670Limiting dataMaximum thrust F_{MAX} N10350Maximum currentIMAXA103.3Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min115Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W40940Stall thrust F_0^* A26Physical constants F_0^* A26Physical constant at 20° CkF_20N/A110Voltage constantkEVs/m36.7Motor constant at 20° CkSTR,20Q0.5Phase inductanceLg TRmH6.8Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constantTMmm23Mass primary section with precision coolermp,pkg29.7Mass of the primary section with cooling sectionsmS,pkg7.5Primary section main cooler datamp,pkg2670Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW60Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINWini5.5Cooling medium temperature increase AT_P,H k7Pressure dropApp,Pbar1.28Secondary section cooling dataQS,MAXW234Maximum heat outputQS,MAXW60Re	Rated data			
Rated currentINA36.7Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MAX,FN}$ m/min253Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ Z Z Limiting data F_{MAX} N10350Maximum currentIMAXA103.3Maximum speed at maximum thrust F_{MAX} N10350Maximum electric power input F_{C}^* N2864Stall thrust F_0^* N2864Stall current I_0^* A266Physical constant F_0^* N2864Stall current I_0^* A266Physical constant $K_{E,20}$ N/A 110Voltage constant t $Z^0 C$ $K_{R,20}$ N/A 110Voltage constant at 20° C $K_{R,20}$ N/A 100 N/Q 0.5Phase inductanceLSTRmH6.8120100Attraction forceFAN20600110100Themal time constanttTHs120120Pole widthTMmm23303030Mass primary section with precision coolermSkg2.530Mass of the primary section with cooling sectionsmS_P,Pkg2.7Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS_P,Pkg7.9Primary section perision cooler data $\Delta P_P,H$ bar0.8Primary section precision cooler data $\Delta P_P,H$ bar0.8Primary section near corease	Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	4050
Maximum speed at rated thrust Rated power loss $v_{MAX,FN}$ $P_{V,N}$ m/min 253 2670Limiting data $P_{V,N}$ W 2670Limiting data F_{MAX} N10350Maximum trust F_{MAX} N10350Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min 115Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min 115Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ M 40940Stall thrust F_0^* N2864Stall current I_0^* A26Physical constantsPower constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/A 110Voltage constant t V_{C} $k_{K_{E}}$ N_{N}/W 92.5Motor vonstant at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.50.5Phase inductanceLSTRmH6.8Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmmga28.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp.kg29.7Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS_p.kg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms.p.Kg7.9Primary section main cooler data $\Delta P_{P,H}MAX$ W 60Maximum heat output Q_P,P_MAX W 60Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,P,MIN}$ W 60Pressure drop $\Delta P_{P,P}$ bar1.28	Rated current	I _N	А	36.7
Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W2670Limiting dataMaximum thrust F_{MAX} N10350Maximum currentIMAXA103.3Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min115Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W40940Stall thrust F_0^* A26Power constant at 20° C F_0^* A26Power constant at 20° CkF_20N/A110Voltage constantkEVS/m36.7Motor constant at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.5Phase inductanceLSTRmH6.8Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmp.pkg29.7Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermS, kg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS, Pkg7.9Primary section main cooler dataVP,H,MINV/min5.5Pressure dropApp.HK7Primary section precision cooler dataVP,P,MINV/min5.5Primary section net cooler dataVP,P,MINV/min5.5Primary section net cooler dataVP,P,MINV/min5.5Primary section net recorder dataVP,P,MINV/min5.5Primary section cooling dataVS,MINV/min5.5Pressure drop per combi distributor	Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	253
Limiting dataMaximum thrustFMAXN10350Maximum currentIMAXA103.3Maximum speed at maximum thrustVMAX,FMAXm/min115Maximum electric power inputPELMAXW40940Stall thrustF0*N2864Stall currentIq*A26Physical constantPower constant at 20° CKF_20N/A110Voltage constantKEVs/m36.7Motor constant at 20° CKM,20N/√W92.5Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20Q0.5Phase inductanceLSTRmH6.8Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmpkg29.7Mass primary sectionmpkg29.7Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermp,pkg7.9Primary section with cooling sectionsms,pkg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms,pw88.8Primary section net acoler dataVP,H,MINVimin5.5Pressure dropApp,HK7Pressure dropApp,Pbar1.28Secondary section cooler dataMaximum heat outputQs,MAXW234Recommended min. flow rateVp,P,MINVimin5.5Pressure dropApp,Pbar0.02 <t< td=""><td>Rated power loss</td><td>P_{V,N}</td><td>W</td><td>2670</td></t<>	Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	2670
Maximum thrust F_{MAX} N10350Maximum currentIMAXA103.3Maximum speed at maximum thrustVMAX,FMAXm/min115Maximum electric power inputPEL,MAXW40940Stall thrustF0*N2864Stall currentIo*A26Physical constant at 20° CkF,20N/A110Voltage constant at 20° CKF,20N/A110Votage constant at 20° CKB,20N/ \sqrt{W} 92.5Motor constant at 20° CRSTR,20Q0.5Phase inductanceLSTRmH6.8Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmp.pkg28.2Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermp.pkg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms.p.kg7.9Primary section main cooler dataVP,H,MINI/min5.5Pressure dropApp.pbar0.88Primary section cooler dataStalp.p.pbar1.28Secondary section cooler dataVP,P,MINI/min5.5Pressure dropApp.pbar0.28Secondary section cooling dataVS,MINI/min5.5Pressure drop per cooling dataVS,MINI/min5.5Pressure drop per coupling pointApp.bar0.02Press	Limiting data			
Maximum currentIMAXA103.3Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min115Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W40940Stall thrust F_0^* N2864Ig*A26Power constant at 20° CMotor constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ N/A110Voltage constant K_E Vs/m36.7Motor constant at 20° C $K_{M,20}$ N/ \sqrt{W} 92.5Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω 0.5Phase inductance L_{STR} mH6.8Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTMmm23Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp, pkg28.2Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS, pkg7.5Maximum heat output $O_{P,H,MAX}$ W2670Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,H,MIN V_{min} 5.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K7Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar0.88Primary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $O_{P,P,MAX}$ W60Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 5.5Ape_Pbar1.2834Pressure drop ΔP_S bar0.02Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_S bar0.02Pressure drop per coupling point<	Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	10350
Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min115Maximum electric power input P_{ELMAX} W 40940Stall thrust F_0^* A26Physical constantsPower constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ N/A110Voltage constant K_E $V_{S/m}$ 36.7Motor constant at 20° C $K_{R,20}$ N/\sqrt{W} 92.5Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω 0.5Phase inductance L_{STR} mH6.8Attraction force F_A N20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole width T_M mm23Mass of the primary section with precision cooler m_P, P kg28.2Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections m_S, P kg7.9Primary section main cooler data W_P, MAX W2670Maximum heat output Q_P, MAX W 2670Recommended min. flow rate V_P, MIN $Vmin$ 5.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_P, H$ K 7Pressure drop $\Delta p_P, P$ W 2670Recommended min. flow rate V_P, MIN $Vmin$ 5.5Pressure drop $\Delta P_P, MAX$ W 2670Recommended min. flow rate V_S, MIN $Vmin$ 5.5Pressure drop per cooling data V_S, MIN $Vmin$ 5.5Pressure drop per cooling data V_S, MIN $Vmin$ 5.5 <td< td=""><td>Maximum current</td><td>IMAX</td><td>А</td><td>103.3</td></td<>	Maximum current	IMAX	А	103.3
Maximum electric power input Stall thrust Stall current $P_{EL,MAX}$ F_0^* W40940 N2864 Ig* A 26Physical constantsPower constant at 20° C Voltage constant Motor constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ K_{E} N/A 110 $Vs/m_{_}$ Motor constant at 20° C Motor winding resistance at 20° C Phase inductance $K_{F,20}$ L_{STR} N/\sqrt{W} 92.5Motor winding resistance at 20° C Phase inductance $R_{STR,20$ L_{STR} Ω 0.5Nease inductance Pole width L_{STR} M 6.8Attraction force Thermal time constant T_{H} $Mass of the primary section with precision coolerm_{P,P}Kg28.2Mass of a secondary section with precision coolerMass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsm_{S,P}kg7.5Maximum heat outputRecommended min. flow rateQ_{P,H,MAX}V_{P,H,MIN}W2670Primary section precision cooler dataM_{P,P,H}K7App_PM_{S}A_{T}A_{P,P,H}M_{S}A_{T}Pressure drop\Delta_{P,P,MAX}W60Primary section precision cooler dataV_{P,P,MIN}V_{M}5.5Secondary section cooling dataV_{P,P,MIN}V_{M}5.5Pressure drop\Delta_{D}\Delta_{PS}\Delta_{D}0.2Primary section precision cooler dataV_{P,P,MIN}V_{M}5.5Pressure drop\Delta_{D}\Delta_{P,P,M}V_{M}5.5<$	Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	115
Stall thrust Stall current F_0^* N2864 A26Physical constantsPower constant at 20° CkF_20N/A110Voltage constantkEVs/m36.7Motor constant at 20° CKM_20N/ \sqrt{W} 92.5Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.5Phase inductanceLSTRmH6.8Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg28.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg29.7Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS_Pkg7.9Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2670Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW2670Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW60Pressure dropApp_Pbar0.88Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW60Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINVmin5.5Ageomended min. flow rateVP,P,MINJimin5.5Pressure dropApsbar0.02Pressure drop per combin distributorApsbar0.02Pressure drop per coupling pointApsbar0.2	Maximum electric power input	P _{EL.MAX}	W	40940
Stall current I_0^* A26Physical constantsPower constant at 20° CkF,20N/A110Voltage constantkEVs/m36.7Motor constant at 20° CKM,20N/ \sqrt{V} 92.5Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.5Phase inductanceLSTRmH6.8Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmpkg28.2Mass primary sectionmp,Pkg28.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,Pkg29.7Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg7.5Primary section main cooler dataVp,H,MAXW2670Maximum heat outputQp,P,HMAXW2670Recommended min. flow rateVp,P,MINVmin5.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K7Pressure drop $\Delta pP,P$ bar0.88Primary section cooler dataMaximum heat outputQp,P,P,MAXW60Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,P,MIN}$ $Vmin$ 5.5Pressure drop $\Delta pP,P$ bar0.28Secondary section cooling dataPrimary section cooling dataPrimary section cooling dataOOMaximum heat outputQs,MAXW60	Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	2864
Physical constantsPower constant at 20° Ck _{F,20} N/A110Voltage constantk _E Vs/m36.7Motor constant at 20° Ck _{M,20} N/ \sqrt{W} 92.5Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.5Phase inductanceLSTRMH6.8Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass of the primary sectionmp.kg28.2Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermp.Pkg29.7Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS.Pkg7.9Primary section main cooler dataVp.H.MAXW2670Maximum heat outputQp.H.MAXW2670Recommended min. flow rateVp.P.MINVmin5.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K7Primary section precision cooler dataVp.P.MINVmin5.5Secondary section cooling dataVp.P.MINVmin5.5Pressure dropApp.Pbar1.28Secondary section cooling dataVs.MINVmin5.5App.Pbar0.02pressure drop per combi distributorAp _K bar0.02Pressure drop per coupling pointAp _K bar0.19Ap _K Vs.MINJmin5.5App.NAp _K Ap _K <	Stall current	l ₀ *	А	26
Power constant at 20° Ck _{F,20} N/A110Voltage constantk _E Vs/m36.7Motor constant at 20° Ck _{M,20} N/ \sqrt{W} 92.5Motor winding resistance at 20° CR _{STR,20} Q0.5Phase inductanceL _{STR} mH6.8Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmp.kg28.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp.Pkg29.7Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms.Pkg7.9Primary section main cooler data W 26702670Pressure dropApp.HK727Pressure dropApp.HK72670Pressure dropApp.bar0.282670Pressure dropApp.bar0.282670Pressure dropApp. <t< td=""><td>Physical constants</td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>	Physical constants			
Voltage constantkEVs/m36.7Motor constant at 20° CkM,20N/ \sqrt{W} 92.5Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.5Phase inductanceLSTRmH6.8Attraction forceFAN20600Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg28.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg29.7Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg7.5Primary section main cooler dataVp,H,MAXW2670Maximum heat outputQp,H,MAXW2670Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta TP,H$ K7Pressure drop $\Delta PP,H$ bar0.88Primary section cooler dataMaximum heat outputQp,P,MAXW60Recommended min. flow rate Vp,P,MIN I/min5.5Pressure drop $\Delta pP,P$ bar1.28Secondary section cooling dataVs,MINI/min5.5Pressure drop ΔpS bar0.02Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.19Pressure drop per coupling point ΔpK_S bar0.2	Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	110
Motor constant at 20° CkM,20 N/\sqrt{W} 92.5Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω 0.5Phase inductance L_{STR} mH6.8Attraction force F_A N20600Thermal time constant t_{TH} s120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg28.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,Pkg29.7Mass sof a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg7.9Primary section main cooler data $V_{P,H,MAX}$ W2670Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K7Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar0.88Primary section precision cooler data $\Delta P_{P,P,MIN$ $Vmin$ 5.5Agenomended min. flow rate $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W60Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.28Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ $Vmin$ 5.5Pressure drop Δp_P_S bar0.02Pressure drop per complicitivor Δp_S bar0.02Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KV} bar0.19	Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	36.7
Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω0.5Phase inductance L_{STR} mH6.8Attraction force F_A N20600Thermal time constant t_{TH} s120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg28.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp, pkg29.7Mass sof a secondary section with cooling sectionsms, pkg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms, pkg7.9Primary section main cooler data $V_{P,H,MAX}$ W2670Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K7Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar0.88Primary section precision cooler data $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K7Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W60Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.28Secondary section cooling data $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.28Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W234Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 5.5Pressure drop Δp_S bar0.02Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.19Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KV} bar0.19	Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	92.5
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	0.5
Attraction force F_A N20600Thermal time constant t_{TH} s120Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary sectionmpkg28.2Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $m_{P,P}$ kg29.7Mass secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg7.9Primary section main cooler data W 2670Maximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W2670Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K7Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K7Primary section precision cooler data $\Delta P_{P,H}$ bar0.88Primary section precision cooler data $V_{P,P,MIN}$ V_{min} 5.5Secondary section cooling data $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.28Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W 234Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ V_{M} 234Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 5.5Pressure drop Δp_S bar0.02Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_{KV} bar0.19Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KS} bar0.19Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.2	Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	6.8
Thermal time constant t_{TH} s120Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary section m_P kg28.2Mass of the primary section with precision cooler m_P,P kg29.7Mass secondary section with cooling sections m_S kg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg7.9Primary section main cooler data W 2670Maximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W 2670Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ $Vmin$ 5.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K7Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar0.88Primary section precision cooler data $V_{P,P,MAX}$ W 60Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ $Vmin$ 5.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.28Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ $Vmin$ 5.5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_S bar0.02Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KV} bar0.19	Attraction force	F _A	Ν	20600
Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary sectionmpkg28.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg29.7Mass secondary section with cooling sectionsmSkg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,pkg7.9Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2670Recommended min. flow rate VP,H,MIN l/min5.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta TP,H$ K7Pressure drop $\Delta pP,H$ bar0.88Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW60Recommended min. flow rate VP,P,MIN l/min5.5Pressure drop $\Delta pP,P$ bar1.28Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat outputQS,MAXW234Recommended min. flow rate VS,MIN l/min5.5Pressure drop ΔpS bar0.02Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling ΔpS bar0.02Pressure drop per combi distributor ΔpKV bar0.19Pressure drop per coupling point ΔpKS bar0.2	Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
Mass primary section m_P kg28.2Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $m_{P,P}$ kg29.7Mass secondary section m_S kg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg7.9Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W2670Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ l/min5.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K7Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar0.88Primary section precision cooler data $V_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min5.5Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min5.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.28Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ l/min5.5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_S bar0.02Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KV} bar0.19	Pole width	тм	mm	23
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $m_{P,P}$ kg29.7Mass secondary section m_S kg 7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg7.9Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W2670Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ l/min5.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K7Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar0.88Primary section precision cooler data $V_{P,P,MIN}$ V60Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ I/min5.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.28Secondary section cooling data $Q_{S,MAX}$ W234Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W234Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min5.5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.02Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.19Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.2	Mass primary section	mP	kg	28.2
Mass secondary sectionmgkg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmg,Pkg7.9Primary section main cooler dataQP,H,MAXW2670Maximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2670Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ l/min5.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K7Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar0.88Primary section precision cooler dataW60Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min5.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.28Secondary section cooling data $V_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min5.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.28Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ l/min5.5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.02Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_K_N bar0.19Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.2	Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	29.7
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg7.9Primary section main cooler data $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W2670Maximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MIN}$ I/min5.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K7Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar0.88Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W60Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ I/min5.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.28Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W234Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min5.5Pressure drop Δp_S bar0.02Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_KV bar0.19Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.2	Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	7.5
Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW2670Recommended min. flow rateVP,H,MINI/min5.5Cooling medium temperature increaseΔTP,HK7Pressure dropΔPP,Hbar0.88Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW60Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINI/min5.5Pressure dropΔpP,Pbar1.28Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat outputQ _{S,MAX} W234Recommended min. flow rateVS,MINI/min5.5Pressure dropΔpSbar0.02Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingΔpSbar0.02Pressure drop per combi distributorΔpKVbar0.19Pressure drop per coupling pointΔpKSbar0.2	Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	7.9
Maximum heat output Recommended min. flow rate $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W2670Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ I/min5.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K7Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar0.88Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W60Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ I/min5.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.28Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W234Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min5.5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.02Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.19Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.2	Primary section main cooler data			
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c } Recommended min. flow rate & \dot{V}_{P,H,MIN} & Vmin & 5.5 \\ Cooling medium temperature increase & \Delta T_{P,H} & K & 7 \\ Pressure drop & \Delta p_{P,H} & bar & 0.88 \end{array}$	Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	2670
$\begin{array}{c c} Cooling medium temperature increase \\ Pressure drop & \Delta T_{P,H} & K & 7 \\ bar & 0.88 \end{array}$	Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	5.5
Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar0.88Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W60Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min5.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.28Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W234Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ l/min5.5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.02Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.19Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.2	Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P.H}	к	7
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Pressure drop	Δp _{P.H}	bar	0.88
$\begin{array}{c c} \mbox{Maximum heat output} & Q_{P,P,MAX} & W & 60 \\ \mbox{Recommended min. flow rate} & \dot{V}_{P,P,MIN} & l/min & 5.5 \\ \mbox{Pressure drop} & \Delta p_{P,P} & bar & 1.28 \\ \hline \mbox{Secondary section cooling data} \\ \hline \mbox{Maximum heat output} & Q_{S,MAX} & W & 234 \\ \mbox{Recommended min. flow rate} & \dot{V}_{S,MIN} & l/min & 5.5 \\ \mbox{Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling} & \Delta p_S & bar & 0.02 \\ \mbox{Pressure drop per combi distributor} & \Delta p_{KV} & bar & 0.19 \\ \mbox{Pressure drop per coupling point} & \Delta p_{KS} & bar & 0.2 \\ \hline \end{tabular}$	Primary section precision cooler data	<u>.</u> .		
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Maximum heat output	Q _{P.P.MAX}	W	60
$\begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c } \hline Pressure drop & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & & &$	Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P.P.MIN}	l/min	5.5
Secondary section cooling data Maximum heat output Q _{S,MAX} W 234 Recommended min. flow rate VS,MIN I/min 5.5 Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling ΔpS bar 0.02 Pressure drop per combi distributor ΔpKV bar 0.19 Pressure drop per coupling point ΔpKS bar 0.2	Pressure drop	Δp _{P.P}	bar	1.28
Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W234Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ l/min 5.5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.02Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.19Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.2	Secondary section cooling data			
Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min5.5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.02Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.19Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.2	Maximum heat output	Q _{S MAX}	W	234
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.02Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.19Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.2	Recommended min. flow rate	V _{S.MIN}	l/min	5.5
Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.19Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.2	Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.02
Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar 0.2	Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δρ _{KV}	bar	0.19
	Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.2

01.06



1FN3900-2WC00-0AA1 characteristics







Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1**FN**3

15 Technical Data and Characteristics

Technical dataBrief designationUnitsValueLimitations/secondary conditions DC link voltage U_{ZK} V 600DC link voltage U_{ZK} V_{C} 35Rated temperature T_{VORL} T_{C} 120Rated temperature T_N $*C$ 120Rated chara F_N A 40.6Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MX, FNN}$ $m'min$ 181Maximum speed at rated thrust V_{MX}, FNN $m'min$ 15530Maximum rurent MaX A 114Maximum electric power input F_n^* N 4296Stall thrust F_0^* N 4296Stall trust F_0^* N 4296Stall torrent F_0^* N 4296Motor constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ N/A 150Voltage constant $20^\circ C$ $K_{RTR,20}$ Ω 0.6Phase inductance F_A N 30910107.7Attraction force F_A N 30910107.7Mass of the primary section with precision cooler m_S, Kg 7.5Mass of the primary section with precision cooler m_S, Kg 7.5Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $M_S, FNNNNNN$ $V'min$ 6Op-P_HANX $V_P, MINN$ $V_P, MINN$ $V_{P, MINN}$ 4430Pointer constant C_P, P, MAX W 4430Pointer constant T_P, H K 10.6Pressure drop $\Delta P_P, H$	1FN3900-3WB00-0AA1			
Limitations/secondary conditionsDC link voltage Water cooling intake temperature Rated temperatureUZK TORLV600 °CRated trust Rated thrustFN NN6075 ARated trustFN NA40.6 VMAX,FNRated corrent Maximum speed at rated thrustIN N VMAX,FNA40.6 Maximum speed at rated thrustImiting dataFMAX VMAX,FNN15530 14430Imiting dataFMAX Maximum currentN15530 14430Maximum speed at maximum thrust Maximum electric power inputF0* PELMAXN15530 14470Stall currentIo Po*A28.7Physical constant Voltage constant at 20° C Voltage constant at 20° C Voltage constant at 20° C A thraction forceKF.20 FA NN/A150 150 107.7Motor winding resistance at 20° C Voltage constant A thraction forceKF.20 FAN/A150 150 107.7Motor winding resistance at 20° C Voltage constant Thermal time constant Thermal time constant Thermal time constant Thermal time constant Thermal time constant Thermal time constant The point with precision cooler ms, pMg42.2 44.3 mg, MgPrimary section main cooler dataMp.P.MIMA V P.P.MIN Mass of the primary section with precision cooler Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections Mg, P.P.MIN Maximum heat outputQp.P.MAX QP.P.MAX QP.P.MIN QP.P.MIN QP.P.MIN QP.P.MIN QP.P	Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value
DC link voltageUZKV600Water cooling intake temperatureTvORL*C35Rated temperatureTv*C120Rated dataRated trustFNN6075Rated currentINA40.6Maximum speed at rated thrustVMAX,FNm/min181Rated power lossPV,NW4430Limiting dataImmuno currentMaximum speed at maximum thrustFMAXN15530Maximum electric power inputPEL,MAXW54470Stall thrustF0*N4296Stall currentIo*28.7Physical constantsPower constant at 20° CkF_20N/A150Voltage constantIo*N30910Thermal time constantTHs120Motor constant at 20° CRSTR_20Q0.6Phase inductanceLSTRMH8.7Attraction forceFAN30910Thermal time constantTHs120Pole widthMmm23Mass of the primary section with precision coolermSkgMass of the primary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg1.49Primary section cooler dataMaximum heat output<	Limitations/secondary conditions			
Water cooling intake temperature T_{VORL} "C35Rated dataT"C120Rated data </td <td>DC link voltage</td> <td>U_{ZK}</td> <td>V</td> <td>600</td>	DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600
Rated temperature T_N "C120Rated dataRated thrustFNN6075Rated currentINA40.6Maximum speed at rated thrustVMAX,FNm/min181Rated power lossPV,NW4430Limiting dataFMAXN15530Maximum thrustFMAXN15530Maximum speed at maximum thrustMAX,FMAXm/min75Maximum electric power inputPEL,MAXW54470Stall thrustF0*N4296Stall currentIo*A28.7Physical Constant at 20° CKF,20N/A150Voltage constant 420° CKM,20N/\/W107.7Motor constant at 20° CKM,20N/\/W107.7Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20Q0.6Phase inductanceLSTRM8.7Attraction forceFAN30910Thermal time constantTms120Pole widthTmmm23Mass of a secondary section with precision coolerms,pkg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms,pkg7.9Primary section main cooler dataVP,HMAXW4430Recommended min. flow rateQP,P,MAXW4430Pressure dropApp,HK10.6Pressure dropApp,Pbar1.49Primary section notion cooler dataVP,HAXW443	Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35
Rated dutaRated thrust F_N N 6075 Rated current $ N$ A40.6Maximum speed at rated thrust $v_{MAX,FN}$ m/min181Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W4430Limiting dataImiting dataMaximum thrust F_{MAX} N15530Maximum speed at maximum thrust I_{MAX} A114Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W54470Stall thrust P_0' A28.7Stall current I_0^* A28.7Physical constantKF_20N/A150Voltage constant $k_{F,20}$ N/A150Voltage constant $k_{F,20}$ N/V07.7Motor winding resistance at 20° C K_{STR_200} Ω 0.6Phase inductance L_{STR} mH8.7Attraction force F_A N30910Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass of the primary section with precision coolermS.p.kg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS.p.kg7.5Primary section main cooler data $O_{P,H,MAX}$ W4430Primary section precision coolermS.p.kg7.5Maximum heat output $O_{P,MAX}$ W85Prissure drop $\Delta D_{P,P}$ bar1.49Primary section nolow rate $V_{P,MIN}$	Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120
Rated thrust F_N N6075Rated currentINA40.6Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MAX,FN}$ m/min181Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W4430Limiting dataMaximum thrust F_{MAX} N15530Maximum currentImAXA114Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min75Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ N4296Stall thrust F_0^* A28.7Physical constants F_0^* A28.7Physical constant at 20° CkF_20N/ Λ 150Voltage constantkeVs/m49.9Motor constant at 20° CkSTR,20Q0.6Phase inductanceLSTRmH8.7Attraction forceFAN30910Thermal time constantTMmm23Mass primary sectionmp.pkg42.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp.pkg42.2Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,pkg7.5Primary section main cooler data $M_{P,P,MAX}$ W4430Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W85Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ ka1.0.6Pressure drop $\Delta P_{P,H}$ bar1.49Primary section need min. flow rate $V_{P,P,MIN}$ Wim6Pressure drop per combit distributor <td>Rated data</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	Rated data			
Rated currentINA40.6Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MAX,FN}$ m/min181Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W4430Limiting dataFMAXN15530Maximum thrustFMAXN15530Maximum speed at maximum thrustIMAXA114Maximum electric power inputPEL.MAXW54470Stall thrustFo*N4296Stall currentIo*A28.7Physical constantsPower constant at 20° CkF_20N/A150Voltage constantkEVs/m49.9Motor constant at 20° CKM_20N/ \sqrt{W} 107.7Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20Q0.6Phase inductanceLSTRmH8.7Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg42.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermskg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms_pkg7.5Primary section main cooler data $OP_{P,MAX}$ W4430Pressure dropApp.Hbar1.49Primary section nearce $OP_{P,MAX}$ W85Pressure dropApp.Hbar1.49Primary section nearce $OP_{P,MAX}$ W85Pressure dropApp.Hbar1.49Primary section nearce $OP_{P,MAX}$ W342Pressure drop	Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	6075
Maximum speed at rated thrust Rated power loss $v_{MAX,FN}$ $P_{V,N}$ m/min 181 430 Limiting data $P_{V,N}$ W 4430 Limiting dataFMAXN15530Maximum turustFMAXN114Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min75Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ m/min75Stall thrust P_{CM} N4296Stall current I_0^* A28.7Physical constantsPower constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/A 150Voltage constant 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/\sqrt{W} 107.7Motor constant at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.6Phase inductanceLSTRmH8.7Attraction forceFAN30910Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmm23mp.PkgMass primary section with precision coolermS, kg7.5Mass of the primary section with cooling sectionsmS, kg7.5Primary section main cooler data $\Delta T_P, H$ k10.6Pressure drop $\Delta P_P, H$ bar1.49Primary section non flow rate $V_{P,P,MAX}$ W85Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_P, H$ bar1.9Secondary section cooler data $\Delta P_P, P$ bar1.9Primary section non flow rate $V_{P,P,MAX}$ W85Pressure drop $\Delta P_P, P$ </td <td>Rated current</td> <td>I_N</td> <td>A</td> <td>40.6</td>	Rated current	I _N	A	40.6
Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W4430Limiting dataMaximum thrustFMAXN15530Maximum currentIMAXA114Maximum speed at maximum thrustVMAX,FMAXm/min75Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W54470Stall thrustF0*A28.7Physical constantsFo*A28.7Power constant at 20° CkF.20N/A150Voltage constantkEVs/m49.9Motor constant at 20° CKM.20N/ \sqrt{W} 107.7Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.6Phase inductanceLSTRmH8.7Attraction forceFAN30910Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmgkg42.2Mass of a secondary section with precision coolerms, kg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS, Pkg7.9Primary section main cooler data V_{P,H,MIN V_{min} 6Pressure dropApp_Hbar1.491.49Primary section notine $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W85Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,P,MIN V_{min} 6Pressure dropApp_Pbar1.9Secondary section cooling dataVs,MIN V_{min} 6Pressure drop per combi distributorApsbar <t< td=""><td>Maximum speed at rated thrust</td><td>VMAX,FN</td><td>m/min</td><td>181</td></t<>	Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	181
Limiting dataFMAXN15530Maximum thrustIMAXA114Maximum speed at maximum thrustVMAX,FMAXm/min75Maximum electric power inputPELMAXW54470Stall thrustF0*N4296Stall currentIq*A28.7Physical constantsPrever constant at 20° CKF_20N/A150Voltage constantKCVs/m49.9Motor constant at 20° CKM,20N/√W107.7Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20Ω0.6Phase inductanceLSTRmH8.7Phase inductanceLSTRmH8.7Power constantTrHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmp.kg44.3Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp.pkg44.3Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms.p.pkg7.9Primary section main cooler dataPrimary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW85Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINVmin6Open at 200App.pbar1.9Pressure dropApp.pbar1.9Secondary section cooler dataVP,P,MINVmin6Pressure dropApp.pbar1.9Pressure dropApp.gbar0.03Pr	Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	4430
Maximum thrust F_{MAX} N15530Maximum currentIMAXA114Maximum electric power inputVMAX,FMAXm/min75Stall thrustStall thrustF0*N4296Stall currentIp*A28.7Physical constant at 20° CkF,20N/A150Voitage constant at 20° CKF,20N/A150Voitage constant at 20° CKB,20N/ \sqrt{W} 107.7Motor constant at 20° CKB,20N/ \sqrt{W} 107.7Motor vinding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20Q0.6Phase inductanceLSTRmH8.7Attraction forceFAN30910Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary section with precision coolermp,pkg42.2Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,py7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,p1.49Primary section neare $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K1.6App,Hbar1.491.49Primary section neare $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K1.6Pressure drop $\Delta p_P,P$ bar1.9Secondary section cooler dataVP,P,MINVimin6Pressure drop $\Delta p_P,P$ bar1.9Secondary section cooling dataVS/MINVimin6Pressure drop per complicition cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pr	Limiting data			
Maximum currentIMAXA114Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min75Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W54470Stall thrust F_0^* N4296Stall current I_0^* A28.7Power constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/A150Voltage constant $k_{K,20}$ N/A107.7Motor constant at 20° C $k_{M,20}$ N/ \sqrt{W} 107.7Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Q0.6Phase inductance L_{STR} mH8.7Attraction forceFAN30910Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp.pkg44.3Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS.pkg7.5Primary section mult cooling sectionsmS.pkg7.9Primary section precision coolerMaximum heat output $O_{P,H,MAX}$ W4430Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,H,MIN V_{min} 6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta_{P,H}$ bar1.49Primary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $O_{P,P,MAX}$ W85Pressure drop $\Delta_{P,P,P}$ bar1.9Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 6Pressure drop per combi distributor Δ_{PS} <td>Maximum thrust</td> <td>F_{MAX}</td> <td>Ν</td> <td>15530</td>	Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	15530
Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min75Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W54470Stall thrust F_0^* A28.7Physical constantsPower constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/A150Voltage constant k_E $V_{S/m}$ 49.9Motor constant at 20° C $k_{R,20}$ N/\sqrt{W} 107.7Motor constant at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.6Phase inductanceLSTRmH8.7Attraction forceFAN30910Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg42.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg44.3Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,pkg7.9Primary section main cooler data $\Delta P_{P,H}$ K10.6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K10.6Opel, MAXW4430Vp,H,MINVininRecommended min. flow rate $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W85Pressure dropbar1.49Primary section cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W85Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,P,MIN Vinin6Pressure dropbar1.9Secondary section cooling dataPrimary section proble dataVS,MINVinin6Pressure drop per combi distributor <t< td=""><td>Maximum current</td><td>IMAX</td><td>A</td><td>114</td></t<>	Maximum current	IMAX	A	114
Maximum electric power input Stall thrust Stall current $P_{EL,MAX}$ F0*W54470 NPhysical constants F_0^* A28.7Physical constants I_0^* A28.7Power constant at 20° C Voltage constant Motor constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ K_{E} N/A150Phase inductance K_{E} Vs/m_{-} 49.9Motor winding resistance at 20° C Phase inductance $R_{STR,20}$ L_{STR} Ω 0.6Phase inductance L_{STR} mH8.7Attraction force F_A N30910Thermal time constant T_{TH} s120Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary sectionmpkg42.2Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermp,pkg44.3Maxis of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms,pkg7.5Maximum heat output $\Omega_{P,H,MAX}$ W4430Recommended min. flow rate $\Omega_{P,H,MAX}$ W4430Primary section precision cooler data $\Delta_{PP,H}$ K10.6Pressure drop $\Delta_{PP,H}$ K10.6Pressure drop $\Delta_{PP,H}$ K10.6Pressure drop $\Delta_{PP,P}$ Δ_{P} 1.9Secondary section cooling data $V_{P,RMIN}$ V_{min} 6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δ_{PS} Δ_{P} 1.9Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 6Pressure drop	Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	75
Stall thrust Stall current F_0^* N4296 A28.7Physical constantsPower constant at 20° CkF_20N/A150Voltage constantKEVs/m49.9Motor constant at 20° CKM_20N/ \sqrt{W} 107.7Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.6Phase inductanceLSTRmH8.7Attraction forceFAN30910Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass of the primary sectionmpkg42.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg44.3Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS_Pkg7.9Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW4430Vp,P,MINUmin6ATP,HK10.6Pressure dropADP,Hbar1.491.49Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW85Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINVmin6App,Pbar1.9342VSecondary section cooling dataVS,MINVmin6Pressure dropApsbar0.032Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingApsbar0.23ApproxMaximum heat outputQS,MAXW342Recommended min. flow rateVS,MI	Maximum electric power input	P _{EL.MAX}	W	54470
Stall current I_0^* A28.7Physical constantsPower constant at 20° CkF,20N/A150Voltage constantkEVs/m49.9Motor constant at 20° CKM,20N/ \sqrt{V} 107.7Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.6Phase inductanceLSTRmH8.7Attraction forceFAN30910Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmpkg42.2Mass primary sectionmp,Pkg42.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,Pkg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg7.9Primary section main cooler data $\Delta_{P,P,MAX}$ W4430Maximum heat outputQp,P,MAXW4430Pressure drop $\Delta_{P,P,H}$ bar1.49Primary section precision cooler data $\Delta_{P,P,H}$ K10.6Pressure drop $\Delta_{P,P,P}$ bar1.49Primary section precision cooler data $\Delta_{P,P,P}$ bar1.9Secondary section cooling data $\nabla_{P,P,MIN}$ V_{min} 6Pressure drop $\Delta_{P,P,P}$ bar1.9Primary section cooling data $\nabla_{P,P,MIN}$ V_{min} 6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δ_{PS} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δ_{PKV} bar0.23	Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	4296
Physical constantsPower constant at 20° Ck _{F,20} N/A150Voltage constantk _E Vs/m49.9Motor constant at 20° Ck _{M,20} N/ \sqrt{W} 107.7Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.6Phase inductanceLSTRmH8.7Attraction forceFAN30910Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass of the primary sectionmp.Pkg42.2Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermp.Pkg44.3Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS.PKg7.9Primary section main cooler dataVp.H.MAXW4430Maximum heat outputQp.H.MAXW4430Recommended min. flow rateVp.H.MINVmin6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K10.6Primary section precision cooler dataVp.P.MINVmin6Maximum heat outputQp.P.MAXW85Recommended min. flow rateVp.P.MINJ/min6Pressure dropApp.Pbar1.9Secondary section cooling dataVs.MINJ/min6Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingApsbar0.03Pressure drop per couplid gointApkSbar0.23ApkSMaximum heat outputApkSApkSbar0.24	Stall current	I ₀ *	A	28.7
Power constant at 20° Ck _{F,20} N/A150Voltage constantk _E Vs/m49.9Motor constant at 20° Ck _{M,20} N/ \sqrt{W} 107.7Motor winding resistance at 20° CR _{STR,20} Ω 0.6Phase inductanceL _{STR} mH8.7Attraction forceFAN30910Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg42.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg44.3Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms_pkg7.5Primary section main cooler data W 4430Vp,H,MINVminRecommended min. flow rate $\Delta p_{P,H}$ K10.6Primary section precision cooler data $M_{P,P,MAX}$ W85Primary section precision cooler dataVp,P,MINVmin6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K10.6Pressure drop $\Delta p_P,P$ bar1.91.9Secondary section cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W342Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ Vmin6Pressure drop Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KV} bar0.24	Physical constants			
Voltage constantkeVs/m49.9Motor constant at 20° CkM,20N/ \sqrt{W} 107.7Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.6Phase inductanceLSTRmH8.7Attraction forceFAN30910Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg42.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,Pkg44.3Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg7.5Primary section main cooler data $M_{P,H,MAX}$ W4430Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,H,MIN I/min6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K10.6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1.49Primary section cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W85Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1.9Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W342Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ I/min6Pressure drop Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KV} bar0.23	Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	150
Motor constant at 20° CkM,20 N/\sqrt{W} 107.7Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.6Phase inductanceLSTRmH8.7Attraction forceFAN30910Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg42.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,Pkg44.3Mass secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg7.9Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW4430Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta TP,H$ K10.6Pressure drop $\Delta pP,H$ bar1.49Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW85Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta PP,P$ bar1.9Secondary section cooler dataJapp,Pbar1.9Secondary section cooler data $\Delta PP,P$ bar1.9Secondary section cooling data $\Delta PP,P$ bar1.9Secondary section cooling data $\nabla S,MIN$ $Vmin$ 6Pressure drop $\Delta PP,P$ bar0.03Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling ΔPS bar0.23Pressure drop per combi distributor ΔDK_S bar0.24	Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	49.9
Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω0.6Phase inductance L_{STR} mH8.7Attraction force F_A N30910Thermal time constant t_{TH} s120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmp.kg42.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp.pkg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS.Pkg7.9Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W4430Recommended min. flow rate $V'_{P,H,MIN}$ V/min6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K10.6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1.49Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W85Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,P,MIN Vmin6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.9Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W342Recommended min. flow rate $V'_{S,MIN}$ V/min6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KV} bar0.24	Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	107.7
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	0.6
Attraction force F_A N30910Thermal time constant t_{TH} s120Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary section m_P kg42.2Mass of the primary section with precision cooler m_P,P kg44.3Mass secondary section with cooling sections m_S kg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg7.9Primary section main cooler data $W_{P,H,MAX}$ W4430Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ V/min6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K10.6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1.49Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W85Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ V_{min} 6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.9Secondary section cooling data $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 6Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W342Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ J_{min} 6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combid distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	8.7
Thermal time constant t_{TH} s120Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary section m_P kg42.2Mass of the primary section with precision cooler m_P,P kg44.3Mass secondary section with cooling sections m_S kg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg7.9Primary section main cooler data W 4430 $V_{P,H,MAX}$ W 4430Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,H,MAX}$ W 4430Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K 10.6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1.49Primary section precision cooler data $V_{P,P,MAX}$ W 85Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,P,MAX}$ W 85Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.9Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Pressure drop per combi distributor $Q_{P,KV}$ bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Attraction force	F _A	Ν	30910
Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary sectionmpkg42.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg44.3Mass secondary section with cooling sectionsmskg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms,pkg7.9Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQp,H,MAXW4430Recommended min. flow rate VP,H,MIN I/min6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta TP,H$ K10.6Pressure drop $\Delta pp,H$ bar1.49Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW85Recommended min. flow rate VP,P,MIN I/min6Pressure drop $\Delta pp,P$ bar1.9Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat outputQs,MAXW342Recommended min. flow rate VS,MIN I/min6Pressure drop $\Delta pp,$ bar0.03Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δps bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120
Mass primary section m_P kg42.2Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $m_{P,P}$ kg44.3Mass secondary section m_S kg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg7.9Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W4430Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ l/min6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K10.6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1.49Primary section precision cooler data $\psi_{P,P,MAX}$ W85Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.9Secondary section cooling data $\psi_{S,MIN}$ W342Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W342Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ l/min6Pressure drop Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.23Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Pole width	т _М	mm	23
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $m_{P,P}$ kg44.3Mass secondary section m_S kg 7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg7.9Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W4430Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ l/min6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K10.6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1.49Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W85Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.9Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W342Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ l/min6Pressure drop Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_{S} bar0.23Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Mass primary section	m _P	kg	42.2
Mass secondary sectionmgkg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmg,Pkg7.9Primary section main cooler dataQP,H,MAXW4430Maximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW4430Recommended min. flow rateVP,H,MINl/min6Cooling medium temperature increaseΔTP,HK10.6Pressure dropΔPP,Hbar1.49Primary section precision cooler dataW85Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW85Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINl/min6Pressure dropΔpP,Pbar1.9Secondary section cooling dataW342Maximum heat outputQS,MAXW342Recommended min. flow rateVS,MINl/min6Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingΔpSbar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributorΔpKVbar0.23Pressure drop per coupling pointΔpKSbar0.24	Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	44.3
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsm _{S,P} kg7.9Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQ _{P,H,MAX} W4430Recommended min. flow rateV̇ _{P,H,MIN} I/min6Cooling medium temperature increaseΔT _{P,H} K10.6Pressure dropΔp _{P,H} bar1.49Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQ _{P,P,MAX} W85Recommended min. flow rateV̈ _{P,P,MIN} I/min6Pressure dropΔp _{P,P} bar1.9Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat outputQ _{S,MAX} W342Recommended min. flow rateV̇ _{S,MIN} I/min6Pressure dropΔp _S bar0.03Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingΔp _S bar0.23Pressure drop per combi distributorΔp _{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling pointΔp _{KS} bar0.24	Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	7.5
Primary section main cooler data QP,H,MAX W 4430 Maximum heat output QP,H,MIN I/min 6 Recommended min. flow rate VP,H,MIN I/min 6 Cooling medium temperature increase ΔTP,H K 10.6 Pressure drop ΔPP,H bar 1.49 Primary section precision cooler data Maximum heat output QP,P,MAX W 85 Recommended min. flow rate ÝP,P,MIN I/min 6 Pressure drop ΔpP,P bar 1.9 Secondary section cooling data Maximum heat output QS,MAX W 342 Maximum heat output QS,MAX W 342 1/min 6 Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling ΔpS bar 0.03 0.3 Pressure drop per combi distributor ΔpKV bar 0.23 0.24	Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	7.9
Maximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W4430Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ I/min6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K10.6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1.49Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W85Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ I/min6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.9Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W342Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Primary section main cooler data			
Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ I/min6Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K10.6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1.49Primary section precision cooler data $\Psi_{P,P,MAX}$ W85Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W85Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ I/min6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.9Secondary section cooling dataW342Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W342Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	4430
Cooling medium temperature increase Pressure drop $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K10.6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1.49Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output Recommended min. flow rate $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W85Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.9Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output Recommended min. flow rate $Q_{S,MAX}$ W342Maximum heat output Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ I/min6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.03Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	6
Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar1.49Primary section precision cooler data $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W85Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min6Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.9Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W342Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ l/min6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P.H}	к	10.6
Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W85Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ I/min6Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.9Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W342Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	1.49
$\begin{array}{c c} Maximum heat output & Q_{P,P,MAX} & W & 85 \\ Recommended min. flow rate & \dot{V}_{P,P,MIN} & l/min & 6 \\ Pressure drop & \Delta p_{P,P} & bar & 1.9 \end{array}$	Primary section precision cooler data			
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	85
Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar1.9Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W342Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	6
Secondary section cooling data Maximum heat output Q _{S,MAX} W 342 Recommended min. flow rate VS,MIN I/min 6 Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling ΔpS bar 0.03 Pressure drop per combi distributor ΔpKV bar 0.23 Pressure drop per coupling point ΔpKS bar 0.24	Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	1.9
Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W342Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ l/min 6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Secondary section cooling data			
Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ I/min6Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Maximum heat output	Q _{S.MAX}	W	342
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Recommended min. flow rate	V _{S.MIN}	l/min	6
Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.23Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.24	Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.03
Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar 0.24	Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.23
	Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.24

01.06



1FN3900-3WB00-0AA1 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



15 Technical Data and Characteristics

1FN3900-4WB00-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	8100	
Rated current	I _N	A	49.4	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	160	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	5890	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	20700	
Maximum current	IMAX	Α	138.9	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	65	
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	68910	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	5728	
Stall current	I ₀ *	А	34.9	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F.20}	N/A	164	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	54.6	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	124.6	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	0.6	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	7.5	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	41210	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	23	
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	56.2	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	58.9	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	7.5	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	7.9	
Primary section main cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	5890	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	6.5	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	к	13	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	2.24	
Primary section precision cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	110	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	6.5	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	2.66	
Secondary section cooling data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	451	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{S,MIN}	l/min	6.5	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.03	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.26	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.28	

01.06



1FN3900-4WB00-0AA1 characteristics

1FN3

Primary section main cooler characteristics



Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



15 Technical Data and Characteristics

Technical dataBrief designationUnitsValueLimitations/secondary conditions DC link voltage U_{ZK} V 600DC link voltage U_{QK} T_{VORL} T_C 35Rated temperature T_N T_C 120Rated tamperature T_N T_C 120Rated data F_N N 8100Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MX,FNN}$ m/min 203Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MX,FNN}$ m/min 203Maximum speed at maximum thrust F_MAX N 20700Maximum electric power input F_0^* N 5728Stall furnet F_0^* N 5728Stall current F_0^* N 5728Power constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ N/A 134Voltage constant 20^*C $K_{RT,20}$ Ω/A Phase inductance F_A N 2125.2Motor winding resistance at 20° C $K_{RT,20}$ Ω/A 44.5Motor constant at 20° C $K_{RT,20}$ Ω/A 41210Thermal time constant T_{TH} s 120Pleweidth T_{M} m_{M} 56.2 Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $m_{S,P}$ k_{g} Mass of the primary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ k_{g} Primary section main cooler data $V_{P,HINN}$ V_{M} 110Mass of the primary section matin cooler data $V_{P,HINN}$ V_{M} Maximum heat ou	1FN3900-4WB50-0AA1				
Limitations/secondary conditionsDC link voltage Water cooling intake temperature Rated temperatureUzk TVORLV600 °CRated data"C120Rated drustFN NN8100Rated trustIN NA60.6Maximum speed at rated thrustVMAX,FNm/min203 Rated power lossLimiting dataFMAXN20700Maximum thrustImage dataFMAXN20700Maximum currentIMAXA76280Maximum speed at maximum thrustVMAX,FMAXW76280Maximum electric power inputF0°N4.2.9.Physical constant at 20° CKF 20N/A134Voltage constant at 20° CKSTRMH5Voltage constant at 20° CKSTRMH5Attraction forceFAN41210Thermal time constantTHs120Pole widthTMmm23mpMass of the primary section with precision coolerms,pkg56.2Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectonsms,pkg56.2Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectonsms,pkg7.9Primary section main cooler dataQP,P,MAXW5830Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW56.3Assord on procision cooler dataGS,MAXW45.1Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW56.2Maximum heat outputQP,P,MA	Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
DC link voltageUZKV600Water cooling intske temperatureTvORL°C35Rated detaT°C120Rated dursFNN8100Rated durstFNN60.6Maximum speed at rated thrustVMAX,FNm/min203Rated currentVMAX,FNm/min203Limiting dataFMAXN20700Maximum speed at maximum thrustFMAXA170.3Maximum eurrentIMAXA170.3Maximum electric power inputF1************************************	Limitations/secondary conditions				
Water cooling intake temperature T_{VORL} "C35Rated dataT"C120Rated dataRated trustFNN8100Rated currentINA60.6Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MAX,FN}$ w/minin203Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W5830Limiting dataMaximum speed at maximum thrust F_{MAX} N20700Maximum speed at maximum thrust F_{MAX} N76280Maximum speed at maximum thrust F_{0}^* N5728Stall currentIo*A42.9Physical constant 4 20° CKgKF_20N/A134Voltage constant 4 20° CKM_20N'/QW125.2Motor winding resistance at 20° CKM_20N/QW125.2Phase inductanceLSTRmH5Attraction forceFAN41210Thermal time constantTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermp.p.kg56.2Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermS.p.Kg7.5Maximum heat outputQP.HMAXW5830Maximum heat outputQP.MAXW110Recommended min. flow rateQS.MAXW451Pressure dropApp.pbar2.66Secondary section cooling dataQS.MAXW451<	DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Rated temperature T_N "C120Rated thrustFNN8100Rated thrustFNN60.6Maximum speed at rated thrustVMAX,FNm/min203Rated power lossP/NW5830Limiting dataFMAXN20700Maximum speed at maximum thrustFMAX,FNXM/min86Maximum speed at maximum thrustFMAX,FAXM/min86Maximum speed at maximum thrustFo*N5728Maximum speed at maximum thrustFo*N5728Maximum electric power inputFo*N42.9Physical constantsFo*N5728Stall currentIo*A42.9Physical constant at 20° CKE,20N/A134Voltage constant at 20° CKM,20N/ \sqrt{V} 125.2Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20Q0.4Phase inductanceLSTRM41210Thermal time constantTms120Pole widthTmTms120Pole widthTmS68.9ms7.9Primary section with cooling section on ms_p.pkg56.2Mass of the primary section with cooling section ms_p.pkg7.9Primary section main cooler dataVP,HAXW5830Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW110Recommended min. flow rateQP,MAXW110Pressure dropApp_hbar2.66 <td>Water cooling intake temperature</td> <td>T_{VORL}</td> <td>°C</td> <td>35</td>	Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated dutaRated thrust F_N N R 60.6Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MAX,FN}$ M R 60.6Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MAX,FN}$ M M $S830$ Limiting dataLimiting dataMaximum thrust F_{MAX} N 20700 Maximum speed at maximum thrust F_{MAX} N 20700 Maximum speed at maximum thrust F_{MAX} N 88 Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W 76280 Stall current I_0^* A 42.9 Physical constantsPhysical constant $K_E 20$ N/A 134 Voltage constant $K_E 20$ N/A 134 Voltage constant $K_E 20$ N/\sqrt{M} 125.2 Motor unding resistance at 20° C $K_{M,20}$ N/\sqrt{M} 125.2 Motor unding resistance at 20° C $K_{M,20}$ N/\sqrt{M} 125.2 Motor unding resistance at 20° C $K_{M,20}$ N/\sqrt{M} 41210 Thermal time constant T_{TH} s 120 Pole width T_M mm 23 Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $m_S p$ kg 7.5 Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_S p$ kg 7.5 Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections S_P,MAX W 5830 Primary section precision cooler dat M_P,MIN $Mmin$ 6.5 <t< td=""><td>Rated temperature</td><td>Τ_N</td><td>°C</td><td>120</td></t<>	Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated thrust F_N N8100Rated currentINA60.6Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MAX,FN}$ m/min203Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W5830Limiting dataMaximum thrust F_{MAX} N20700Maximum currentIMAXA170.3Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min88Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W76280Stall thrust F_0^* A42.9Physical constants $P_{CL,MAX}$ N5728Stall current I_0^* A44.5Motor constant at 20° CkF_20N/ \sqrt{W} 125.2Motor constant at 20° CkgN/ \sqrt{W} 125.2Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20Q0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5Attraction forceFAN41210Thermal time constantTMmm23Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary section with precision coolermp,pkg56.2Mass of the primary section with cooling sectionsmS,pkg7.5Maximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW5830VRecommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINWini6.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta TP, H$ bar2.24Primary section need outputQP,P,MAXW110Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINW	Rated data				
Rated currentINA60.6Maximum speed at rated thrust $V_{MAX,FN}$ m/min203Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ $S830$ Limiting data F_{MAX} N20700Maximum currentIMAXA170.3Maximum speed at maximum thrust F_{MAX} N20700Maximum electric power input $F_{D,MAX}$ M76280Stall thrust F_0^* N5728Stall current I_0^* A42.9Physical constantPhysical constantKE_20N/A134Voltage constant at 20° C $K_{F,20}$ N/A134Voltage constant at 20° CKM_20N/ \sqrt{W} 125.2Motor winding resistance at 20° CKSTR,20 Ω Ω Phase inductanceLSTRmH5Attraction forceFAN41210Thermal time constantTMmm23Mass primary section with precision coolermp, Pkg56.2Mass of the primary section with cooling sectionsmS, pkg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS, PKg58.9Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW110Recommended min. flow rate V_{P,P,MIN Wmin6.5Pressure dropApp,Pbar2.66Secondary section cooling data V_{P,P,MIN Winnin6.5Pressure drop per combi distributor $O_{P,P,MAX}$ W <t< td=""><td>Rated thrust</td><td>F_N</td><td>Ν</td><td>8100</td></t<>	Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	8100	
Maximum speed at rated thrust Rated power loss $v_{MAX,FN}$ $P_{V,N}$ m/min 203 StallLimiting data $P_{V,N}$ W 5830Limiting dataFMAXN20700Maximum trust I_{MAX} A170.3Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min 88Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min 88Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ m/min 88Stall thrust F_0^* N5728Stall current I_0^* A4.2.9Physical constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/A 134Voltage constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/\sqrt{W} 125.2Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω 0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5Attraction force F_A N41210Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmmg56.2Mass of the primary section with precision cooler m_S kg5.8.9Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections m_S,p kg7.5Primary section main cooler data $\Delta T_P,H$ k12.9Pressure drop $\Delta P_P,MAX$ W11010Recommended min. flow rate Q_P,P,MAX W110Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_P,H$ bar2.66Secondary section cooling data M_P,P Maximum heat output Q_P,P,MAX W<	Rated current	I _N	А	60.6	
Rated power loss $P_{V,N}$ W5830Limiting dataMaximum thrustFMAXN20700Maximum currentIMAXA170.3Maximum speed at maximum thrustVMAX,FMAXm/min88Maximum electric power inputPEL.MAXW76280Stall currentIg*A42.9Physical constantF0*A42.9Physical constant at 20° CKF.20N/A134Voltage constant at 20° CKM.20N/ \sqrt{W} 125.2Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20Q0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5Attraction forceFAN41210Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm2323Mass primary sectionmp.pkg56.2Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermS, Pkg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS, Pkg7.9Primary section main cooler data V_{P,H,MIN V/min6.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K12.9Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.24Primary section cooling dataVV_S,MINV/min6.5Secondary section cooling dataVS5.6Maximum heat outputQS,MAXW4511.0Recommended min. flow rateVS,MINV/min6.5Pressure drop pe	Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	203	
Limiting dataMaximum thrustFMAXN20700Maximum currentIMAXA170.3Maximum speed at maximum thrustVMAX,FMAXW76280Stall thrustF0*N5728Stall currentIg*A42.9Physical constantPower constant at 20° CKF_20N/A134Voltage constant at 20° CKF_20N/A134Voltage constant at 20° CKG20N/√W125.2Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR, 20Q0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5Attraction forceFAN41210Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmm2333Mass primary sectionmp.pkg56.2Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermp.pkg7.9Primary section main cooler dataRecommended min. flow rateVP.H.MINVimin6.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta TP.H$ K12.9Pressure drop $\Delta pP.P$ $bar2.24Primary section cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP.P.MAXW451Recommended min. flow rateVP.P.MINVimin6.5Pressure dropApp.Pbar2.66Secondary section cooler dataVP.P.MINVimin6.5Pressure dropApp.Sbar0.03Pressure drop per$	Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	5830	
Maximum thrust F_{MAX} N20700Maximum currentIMAXA170.3Maximum speed at maximum thrustVMAX,FMAXm/min88Maximum electric power inputPEL.MAXW76280Stall thrustF0*N5728Stall currentI0*A42.9Physical constant at 20° CkF,20N/A134Voltage constant at 20° CKF,20N/A144.5Motor constant at 20° CKB,20N/ \sqrt{W} 125.2Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20Q0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5Attraction forceFAN41210Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmp,pkg56.2Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermp,pkg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,py7.9Primary section main cooler dataVP,H.MINI/min6.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta TP,H$ K12.9pressure drop $\Delta pp,P$ bar2.24Ptimary section cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P.MAXW451Recommended min. flow rateVP,P.MINI/min6.5Pressure drop $\Delta pp,P$ bar2.66Secondary section cooling dataVS,MINI/min6.5Pressure drop per complicitibuto	Limiting data				
Maximum currentIMAXA170.3Maximum speed at maximum thrust $V_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min88Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W76280Stall thrust F_0^* N5728Stall current I_0^* A42.9Physical constantsPower constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/A134Voltage constant k_E Vs/m 44.5Motor constant at 20° C $k_{M,20}$ N/\sqrt{W} 125.2Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω 0.4Phase inductance L_{STR} mH5Attraction force F_A N41210Thermal time constant T_M mm23Mass of the primary section with precision cooler m_P , P kg 56.2Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections m_S, P kg 7.5Primary section mult cooler data $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W5830Maximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W 5830Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,H,MIN}$ $Umin$ 6.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ W 110Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ Δp_S Δa_P 2.66Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ $Vmin$ 6.5Pressure drop per combit distributor Δp_S Δa_P 0.26Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} Δa_P 0.26	Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	20700	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust $v_{MAX,FMAX}$ m/min88Maximum electric power input $P_{EL,MAX}$ W76280Stall thrust F_0^* A42.9Physical constantsPower constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/A134Voltage constant k_E $V_{S/m}$ 44.5Motor constant at 20° C $k_{F,20}$ N/\sqrt{W} 125.2Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω 0.4Phase inductance L_{STR} mH5Attraction force F_A N41210Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole width m_p kg56.2Mass of the primary section with precision cooler m_p, p kg58.9Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg7.9Primary section main cooler data V_{P,H,MIN $Vmin$ 6.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K12.9Ape_Pbar2.24 Primary section cooling data Pressure drop $\Delta_{P,P,MAX}$ W110Recommended min, flow rate V_{P,P,MIN $Vmin$ 6.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K 12.9Pressure drop $\Delta_{P,P}$ $\Delta_{P,P}$ $\Delta_{P,P}$ $\Delta_{P,P}$ Pressure drop per cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ $Vmin$ 6.5Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ $Vmin$ 6.5Pressure drop per complic distribut	Maximum current	IMAX	А	170.3	
Maximum electric power input Stall thrust $P_{EL,MAX}$ F0*W76280 NStall thrust Stall current F_0^* A42.9Physical constantsIA42.9Power constant at 20° C Voltage constantkF,20 KEN/A134 Vs/m_Motor constant at 20° C Motor winding resistance at 20° C Phase inductancekF,20 KE,20N/ \sqrt{W} 125.2 Q Q Q0.4Phase inductance Pole widthLSTR THmH5Attraction force Pole widthFA TMN41210 Thermal time constantThermal time constant Pole widthTM TMmm23 RgMass of the primary section Mass of a secondary section with precision cooler Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg56.2Maximum heat output Recommended min. flow rate Pressure dropQP,H,MAX VP,H,MINW5830 VP,H,MIN12.9Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output Recommended min. flow rate VP,P,HQP,P,MAX VP,P,MINW110Recommended min. flow rate Pressure dropQP,P,MAX VP,P,MINW110Recommended min. flow rate Pressure dropQS,MAX VP,P,MINW451Maximum heat output Recommended min. flow rate Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling App_PQS,MAX App_N451Maximum heat output Recommended min. flow rate Pressure drop per coupling pointQP,KV Aps Aps451Maximum heat output Recommended min. flow rate Pressure dro	Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	88	
Stall thrust Stall current F_0^* N5728 APhysical constantsIo*A42.9Power constant at 20° CkF_20N/A134Voltage constantKEVs/m44.5Motor constant at 20° CKM_20N/ \sqrt{W} 125.2Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5Attraction forceFAN41210Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg56.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg58.9Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS_Pkg7.9Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW5830Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_P,H$ K12.9Pressure drop $\Delta pp,P$ bar2.24Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW110Recommended min. flow rate ∇_P,P,MIN V_min 6.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_P,H$ bar2.26Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat outputQS,MAXW451Recommended min. flow rate ∇_S,MIN V_min 6.5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per	Maximum electric power input	P _{EL.MAX}	W	76280	
Stall current I_0^* A42.9Physical constantsPower constant at 20° CkF,20N/A134Voltage constantkEVs/m44.5Motor constant at 20° CRA,20N/ \sqrt{V} 125.2Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5Attraction forceFAN41210Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmpkg56.2Mass primary sectionmp,Pkg56.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,Pkg58.9Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg7.5Primary section main cooler dataVp,H,MAXW5830Maximum heat outputQp,P,HMAXW5830Recommended min. flow rateVp,P,MINVmin6.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_P,H$ K12.9Pressure drop $\Delta pP,P$ bar2.24Primary section cooler dataMaximum heat outputQp,P,P,MAXW110Recommended min. flow rate V_P,P,MIN $Vmin$ 6.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_P,P,MAX$ W451Pressure drop $\Delta pP,P,P$ bar2.66Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat outputQS,MAXW451Recommended min. flow rateVS,MINVmin6.5	Stall thrust	F ₀ *	Ν	5728	
Physical constantsPower constant at 20° Ck _{F,20} N/A134Voltage constantk _E Vs/m44.5Motor constant at 20° CK _{M,20} N/ \sqrt{W} 125.2Motor winding resistance at 20° CR _{STR,20} Ω 0.4Phase inductanceL _{STR} mH5Attraction forceFAN41210Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass of the primary sectionmp.kg56.2Mass of a secondary section with precision coolermp.Pkg58.9Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS.Pkg7.9Primary section main cooler data V_{P,H,MIN Vmin6.5Maximum heat outputQp.P,HAAXW5830Virp.H,MINVmin6.524Primary section precision cooler dataVirp.P,MINVirinPrimary section precision cooler dataVirp.P,MINVirinMaximum heat outputQp.P,MAXW110Recommended min. flow rateVirp.P,MINVirin6.5Decommended min. flow rateVirp.P,MINVirin6.5Pressure dropApp.Pbar2.66Secondary section cooling dataVirp.NiNVirin6.5App.Sbar0.03ApKVbar0.26Pressure drop per combi distributorApKSbar0.28	Stall current	I ₀ *	А	42.9	
Power constant at 20° Ck _{F,20} N/A134Voltage constantk _E Vs/m44.5Motor constant at 20° Ck _{M,20} N/ \sqrt{W} 125.2Motor winding resistance at 20° CR _{STR,20} Ω 0.4Phase inductanceL _{STR} mH5Attraction forceFAN41210Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg56.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,Pkg58.9Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms_Pkg7.9Primary section main cooler data $W_{P,H,MAX}$ W5830Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,H,MIN}$ Vmin6.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K12.9Primary section precision cooler dataVp,P,MINVmin6.5Scondary section valueMaximum heat outputQp,P,MAXW110Recommended min. flow rateVp,P,MINVmin6.5Secondary section cooling dataVp,P,MINVmin6.5Pressure dropApp,Pbar2.66Secondary section cooling dataVs,MINVmin6.5Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingApsbar0.03Apsbar0.03Apsbar0.26Pressure drop per coupling pointApsbar0.28	Physical constants				
Voltage constantkeVs/m44.5Motor constant at 20° CkM,20N/ \sqrt{W} 125.2Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5Attraction forceFAN41210Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthmMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg56.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,Pkg58.9Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg7.5Primary section main cooler data $\nabla_{P,H,MAX}$ W5830Recommended min. flow rate ∇_{P,H,MIN I/min6.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta TP,H$ K12.9Primary section precision cooler data $\Delta p_P,H$ bar2.24Primary section precision cooler data V_{P,H,MIN I/min6.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta TP,H$ K12.9App,Hbar2.242.663Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ V110Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ V451Pressure drop $\Delta p_P,P$ bar2.66Secondary section cooling data $V_{S,MIN}$ V451Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{K_N} bar0.26	Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	134	
Motor constant at 20° CkM,20 N/\sqrt{W} 125.2Motor winding resistance at 20° CRSTR,20 Ω 0.4Phase inductanceLSTRmH5Attraction forceFAN41210Thermal time constanttTHs120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg56.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,Pkg58.9Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,Pkg7.9Primary section main cooler data $V_{P,H,MAX}$ W5830Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K12.9Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar2.24Primary section precision cooler data $V_{P,P,MIN}$ V_{min} 6.5Secondary section cooler data $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W110Recommended min. flow rate $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W451Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W451Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 6.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_P,P$ bar0.03Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.26Pressure drop per coupling point ΔD_{KV} bar0.28	Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	44.5	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C $R_{STR,20}$ Ω0.4Phase inductance L_{STR} mH5Attraction force F_A N41210Thermal time constant t_{TH} s120Pole widthTMmm23Mass primary sectionmpkg56.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp, Pkg58.9Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms, Pkg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsms, Pkg7.9Primary section main cooler data $V_{P,H,MAX}$ W5830Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K12.9Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar2.24Primary section precision cooler data $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K110Recommended min. flow rate $\nabla P,P,MAX$ W110Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.66Secondary section cooling data $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.66Secondary section cooling data $\nabla S,MIN$ $Vmin$ 6.5App.pebar0.03 ρ_{PS} bar0.03Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_{S} bar0.26Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KV} bar0.28	Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	125.2	
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	0.4	
Attraction force F_A N41210Thermal time constant t_{TH} s120Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary sectionmpkg56.2Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $m_{P,P}$ kg58.9Mass secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg7.9Primary section main cooler data $W_{P,H,MAX}$ W5830Maximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W5830Recommended min. flow rate $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K12.9Origin edium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K12.9Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar2.24Primary section precision cooler dataW110Recommended min. flow rate $V_{P,P,MIN}$ V_{min} 6.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.66Secondary section cooling dataUmin6.5Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W451Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ V_{min} 6.5Pressure drop Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling $\Delta p_K N$ bar0.26Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.26Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.28	Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	5	
Thermal time constant t_{TH} s120Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary section m_P kg56.2Mass of the primary section with precision cooler m_P,P kg58.9Mass secondary section with cooling sections m_S kg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg7.9Primary section main cooler data W 583058.9Maximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W5830Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ $Vmin$ 6.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K12.9Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar2.24Primary section precision cooler data $V_{P,P,MAX}$ W110Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ $Vmin$ 6.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.66Secondary section cooling data W 451Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W 451Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ $Vmin$ 6.5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.26Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.28	Attraction force	F _A	Ν	41210	
Pole width T_M mm23Mass primary sectionmpkg56.2Mass of the primary section with precision coolermp,pkg58.9Mass secondary section with cooling sectionsmSkg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmS,pkg7.9Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW5830Recommended min. flow rate VP,H,MIN l/min6.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta TP,H$ K12.9Pressure drop $\Delta pP,H$ bar2.24Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW110Recommended min. flow rate VP,P,MIN l/min6.5Pressure drop $\Delta pP,P$ bar2.66Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat outputQS,MAXW451Recommended min. flow rate VS,MIN l/min6.5Pressure drop ΔpS bar0.03Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling ΔpS bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor ΔpKV bar0.26Pressure drop per coupling point ΔpKS bar0.28	Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Mass primary section m_P kg56.2Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $m_{P,P}$ kg58.9Mass secondary section m_S kg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg7.9Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W5830Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ l/min6.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K12.9Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar2.24Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W110Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min6.5Secondary section cooling data $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.66Secondary section cooling data $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ V/min6.5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.26Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.28	Pole width	тм	mm	23	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler $m_{P,P}$ kg58.9Mass secondary section m_S kg 7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg7.9Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W5830Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ l/min6.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K12.9Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar2.24Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W110Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min6.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.66Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W451Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ l/min6.5Pressure drop Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_KV bar0.26Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KS} bar0.28	Mass primary section	m _P	kg	56.2	
Mass secondary sectionmgkg7.5Mass of a secondary section with cooling sectionsmg,Pkg7.9Primary section main cooler dataQP,H,MAXW5830Maximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW5830Recommended min. flow rateÚP,H,MINl/min6.5Cooling medium temperature increaseΔTP,HK12.9Pressure dropΔPP,Hbar2.24Primary section precision cooler dataW110Maximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW110Recommended min. flow rateÚP,P,MINl/min6.5Pressure dropΔPP,Pbar2.66Secondary section cooling dataW451Maximum heat outputQS,MAXW451Recommended min. flow rateÚS,MINl/min6.5Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingΔpSbar0.03Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingΔpSbar0.26Pressure drop per combi distributorΔpKVbar0.26Pressure drop per coupling pointΔpKSbar0.28	Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	58.9	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections $m_{S,P}$ kg7.9Primary section main cooler data $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W5830Maximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MIN}$ I/min6.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K12.9Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar2.24Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W110Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ I/min6.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.66Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W451Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min6.5Pressure drop Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_KV bar0.26Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KS} bar0.28	Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	7.5	
Primary section main cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,H,MAXW5830Recommended min. flow rateVP,H,MINI/min6.5Cooling medium temperature increaseΔTP,HK12.9Pressure dropΔPP,Hbar2.24Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat outputQP,P,MAXW110Recommended min. flow rateVP,P,MINI/min6.5Pressure dropΔpP,Pbar2.66Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat outputQ _{S,MAX} W451Recommended min. flow rateVS,MINI/min6.5Pressure dropΔpP,Pbar2.66Secondary section cooling dataUmin6.50.03Pressure drop per meter secondary section coolingΔpSbar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributorΔpKVbar0.26Pressure drop per coupling pointΔpKSbar0.28	Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	7.9	
Maximum heat output $Q_{P,H,MAX}$ W5830Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ I/min6.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K12.9Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar2.24Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W110Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ I/min6.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.66Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W451Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min6.5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.26Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.28	Primary section main cooler data				
Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,H,MIN}$ I/min6.5Cooling medium temperature increase $\Delta T_{P,H}$ K12.9Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar2.24Primary section precision cooler dataVImin6.5Maximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W110Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ I/min6.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.66Secondary section cooling dataSecondary section cooling dataVMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W451Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min6.5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.26Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.28	Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	5830	
$\begin{array}{c c} Cooling medium temperature increase \\ Pressure drop & \Delta T_{P,H} & K & 12.9 \\ \hline \Delta P_{P,H} & bar & 2.24 \\ \hline \end{array}$	Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	6.5	
Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,H}$ bar2.24Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W110Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ l/min6.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.66Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W451Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ l/min6.5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.26Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.28	Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P.H}	к	12.9	
Primary section precision cooler dataMaximum heat output $Q_{P,P,MAX}$ W110Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{P,P,MIN}$ I/min6.5Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.66Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W451Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min6.5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.26Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.28	Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	2.24	
$\begin{array}{c c} Maximum heat output & Q_{P,P,MAX} & W & 110 \\ Recommended min. flow rate & \dot{V}_{P,P,MIN} & l/min & 6.5 \\ Pressure drop & \Delta p_{P,P} & bar & 2.66 \end{array}$	Primary section precision cooler data				
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	110	
Pressure drop $\Delta p_{P,P}$ bar2.66Secondary section cooling dataMaximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W451Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ I/min6.5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.26Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.28	Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,P,MIN}	l/min	6.5	
Secondary section cooling data Maximum heat output Q _{S,MAX} W 451 Recommended min. flow rate VS,MIN I/min 6.5 Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling ΔpS bar 0.03 Pressure drop per combi distributor ΔpKV bar 0.26 Pressure drop per coupling point ΔpKS bar 0.28	Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	2.66	
Maximum heat output $Q_{S,MAX}$ W451Recommended min. flow rate $\dot{V}_{S,MIN}$ l/min6.5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.26Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.28	Secondary section cooling data				
Recommended min. flow rate $V_{S,MIN}$ I/min6.5Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.26Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.28	Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	451	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling Δp_S bar0.03Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.26Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.28	Recommended min. flow rate	Ý _{S.MIN}	l/min	6.5	
Pressure drop per combi distributor Δp_{KV} bar0.26Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar0.28	Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.03	
Pressure drop per coupling point Δp_{KS} bar 0.28	Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.26	
	Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.28	

01.06



1FN3900-4WB50-0AA1 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



1**FN**3

15 Technical Data and Characteristics

1FN3900-4WC00-0AA1				
Technical data	Brief designation	Units	Value	
Limitations/secondary conditions				
DC link voltage	U _{ZK}	V	600	
Water cooling intake temperature	T _{VORL}	°C	35	
Rated temperature	Τ _N	°C	120	
Rated data				
Rated thrust	F _N	Ν	8100	
Rated current	I _N	A	73.5	
Maximum speed at rated thrust	VMAX,FN	m/min	253	
Rated power loss	P _{V,N}	W	5340	
Limiting data				
Maximum thrust	F _{MAX}	Ν	20700	
Maximum current	I _{MAX}	A	206.5	
Maximum speed at maximum thrust	VMAX,FMAX	m/min	115	
Maximum electric power input	P _{EL,MAX}	W	81870	
Stall thrust	F ₀ *	N	5728	
Stall current	I ₀ *	А	52	
Physical constants				
Power constant at 20° C	k _{F,20}	N/A	110	
Voltage constant	k _E	Vs/m	36.7	
Motor constant at 20° C	k _{M,20}	N/√W	130.8	
Motor winding resistance at 20° C	R _{STR,20}	Ω	0.2	
Phase inductance	L _{STR}	mH	3.4	
Attraction force	F _A	Ν	41210	
Thermal time constant	t _{TH}	s	120	
Pole width	тм	mm	23	
Mass primary section	m _P	kg	56.2	
Mass of the primary section with precision cooler	m _{P,P}	kg	58.9	
Mass secondary section	m _S	kg	7.5	
Mass of a secondary section with cooling sections	m _{S,P}	kg	7.9	
Primary section main cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,H,MAX}	W	5345	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{P,H,MIN}	l/min	6.5	
Cooling medium temperature increase	ΔT _{P,H}	К	11.8	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,H}	bar	2.24	
Primary section precision cooler data				
Maximum heat output	Q _{P,P,MAX}	W	110	
Recommended min. flow rate	V _{Р,Р,МIN}	l/min	6.5	
Pressure drop	Δp _{P,P}	bar	2.66	
Secondary section cooling data		1		
Maximum heat output	Q _{S,MAX}	W	451	
Recommended min. flow rate	Ϋ́ _{S,MIN}	l/min	6.5	
Pressure drop per meter secondary section cooling	Δp _S	bar	0.03	
Pressure drop per combi distributor	Δp _{KV}	bar	0.26	
Pressure drop per coupling point	Δp _{KS}	bar	0.28	



1FN3900-4WC00-0AA1 characteristics





Pressure drop characteristics for the primary section precision cooler and the secondary section cooling



15.3 Additional characteristics

15.3.1 Continuous thrust vs. intake temperature

The motor's continuous thrust capacity F_{eff} is dependent on the intake temperature of the primary section main cooler F_{VORL} , see Figure 15-7. F_{eff} must not exceed the rated thrust of the motor if T_{VORL} = 35 °C applies.



Figure 15-7 Maximum continuous thrust dependent on the intake temperature of the primary section main cooler

15.3.2 Attraction force vs. relative air gap

The attraction force F_A between the primary section and the secondary section track depends on the air gap, see Figure 15-8. The value F_A specified in the motor data sheets refers to the rated air gap.



Figure 15-8 Attraction force of the 1FN3-type peak-load motors dependent on the air gap

15.3.3 Motor thrust vs. relative air gap

The motor thrust F_{MAX} depends on the air gap, see Figure 15-9. The value F_{MAX} specified in the motor data sheets refers to the rated air gap.



Figure 15-9 Motor thrust of the 1FN3-type peak-load motors dependent on the air gap

16 Mounting diagrams and dimension tables

16.1 1FN3050, 1FN3100, 1FN3150



16.1.1 Installation diagrams

Figure 16-1 Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3050, 1FN3100 and 1FN3150 motor models

16 Mounting diagrams and dimension tables





16.1.2 1FN3050 dimensioning tables

Primary section dimensions

		Manlahla	Malara	1FN3050				
		variable	value	1W	2W	3W	4W	5W
	Length without terminal panel	IP	mm		255			
	Longitudinal bore grid	IP1	mm		52.5			
	Total longitudinal bore grid	IP2	mm		157.5			
	First bore hole position on longitudinal grid	IP3	mm		63			
	Position of the magnetically active surface	IP4	mm		247			
	Length of terminal panel cover	IP5	mm		9			
	Magnetically active length	IP,AKT	mm		210			
	Main cooler connector position (width)	bHK	mm		55			
1FN3	Width without precision cooler	bP	mm		67			
	Transversal bore grid	bP1	mm		30			
	Total transversal bore grid	bP2	mm		-			
	PG thread position (width)	bPG	mm		26.5			
	Precision cooler connector distance	bPK	mm		17			
	Precision cooler width	bPK1	mm		76			
	Precision cooler connector position	bPK2	mm		68			
	Main cooler connector distance	hHK	mm		17			
	Main cooler connector position (height)	hHK1	mm		26.4			
	Motor height with additional coolers	hM1	mm		63.4			
	Motor height with precision cooler	hM2	mm		60.4			
	Motor height without additional coolers	hM3	mm		48.5			
	Motor height with cooling section without precision cooler	hM4	mm		51.5			
	Height of primary section without precision cooler	hP1	mm		35.8			
	Height of primary section with precision cooler	hP2	mm		47.7			
	PG thread position (height)	hPG	mm		17.9			
	Precision cooler height	hPK	mm		11.9			
	Precision cooler connector positions (height)	hPK1	mm		6			
	PG thread diameter	GPG			PG16			
	Mounting screw thread	MP			M5			

Size	Variable	Value	1FN3050-4SAxx
Secondary section length	IS	mm	120
Bore grid (longitudinal)	IS1	mm	60
Total bore grid (longitudinal)	IS2	mm	IS1 x (2xN2–1)
First bore hole position on longitudinal grid	IS4	mm	31.3
Skew factor	IS5	mm	5
Width without cooling section	bS	mm	58
Bore grid (transversal)	bS1	mm	44
Width with cooling section	bKP1	mm	75
Cooling section connector distance	bKP2	mm	67
Height without cooling section with cover	hS1	mm	11.8
Height with cooling section and cover	hS2	mm	14.8
Mounting screw grip	hS3	mm	9
Screw countersink diameter (outer)	dS1	mm	10
Bore hole diameter (outer)	dS2	mm	5.5
Bore hole diameter (inner)	dS3	mm	-
Screw countersink diameter (inner)	dS4	mm	-
Secondary section mounting screws (exterior)	MS1	mm	DIN_912_M5
Secondary section mounting screws (interior)	MS2	mm	_

Secondary section dimensions

1**FN**3

Secondary section end piece dimensions

Size	Variable	Value	1FN3050-0Tx00
Maximum length	IA	mm	42.5
Bore hole position (right)	IA1	mm	30
Bore hole distance to secondary section bore hole	IS3	mm	60
Maximum width	bA	mm	79
G 1/8 cooler connector position (height)	hA1	mm	6
Bore grid (transversal)	bA1	mm	44
Maximum height (block)	hA	mm	13.8

16.1.3 1FN3100 dimensioning tables

Primary section dimensions

Sina	Mariahia	Variable Value		1FN3100				
Size	variable	value	1W	2W	3W	4W	5W	
Length without terminal panel	IP	mm	150	255	360	465	570	
Longitudinal bore grid	IP1	mm	52.5	52.5	52.5	52.5	52.5	
Total longitudinal bore grid	IP2	mm	52.5	157.5	262.5	367.5	472.5	
First bore hole position on longitudinal grid	IP3	mm	63	63	63	63	63	
Position of the magnetically active surface	IP4	mm	142	247	352	457	562	
Length of terminal panel cover	IP5	mm	9	9	9	9	9	
Magnetically active length	IP,AKT	mm	105	210	315	420	525	
Main cooler terminal position (width)	bHK	mm	84	84	84	84	84	
Width without precision cooler	bP	mm	96	96	96	96	96	
Transversal bore grid	bP1	mm	30	30	30	30	30	
Total transversal bore grid	bP2	mm	-	-	-	-	-	
PG thread position (width)	bPG	mm	42	42	42	42	42	
Precision cooler connector distance	bPK	mm	-	17	17	17	17	
Precision cooler width	bPK1	mm	-	105	105	105	105	
Precision cooler connector position	bPK2	mm	-	97	97	97	97	
Main cooler connector distance	hHK	mm	17	17	17	17	17	
Main cooler connector position (height)	hHK1	mm	26.4	26.4	26.4	26.4	26.4	
Motor height with additional coolers	hM1	mm	-	63.4	63.4	63.4	63.4	
Motor height with precision cooler	hM2	mm	-	60.4	60.4	60.4	60.4	
Motor height without additional cooler	hM3	mm	48.5	48.5	48.5	48.5	48.5	
Motor height with cooling section without precision cooler	hM4	mm	51.5	51.5	51.5	51.5	51.5	
Height of primary section without precision cooler	hP1	mm	35.8	35.8	35.8	35.8	35.8	
Height of primary section with precision cooler	hP2	mm	-	47.7	47.7	47.7	47.7	
PG thread position (height)	hPG	mm	17.9	17.9	17.9	17.9	17.9	
Precision cooler height	hPK	mm	_	11.9	11.9	11.9	11.9	
Precision cooler connector positions (height)	hPK1	mm	-	6	6	6	6	
PG thread diameter	GPG		PG16	PG16	PG16	PG16	PG16	
Mounting screw thread	MP		M5	M5	M5	M5	M5	

Size	Variable	Value	1FN3100-4SAxx
Secondary section length	IS	mm	120
Bore grid (longitudinal)	IS1	mm	60
Total bore grid (longitudinal)	IS2	mm	IS1 x (2xN2–1)
First bore hole position on longitudinal grid	IS4	mm	30.6
Skew factor	IS5	mm	3.7
Width without cooling section	bS	mm	88
Bore grid (transversal)	bS1	mm	74
Width with cooling section	bKP1	mm	105
Cooling section connector distance	bKP2	mm	97
Height without cooling section with cover	hS1	mm	11.8
Height with cooling section with cover	hS2	mm	14.8
Mounting screw grip	hS3	mm	9
Screw countersink diameter (outer)	dS1	mm	10
Bore hole diameter (outer)	dS2	mm	5.5
Bohrungsdurchmesser (innen)	dS3	mm	-
Screw countersink diameter (inner)	dS4	mm	-
Secondary section mounting screws (exterior)	MS1	mm	DIN_912_M5
Secondary section mounting screws (interior)	MS2	mm	-

Secondary section dimensions

Secondary section end piece dimensions

Size	Variable	Value	1FN3100-0Tx00
Maximum length	IA	mm	42.5
Bore hole position (right)	IA1	mm	30
Bore hole distance to secondary section bore hole	IS3	mm	60
Maximum width	bA	mm	109
G 1/8 cooler connector position (height)	hA1	mm	6
Bore grid (transversal)	bA1	mm	74
Maximum height (block)	hA	mm	13.8

16.1.4 1FN3150 dimensioning tables

Primary section dimensions

	Mariahia	Malasa	1FN3150				
Size	variable	value	1W	2W	3W	4W	5 W
Length without terminal panel	IP	mm		255	360	465	570
Longitudinal bore grid	IP1	mm		52.5	52.5	52.5	52.5
Total longitudinal bore grid	IP2	mm		157.5	262.5	367.5	472.5
First bore hole position on longitudinal grid	IP3	mm		63	63	63	63
Position of the magnetically active surface	IP4	mm		247	352	457	562
Length of terminal panel cover	IP5	mm		9	9	9	9
Magnetically active length	IP,AKT	mm		210	315	420	525
Main cooler terminal position (width)	bHK	mm		114	114	114	114
Width without precision cooler	bP	mm		126	126	126	126
Transversal bore grid	bP1	mm		45	45	45	45
Total transversal bore grid	bP2	mm		-	-	-	-
PG thread position (width)	bPG	mm		42	42	42	42
Precision cooler connector distance	bPK	mm		17	17	17	17
Precision cooler width	bPK1	mm		135	135	135	135
Precision cooler connector position	bPK2	mm		127	127	127	127
Main cooler connector distance	hHK	mm		17	17	17	17
Main cooler connector position (height)	hHK1	mm		26.4	26.4	26.4	26.4
Motor height with additional cooler	hM1	mm		65.4	65.4	65.4	65.4
Motor height with precision cooler	hM2	mm		62.4	62.4	62.4	62.4
Motor height without additional cooler	hM3	mm		50.5	50.5	50.5	50.5
Motor height with cooling section without precision cooler	hM4	mm		53.5	53.5	53.5	53.5
Height of primary section without precision cooler	hP1	mm		35.8	35.8	35.8	35.8
Height of primary section with precision cooler	hP2	mm		47.7	47.7	47.7	47.7
PG thread position (height)	hPG	mm		17.9	17.9	17.9	17.9
Precision cooler height	hPK	mm		11.9	11.9	11.9	11.9
Precision cooler connector positions (height)	hPK1	mm		6	6	6	6
PG thread diameter	GPG			PG16	PG16	PG16	PG16
Mounting screw thread	MP			M5	M5	M5	M5

16-314

Size	Variable	Value	1FN3150-4SAxx
Secondary section length	IS	mm	120
Bore grid (longitudinal)	IS1	mm	60
Total bore grid (longitudinal)	IS2	mm	IS1 x (2xN2–1)
first bore hole position on longitudinal grid	IS4	mm	30.4
Skew factor	IS5	mm	3.3
Width without cooling section	bS	mm	118
Bore grid (transversal)	bS1	mm	104
Width with cooling section	bKP1	mm	135
Cooling section connector distance	bKP2	mm	127
Height without cooling section with cover	hS1	mm	13.8
Height with cooling section and cover	hS2	mm	16.8
Mounting screw grip	hS3	mm	11
Screw countersink diameter (outer)	dS1	mm	10
Bore hole diameter (outer)	dS2	mm	5.5
Bore hole diameter (inner)	dS3	mm	_
Screw countersink diameter (inner)	dS4	mm	_
Secondary section mounting screws (exterior)	MS1	mm	DIN_912_M5
Secondary section mounting screws (interior)	MS2	mm	_

Secondary section dimensions

1FN3

Secondary section end piece dimensions

Size	Variable	Value	1FN3150-0Tx00
Maximum length	IA	mm	42.5
Bore hole position (right)	IA1	mm	30
Bore hole distance to secondary section bore hole	IS3	mm	60
Maximum width	bA	mm	139
G 1/8 cooler connector position (height)	hA1	mm	6
Bore grid (transversal)	bA1	mm	104
Maximum height (block)	hA	mm	15.8

16.1.5 Cooling sections





16 Mounting diagrams and dimension tables



Figure 16-5 Cooling section with hose connector nipple L for the 1FN3050, 1FN3100 and 1FN3150 motor models





Figure 16-6 Hall sensor box (HSB) with straight cable outlet for the 1FN3050, 1FN3100, and 1FN3150 motor models

16 Mounting diagrams and dimension tables



Figure 16-7 Hall sensor box (HSB) with lateral cable outlet for the 1FN3050, 1FN3100, and 1FN3150 motor models
16.2 1FN3300, 1FN3450

16.2.1 Installation diagrams



Figure 16-8 Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3300 and 1FN3450 motor models; except: 1FN3300-3WG00, 1FN3450-3WE00, 1FN3450-4WE00









Figure 16-10 Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3300-3WG00, 1FN3450-3WE00, 1FN3450-4WE00 motor models



Figure 16-11 Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3300-3WG00, 1FN3450-3WE00, 1FN3450-4WE00 motor models: Sections and details

16.2.2 1FN3300 dimensioning tables

Primary section dimensions

	Mariahia	Malara	1FN33	1FN3300]
SIZe	variable	value	1W	2W	3W	4W	5 W	
Length without terminal panel	IP	mm	221	382	543	704		
Longitudinal bore grid	IP1	mm	80.5	80.5	80.5	80.5		
Total longitudinal bore grid	IP2	mm	80.5	241.5	402.5	563.5		
First bore hole position on longitudinal grid	IP3	mm	90	90	90	90		
Position of the magnetically active surface	IP4	mm	211	372	533	694		
Length of terminal panel cover	IP5	mm	11	11	11 / 28*	11		
Magnetically active length	IP,AKT	mm	161	322	483	644		
Main cooler terminal position (width)	bHK	mm	128.5	128.5	128.5	128.5		1FN3
Width without precision cooler	bP	mm	141	141	141	141		
Transversal bore grid	bP1	mm	60	60	60	60]
Total transversal bore grid	bP2	mm	-	-	-	-		
PG thread position (width)	bPG	mm	57.5	57.5	57.5 / 53.5*	57.5		
Precision cooler connector distance	bPK	mm	-	17	17	17		
Precision cooler width	bPK1	mm	-	150	150	150]
Precision cooler connector position	bPK2	mm	-	141.5	141.5	141.5		
Main cooler connector distance	hHK	mm	19	19	19	19		
Main cooler connector position (height)	hHK1	mm	32.9	32.9	32.9	32.9		
Motor height with additional coolers	hM1	mm	-	79	79	79		
Motor height with precision cooler	hM2	mm	-	76	76	76		
Motor height without additional cooler	hM3	mm	64.1	64.1	64.1	64.1		
Motor height with cooling section without precision cooler	hM4	mm	67.1	67.1	67.1	67.1		
Height of primary section without precision cooler	hP1	mm	46.7	46.7	46.7	46.7		
Height of primary section with precision cooler	hP2	mm	-	58.6	58.6	58.6		
PG thread position (height)	hPG	mm	23.4	23.4	23.4	23.4		
Precision cooler height	hPK	mm	-	11.9	11.9	11.9		
Precision cooler connector positions (height)	hPK1	mm	-	6	6	6		
PG thread diameter	GPG		PG21	PG21	PG21 / PG29*	PG21		
Mounting screw thread	MP		M8	M8	M8	M8		

* applicable for 1FN3300-3WG00 motor models

Secondary section dimensions

Size	Variable	Value	1FN3300-4SAxx
Secondary section length	IS	mm	184
Bore grid (longitudinal)	IS1	mm	92
Total bore grid (longitudinal)	IS2	mm	IS1 x (2xN2–1)
First bore hole position on longitudinal grid	IS4	mm	49.2
Skew factor	IS5	mm	5.6
Width without cooling section	bS	mm	134
Bore grid (transversal)	bS1	mm	115
Width with cooling section	bKP1	mm	151
Cooling section connector distance	bKP2	mm	143
Height without cooling section with cover	hS1	mm	16.5
Height with cooling section and cover	hS2	mm	19.5
Mounting screw grip	hS3	mm	13
Screw countersink diameter (outer)	dS1	mm	15
Bore hole diameter (outer)	dS2	mm	9
Bore hole diameter (inner)	dS3	mm	_
Screw countersink diameter (inner)	dS4	mm	_
Secondary section mounting screws (exterior)	MS1	mm	DIN 6912-M8
Secondary section mounting screws (interior)	MS2	mm	-

1FN3

Secondary section end piece dimensions

Size	Variable	Value	1FN3300-0Tx00
Maximum length	IA	mm	58.5
Bore hole position (right)	IA1	mm	30
Bore hole distance to secondary section bore hole	IS3	mm	92
Maximum width	bA	mm	155
G 1/8 cooler connector position (height)	hA1	mm	6
Bore grid (transversal)	bA1	mm	115
Maximum height (block)	hA	mm	18.5

16.2.3 1FN3450 dimensioning tables

Primary section dimensions

			1FN3	1FN3450]	
Size	Variable	Value	1W	2W	3W	4W	5 W	
Length without terminal panel	IP	mm		382	543	704		
Longitudinal bore grid	IP1	mm		80.5	80.5	80.5		1
Total longitudinal bore grid	IP2	mm		241.5	402.5	563.5		1
First bore hole position on longitudinal grid	IP3	mm		90	90	90]
Position of the magnetically active surface	IP4	mm		372	533	694]
Length of terminal panel cover	IP5	mm		11	11 / 28*	11 / 28*		
Magnetically active length	IP,AKT	mm		322	483	644		
Main cooler connector position (width)	bHK	mm		175.5	175.5	175.5		1 FN 3
Width without precision cooler	bP	mm		188	188	188		
Transversal bore grid	bP1	mm		80	80	80		1
Total transversal bore grid	bP2	mm		-	-	-		1
PG thread position (width)	bPG	mm		57.5	57.5 / 53.5*	57.5 / 53.5*		
Precision cooler connector distance	bPK	mm		17	17	17		1
Precision cooler width	bPK1	mm		197	197	197		1
Precision cooler connector position	bPK2	mm		188.5	188.5	188.5		1
Main cooler connector distance	hHK	mm		19	19	19		1
Main cooler connector position (height)	hHK1	mm		32.9	32.9	32.9		1
Motor height with additional coolers	hM1	mm		81	81	81		1
Motor height with precision cooler	hM2	mm		76	76	76		1
Motor height without additional cooler	hM3	mm		66.1	66.1	66.1]
Motor height with cooling section without precision cooler	hM4	mm		69.1	69.1	69.1		
Height of primary section without precision cooler	hP1	mm		46.7	46.7	46.7		
Height of primary section with precision cooler	hP2	mm		58.6	58.6	58.6		
PG thread position (height)	hPG	mm		23.4	23.4	23.4		1
Precision cooler height	hPK	mm		11.9	11.9	11.9		1
Precision cooler connector positions (height)	hPK1	mm		6	6	6]
PG thread diameter	GPG			PG21	PG21 / PG29*	PG21 / PG29*]
Mounting screw thread	MP			M8	M8	M8]

* applicable for 1FN3450-3WE00 and 1FN3450-4WE00 motor models

Secondary section dimensions

Size	Variable	Value	1FN3450-4SAxx
Secondary section length	IS	mm	184
Bore grid (longitudinal)	IS1	mm	92
Total bore grid (longitudinal)	IS2	mm	IS1 x (2xN2–1)
First bore hole position on longitudinal grid	IS4	mm	48.9
Skew factor	IS5	mm	5
Width without cooling section	bS	mm	180
Bore grid (transversal)	bS1	mm	161
Width with cooling section	bKP1	mm	197
Cooling section connector distance	bKP2	mm	189
Height without cooling section with cover	hS1	mm	18.5
Height with cooling section and cover	hS2	mm	21.5
Mounting screw grip	hS3	mm	15
Screw countersink diameter (outer)	dS1	mm	15
Bore hole diameter (outer)	dS2	mm	9
Bore hole diameter (inner)	dS3	mm	_
Screw countersink diameter (inner)	dS4	mm	_
Secondary section mounting screws (exterior)	MS1	mm	DIN 6912-M8
Secondary section mounting screws (interior)	MS2	mm	-

1FN3

Secondary section end piece dimensions

Size	Variable	Value	1FN3450-0Tx00
Maximum length	IA	mm	58.5
Bore hole position (right)	IA1	mm	30
Bore hole distance to secondary section bore hole	IS3	mm	92
Maximum width	bA	mm	201
G 1/8 cooler connector position (height)	hA1	mm	6
Bore grid (transversal)	bA1	mm	161
Maximum height (block)	hA	mm	20.5



16.2.4 Cooling sections

Figure 16-12 Cooling section with plug nipples for the 1FN3300 and 1FN3450 motor models



Figure 16-13 Cooling section with hose connector nipple R for the 1FN3300 and 1FN3450 motor models



Figure 16-14 Cooling section with hose connector nipple L for the 1FN3300 and 1FN3450 motor models

16.2.5 Mounting the Hall sensor box



Figure 16-15 Hall sensor box (HSB) with straight cable outlet for the 1FN3300 and 1FN3450 motor models



Figure 16-16 Hall sensor box (HSB) with lateral cable outlet for the 1FN3300 and 1FN3450 motor models

16.3 1FN3600

16.3.1 Installation diagrams



Figure 16-17 Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3600 motor models



Figure 16-18 Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3600 motor models: Sections and details

16.3.2 1FN3600 dimensioning tables

Primary section dimensions

1FN3

		Malasa	1FN3600					
SIZe	variable	value	1W	2W	3W	4W	5 W	
Length without terminal panel	IP	mm		382	543	704		
Longitudinal bore grid	IP1	mm		80.5	80.5	80.5		
Total longitudinal bore grid	IP2	mm		241.5	402.5	563.5		
First bore hole position on longitudinal grid	IP3	mm		90	90	90		
Position of the magnetically active surface	IP4	mm		372	533	694		
Length of terminal panel cover	IP5	mm		11	11	11		
Magnetically active length	IP,AKT	mm		322	483	644		
Main cooler connector position (width)	bHK	mm		235.5	235.5	235.5		
Width without precision cooler	bP	mm		248	248	248		
Transversal bore grid	bP1	mm		80	80	80		
Total transversal bore grid	bP2	mm		160	160	160		
PG thread position (width)	bPG	mm		57.5	57.5	57.5		
Precision cooler connection distance	bPK	mm		17	17	17		
Precision cooler width	bPK1	mm		257	257	257		
Precision cooler connector position	bPK2	mm		248.5	248.5	248.5		
Main cooler connector distance	hHK	mm		19	19	19		
Main cooler connector position (height)	hHK1	mm		32.9	32.9	32.9		
Motor height with additional coolers	hM1	mm		86	86	86		
Motor height with precision cooler	hM2	mm		76	76	76		
Motor height without additional cooler	hM3	mm		64.1	64.1	64.1		
Motor height with cooling section without precision cooler	hM4	mm		74.1	74.1	74.1		
Height of primary section without precision cooler	hP1	mm		46.7	46.7	46.7		
Height of primary section with precision cooler	hP2	mm		58.6	58.6	58.6		
PG thread position (height)	hPG	mm		23.4	23.4	23.4		
Precision cooler height	hPK	mm		11.9	11.9	11.9		
Precision cooler connector positions (height)	hPK1	mm		6	6	6		
PG thread diameter	GPG			PG21	PG21	PG21		
Mounting screw thread	MP			M8	M8	M8		

Size	Variable	Value	1FN3600-4SAxx
Secondary section length	IS	mm	184
Bore grid (longitudinal)	IS1	mm	92
Total bore grid (longitudinal)	IS2	mm	IS1 x (2xN2–1)
First bore hole position on longitudinal grid	IS4	mm	43.7
Skew factor	IS5	mm	4.9
Width without cooling section	bS	mm	240
Bore grid (transversal)	bS1	mm	111
Width with cooling section	bKP1	mm	247
Cooling section connector distance	bKP2	mm	17
Height without cooling section with cover	hS1	mm	16.5
Height with cooling section with cover	hS2	mm	26.5
Mounting screw grip	hS3	mm	20
Screw countersink diameter (outer)	dS1	mm	15
Bore hole diameter (outer)	dS2	mm	9
Bore hole diameter (inner)	dS3	mm	6.6
Screw countersink diameter (inner)	dS4	mm	11
Secondary section mounting screws (exterior)	MS1	mm	DIN 6912-M8
Secondary section mounting screws (interior)	MS2	mm	DIN 6912-M6

Secondary section dimensions

1FN3

Secondary section end piece dimensions

Size	Variable	Value	1FN3600-0Tx00
Maximum length	IA	mm	58.5
Bore hole position (right)	IA1	mm	30
Bore hole distance to secondary section bore hole	IS3	mm	92
Maximum width	bA	mm	251
G 1/8 cooler connector position (height)	hA1	mm	66
Bore grid (transversal)	bA1	mm	222
Maximum height (block)	hA	mm	25.5

16.3.3 Cooling sections





Figure 16-20 Cooling section with hose connector nipple R/L for the 1FN3600 motor models



16.3.4 Mounting the Hall sensor box

Figure 16-21 Hall sensor box (HSB) with straight cable outlet for the 1FN3600 motor models





16.4 1FN3900

Installation diagrams 16.4.1



Figure 16-23 Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3900 motor models; except: 1FN3900-4WB00 and 1FN3900-4WC00



Figure 16-24 Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3900 motor models: Sections and details; except: 1FN3900-4WB00 and 1FN3900-4WC00



Figure 16-25 Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3900-4WB00 and 1FN3900-4WC00 motor models



Figure 16-26 Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3900-4WB00 and 1FN3900-4WC00 motor models: Sections and details

16.4.2 1FN3900 dimensioning tables

Primary section dimensions

01-1	Mariahia			1FN3900				
SIZe	variable	value	1W	2W	3W	4W	5 W	
Length without terminal panel	IP	mm		382	543	704		
Longitudinal bore grid	IP1	mm		80.5	80.5	80.5		
Total longitudinal bore grid	IP2	mm		241.5	402.5	563.5		
First bore hole position on longitudinal grid	IP3	mm		90	90	90		
Position of the magnetically active surface	IP4	mm		372	533	694		
Length of terminal panel cover	IP5	mm		11	11	11 / 28*		
Magnetically active length	IP,AKT	mm		322	483	644		
Main cooler connector position (width)	bHK	mm		329.5	329.5	329.5		1FI
Width without precision cooler	bP	mm		342	342	342		
Transversal bore grid	bP1	mm		80	80	80		
Total transversal bore grid	bP2	mm		240	240	240		
PG thread position (width)	bPG	mm		57.5	57.5	57.5 / 53.5*		
Precision cooler connector distance	bPK	mm		17	17	17		
Precision cooler width	bPK1	mm		351	351	351		
Precision cooler connector position	bPK2	mm		342.5	342.5	342.5		
Main cooler connector distance	hHK	mm		19	19	19		
Main cooler connector position (height)	hHK1	mm		32.9	32.9	32.9		
Motor height with additional coolers	hM1	mm		88	88	88		
Motor height with precision cooler	hM2	mm		78	78	78		
Motor height without additional coolers	hM3	mm		66.1	66.1	66.1		
Motor height with cooling section without precision cooler	hM4	mm		76.1	76.1	76.1		
Height of primary section without precision cooler	hP1	mm		46.7	46.7	46.7		
Height of primary section with precision cooler	hP2	mm		58.6	58.6	58.6		
PG thread position (height)	hPG	mm		23.4	23.4	23.4		
Precision cooler height	hPK	mm		11.9	11.9	11.9	Ī	1
Precision cooler connector positions (height)	hPK1	mm		6	6	6		
PG thread diameter	GPG			PG21	PG21	PG21 / PG29*		1
Mounting screw thread	MP			M8	M8	M8]

*applicable for 1FN3900-4WB00 and 1FN3900-4WC00 motor models

13

Secondary section dimensions

Size	Variable	Value	1FN3900-4SAxx
Secondary section length	IS	mm	184
Bore grid (longitudinal)	IS1	mm	46
Total bore grid (longitudinal)	IS2	mm	IS1 x (4xN2–1)
First bore hole position on longitudinal grid	IS4	mm	23
Skew factor	IS5	mm	4.5
Width without cooling section	bS	mm	334
Bore grid (transversal)	bS1	mm	158
Width with cooling section	bKP1	mm	341
Cooling section connector distance	bKP2	mm	17
Height without cooling section with cover	hS1	mm	18.5
Height with cooling section with cover	hS2	mm	28.5
Mounting screw grip	hS3	mm	22
Screw countersink diameter (outer)	dS1	mm	15
Bore hole diameter (outer)	dS2	mm	9
Bore hole diameter (inner)	dS3	mm	6.6
Screw countersink diameter (inner)	dS4	mm	11
Secondary section mounting screws (exterior)	MS1	mm	DIN 6912-M8
Secondary section mounting screws (interior)	MS2	mm	DIN 6912-M6

1FN3

Secondary section end piece dimensions

Size	Variable	Value	1FN3900-0Tx00
Maximum length	IA	mm	58.5
Bore hole position (right)	IA1	mm	30
Bore hole distance to secondary section bore hole	IS3	mm	69
Maximum width	bA	mm	345
G 1/8 cooler connector position (height)	hA1	mm	6
Bore grid (transversal)	bA1	mm	316
Maximum height (block)	hA	mm	27.5

(N x 46) daa = 4.2(2 x 46) Y dia = 3 (13) 15 46 Y 9 Þ € 17 Ø 9 +0.5 Х 16 dia = 4.4**1FN3** Х П j; Number of sec. Ν Ground I [mm] sections [g] 2 256 74 1 2 3 348 148 5 532 223 3 716 7 4 298 Coupling nipple and coupling jack 5 9 900 373 are mounted with thread sealer glue : and must not be loosened or removed!

16.4.3 Cooling sections

Figure 16-27 Cooling section with plug nipples for the 1FN3900 motor models



Figure 16-28 Cooling section with hose connector nipple R/L for the 1FN3900 motor models

16.4.4 Mounting the Hall sensor box



Figure 16-29 Hall sensor box (HSB) with straight cable outlet for the 1FN3900 motor models



Figure 16-30 Hall sensor box (HSB) with lateral cable outlet for the 1FN3900 motor models

Notes

1**FN3**

General Information about Connection Systems



CON

Table of Contents

17	System Integration	
18	Connecting the Primary Section	
	18.1 Connecting the Power Cables	
	18.2 Connecting the Temperature Monitoring Circuits	
	18.2.1 Guidelines about Protective Separation	
	18.2.2 Connection via SME9x	
	18.2.3 Connection via a Motor Protection Device	
19	Connecting Motors in Parallel	
20		~~ ~~~
20	Encoder Connection	
20	20.1 Connecting Length Measurement Systems	20-357
20	20.1 Connecting Length Measurement Systems 20.1.1 Hall sensor box	
20	Encoder Connection 20.1 Connecting Length Measurement Systems 20.1.1 Hall sensor box 20.1.2 Connector Box	20-357 20-357 20-358 20-358 20-358
20	Encoder Connection 20.1 Connecting Length Measurement Systems 20.1.1 Hall sensor box 20.1.2 Connector Box Shielding and Grounding	20-357 20-357 20-358 20-358 20-358 21-359
20 21 22	Encoder Connection 20.1 Connecting Length Measurement Systems 20.1.1 Hall sensor box 20.1.2 Connector Box Shielding and Grounding Wiring Guidelines	20-357 20-357 20-358 20-358 20-358 21-359 22-360
20 21 22	Encoder Connection 20.1 Connecting Length Measurement Systems 20.1.1 Hall sensor box 20.1.2 Connector Box Shielding and Grounding Wiring Guidelines 22.1 Using the Cables in the Cable Carrier	20-357 20-357 20-358 20-358 20-358 21-359 22-360 22-360

CON

CON

17 System Integration

For system requirements, see chapter 4.1. Figure 17-1 includes a diagram illustrating the standard connections to these systems using assembled MOTION-CONNECT® cables.



Figure 17-1 Standard connections for 1FN1- and 1FN3- type (peak-load) motors



Danger

Improper connections of three-phase linear motors can result in death, serious injury (electrical shock), and/or damage to property.

Three-phase linear motors must be connected according to the operating instructions. Connecting the motor directly to the three-phase mains is not permitted or safe.

Please follow the operating instructions of the converter system you are using!

Assembled cables guarantee safety, proper function and cost advantages versus self-made cables. The specifications (such as conductor cross-section, outer diameter, maximum current load) for MOTION-CONNECT® power cables are listed in the catalog /NC60/.

18 Connecting the Primary Section

1FN1-type primary sections are supplied with a flange-mounted socket or an already mounted, assembled cable, see chapter 9.3.3. The 1FN3-type primary sections for peak-load motors are connected to a built-in terminal by means of angled cable lugs, see chapter 13.3.2.

For all models, signal conductors and power conductors are routed in one cable. A distributor must be used to separate these conductors. The distributor (e. g. terminal box) must be provided by the operator. For 1FN3-type peak-load motors a distributor box with plug type connections is currently being developed.

Note

With the EN 60034-8 norm the terminal markings have changed. For the old terminal markings, see appendix C.

18.1 Connecting the Power Cables

The power cables are connected directly or via intermediate connector to the designated terminals on the power unit. Ensure proper shielding and grounding; see chapter 21!

18.2 Connecting the Temperature Monitoring Circuits

18.2.1 Guidelines about Protective Separation

When connecting the temperature monitoring circuits, the regulations relating to *protective separation* in compliance with VDE 0160 /EN 50178 must be carefully observed.



CON

The temperature monitoring circuits constitute a risk of electrical shock!

The circuits of Temp-F and Temp-S neither have "protective separation" between each other nor to the power circuits in accordance with VDE 0160/EN 50178. A connection to the X411/X412 plug of the SIMODRIVE control board without a suitable protective module (e.g. SME9x) is not permitted.

Please note that the power cables have to comply with the *protective separation* requirements according to VDE 0160/EN 50178 as well!

For SIMODRIVE 611, the X411 plug inputs do not guarantee *protective separation* to the SIMODRIVE and SINUMERIK low voltage circuits!

Note

Danger

If the motor and power cables do not meet the *protective separation* requirements, the Temp-F and Temp-S circuits cannot be implemented as SELV/PELV circuits according to VDE 0160/EN 50178. Connecting directly to SELV/PELV circuits is not permissible!

 Table 18-1
 Motor and cable qualification with regards to *protective separation*

	1FN1 motor and 1FN3 motor	MOTION-CONNECT power cable
Protective separation ensured?*	No	Yes

*Temp-F and Temp-S control cable connections with respect to the motor phase cables

18.2.2 Connection via SME9x

The SME9x (Sensor Module External) is a plug-type connection unit to which all motor signal cables of a direct drive can be connected in close vicinity of the motor. The SME9x output can be connected to the X411 transmitter interface of the SIMODRIVE product line converter. Thus it meets the *protective separation* requirements in accordance with VDE 0160/EN 50178.

Variants

Four variants of the SME9x are provided with different inputs for the length measuring system (WMS) and signal cables, see Table 18-2.

	absolute WMS (EnDat)	incremental WMS	
one signal cable input	SME91 Control element terminal abs. WMS Temperature sensor terminal	SME93 Incremental WMS terminal HSB terminal Control element terminal	CON
	Order No.: 1FN1910-0AA20-1AA0	Order No.: 1FN1910-0AA20-3AA0	
two signal cable inputs	SME92 Control element terminal Terminal abs. WMS Temperature sensor terminals Order No.: 1FN1910-0AA20-2AA0	SME94 Incremental WMS terminal HSB terminal Control element terminal Temperature sensor terminals Order No.: 1FN1910-0AA20-4AA0	

 Table 18-2
 SME9x variants

In order to operate two motors in parallel on one converter, all signal cables of the two motors – Temp-S and Temp-F – can be connected to the SME9x. For this purpose, SME92 and SME94 should be used.

Technical Data and Interfaces

For technical data and a more detailed description of the interfaces, see the operating instructions /SME9x/.

Special Note

For 1FN3xxx-...-0AA0-type primary sections, a Temp-F temperature monitoring circuit cannot be connected to the SME9x. As a substitute, a resistance of 560 Ω can be used, see Figure 18-1. In this case, an approximate value of 20 °C will always be displayed for the Temp-F evaluation.



Figure 18-1 Connecting the 1FN3xxx-...-0AA0 primary section (without Temp-F)

18.2.3 Connection via a Motor Protection Device

The evaluation of the temperature sensors via the SME9x is the default temperature evaluation. As an alternative and in compliance with Figure 18-2 and Figure 18-3 Temp-S can be connected to SELV/PELV circuits.

Note

Connecting Temp-S to the 3RN1013-1GW10 thermistor motor protection device according to Figure 18-2 and Figure 18-3 involves some disadvantages, such as:

- Temp-F is not connected and can only be evaluated via an external measuring device
- the Temp-S evaluation is slower than when using the SME9x

Therefore we recommend using the SME9x whenever possible to evaluate the temperature monitoring circuits!



Figure 18-2 Temp-S evaluation via motor protection device and PLC for 1FN1 models


Figure 18-3 Temp-S evaluation via motor protection device and PLC for 1FN3 models

Temp-S Evaluation

Temp-S is evaluated via a PLC with an upstream 3RN1013-1GW10 thermistor motor protection device. Temperature monitoring is not done directly via the converter! Therefore, it has to be deactivated there (MD 1608 \leq 1 °C).

Note

The 3RN1013-1GW10 thermistor motor protection device is the only one of the 3RN1-type thermistor motor protection devices which

- guarantees protective separation
- is equipped with hard gilded contacts

The use of a 3RN1013-1GW10 is thus imperative if Temp-S is to be connected via a motor protection device.

Response Time

Please ensure that the response time between the Temp-S resistance increase and the motor shut down is less than one second!

Connecting Temp-F

For commissioning purposes – evaluating the thermal capacity of the motor and optimizing the machine cycle – Temp-F can be evaluated via an external measuring device. (ensure proper polarity!)

The measuring device must have a suitable electric strength in order to protect the operator from dangerous voltages (voltage of the intermediate converter circuit). The instrument leads and their connectors must comply with the VDE 0160/EN 50178 regulations.

After the measurements are completed and with the drive shut off, the Temp-F connection cables in the control cabinet must be connected safely to suitable free terminals or PE while ensuring the required sparking and creepage distance in compliance with VDE 0160/EN 50178.

19 Connecting Motors in Parallel

In order to operate two motors in parallel on one converter, all signal cables of the two motors – Temp-S und Temp-F – can be connected to the SME9x, see Figure 19-1.



The power cables for each motor are connected to the designated terminals on the power unit. An intermediate connection is possible to bring the power cables of the individual motors together before they are connected to the power unit.

Note

When connecting the motors, please follow the instructions for shielding and grounding in chapter 21!

Note

When connecting primary sections in parallel, the power cables should be of equal length in order to ensure even current distribution.



Warning

An outage of the phase current circuit of a primary section can cause excessive power surges in the connected primary sections. This may result in a demagnetization of the permanent magnets.

Be careful with all connections and wirings and replace worn power cables immediately!

20 Encoder Connection

CON

Encoder cables must be routed separately from the power cables.

Assembled cables guarantee safety, proper function and cost advantages versus self-made cables. The specifications (such as conductor cross-section, outer diameter, maximum current load) for MOTION-CONNECT[®] signal cables are listed in the catalog .

20.1 Connecting Length Measurement Systems

Proper connection systems for length measurements depend mainly on the type of scale used. Usually a SME9x connection is used, see Figure 17-1 and Table 18-2. If a Hall sensor box is not used, the WMS can be connected directly to the X411/X412 converter interface, see Figure 20-1.



Figure 20-1 Assembled cables for a direct connection of the length measurement system (WMS) to X411/X412

20.1.1 Hall sensor box

The Hall sensor indicates the pole position inside the motor for commutation during the reference run. Its use is required for motors for which, due to technical reasons, a software-based detection of the pole position is not possible.

The Hall sensor must be adjusted to the individual motor and its pole pair length and attached in a certain position to the primary section. For details, see Mounting the Hall Sensor Box, page 9-98 in section 1FN1 and page 13-195 in section 1FN3.

20.1.2 Connector Box

The connector box is used to connect a length measuring system (WMS) with Hall sensor box to the X411/X412 interface of the converter if no SME9x unit is used, see Figure 20-2. It complies with the IP65-type protection. Opposite the side with the rating plate there are two blind holes for mounting the unit on the machine or in the control cabinet.



2 Connecting an incremental length measurement system (WMS) with Hall sensor box (HSB) to the X411/X412 interface with connector box

Note

If the 1FN1910-0AA00-0AA0 connector box is used, free jacks are to be covered with metal caps for protection type and EMC compliance.

Figure 20-3 shows the connector box with the terminals connected according to Table 20-1 the plugs are intended for the following connections:

- X1 (17-pin plug): 611D/U X411/X412 converter
- X2 (9-pin socket): Temperature sensor
- X3 (12-pin socket): Linear scale
- X4 (9-pin socket with Y-encoding): Hall sensor box



	Connic		ov biu	y pinot	ut, see	; i igui	C 20-0										
Signal	A+	A-	R+	<u>ь</u>	C+	Ч	٥ ٧	+Temp	-Temp	+5 V	B+	В	R-	D+	0 V sense	+5 V-Sense	Inner shield
Pin X1	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17
Pin X2								7*	8*								
Pin X3	5	6	3				10			12	8	1	4		11	2	

*for *protective separation* reasons these connections cannot be made, see chapter 18.2.1.

21 Shielding and Grounding

The correct layout and wiring of the cable shields and ground conductors is of major significance for personnel safety as well as for interference transmission and reception. Therefore the following must be carefully observed:

- All cable shields must be connected to the respective housing via clamps or suitable terminal or screwed connectors.
- Applying only a few shield conductors or combining shield conductors in one cable is not permitted.
- For the power cable connection to the power unit, the SIMODRIVE shield attachment plates are recommended.

© Siemens AG 2006 All rights reserved SIMODRIVE linear motors 1FN1 and 1FN3-SL (PJLM) – Edition 01.06

Note

Due to the capacitive coupling open circuits carry voltages.

Protective ground (PE) should be connected to conductors that are open-circuit or not being used, in particular electrical cables that can be touched.

The CE Declaration of Conformity applies if the above-mentioned issues are taken into consideration and the respective SIMODRIVE products are used.

Note

Unconnected or improperly connected cable shields can result in linear drive malfunctions - especially of the length measurement system – or affect third-party devices.

Note the topics mentioned above!

22 Wiring Guidelines CON 22.1 Using the Cables in the Cable Carrier

Note

For the electrical wiring carefully observe the instructions given by the cable carrier manufacturer.

To maximize the service life of the cable carrier and cables, cables in the carrier made from different materials must be installed in the cable carrier with spacers.

The chambers must be filled evenly to ensure that the position of the cables does not change during operation. The cables should be distributed as symmetrically as possible according to their mass and dimensions.

If possible, use only cables with equal diameters in one chamber. Cables with very different outer diameters should be separated by separators.

The cables must not be fixed in the carrier and must have room to move. It must be possible to move the cables without applying force, in particular in the bending radii of the carrier.

The specified bending radii must be adhered to. The cable fixings must be attached at both ends at an appropriate distance away from the end points of the moving parts in a dead zone.

At the ends of the cable carrier a tension relief must be installed (minimum requirement). Be sure to mount the cables along the casing without crushing them.

The cables are to be taken off the drum without kinks, i.e. roll the cables off the drum instead of taking them off in loops from the drum flange.

22.2 Cable Wiring in the Machine

Note

Drives with linear motors are exposed to a high dynamic load. With proper wiring and tension relief near the plug (distance < $10 \cdot d_{Kabel}$) the operator must ensure that the vibration is not transmitted to the plugs.

The actual value lines must be separated from the power lines in order to avoid cross interference.

The cables must not rub against anything and should be clamped or fastened at least every 200 mm.

CON

CON

Appendix

Notes

Table of Contents

Α	Moto	or data overview	A-367
В	Rec	ommended manufacturers	В-370
С	Tern	ninal markings	C-373
D	Refe	erences	D-374
Е	Inde	exes	E-375
	E.1	Figures	E-375
	E.2	Tables	E-379
	E.3	Index	E-380

Notes

A Motor data overview

The tables on the following pages provide an overview of the most important technical data for the motors of type 1FN and 1FN3.

The definitions correspond to those given in the data sheets, see chapter 11.1.1 in section 1FN1 and chapter 15.1.1 in section 1FN3 respectively.

For the mass and type specifications of the 1FN3 type motors, models with and without optional cooling elements are listed.

Order no. primary section	F _N [N]	F _{MAX} [N]	I _N [A]	I _{МАХ} [А]	VMAX,FN [m/min]	VMAX,FMAX [m/min]	P _{V,N} [W]
1FN1072-3AF7x-0AA0	790	1720	5.6	14	203	97	810
1FN1076-3AF7x-0AA0	1580	3450	11.2	27.9	202	96	1620
1FN1122-5xC71-0AA0	1475	3250	8.9	22.4	163	72	1350
1FN1122-5xF71-0AA0	1475	3250	11.1	28	214	105	1350
1FN1124-5xC71-0AA0	2200	4850	14.9	37.5	189	89	2010
1FN1124-5xF71-0AA0	2200	4850	16.2	40.8	208	101	2030
1FN1126-5xC71-0AA0	2950	6500	17.7	44.8	162	71	2700
1FN1126-5xF71-0AA0	2950	6500	22.2	56	213	104	2690
1FN1184-5AC71-0AA0	3600	7920	21.6	54.2	162	74	3070
1FN1184-5AF71-0AA0	3600	7920	26.2	65.6	204	100	3040
1FN1186-5AC71-0AA0	4800	10600	27.2	68	152	68	4000
1FN1186-5AD71-0AA0	4800	10600	32	80.1	185	89	4030
1FN1186-5AF71-0AA0	4800	10600	34.7	86.8	204	100	4050
1FN1244-5AC71-0AA0	4950	10900	28	69.9	149	65	4190
1FN1244-5AF71-0AA0	4950	10900	36.3	90.8	203	100	4110
1FN1246-5AC71-0AA0	6600	14500	37.7	93.7	151	67	5520
1FN1246-5AD71-0AA0	6600	14500	45.1	112.1	187	90	5530
1FN1246-5AF71-0AA0	6600	14500	48.3	119.9	201	98	5590

Table A-1 Technical data – 1FN1 type motors/part 1

Table A-2	Technical data – 1FN1 type motors/part 2	
-----------	--	--

Order no. primary	hM	pW	lp [mm]	MP	ls Imml	m _S (short/long)
section	լատյ	լատյ	լտայ	[Kg]	լտալ	[K9]
1FN1072-3AF7x-0AA0	80.7	137	320	10.1	226	3/7.5
1FN1076-3AF7x-0AA0	80.7	137	546	17.5	226	3/7.5
1FN1122-5xC71-0AA0	106.7	199	408	23.2	216	6.8/15.9
1FN1122-5xF71-0AA0	106.7	199	408	23.2	216	6.8/15.9
1FN1124-5xC71-0AA0	106.7	199	552	31.9	216	6.8/15.9
1FN1124-5xF71-0AA0	106.7	199	552	31.9	216	6.8/15.9
1FN1126-5xC71-0AA0	106.7	199	696	40.7	216	6.8/15.9
1FN1126-5xF71-0AA0	106.7	199	696	40.7	216	6.8/15.9
1FN1184-5AC71-0AA0	106.7	259	552	44.5	216	10/23.3
1FN1184-5AF71-0AA0	106.7	259	552	44.5	216	10/23.3
1FN1186-5AC71-0AA0	106,7	259	696	57.5	216	10/23.3
1FN1186-5AD71-0AA0	106,7	259	696	57.5	216	10/23.3
1FN1186-5AF71-0AA0	106,7	259	696	57,5	216	10/23.3
1FN1244-5AC71-0AA0	106.7	319	552	60.1	216	11.9/27.7
1FN1244-5AF71-0AA0	106.7	319	552	60.1	216	11.9/27.7
1FN1246-5AC71-0AA0	106,7	319	696	76	216	11.9/27.7
1FN1246-5AD71-0AA0	106.7	319	696	76	216	11.9/27.7
1FN1246-5AF71-0AA0	106.7	319	696	76	216	11.9/27.7

<u>Appendix</u>

A Motor data overview

Table A-3 Technical data – 1FN3 type peak-load motors/part	1
--	---

Order no, primary	EN .	FMAX	IN .	IMAX			
section		[N]	IA1	IA1	[m/min]	[m/min]	
1FN3050-2WC00-0AA0	200	550	2.7	8.2	373	146	310
1FN3100-1WC00-0AA1	200	490	2.4	6.5	322	138	280
1FN3100-2WC00-0AA1	450	1100	51	13.5	297	131	550
1FN3100-2WF00-0AA1	450	1100	8.1	21.5	497	237	550
1FN3100-3WC00-0AA1	675	1650	7.2	19.1	277	120	820
1FN3100-3WE00-0AA1	675	1650	12.1	32.2	497	237	830
1FN3100-4WC00-0AA1	900	2200	10.1	27	297	131	1100
1FN3100-4WE00-0AA1	900	2200	16.1	43	497	237	1110
1FN3100-5WC00-0AA1	1125	2750	11	29.5	255	109	1320
1FN3150-1WC00-0AA1	340	820	3.6	9.5	282	126	370
1FN3150-1WE00-0AA1	300	730	6.4	17	605	288	350
1FN3150-2WC00-0AA1	675	1650	7.2	19.1	282	126	730
1FN3150-3WC00-0AA1	1010	2470	10.7	28.6	282	126	1100
1FN3150-4WC00-0AA1	1350	3300	14.3	38.2	282	126	1470
1FN3150-5WC00-0AA1	1690	4120	17.9	47.7	282	126	1830
1FN3300-1WC00-0AA1	610	1720	6.5	20	309	128	520
1FN3300-2WB00-0AA1	1225	3450	8	24.7	176	63	990
1FN3300-2WC00-0AA1	1225	3450	12.6	39.2	297	125	1000
1FN3300-2WG00-0AA1	1225	3450	32.2	99.7	805	369	930
1FN3300-3WC00-0AA1	1840	5170	19	58.7	297	125	1500
1FN3300-3WG00-0AA1	1840	5170	50	154.9	836	383	1370
1FN3300-4WB00-0AA1	2450	6900	16	49.4	176	63	1990
1FN3300-4WC00-0AA1	2450	6900	25.3	78.3	297	125	1990
1FN3450-2WA50-0AA1	1930	5180	8.6	25.3	112	30	1530
1FN3450-2WB70-0AA1	1930	5170	15.2	45.1	235	102	1420
1FN3450-2WC00-0AA1	1930	5180	18.8	55.3	275	120	1470
1FN3450-2WE00-0AA1	1930	5180	33.8	99.7	519	240	1370
1FN3450-3WA50-0AA1	2895	7760	13.1	38.8	114	30	2390
1FN3450-3WB00-0AA1	2895	7760	17.9	52.7	164	62	2250
1FN3450-3WB50-0AA1	2895	7760	22.8	67.3	217	90	2230
1FN3450-3WC00-0AA1	2895	7760	28.1	83	275	120	2200
1FN3450-3WE00-0AA1	2895	7760	50.7	149.6	519	240	2060
1FN3450-4WB00-0AA1	3860	10350	23.8	70.3	164	62	3000
1FN3450-4WB50-0AA1	3860	10350	30.4	89.8	217	90	2980
1FN3450-4WC00-0AA1	3860	10350	37.5	110.6	275	120	2940
1FN3450-4WE00-0AA1	3860	10350	67.6	199.5	519	240	2740
1FN3600-2WA50-0AA1	2610	6900	12.4	36	120	36	2100
1FN3600-3WB00-0AA1	3915	10350	23.2	67.3	155	58	3000
1FN3600-3WC00-0AA1	3915	10430	35.7	105.9	279	127	2560
1FN3600-4WA30-0AA1	5220	13800	22.3	64.9	105	26	4230
1FN3600-4WB00-0AA1	5220	13800	30.9	89.8	155	58	4000
1FN3600-4WB50-0AA1	5220	13800	40.8	118.5	215	91	3810
1FN3600-4WC00-0AA1	5220	13800	46.9	136.5	254	112	3510
1FN3900-2WB00-0AA1	4050	10350	24.7	69.5	160	65	2940
1FN3900-2WC00-0AA1	4050	10350	36.7	103.3	253	115	2670
1FN3900-3WB00-0AA1	6075	15530	40.6	114	181	75	4430
1FN3900-4WB00-0AA1	8100	20700	49.4	138.9	160	65	5890
1FN3900-4WB50-0AA1	8100	20700	60.6	170.3	203	88	5830
1FN3900-4WC50-0AA1	8100	20700	73.5	206.5	253	115	5340

Order no. primary	h _M /h _{M,P}	b _M /b _{M,P}	IP	m _P /m _{P,P})	I _S	m _S /m _{S,P}
section	[mm]	[mm]	[mm]	[kg]	[mm]	[kg]
1FN3050-2WC00-0AA0	48.5 / 63.4	67 / 76	255	2.4 / 2.9	120	0.4 / 0.5
1FN3100-1WC00-0AA1	48.5 / -	96 / -	150	2.2 / -	120	0.7 / 0.8
1FN3100-2WC00-0AA1	48.5 / 63.4	96 / 105	255	3.8/4.4	120	0.7 / 0.8
1FN3100-2WE00-0AA1	48.5 / 63.4	96 / 105	255	3.8/4.4	120	0.7 / 0.8
1FN3100-3WC00-0AA1	48.5 / 63.4	96 / 105	360	5.4 / 6.2	120	0.7 / 0.8
1FN3100-3WE00-0AA1	48.5 / 63.4	96 / 105	360	5.4 / 6.2	120	0.7 / 0.8
1FN3100-4WC00-0AA1	48.5 / 63.4	96 / 105	465	7.4 / 8.5	120	0.7 / 0.8
1FN3100-4WE00-0AA1	48.5 / 63.4	96 / 105	465	7.4 / 8.5	120	0.7 / 0.8
1FN3100-5WC00-0AA1	48.5 / 63.4	96 / 105	570	9.1 / 10.4	120	0.7 / 0.8
1FN3150-1WC00-0AA1	50.5 / -	126 / -	150	3/-	120	1.2 / 1.3
1FN3150-1WE00-0AA1	50.5 / -	126 / -	150	3 / -	120	1.2 / 1.3
1FN3150-2WC00-0AA1	50.5 / 65.4	126 / 135	255	5.3/6	120	1.2 / 1.3
1FN3150-3WC00-0AA1	50.5 / 65.4	126 / 135	360	7.8/8.7	120	1.2 / 1.3
1FN3150-4WC00-0AA1	50.5 / 65.4	126 / 135	465	10.2 / 11.4	120	1.2 / 1.3
1FN3150-5WC00-0AA1	50.5 / 65.4	126 / 135	570	12.8 / 14.2	120	1.2 / 1.3
1FN3300-1WC00-0AA1	64.1 / -	141 / -	221	6.2 / -	184	2.4 / 2.6
1FN3300-2WB00-0AA1	64.1 / 79	141 / 151	382	11.4 / 12.4	184	2.4 / 2.6
1FN3300-2WC00-0AA1	64.1 / 79	141 / 151	382	11.4 / 12.4	184	2.4 / 2.6
1FN3300-2WG00-0AA1	64.1 / 79	141 / 151	382	11.4 / 12.4	184	2.4 / 2.6
1FN3300-3WC00-0AA1	64.1 / 79	141 / 151	543	17 / 18.4	184	2.4 / 2.6
1FN3300-3WG00-0AA1	64.1 / 79	141 / 151	543	17 / 18.4	184	2.4 / 2.6
1FN3300-4WB00-0AA1	64.1 / 79	141 / 151	704	22.2 / 24	184	2.4 / 2.6
1FN3300-4WC00-0AA1	64.1 / 79	141 / 151	704	22.2 / 24	184	2.4 / 2.6
1FN3450-2WA50-0AA1	66.1 / 81	188 / 197	382	15.9 / 17.1	184	3.8 / 4
1FN3450-2WB70-0AA1	66.1 / 81	188 / 197	382	15.9 / 17.1	184	3.8 / 4
1FN3450-2WC00-0AA1	66.1 / 81	188 / 197	382	15.9 / 17.1	184	3.8 / 4
1FN3450-2WE00-0AA1	66.1 / 81	188 / 197	382	15.9 / 17.1	184	3.8 / 4
1FN3450-3WA50-0AA1	66.1 / 81	188 / 197	543	22.6 / 24.3	184	3.8 / 4
1FN3450-3WB00-0AA1	66.1 / 81	188 / 197	543	22.6 / 24.3	184	3.8 / 4
1FN3450-3WB50-0AA1	66.1 / 81	188 / 197	543	22.6 / 24.3	184	3.8 / 4
1FN3450-3WC00-0AA1	66.1 / 81	188 / 197	543	22.6 / 24.3	184	3.8 / 4
1FN3450-3WE00-0AA1	66.1 / 81	188 / 197	543	22.6 / 24.3	184	3.8 / 4
1FN3450-4WB00-0AA1	66.1 / 81	188 / 197	704	30.9 / 33.1	184	3.8 / 4
1FN3450-4WB50-0AA1	66.1 / 81	188 / 197	704	30.9 / 33.1	184	3.8 / 4
1FN3450-4WC00-0AA1	66.1 / 81	188 / 197	704	30.9 / 33.1	184	3.8 / 4
1FN3450-4WE00-0AA1	66.1 / 81	188 / 197	704	30.9 / 33.1	184	3.8 / 4
1FN3600-2WA50-0AA1	64.1 / 86	248 / 257	382	22.2 / 24.7	184	4.6 / 5
1FN3600-3WB00-0AA1	64.1 / 86	248 / 257	543	31.5 / 33.4	184	4.6 / 5
1FN3600-3WC00-0AA1	64.1 / 86	248 / 257	543	31.5 / 33.4	184	4.6 / 5
1FN3600-4WA30-0AA1	64.1 / 86	248 / 257	704	40.8 / 43.3	184	4.6 / 5
1FN3600-4WB00-0AA1	64.1 / 86	248 / 257	704	40.8 / 43.3	184	4.6 / 5
1FN3600-4WB50-0AA1	64.1 / 86	248 / 257	704	40.8 / 43.3	184	4.6 / 5
1FN3600-4WC00-0AA1	64.1 / 86	248 / 257	704	40.8 / 43.3	184	4.6 / 5
1FN3900-2WB00-0AA1	66.1 / 88	342 / 351	382	28.2 / 29.7	184	7.5 / 7.9
1FN3900-2WC00-0AA1	66.1 / 88	342 / 351	382	28.2 / 29.7	184	7.5 / 7.9
1FN3900-3WB00-0AA1	66.1 / 88	342 / 351	543	42.2 / 44.3	184	7.5 / 7.9
1FN3900-4WB00-0AA1	66.1 / 88	342 / 351	704	56.2 / 58.9	184	7.5/7.9
1FN3900-4WB50-0AA1	66.1 / 88	342 / 351	704	56.2 / 58.9	184	7.5/7.9
1FN3900-4WC50-0AA1	66.1 / 88	342 / 351	704	56.2 / 58.9	184	7.5/7.9

 Table A-4
 Technical data – 1FN3 type peak-load motors/part 1

In this chapter we recommend products whose general suitability we know. It goes without saying that equivalent products from other manufacturers may be used. Our recommendations are to be seen as helpful information, not as requirements or dictates. We cannot accept any liability for the quality and properties/features of third-party products.

Manufacturers of corrosion protection agents (see page 4-31)

A manufacturer of corrosion protection agents is, for example, TYFOROP CHEMIE.

 Table B-5
 Contact information – Manufacturers of corrosion protection agents

Manufacturer/Contact information TYFOROP CHEMIE GmbH Anton-Rée-Weg 7 D-20537 Hamburg Tel: +49 40 209497-0 http://www.tyfo.de/

ABC Manufacturers of cold water units (see page 4-36)

Manufacturers of cold water units which may also support cooling system layouts include, for example, SCHIMPKE, BKW, RITTAL, PFANNENBERG, and HYDAC SYSTEM.

Table B-6 Contact information – Manufacturers of cold water units

Manufacturer/Contact information	Manufacturer/Contact information
Helmut Schimpke	BKW
Industriekühlanlagen GmbH + Co.KG	Kälte-Wärme-Versorgungstechnik GmbH
Postfach 101661	Benzstraße 2
D-42760 Haan	D-72649 Wolfschlugen
Tel: +49 2129 9438-0	Tel: +49 7022 5003-0
http://www.schimpke.de/	http://www.bkw-kuema.de/
Rittal GmbH & Co. KG	Pfannenberg GmbH
Postfach 1662	Werner-Witt-Straße 1
D-35726 Herborn	D-21035 Hamburg
Tel: 02772/505-2063	Tel.: +49 40 73412-0
http://www.rittal.de/	http://www.pfannenberg.de/
Hydac System GmbH	
Postfach 12 51	
66273 Sulzbach/Saar	
Tel.: +49 (0) 68 97 - 5 09 - 7 08	
www.hydac.com	

Manufacturers of brake elements (see page 4-40)

Manufacturers of brake elements include, for example, INA or Zimmer.

Table B-7	Contact information – Manufacturers of brake elemen

Manufacturer/Contact information	Manufacturer/Contact information
INA-Schaeffler KG	Zimmer GmbH Technische Werkstätten
Industriestraße 1-3	Im Salmenkopf 5
91074 Herzogenaurach	D-77866 Rheinau
Tel.: +49 9132 82-0	Tel: +49 7844 9138-0
http://www.ina.com/	http://www.zimmer-gmbh.com/

Manufacturers of coupling pieces (see page 9-92)

Manufacturers of couplings without check valve include, for example, Rectus with its product line 21 KA.

Table B-8 Contact information – Manufacturers of coupling pieces

Manufacturer/Contact information
RECTUS GmbH
Daimlerstraße 7
D-71735 Eberdingen-Nussdorf
Tel: +49 7042 100-0
http://www.rectus.de/



Manufacturers of cooler connections for 1FN3 models (see page 13-180)

Manufacturers of cooler connections for 1FN3 type motors include, for example, Rectus:

- Plug-in nipple: Article no. 21 SF AW 10 MXX (brass)
- Set of gaskets: A10x13.5 (DIN 7603 compliant, Al or Cu)
- Quick-snap couplings for plastic hoses
 - $d_{innen} \times d_{au\&en} = (5,7...6) \text{ mm} \times 8 \text{ mm}$: Article no. 21 KF KO 08 MPX

(hose connector with union nut, brass)

- d_{innen} = 6 mm:
- Article no. 21 KF TF 06 MPX (hose connector with clamp or cable tie, brass)
- d_{innen} = 8 mm: Article no. 21 KF TF 08 MPX (hose connector with clamp or cable tie, brass)
- non-blocking: 21 KF series instead of 21 KA (special design)

Table B-9 Contact information – Manufacturers of cooler connections for 1FN3 models

Manufacturer/Contact information RECTUS GmbH Daimlerstraße 7 D-71735 Eberdingen-Nussdorf Tel: +49 7042 100-0 http://www.rectus.de/ B Recommended manufacturers

Manufacturers of plastic hoses (see page 13-181)

Manufacturers of plastic hoses include, for example, FESTO and RECTUS.

Table B-10	Contact information - Manufacturers of plastic hoses

Manufacturer/Contact information	Manufacturer/Contact information
Festo AG & Co. KG	RECTUS GmbH
Ruiter Straße 82	Daimlerstraße 7
D-73734 Esslingen-Berkheim	D-71735 Eberdingen-Nussdorf
Tel: +49 711 3470	Tel: +49 7042 100-0
http://www.festo.com/	http://www.rectus.de/

Manufacturers of screw-in nipples and reinforcing sleeves (see page 13-182)

Manufacturers of union pieces with screw-in nipples and reinforcing sleeves include, for example, SERTO. This company also supplies screw-in nipples for hose nozzles.

Table B-11 Contact information – Manufacturers of screw-in nipples and reinforcing sleeves

Manufacturer/Co	ntact information
SERTO jacob Gmb	ъН
Kasseler Strasse 6	6
DE-34271 Fuldabr	ück
Tel: +49 561 58004	40
www.serto.com/	

C Terminal markings

With the norm EN 60034-8:2002 the terminal markings for electrical connections have changed. Table C-12 indicates the relevant changes regarding the 1FN1- and 1FN3-type primary sections.

Table C-12 Terminal markings according to EN 60034-8

	KTY 84 (Temp-F)	Bimetallic NC contact (Temp-S for 1FN1)	PTC (Temp-S for 1FN3)
old marking	2T1⊕/2T1⊝	1T1/1T2	1T1/1T2
new marking	+1R1/–1R2	1TB1/1TB2	1TP1/1TP2

ABC

DReferences

Reference materials quoted in this document

- /NC60/ Catalog NC 60 2004 SINUMERIK & SIMODRIVE, Automation Systems for Machine Tools Order no. E86060-K4460-A101-B1
- /PJU/ SIMODRIVE 611 Planning Guide Drive Converters Edition 10.04 Order no. 6SN1197-0AA00–0BP7
- /IAD/ SINUMERIK 840D/SIMODRIVE 611D Installation and Start-Up Guide Edition 11.02 Order no. 6FC5297-7AB10–0BP2
- /SME9x/ Sensor Module External SME 9x Operator's Manual Edition 09.05

Electronic publications

ABC

	CA 01	Automation & Drives Offline Mall CD-ROM including all products listed in the NC 60 • 2004 catalog Order number E86060-D4001-A100-C1
7	A&D Mall	Automation & Drives Online Mall http://www.siemens.com/automation/mall
	DocOnCI	D Technical Documentation on CD-ROM SINUMERIK & SIMODRIVE
	DocOnW	eb Automation & Drives Online Technical Documentation http://www.siemens.com/automation/doconweb
	Additiona	I documentation
	/EMV/	EMC Design Guidelines
		SINUMERIK, SIROTECC, SIMODRIVE
		Configuration Manual
		Order no. 6FC5297-0AD30–0BP1
	/FBA/	
		SIMODRIVE 611D, SINUMERIK 840D/810D
		Order no. 6SN1 197-0AA80-1BP1
	/FBU/	Function description
	,1 20,	Control Components for Closed-Loop Speed Control and Positioning SIMODRIVE 611 universal/universal E Edition 07 03
		Order no. 6SN1197–0AB20–0BP7
	/FBSI/	Description of Functions SINUMERIK Safety Integrated SINUMERIK 840D, SIMODRIVE Edition 11.03
		Order no. 6FC5297-6AB80–0BP2

E Indexes

E.1 Figures

Figure 4-1	Typical installation situation of a single-sided motor with moving primary section	4-22
Figure 4-2	Example for the correct position of the electrical pole position angle $\Phi_{\mbox{EL}}$ in comparison with	
	the EMF U _{U-} γ curve	4-22
Figure 4-3	Positive direction of motion of the primary sections	4-22
Figure 4-4	Standard position of the primary section in comparison with the secondary section track and RPU1.	4-23
Figure 4-5	Characteristics of KTY 84	4-24
Figure 4-6	Typical characteristics of a PTC element; source: DIN 44081/DIN 44082	4-25
Figure 4-7	Diagram of the cooling system of the motors of the 1FN1 and 1FN3 product families	4-27
Figure 4-8	Diagram of the Thermo-Sandwich® principle	4-28
Figure 4-9	Examples for the interconnection of various cooling circuits (diagram)	4-29
Figure 4-10	Example for the use of cold water units	4-29
Figure 4-11	Characteristic curve of the intake temperature of the cooling circuits	4-32
Figure 4-12	Current and temperature curve for intermittent duty S3	4-38
Figure 5-1	Sequence diagram for drive configuration	5-42
Figure 5-2	Power ratios of the motor in case of an inclined mounting position	5-43
Figure 5-3	Example for frictional forces	5-44
Figure 5-4	Example for the sequence of movement of a linear motor in diagrams	5-45
Figure 5-5	Example for a processing power/time chart	5-46
Figure 5-6	Example for individual forces of the linear motor and the resulting motor thrust	5-47
Figure 5-7	Sustained power in case of a motor thrust that is constant in sections	5-47
Figure 5-8	Example for the motor thrust/speed characteristic curve	5-49
Figure 5-9	Determination of the length of the secondary section track for a primary section	5-50
Figure 5-10	Determination of the length of the secondary section track for several primary sections	5-51
Figure 5-11	Example 1: Representation of the given variables in the distance/time chart	5-53
Figure 5-12	Example 1: Examples for traversing profiles	5-54
Figure 5-13	Example 1: Sequence of movements for the most simple traversing profile	5-55
Figure 5-14	Example 1: Modified traversing profile	5-56
Figure 5-15	Example 1: Power/time chart and sustained power of the observed load cycle	5-58
Figure 5-16	Three linear motor axes lying on top of each other in the x, y, and z directions	5-60
Figure 5-17	Example 2: Speed/time chart for the gantry	5-61
Figure 5-18	Example 2: Mass distribution of the y-axis to both motors: relevant lengths	5-62
Figure 5-19	Example 2: Power/time chart of the observed load cycle	5-64
Figure 6-1	Position of Master and Stoker in the same cable outlet direction	6-68
Figure 6-2	Position of Master and Stoker in case of PARALLEL and TANDEM arrangement	6-69
Figure 6-3	Position of the Master and Stoker in the case of different cable outlet directions	6-70
Figure 6-4	Targeted sample position of the Master and Stoker	6-71
Figure 6-5	Dimensions (with counting direction) in the case of the specified example	6-72
Figure 6-6	Principle design of a double-sided motor	6-73
Figure 7-1	Insertion of the secondary section in the case of a double-sided motor	7-77
Figure 7-2	Principle structure of an extractor	7-79
Figure 7-3	Principle structure of an extractor (longitudinal section)	7-79
Figure 9-1	Data on the rating plate (diagram)	9-89
Figure 9-2	Position of the connecting elements for the 1FN1 (top view. front side)	9-89
Figure 9-3	Mounting space for the connection system of the 1FN1xxx-xAxxx motors (with plug, top view)	9-90
-		

Figure 9-4	Mounting space for the connection technology of the 1FN1xxx-xKxxx motors (with previously mo	ounted,
- ; - - -		
Figure 9-5	Internal circuitry of the primary section	
Figure 9-6	I erminal assignment of the plugs for the 1FN1xxx-xAxxx primary sections	
Figure 9-7	I erminal assignment of the previously assembled cable for 1FN1xxx-xKxxx primary sections	
Figure 9-8	Thermal encapsulation of the 1FN1-type motors	9-94
Figure 9-9	Double-sided motor with motors of the size 1FN107x	9-96
Figure 9-10	Control dimensions during motor mounting	9-97
Figure 9-11	Position of the dowel holes and the N-marking	9-98
Figure 11-1	Definition of the thermal time constants	11-104
Figure 11-2	Motor thrust/speed characteristics diagram	11-106
Figure 11-3	Braking force/speed characteristic curve when motor is short-circuited, diagram	11-106
Figure 11-4	Temperature increase/volume flow in main cooler characteristics diagram	11-107
Figure 11-5	Pressure drop/volume flow characteristics diagram	11-107
Figure 11-6	Maximum sustained power depending on the intake temperature of the primary section main code	oler11-144
Figure 11-7	Dependency of the attraction force of the air gap for 1FN1-type motors	11-144
Figure 11-8	Dependency of the motor thrust of the air gap for 1FN1-type motors	11-145
Figure 12-1	1FN1072-3AF7x-0AA0 primary section (plug connection)	12-146
Figure 12-2	1FN1076-3AF7x-0AA0 primary section (plug connection)	12-147
Figure 12-3	1FN1070-0AA00-0AA0 secondary section (short)	12-148
Figure 12-4	1FN1070-0AA00-1AA0 secondary section (long)	12-149
Figure 12-5	1FN1122-3AF7x-0AA0 primary section (plug connection)	12-150
Figure 12-6	1EN1122-3KE7x-0AA0 primary section (previously mounted assembled cable)	12-151
Figure 12-7	1EN1124-3AE7x-0AA0 primary section (plug connection)	12-152
Figure 12-8	1EN1124-3KE7x-0AA0 primary section (previously mounted assembled cable)	12-153
Figure 12-9	1EN1126-3AE7x-0AA0 primary section (preneation)	12-154
Figure 12-10	1EN1126-3KE7x-0AA0 primary section (previously mounted assembled cable)	12-155
Figure 12-11	1EN1120-0A A00-0A A0 secondary section (short)	12-156
Figure 12-11	1EN1120 0AA00 1AA0 secondary section (short)	12-157
Figure 12-12	1EN1124 24E7x 0440 primary section (nong)	10 150
Figure 12-13	4EN14496 24EZy 0440 primary section (plug connection)	12-100
Figure 12-14	AENIAROO OAAOO OAAOO primary section (plug connection)	12-159
Figure 12-15	1FN1180-0AA00-0AA0 secondary section (snort)	12-160
Figure 12-16	1FN1180-0AA00-1AA0 secondary section (long)	12-161
Figure 12-17	1FN1244-3AF /x-0AA0 primary section (plug connection)	12-162
Figure 12-18	1FN1244-3AF7x-0AA0 primary section (plug connection)	12-163
Figure 12-19	1FN1240-0AA00-0AA0 secondary section (short)	12-164
Figure 12-20	1FN1240-0AA00-1AA0 secondary section (long)	12-165
Figure 12-21	Hall sensor box 1FN1910-0ABx0-0AA0	12-166
Figure 13-1	Components of a 1FN3-type linear motor	13-173
Figure 13-2	Rating plate specifications (diagram)	13-175
Figure 13-3	Layout of the 1FN3 connectors (face top view)	13-176
Figure 13-4	Internal circuit of the primary section	13-177
Figure 13-5	Connecting the supply line with angled cable lugs	13-177
Figure 13-6	Terminal assignment and geometry of the terminal panel for 1FN3050 models	13-178
Figure 13-7	Terminal assignment and geometry of the terminal panel for 1FN3100 and 1FN3150 models	13-179
Figure 13-8	Terminal assignment and geometry of the terminal panel for 1FN3300900 models	13-179
Figure 13-9	Mounting the terminal panel cover	13-180
Figure 13-10	Example of a cooling connection with a chase on the machine slide	13-181
Figure 13-11	Connector layout of the secondary section cooling with combi distributor (face view)	13-182
Figure 13-12	Connector layout of the secondary section cooling with combi adapter (face view)	13-182
Figure 13-13	Thermal encapsulation of 1FN3-type motors	13-184

Figure 13-14	Secondary section cooling consisting of cooling sections with hose connector nipples for 1FN050450 motor models (side and top view)	13-185
Figure 13-15	Secondary section cooling consisting of cooling sections with hose connector nipples for 1EN600 900 motor models (side and top view)	13-185
Figure 13-16	Secondary section and piece (side view)	13-186
Figure 13-17	Secondary section and piece (side view)	15-100
	(side and top view)	13-187
Figure 13-18	Secondary section cooling for 1FN3600- and 1FN3900-type motors with combi distributors	
	(side and top view)	13-187
Figure 13-19	Secondary section cooling for 1FN30501FN3450-type motors with combi adapter and combi end	13-188
Figure 13-20	Secondary section cooling consisting of cooling sections with base connector ninnle and cover and	10-100
rigure 10-20	nieces on both sides for all 1EN3050 1EN3450 motor models (side and top view)	13-188
Figure 13-21	Double-sided motor layout using 1EN3-type peak-load motors	13_180
Figure 13-22	Control dimensions for mounting the motor	13-100
Figure 13-22	Position of the "N" mark on 1EN3 type secondary sections	13 101
Figure 12-23	Position of the cooling costions and combi distributors (illustration without featening corours)	12 102
Figure 13-24	Position of the cooling sections and complication distributors (indistration without fastering screws)	13-192
Figure 13-25	Mounting the first segment of a segmented secondary section cover	13-194
Figure 13-26	Mounting another segment of a segmented secondary section cover	13-194
Figure 13-27	Example: Segment position of the segmented secondary section cover	13-194
Figure 13-28	Demounting a segment of a segmented secondary section cover	13-195
Figure 13-29	Hall sensor box with straight cable outlet	13-196
Figure 13-30	Hall sensor box with lateral cable outlet	13-197
Figure 13-31	Nominal dimensions for mounting the Hall sensor box (HSB)	13-197
Figure 15-1	Definition of the thermal time constants	15-204
Figure 15-2	Components of the standard secondary section cooling, schematic	15-205
Figure 15-3	Characteristic of motor thrust vs. speed, schematic	15-206
Figure 15-4	Characteristic of brake force vs. speed for short-circuited motors, schematic	15-206
Figure 15-5	Characteristic of temperature increase vs. flow rate in the primary section main cooler, schematic	15-207
Figure 15-6	Characteristics of pressure drop vs. flow rate, schematic	15-207
Figure 15-7	Maximum continuous thrust dependent on the intake temperature of the primary section	15 206
Figure 15 9	Attraction force of the 1EN2 time neek load maters dependent on the sir gap	15-300
Figure 15-0	Autoclion force of the 1FN2 type peak-load motors dependent on the air gap	15-300
Figure 16-4	Mounting dimensions for the 4EN20E0, 4EN2400 and 4EN24E0 meter medels	10-307
Figure 16-1	Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3050, 1FN3100 and 1FN3150 motor models	10-300
Figure 16-2	Sections and details	16-309
Figure 16-3	Cooling section with plug nipple for the 1FN3050, 1FN3100 and 1FN3150 motor models	16-316
Figure 16-4	Cooling section with hose connector nipple for the 1FN3050, 1FN3100 and 1FN3150 motor models	16-316
Figure 16-5	Cooling section with hose connector ninple L for the 1EN3050 1EN3100 and	10 010
	1FN3150 motor models	16-317
Figure 16-6	Hall sensor box (HSB) with straight cable outlet for the 1FN3050, 1FN3100, and 1FN3150 motor models	16-317
Figure 16-7	Hall sensor box (HSB) with lateral cable outlet for the 1FN3050, 1FN3100, and	
	1FN3150 motor models	16-318
Figure 16-8	Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3300 and 1FN3450 motor models; except: 1FN3300-3WG00, 1FN3450-3WE00, 1FN3450-4WE00	16-319
Figure 16-9	Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3300 and 1FN3450 motor models: Sections and details	
0	except: 1FN3300-3WG00, 1FN3450-3WE00, 1FN3450-4WE00	16-320

	Figure 16-10	Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3300-3WG00, 1FN3450-3WE00, 1FN3450-4WE00 motor models	16-321
	Figure 16-11	Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3300-3WG00, 1FN3450-3WE00, 1FN3450-4WE00 motor models	3:
	0	Sections and details	16-322
	Figure 16-12	Cooling section with plug nipples for the 1FN3300 and 1FN3450 motor models	16-327
	Figure 16-13	Cooling section with hose connector nipple R for the 1FN3300 and 1FN3450 motor models	16-327
	Figure 16-14	Cooling section with hose connector nipple L for the 1FN3300 and 1FN3450 motor models	16-328
	Figure 16-15	Hall sensor box (HSB) with straight cable outlet for the 1FN3300 and 1FN3450 motor models	16-328
	Figure 16-16	Hall sensor box (HSB) with lateral cable outlet for the 1FN3300 and 1FN3450 motor models	16-329
	Figure 16-17	Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3600 motor models	16-330
	Figure 16-18	Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3600 motor models: Sections and details	16-331
	Figure 16-19	Cooling section with plug nipples for the 1FN3600 motor models	16-334
	Figure 16-20	Cooling section with hose connector nipple R/L for the 1FN3600 motor models	16-334
	Figure 16-21	Hall sensor box (HSB) with straight cable outlet for the 1FN3600 motor models	16-335
	Figure 16-22	Hall sensor box (HSB) with lateral cable outlet for the 1FN3600 motor models	16-336
	Figure 16-23	Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3900 motor models; except: 1FN3900-4WB00 and 1FN3900-4WC00	16-337
	Figure 16-24	Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3900 motor models: Sections and details; except:	
	Ū	1FN3900-4WB00 and 1FN3900-4WC00	16-338
	Figure 16-25	Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3900-4WB00 and 1FN3900-4WC00 motor models	16-339
	Figure 16-26	Mounting dimensions for the 1FN3900-4WB00 and 1FN3900-4WC00 motor models:	
		Sections and details	16-340
ABC	Figure 16-27	Cooling section with plug nipples for the 1FN3900 motor models	16-343
	Figure 16-28	Cooling section with hose connector nipple R/L for the 1FN3900 motor models	16-343
	Figure 16-29	Hall sensor box (HSB) with straight cable outlet for the 1FN3900 motor models	16-344
	Figure 16-30	Hall sensor box (HSB) with lateral cable outlet for the 1FN3900 motor models	16-345
	Figure 17-1	Standard connections for 1FN1- and 1FN3- type (peak-load) motors	17-351
	Figure 18-1	Connecting the 1FN3xxx0AA0 primary section (without Temp-F)	18-354
	Figure 18-2	Temp-S evaluation via motor protection device and PLC for 1FN1 models	18-354
	Figure 18-3	Temp-S evaluation via motor protection device and PLC for 1FN3 models	18-355
	Figure 19-1	Wiring diagram for two primary sections connected in parallel	19-356
	Figure 20-1	Assembled cables for a direct connection of the length measurement system (WMS) to X411/X412	20-357
	Figure 20-2	Connecting an incremental length measurement system (WMS) with Hall sensor box (HSB) to the	
	J	X411/X412 interface with connector box	20-358
	Figure 20-3	1FN1910-0AA00-0AA0 connector box for an incremental measurement system	20-359

E.2 Tables

Table 2-1	Enclosed warning signs in compliance with BGV A8 and DIN 4844-2 and their meanings	2-9
Table 2-2	Enclosed prohibiting signs according to BGV A8 and DIN 4844-2 and their meanings	2-10
Table 4-1	possible control systems for the SIMODRIVE 611 digital and SIMODRIVE 611 universal HR	
	converter series	4-21
Table 4-2	Permissible rated voltages of TN networks for motors of the 1FN1 and 1FN3 product families and	
	the resulting DC link and converter output voltages	4-21
Table 4-3	RPU for (peak-load) motors of the 1FN1 and 1FN3 product families	4-23
Table 4-4	Minimum of materials used for the cooling system	4-31
Table 6-1	Basic mechanical arrangements of parallel-connected motors	6-67
Table 6-2	Phase sequence for PARALLEL and TANDEM arrangement	6-68
Table 6-3	Phase sequence for ANTIPARALLEL and JANUS arrangement	6-69
Table 7-1	Maximum permissible tightening torques MA,MAX *	7-75
Table 9-1	Standard motor of the 1FN1 product family: Technical features	9-88
Table 9-2	Special motor designs: additional possible technical features	9-88
Table 9-3	Dimensions for the position of the connecting elements (see Figure 9-2)	9-90
Table 9-4	Dimensions of the mounting space for the connection system of the 1FN1xxx-xAxxx motors	
	(see Figure 9-3)	9-90
Table 9-5	Dimensions of the mounting space for the connection system of the 1FN1xxx-xKxxx motors	
	(see Figure 9-4)	9-91
Table 9-6	Response temperatures of the switches	9-93
Table 9-7	Dimensions of the used pipe material of the 1FN1 secondary sections	9-95
Table 9-8	Pole pair width and minimum distance of parallel-connected 1FN1 motors	9-95
Table 9-9	Masses of the secondary section components for the 1FN1 double-sided motor	9-96
Table 9-10	Control dimensions for the mounting dimensions and air gap according to Figure 9-10	9-97
Table 13-1	Standard model 1FN3-type peak-load motors: Technical features	. 13-174
Table 13-2	Special design motors: additional optional technical features	. 13-175
Table 13-3	Connector layout dimensions, see Figure 13-3	. 13-176
Table 13-4	Screws and torque for the terminal panel cover	. 13-180
Table 13-5	Connector dimensions of the secondary section cooling with combi adapter	
	(available only for 1FN3050450)	. 13-182
Table 13-6	Pole pair width and minimum distance of 1FN3-type peak-load motors connected in parallel	. 13-189
Table 13-7	Air gap dimensions and control dimensions for mounting the motor as specified in Figure 13-22	. 13-190
Table 13-8	Number of wedge mounting screws for the secondary section end pieces	. 13-191
Table 18-1	Motor and cable qualification with regards to protective separation	. 18-352
Table 18-2	SME9x variants	. 18-353
Table 20-1	Connector box plug pinout, see Figure 20-3	. 20-359
Table A-1	Technical data – 1FN1 type motors/part 1	A-367
Table A-2	Technical data – 1FN1 type motors/part 2	A-367
Table A-3	Technical data – 1FN3 type peak-load motors/part 1	A-368
Table A-4	Technical data – 1FN3 type peak-load motors/part 1	A-369
Table B-5	Contact information – Manufacturers of corrosion protection agents	B-370
Table B-6	Contact information – Manufacturers of cold water units	B-370
Table B-7	Contact information – Manufacturers of brake elements	B-371
Table B-8	Contact information – Manufacturers of coupling pieces	B-371
Table R_0	Contact information – Manufacturers of cooler connections for 1EN3 models	B_371
Table P 10	Contact information – Manufacturers of plastic bacco	B_270
	Contact information - Manufacturers of screw in pipples and reinforcing slooves	B_270
	Terminal markings according to EN 60034.8	216-01
	I GITHINAL MARNING ACCOUNTY TO LIN 00034-0	

ABC

E.3 Index

Accessories	14-199
Air gap	
Characteristics 11-144, 11-145, 16	-306, 16-307
Check	9-97,13- 190
Attraction force 2-8,7-75,11-	144, 15-306
	,
B	
Bending radius	
bore hole distance	6-68
Bore hole distance	6-70
Brake	
Braking	
5	
C	
Cable	
Properties	
Wiring guidelines	22-360
Cable carrier	
Characteristics	
Attraction force air gap	11-144
Attraction force-air gap	15-306
KTY 84	4-24
Motor thrust air gap	11-145
Motor thrust speed	5-48
Motor thrust-air gap	15-307
PTC element	4-25
Sustained power intake temperature 11	-144 16-306
Chock	-144, 10-300
Air gap	0 07 42 400
All gap	9-97, 13-190
Motor mounting	
Checking the air gap	
Checking the air gap Condensation	
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration	7-80 7-80 4-32
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example	
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations	
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle	
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process	
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection	
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling	
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling electrical	
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling electrical Electrical	7-80 7-80 7-80 4-32 5-53, 5-59 5-43 5-43 5-45 5-41 13-180 3-12,9-91 13-177
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling electrical Encoder	
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling electrical Electrical Encoder Hall sensor box	
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling electrical Electrical Encoder Hall sensor box Measuring system	
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling electrical Electrical Encoder Hall sensor box Measuring system Primary section	
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling electrical Electrical Encoder Hall sensor box Measuring system Primary section Temperature monitoring	7-80 7-80 7-80 4-32 5-53, 5-59 5-43 5-43 5-45 5-41 13-180 3-12,9-91 13-177 20-357 20-358 20-357 18-351 18-352
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling electrical Electrical Electrical Encoder Hall sensor box Measuring system Primary section Temperature monitoring Temperature monitoring circuits	7-80 7-80 7-80 4-32 5-53, 5-59 5-43 5-43 5-45 5-41 13-180 3-12,9-91 13-177 20-357 20-358 20-357 18-351 18-352 4-24
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling electrical Electrical Electrical Encoder Hall sensor box Measuring system Primary section Temperature monitoring circuits Connection system	7-80 7-80 7-80 4-32 5-53, 5-59 5-43 5-45 5-41 13-180 3-12,9-91 13-177 20-357 20-358 20-357 18-351 18-352 4-24
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling electrical Electrical Encoder Hall sensor box Measuring system Primary section Temperature monitoring circuits Connection system Mounting space	7-80 7-80 7-80 4-32 5-53, 5-59 5-43 5-45 5-45 13-180 3-12,9-91 13-177 20-357 20-357 20-358 20-357 18-351 18-352 4-24 9-90, 13-183
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling electrical Electrical Electrical Encoder Hall sensor box Measuring system Primary section Temperature monitoring Temperature monitoring circuits Connection system Mounting space	7-80 7-80 4-32 5-53, 5-59 5-43 5-45 5-45 13-180 13-12,9-91 13-177 20-357 20-357 20-358 20-357 18-351 18-352 4-24 9-90, 13-183
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling electrical Electrical Electrical Encoder Hall sensor box Measuring system Primary section Temperature monitoring Temperature monitoring circuits Connection system Mounting space Connection systems general	7-80 7-80 7-80 4-32 5-53, 5-59 5-43 5-45 5-45 5-41 13-180 3-12,9-91 13-177 20-357 20-357 20-358 20-358 20-358 18-351 18-352 4-24 9-90, 13-183
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling electrical Electrical Electrical Encoder Hall sensor box Measuring system Primary section Temperature monitoring circuits Connection system Mounting space Connection systems general Position of terminals	7-80 7-80 7-80 4-32 5-43 5-43 5-43 5-43 5-43 5-44 13-180 3-12,9-91 13-177 20-357 20-357 20-357 20-355 18-351 18-352 4-24 9-90, 13-183
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling electrical Electrical Electrical Encoder Hall sensor box Measuring system Primary section Temperature monitoring circuits Connection system Mounting space Connection systems general Position of terminals Connector box	7-80 7-80 7-80 4-32 5-53, 5-59 5-43 5-45 5-45 13-180 3-12,9-91 13-177 20-357 20-357 20-358 20-357 18-351 18-351 18-352 4-24 9-90, 13-183 9-90, 259
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling electrical Electrical Encoder Hall sensor box Measuring system Primary section Temperature monitoring circuits Connection system Mounting space Connection systems general Position of terminals Connector box	7-80 7-80 7-80 4-32 5-53, 5-59 5-43 5-45 5-45 5-41 13-180 3-12,9-91 13-177 20-357 20-358 20-358 20-357 18-351 18-352 4-24 9-90, 13-183 9-90, 13-183
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling electrical Electrical Encoder Hall sensor box Measuring system Primary section Temperature monitoring circuits Connection system Mounting space Connection systems general Position of terminals Connector box Connector box Connector box Connector box Connector box Connector box Connector box Connector box Contact addresses	7-80 7-80 7-80 4-32 5-53, 5-59 5-43 5-45 5-45 13-180 3-12,9-91 13-177 20-357 20-358 20-357 18-351 18-351 18-352 4-24 9-90, 13-183 4-36 9-89 20-358
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling electrical Electrical Encoder Hall sensor box Measuring system Primary section Temperature monitoring circuits Connection system Mounting space Connection systems general Position of terminals Connector box Connector box Connector box Connector box Connector box Connector box Connector box Contact addresses Cooler	7-80 7-80 7-80 4-32 5-53, 5-59 5-43 5-45 5-41 13-180 3-12,9-91 13-177 20-357 20-358 20-357 18-351 18-351 18-352 4-24 9-90, 13-183 4-36 9-89 20-358 94 9-90
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling electrical Electrical Encoder Hall sensor box Measuring system Primary section Temperature monitoring circuits Connection system Mounting space Connection systems general Position of terminals Contact addresses Cooler Main cooler	7-80 7-80 7-80 4-32 5-53, 5-59 5-43 5-45 5-41 13-180 3-12,9-91 13-177 20-357 20-358 20-357 18-351 18-351 18-352 4-24 9-90, 13-183 4-36 9-89 20-358
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling electrical Electrical Encoder Hall sensor box Measuring system Primary section Temperature monitoring circuits Connection system Mounting space Connection systems general Position of terminals Connector box Contact addresses Cooler Main cooler Precision cooler	7-80 7-80 7-80 4-32 5-53, 5-59 5-43 5-45 5-41 13-180 3-12,9-91 13-177 20-357 20-358 20-357 18-351 18-351 18-352 4-24 9-90, 13-183 4-36 9-89 20-358
Checking the air gap Condensation Configuration Example Limitations Load cycle Process Connection Cooling electrical Electrical Encoder Hall sensor box Measuring system Primary section Temperature monitoring circuits Connection system Mounting space Connection systems general Position of terminals Connector box Contact addresses Cooler Main cooler Precision cooler Cooling	7-80 7-80 7-80 4-32 5-53, 5-59 5-43 5-45 5-41 13-180 3-12,9-91 13-177 20-357 20-358 20-357 18-351 18-351 18-352 4-24 9-90, 13-183 4-36 9-89 20-358 ii 9-94 9-94 9-94 9-94 13-184

Flow temperature	
Main cooler	.4-27, 13-184
Precision cooler	.4-27, 13-184
secondary section cooling	
Secondary section cooling	9-94, 13-84
Cooling circuits	
Commissioning and maintenance	
Connection	
Series connection	
Cooling media	
Properties general	4-30
Water	4-30
Cooling postion	12 105
Cooling system	
Cover for secondary section	
D	
Demounting	
Secondary section cover	13-194
Description	
Safaty guidelines	15
Dimension drawings	
	2-146, 16-308
Double-sided motor	9-95,13- 189
Double-sided motors	6-73
Dowel pin	9-97
_	
E	
Example	
Bore hole distance	6-70
Configuration	5-53,5-59
Cooling layout	
Order	
Extractor	7-78
F	
	4.04
Flow temperature	
— G —	
Grounding	21-350
H	
Hall sensor box	
Connection	20-358
Dimension drawings	12-166
Measuring system	13_107
Mount	13 107
Mounting	0.09.12.105
would ling	9-96,13-195
Installation situation	
Dimonsion drawings	16 208
Mounting dimensions	0 07 12 100
Intake temperature1	1-144, 15-306
Interfaces	9-89
K	
	0 02 42 402
NIT 04	, ७-७১, 13-183
M	
Magnetic coverage secondary section tra	ck 4-38
Main cooler 4_27	9_94 13_184
Maintononoo	, ט-טד, וט-וט4 גג מ
เพลแนะแลแนะ	

Malfunctions	
Braking	
Manufacturer recommendation	
Cooling system	
Manufacturer recommendations	
Description	ii
Measuring system	13-197, 20-357
Motor	
Components	9-97, 13-172
Configuration	$\dots \rightarrow Configuration$
Parallel circuit configuration	9-95, 13-189
Parallel connection	
Selection	$\dots \rightarrow Configuration$
Motor components	
Motor mounting	
Check	
procedure	
Motor mounting	
Motor protection	4-36,9- 88, 13-175
Mounting	
Hall sensor box	9-98,13-195
Motor	7-74, 9-97,13-189
Primary section	
Secondary section	
Secondary section cooling	
Secondary section cover	
Mounting	
Mounting situation	
Mounting dimensions	7-75
Mounting system	
Screws	
Mounting technology	
6 6,	
Screws	
Screws	
Screws Mouting situation General	4-28 4-22
Screws Mouting situation General	
Screws Mouting situation General	
Screws Mouting situation General	
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms	
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms P Packaging	
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms P Packaging Parallel circuit configuration motors .	
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms P Packaging Parallel circuit configuration motors . Parallel connection motors	
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms P Packaging Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel connection motors Arrangement	
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms P Packaging Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel connection motors Arrangement Bore hole distance	
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms P Packaging Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel connection motors Arrangement Bore hole distance Double-sided motor	
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms P Packaging Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel connection motors Arrangement Bore hole distance Double-sided motor Double-sided motors	
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms Packaging Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel connection motors Arrangement Bore hole distance Double-sided motor Double-sided motors Parallel connection motors	4-28 4-22
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel connection motors Arrangement Bore hole distance Double-sided motor Double-sided motors Parallel connection motorx Bore hole distance	4-28 4-22 9-87 9-87 9-95, 13-189 6-68 6-70 9-95, 13-189 6-73 6-68
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel connection motors Arrangement Bore hole distance Double-sided motor Double-sided motors Parallel connection motorx Bore hole distance Parallel connection motorx Bore hole distance Parallel connection motors Parallel connection motors	4-28 4-22 9-87 9-87 9-95, 13-189 6-68 6-70 9-95, 13-189 6-73 6-68
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel connection motors Arrangement Bore hole distance Double-sided motor Double-sided motors Parallel connection motorx Bore hole distance Parallel connection motorx Bore hole distance Parallel connection motors Arrangements	4-28 4-22 9-87 9-87 9-95, 13-189 6-68 6-70 9-95, 13-189 6-73 6-68 6-67
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel connection motors Arrangement Bore hole distance Double-sided motor Double-sided motors Parallel connection motorx Bore hole distance Parallel connection motorx Bore hole distance Parallel connection of motors Arrangements Parallel connections motors	4-28 4-22 9-87 3-10 9-95, 13-189 6-68 6-70 9-95, 13-189 6-73 6-68 6-67 6-68
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel connection motors Arrangement Bore hole distance Double-sided motor Double-sided motors Parallel connection motorx Bore hole distance Parallel connection motors Parallel connection of motors Arrangements Parallel connections motors Parallel connections motors Arrangements Parallel connections motors Parallel connections motors Parallel connections motors Parallel connections motors Parallel connections motors Parallel connections motors	4-28 4-22 9-87 9-87 9-95, 13-189 6-68 6-70 9-95, 13-189 6-73 6-68 6-67 6-67 6-67 5-46
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel connection motors Arrangement Bore hole distance Double-sided motor Double-sided motors Parallel connection motorx Bore hole distance Parallel connection motors Parallel connection of motors Arrangements Parallel connections motors Parallel connections motors	4-28 4-22 9-87 3-10 9-95, 13-189 6-68 6-70 9-95, 13-189 6-73 6-68 6-67 6-67 6-67 5-46
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel connection motors Arrangement Bore hole distance Double-sided motor Double-sided motors Parallel connection motorx Bore hole distance Parallel connection motors Parallel connection of motors Arrangements Parallel connections motors Parallel connections motors Peak power Personnel qualified	4-28 4-22 9-87 3-10 9-95, 13-189 6-68 6-70 9-95, 13-189 6-73 6-68 6-67 6-67 6-67 5-46
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel connection motors Arrangement Bore hole distance Double-sided motor Double-sided motors Parallel connection motorx Bore hole distance Parallel connection motors Arrangements Parallel connection of motors Arrangements Parallel connections motors Parallel connections motors	4-28 4-22 9-87 3-10 9-95, 13-189 6-68 6-70 9-95, 13-189 6-73 6-68 6-67 6-67 6-67 5-46 2-6 6-68
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel cincuit configuration motors Parallel connection motors Arrangement Bore hole distance Double-sided motor Double-sided motors Parallel connection motorx Bore hole distance Parallel connection motors Arrangements Parallel connections motors Arrangements Parallel connections motors Parallel connect	4-28 4-22 9-87 3-10 9-95, 13-189 6-68 6-70 9-95, 13-189 6-73 6-68 6-67 6-67 5-46 2-6 6-68 6-68 9-95 13-189
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel connection motors Arrangement Bore hole distance Double-sided motor Double-sided motors Parallel connection motorx Bore hole distance Parallel connection motors Arrangements Parallel connection of motors Arrangements Parallel connections motors Parallel connections Parallel	4-28 4-22 9-87 3-10 9-95, 13-189 6-68 6-68 6-73 6-68 6-67 6-67 6-67 5-46 2-6 6-68 6-68,9- 95, 13-189
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel connection motors Arrangement Bore hole distance Double-sided motor Double-sided motors Parallel connection motorx Bore hole distance Parallel connection motors Arrangements Parallel connections motors Arrangements Parallel connections motors Parallel connections motors Peak power Peak power Power unit Selection	4-28 4-22 9-87 3-10 9-95, 13-189 6-68 6-68 9-95, 13-189 6-73 6-68 6-67 6-67 5-46 2-6 6-68 6-68,9- 95, 13-189 5-51
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel connection motors Arrangement Bore hole distance Double-sided motor Double-sided motors Parallel connection motorx Bore hole distance Parallel connection motors Arrangements Parallel connection of motors Arrangements Parallel connections motors Parallel connections motors Peak power Peak power Power unit Selection Precision cooler	4-28 4-22
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel connection motors Arrangement Bore hole distance Double-sided motor Double-sided motors Parallel connection motorx Bore hole distance Parallel connection motors Arrangements Parallel connection of motors Arrangements Parallel connections motors Parallel connections motors Peak power Peak power Personnel qualified Phase sequence Pole pair width Power unit Selection Precision cooler Primary section	4-28 4-22 9-87 9-95, 13-189 9-95, 13-189 6-68 6-68 9-95, 13-189 6-73 6-68 6-67 6-67 6-67 5-46 6-68 6-68,9- 95, 13-189 5-51 4-27, 9-94, 13-184
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel cincuit configuration motors Parallel connection motors Arrangement Bore hole distance Double-sided motor Double-sided motors Parallel connection motorx Bore hole distance Parallel connection motors Arrangements Parallel connection of motors Arrangements Parallel connections motors Parallel connections motors Parallel connections motors Parallel connections motors Parallel connections motors Parallel connections motors Parallel connections motors Peak power Peak power Personnel qualified Phase sequence Pole pair width Power unit Selection Precision cooler Primary section cooler	4-28 4-22
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms Parallel circuit configuration motors Parallel cincuit configuration motors Parallel connection motors Arrangement Bore hole distance Double-sided motor Double-sided motors Parallel connection motorx Bore hole distance Parallel connection motors Arrangements Parallel connections motors Arrangements Parallel connections motors Parallel connections motors Peak power Peak power Peak power Peak power Peak power Peak power Peak power Peak power Presonnel qualified Power unit Selection Precision cooler Primary section cooler Cooling	4-28 4-22
Screws Mouting situation General N Norms Packaging Parallel circuit configuration motors . Parallel connection motors Arrangement Bore hole distance Double-sided motor Double-sided motors Parallel connection motorx Bore hole distance Parallel connection motors Arrangements Parallel connections motors Parallel connections motors Presonnel qualified Power unit Selection Precision cooler Primary section cooler Cooling Dimension drawings	4-28 4-22 9-87 9-87 9-95, 13-189 6-68 6-68 6-67 9-95, 13-189 6-73 6-68 6-67 6-67 5-46 2-6 6-68 6-68,9- 95, 13-189 5-51 4-27, 9-94, 13-184 9-94 13-184

Electrical connection18-351
Mounting9-98, 13-195
Order designations10-100,14-198
Selection5-47
Printed edition, informationii
Protection class 4-36,9-88,13- 175, 20-358
PTC element
Oualified personnel 2-6
Questions \rightarrow Contact addresses
R
Recommended manufacturers
Anti-corrosion agent9-92
Cold water units 4-36, 4-40,13-180,13-181
RPU4-23
S
Safety quidelines
General 2-6
Secondara section
Order designations
Secondary section
Cooling
Dimension drawings
Mounting9-98, 13-190
Order designations14-198
Selection5-49
Secondary section cooling9-94
Secondary section cooling4-27
Secondary section cooling13-184
Secondary section cooling
Mounting13-191
Secondary section cover14-200
Secondary section end piece 13-182,13-186
Secondary section track
Length
Magnetic coverage4-38
Secondary sections
Dimension drawings 12-146
Security guidelines
Contrinsicon 3-12
Mounting 3-11
Operation 3-13
specific
Storage and transport3-10
Shielding21-359
Standards13-173
Storage
Sustained power5-46
Symbol descriptions
Safety guidelines 1-5
-
 Tearra casture as esite de c
Connection 18 352
Monitoring circuits
Sensors 4-23, 4-24
Temp-F→ Temp-F
Temp-S→ Temp-S
Temperature Monitoring
Temperature Monitoring General

© Siemens AG 2006 All rights reserved. SIMODRIVE linear motors 1FN1 and 1FN3-SL (PJLM) – Edition 01.06

E-381

Temperature sensors	
Temperature switch	
Temp-F	4-23,9-93,13-183

Temp-S	9-93, 13-83
Thermo sandwich	4-26
Transport	3-10

TO:	Suggestions
Siemens AG	
A&D MC MS 1	Corrections
P.O. Box 3180	For Publication/Manual:
D-91050 Erlangen	SIMODRIVE
Federal Republic of Germany	1EN1- and 1EN3-SL-type linear
Phone +49 (0) 180 / 5050222 [hotline]	motors
Fax +49 (0) 9131 / 98-63315 [Documentation]	1101013
E Meil metionsentrel desu@siemens.com	
E-Mail motioncontrol.docu@siemens.com	Manufacturer/service documentation
	Configuration Manual
From	
	Order No.: 6SN1197-0AB70-0BP6
Name:	Edition: 01 06
Address of your company/department	If you come corece any microrinte in
Address:	this document, please let us know
Postal/zip code: City:	using this form. Suggestions for
Telephone: /	improvements are also welcomed.
Telefax: / _	

Suggestions and/or corrections